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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 20-F
(Mark One)
REGISTRATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OR (g) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934
OR

M  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20(
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
OR

O SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
Date of event requiring this shell company repor
For the transition period from to
Commission File number 001-13358

Vifa Conchay Toro S.A.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @njart

Concha y Toro Winery Inc.
(Translation of Registrant’s name into English)

Republic of Chile
(Jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Casilla 213
Nueva Tajamar 481
Torre Norte, Piso 15

Santiago, Chile
(562) 476-5000

(Address and telephone number of principal exeeutffices)

Blanca Bustamante
(562) 476-5026
bbustamante @conchaytoro.cl
Nueva Tajamar 481
Torre Norte, Piso 15
Santiago, Chile

(Name, Telephone, E-mail and/or Facsimile numbér/Aadress of Company Contact Person)

Securities registered or to be registered pursisaBéction 12(b) of the Act:

Name of each exchange

Title of each clas on which registere
American Depositary Shares (“ADS"), each represgn#0 Shares of New York Stock Exchange
common stocl
Shares of common stock (“Shares” or “Common Stqaokijhout nominal New York Stock Exchange*

(par) value, of Vifia Conchay Toro S.
Securities registered or to be registered pursisaBéction 12(g) of the Act. None
Securities for which there is a reporting obligatmursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act. None

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of eatiedssuer’s classes of capital or common stackfahe close of the period covered by the anremdrt:
Shares of common stock without nominal (par) value 747,005,982



Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is a vkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0B#turities Act.
Yes NoO

If this is an annual or transition report, indichiecheck mark if the Registrant is not requiredil®reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) & 8ecurities Exchange /
of 1934.
YesO NoM

Note — Checking the box above will not relieve any registrrequired to file reports pursuant to Sectiorofd5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193hfrthei
obligations under those Sections.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sewctit3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 4. @8iring th:
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period tia Registrant was required to file such repaats) (2) has been subject to such filing requirdmér the past ¢
days.

Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant igdaaccelerated filer, an accelerated filer, oroa-accelerated filer. See definition cdctelerated filer and lar
accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange. Ac

Large accelerated filed Accelerated filelO Non-accelerated filed

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdstted electronically and posted iv& corporate Web site, if any, every Interactiva@®File required to be submit
and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation(§-232,405 of this chapter) during the precedi@gnonths (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required
submit and post such files).

YesO NoO

Indicate by check mark which basis of accountirgrégistrant has used to prepare the financiarsitts included in this filing:

O U.S. GAAP O International Financial Reporting M Other
Standards as issu
by the International Accounting Standards
Board

If “Other” has been checked in response to theipusvquestion, indicate by check mark which finahstatement item the registrant has elected tovfol
O Item 174 Item 1¢

If this is an annual report, indicate by checkrknwhether the registrant is a shell company é&imed in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
YesO No™
* Not for trading, but only in connection with thegistration of ADS.
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CERTAIN DEFINED TERMS

Unless otherwise specified, all references to “d@lars,” “dollars” or “US$” are to United Statesllars and all references to “Chilean pesos,” tgéor “Ch$”
are to Chilean pesos. “UFéfers to the Unidad de Fomento, an accountingusa&t in Chile. The exchange rate between the dRtenChilean Peso is constantly adju
to inflation so that the value of the Unidad de oo remains constant. Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. (€& y Toro” or the “Company”), a corporatiosdciedad anénirr
abierta) formed under the laws of the Republic of Chil€lffle”), publishes its consolidated financial statementsShilean pesos, adjusted to reflect changes in jpsiot
power due to inflation. See Notes 2(d), 23 andd3thé audited consolidated balance sheets of timep@oy and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008009 and ti
related consolidated statements of income, chaimgsbareholders’ equity and cash flows for eachhefyears in the thregear period ended December 31, 2009
“Consolidated Financial Statementgfntained in Item 18. Unless otherwise specifig@ricial information regarding the Company is pnésé in constant Chilean pe
as of December 31, 2009 and in accordance withrgiyneccepted accounting principles in the Repubfi Chile (“Chilean GAAP”).Chilean GAAP varies in certe
important respects from generally accepted accogrmrinciples in the United States (“U.S. GAAP3ee Note 37 to the Consolidated Financial Statesneotitained i
Item 18. Amounts in tables appearing in this AnriR@port may not total due to rounding. “The ExcleaAgt” refers to the U.S. Securities Exchange Ad984.

Glossary of Special Terms

Lees:Sediment composed of dead yeast cells and othéclparemaining in wine after fermentation. Redhevis transferred off this sediment. Some whiteee
are left on their leesqur lie) to add flavor and complexity.

Maceration: Refers to period during which the must or wine rgmman contact with the grape skins. Alcohol adsassolvent, extracting color, tannin and ar
from the skins.

Malic Acid: Component of wine. Accounts for green and souetattwine made from unripe grapes. See “maloldetimentation.”

Malolactic fermentationConversion by bacteria (not yeast) of malic actd iiactic acid. Softens wine and reduces overatligc A process now applied to
red wines, but not all white wines.

Must: Freshly crushed grape juice (with or without skimsg-fermentation.

Table WinesNon-sparkling wines with at least 11.5% alcohoMojume, which are traditionally consumed with food.
Vinifera: Of, relating to or being derived from premium grsjpsed in wine making.

Viniculture/Viticulture: The cultivation of grapes.

Units of Measure

1 Case = 9 Liters

Centigrade = 5/9 (Fahrenheit- 32)

1 Hectare = 2.47 Acres

1 Kilogram = 2.2 Pound:

1 Kilometer = .62 Miles

1 Liter = 1.057 Quart:

1 Milliliter = 1/1000 Liter

1U.S. Tor = 2,000 Pounds or 907 Kilograr




FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain forwdodking statements within the meaning of SectioA 27 the Securities Act of 1933, as amended andi@e21E o
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeH,respect to the financial condition, results pé@tions and business of the Company and ceri@is pnd objectiv
of the Company with respect to these items. Ford@alling statements contained in this Annual Repuay be identified by the use of forwdmbking terminology, suc
as “anticipate,” “continue,” “estimate,” “expectjhtend,” “may,” or the negative thereof or other variations ther@ocomparable terminology. In particular, amonigea
statements, certain statements in Item 4 — “Infdionaon the Company — Business Overviewith regard to management objectives, trends irketeshares, mark
standing and product volumes and the statemeriterim5 — “Operating and Financial Review and Protgleand Item 11 — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosu
About Market Risk,” with regard to trends in resulif operations, margins, overall market trend®rést rates and exchange rates are fonleanking in nature. By the
nature, forward-looking statements involve riskscertainty, assumptions and other factors whicHdcoause actual results, including the Compariiiancial conditio
and profitability, to differ materially and be manegative than the results herein described.

There are a number of factors that could causeahotsults and developments to differ materiallynfrthose expressed or implied by these forwaotting
statements. These factors include, but are notdinio, the risk factors identified in Item 3 — “Kénformation — Risk Factorsbdf this Annual Report and in t
Company’s Registration Statement on Form F-1, filéth the Securities and Exchange Commission orol@st 13, 1994 (No. 384298) and incorporated by refere
hereto, levels of consumer spending in major ecae®nchanges in consumer tastes and preferenedeyvitls of marketing and promotional expenditingshe Compar
and its competitors, raw materials and employe&sc@igure exchange and interest rates, changes irates and future business combinations or dispos.

ITEM 1: IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISO RS
Not applicable.

ITEM 2: OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable.

ITEM 3: KEY INFORMATION

Selected Historical Financial Data

The following table presents selected consoliddiaencial data, under the captions “Consolidatedte3hent of Income Data — Chilean GAAPRghc
“Consolidated Balance Sheet Data — Chilean GAAR,'bADecember 31, 2008 and 2009 and for each ofehes in the thregear period ended December 31, 2
derived from the Consolidated Financial Stateméerdisided in this Annual Report and as of Decemlgr2005, 2006 and 2007 and for each of the yeattseinwoyeal
period ended December 31, 2006, derived from Cateted Financial Statements not included in thisdal Report. The audited Consolidated FinancialeBtants ai
prepared in accordance with Chilean GAAP, whicliedsf in certain important respects from U.S. GAARte 37 to the Consolidated Financial Statememnisiges
description of the principal differences betweernl€&im GAAP and U.S. GAAP that affect the finangtdtements of the Company, the effects of suclerdiffces on tt
calculation of shareholders’ equity and net incamnd a reconciliation to U.S. GAAP of shareholdexiity at December 31, 2008 and 2009, and of e for each
the years in the thregear period ended December 31, 2009. This infoonathould be read in conjunction with the ConsdéidaFinancial Statements including the n
thereto (the “Notes”), included in Item 18 heremdahe statements in Item 5 — “Operating and FirdriReview and ProspectsAll information expressed in Chile
pesos, except dividends, is presented in constaiféa® pesos at December 31, 2009 purchasing possged on the Chilean Consumer Price Index (“CPI7).




As of and for the Year Ended December 3!

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Ch$ Ch$ Ch$ Ch$ Ch$
(Expressed in millions of constant Ch$, exceptrfmal ratios and
per share/ADS amount
Consolidated Statement of Income Dat
Chilean GAAP:
Revenue from sale 234,93: 246,64: 304,06° 314,75¢ 353,59!
Operating incom: 29,06: 27,79¢ 50,26¢ 50,10: 44,60
Non-operating income (expense), | (2,799 (4,440 (5,339 (6,86¢€) 8,25¢
Net income 22,21 18,46¢ 36,230 34,34 44,16(
Net income per shal 30.¢ 25.7 50.4 47.¢ 59.1
Net income per AD‘W 61¢€ 514 1,00¢ 95¢& 1,182
Dividend declared per sha® 10.6( 9.0C 18.9¢ 19.5¢ 23.7(C
Weighted average number of shares outstar®) 719,170,73 719,170,73 719,170,73 719,170,73 747,005,98
U.S. GAAP:
Revenues from sal¢ 234,93: 246,64 304,06° 314,75t 353,59!
Operating incom: 28,74¢ 27,65¢ 49,81 50,51¢ 44,704
Net income 24,38 18,41( 37,49( 32,318 43,59(
Basic and diluted earnings per sh 34.71 26.2( 52.1: 44.9:¢ 58.3¢
Weighted average number of shares outstar®® 719,170,73 719,170,73 719,170,73 719,170,73 747,005,98
Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat
Chilean GAAP:
Total asset 359,29! 391,31¢ 419,09¢ 505,90 511,52¢
Long-term financial deb 70,32: 70,53¢ 67,00¢ 68,14: 62,097
Shareholder equity 198,51: 208,14° 236,95¢ 257,04: 307,40¢
Capital stock 52,18: 52,18t 52,18t 52,18: 72,81
Additional paic-in-capita- share premiur 6,08¢ 6,08¢ 6,08¢ 6,08¢ 6,004
U.S. GAAP:
Total asset 357,02 390,19¢ 417,94« 504,74: 521,29¢
Long-term financial deb 70,32: 70,88: 67,00¢ 68,14: 62,097
Shareholder equity 195,32: 205,09: 229,28( 249,58 306,03:
Selected Financial Ratio<4)
Chilean GAAP:
Operating margit 12.2% 11.2% 16.5% 15.9% 12.6%
Net margin 9.5% 7.5% 11.9% 10.€% 12.5%
Financial debt to equit 52.2% 52.5% 38.9% 54.(% 31.7%
Debt to capitalizatiol 34.2% 34.4% 28.(% 35.1% 24.1%
U.S. GAAP:
Operating margil 12.2% 11.2% 16.4% 16.(% 12.6%
Net margin 10.4% 7.5% 12.4% 10.2% 12.2%
Financial debt to equit 53.1% 53.2% 40.1% 55.6% 30.2%
Debt to capitalizatiol 34.% 34.&% 28.6% 35.7% 23.2%
Consumer Price Inde®) 3.6% 2.1% 7.4% 8.€% -2.3%

Q) Determined by multiplying per share amounts by PBDS = 20 Shares), unaudite

2) Dividends per share are expressed in historicalpanad correspond to interim and final dividendrgkd against net income of the corresponding figeat.

?3) Calculated on the basis of the number of shatgstanding and fully paid together with the pa@ portion of the number of shares outstandirtghbuyet fully
paid for each perioc

4) These ratios, which are expressed as percentages,oalculated as follows: Operating margin = (@peg income)/(Revenues from sales); Net margilNel
income)/(Revenues from sales); Debt to equity =ofShnd long-term borrowing)/(Total shareholderguiéy); Debt to capitalization = (Short and lotegr
borrowing)/(Short and lor-term borrowing plus Total sharehold’ equity). Ratios presented have been roun

5) Based on Chile’s Consumer Price Index (“CRdf)the period December 1 to November 30 of eadr yequired to be used for priterel restatement purpo:

under Chilean GAAF




Unless otherwise indicated, U.S. dollar equivaiefdarmation, except export figures, for informatimnChilean pesos, is based on the Observed Exehaate fo
December 31, 2009, which was Ch$507.10 per U.$ard®o representation is made that the Chilean ped).S. dollar amounts shown herein could hawnlm could
be converted into U.S. dollars or Chilean pesosh@gase may be, at any particular exchange rateadl.

Exchange Rates

Banco Central de Chiléhe “Central Bank of Chile"authorizes three types of exchange rates in Cfijle: reference rate set by the Central Bank ofeCl(ii) a
rate set in the formal institutional market fordign exchange currency and (iii) a rate set irsa tegulated informal market for foreign exchange.

Pursuant to Law 18840, the Central Bank of Chits #eeddlar acuerdo, which is a forecast of exchange rates used aefeeence exchange rate (tteeferenc
Exchange Rate”)The Reference Exchange Rate is published by thér@@é@ank of Chile for each day of the next montiséd on the following considerations: (i)
previous montts domestic inflation rate, (ii) a factor for intational inflation and (jii) a formula pegged to tbeS. dollar, the Japanese yen and the Euro. Tihese
currencies were chosen because they are the ciasesfdChile’s principal trading partners.

The Central Bank of Chile also authorizes commeébaaks and certain other entities to conduct fpraxchange transactions on a free market basisfthrma
Exchange Market”). The daily average exchange (thi “Observed Exchange Rated) which transactions are carried out in the Forfhvahange Market is publish
daily in Chilean newspapers. Prior to Septembd©29, participants of the Formal Exchange Markeeveithorized to carry out their transactions withispecified rang
above or below the Reference Exchange Rate (theh&hge Band”)As of September 2, 1999, the Central Bank of Céliminated the Exchange Band, allowing
exchange rate to fluctuate freely. The Central Baihihile has announced a policy to intervene & Formal Exchange Market only in certain excepfiamases, whic
interventions will be publicly disclosed.

The Mercado Cambiario Informa(the “Informal Exchange Markets a currency market comprised of exchange housdsneney changers in Chile. 1
Informal Exchange Market reflects the supply anthded for foreign currency and the rate of exchange Informal Exchange Market can fluctuate fyeelbove c
below the Observed Exchange Rate. Since 1990 atkeof exchange for pesos into U.S. dollars inltliermal Exchange Market has been similar to thathie Forme
Exchange Market. The Observed Exchange Rate aspfa#l, 2010 was Ch$530.62 per U.S. dollar.

The following table sets forth the annual high, l@verage and ye@nd Observed Exchange Rates for U.S. dollars foh gaar indicated and for each mc
during the previous six months, as reported byGéetral Bank of Chile. The Federal Reserve Bankex York does not report anypuying rate for Chilean pesos.

Annual High, Low, Average and Year-End
Observed Exchange Rate

Ch$ per US$
Year High ® Low @ Average® Period-end
2005 592.7¢ 509.7( 559.8¢ 512.5(
2006 549.6: 511.4« 530.2¢ 532.3¢
2007 548.6% 493.1¢ 522.6¢ 496.8¢
2008 676.7¢ 431.2: 521.7¢ 636.4¢
2009 643.87 491.0¢ 559.67 507.1(
December, 200 508.7¢ 494.8: 501.4¢ 507.1(
January, 201 531.7¢ 489.4° 500.6¢ 523.1(
February, 201! 546.1¢ 523.1( 532.5¢ 527.8¢
March, 201C 533.87 508.6¢ 523.1¢ 524.4¢
April, 2010 527.3¢ 514.9: 520.6: 517.2%
May, 2010 549.1° 517.2¢ 533.2: 530.6:

Q) Exchange rates are the actual high and low, ory-by-day basis, for each peric
2) The average of the daily rates during the pel

Source: Central Bank of Chile.




Risk Factors
Risks Relating to the Company

Agricultural Risks . Wine-making and grapgrowing are subject to a variety of agriculturadkd. Diseases, pests, drought, frosts and certhir aveathe
conditions can materially and adversely affectdbality, quantity and cost of grapes availablen® €ompany from its own vineyards and from outsidepliers, therek
materially and adversely affecting the supply & @ompany’s products and its profitability.

In effect, the 2008-2009 season was characterigedobmal climatic conditions, absence of rain anldrag harvest period. On the other hand, the 2208~
season presented different characteristics: ingodat a cold spring and some freezes which reduitdower agricultural yields for the national wimdustry, although
did not affect the quality of the grapes harveskdure freezes or drought conditions in Chile dagverely affect the quantity or quality of theguction of wine by tF
Company. Most of the Company vineyards have drigation; accordingly, the impact of a drought ¢ tCompany’s vineyards would be mitigated. See Wem
“Information on the Company — Chilean Wine Indusdyerview.”

Phylloxera, a pest which attacks the roots of greqes, has widely infested vineyards outside ofl€hut to date has never been found in Chileanyards. Th
Company, like most Chilean wine grape growersl gsies the French root varieties which are sudgepto phylloxera. While the Company carefully ssre new roc
stock for signs of infestation and adheres to #gilations imposed by tt®ervicio Agricola y Ganader(the “Chilean Agriculture Serviceequiring that all vegetatic
introduced into Chile be isolated under observafmma period of two years, there can be no asserdimat the Company'vineyards and other Chilean vineyards
continue to be phylloxeriee. Infestation could have a material adversecefbn the Company while vineyards are being repthand as they come into full product
See Item 4 — “Information on the Company — Chil®dime Industry Overview — Phylloxera.”

Risks Associated with Higher Taxes, Tariffs The Companyg core business is the production and sales ofswMénes are subject to a number of taxes
tariffs, including excise taxes in the United Ssatim the United Kingdom and in the Companyther principal export markets. Additional in@es in such taxes &
tariffs could depress wine consumption in thosekei@rand could adversely affect the Company’s sales

In addition, there is a risk that other countriesild impose or threaten to impose restrictions roparts of certain countriesvines in connection with tra
negotiations with such countries. Although Chils nat been the specific target of such actiondi@ats from the United States, the European Uniasther countries,
restrictions were imposed on Chilean wines, theyctcbave a material adverse effect on the Company.

Increases in Chilean taxes on wine could advewrdébgt the Company’s wine sales in Chile.

Government Regulation. The production and sale of wine is subject t@esive regulation within and outside of Chile. Téosgulations control matters sucl
licensing requirements, trade and pricing practipesmitted and required labeling, advertising agldtions with wholesalers and retailers. For examip is the curret
policy of the U.S. Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Rinas and Explosives that any statements made bpeaproducer promoting the potential health besefftwine mus
be balanced and must include appropriate statemegésding the established harmful effects of altaise. In recent years, U.S. federal and statéla&ays have requirt
warning labels and signage. Currently the ChileandBess is discussing a new law that will regulabeling of alcoholic beverages in Chile. There bamo assuran
that new or revised regulations or increased licentees and related requirements will not haveagenml adverse effect on the Companipusiness and its results
operations. See Item 4 — “Information on the Conypan Government Regulation.” Future expansion of @@mmpanys existing facilities and development of r
vineyards and wineries may be limited by presemt farture zoning ordinances and other legal requérgs Availability of water and requirements fomtling wast
water can limit the Company’growth. While the Company believes that it widhtinue to be in compliance with all applicable ieonmental regulations, there can be
assurance that future legislative or regulatoryetigyments will not impose restrictions which wolldve a material adverse effect on the Company.|t8ee 4 —
“Information on the Company — Government Regulation




Dependence on Distributors. The Company relies on distributors to sell itsdarcts in export markets. Sales to the Compatargest distributor, Banfi Produ
Corporation (“Banfi”) in the United States repreteeh12.9% and 12.6% of the Companiotal export revenues in 2009 and 2008; and @ié69.2% of total revenues
2009 and 2008, respectively. Sales to the Compafiye largest distributors, including Banfi, repeated 25.4% and 26.5% of total export revenue0@® and 200:
respectively and are expected to continue to repies significant portion of the Compasytbtal export revenues in the future. The Comgeas/written agreements w
most of its distributors—usually one— to two—-yesmnts, automatically renewable. In addition, the @any’s strategy to expand sales in major export maikdtsa larg
extent dependent on the performance of its didwiisu See Item 4 — “Information on the Company —siBass Overview — Company Sales — Export Markets
Distribution in Export Markets.”

Distributors and retailers of the Company’s produeften offer wines which compete directly with tBempanys products for shelf space and consur
Accordingly, there is a risk that these distribstar retailers may give higher priority to producfsthe Companys competitors. There can be no assurance th
Company’s distributors and retailers will contirtogpurchase the Company’s products or provide thmianys products with adequate levels of promotional sup|Se:
Iltem 4 — “Information on the Company — Business @i@v — Company Sales — Export Markets — Distribatin Export Markets.”

Dependence on Suppliers The Company relies oBristalerias de Chile S.A‘Cristalerias”)to supply almost all of its bottle requirementsis@ierias is
principal shareholder of one of the Company’s n@mpetitors,Vifia Santa Rita S.A'Santa Rita").Although there are another two suppliers of bottléth smalle
capacities, an interruption in the supply of battfeom Cristalerias to the Company for any reasmriccresult in a short-term material adverse eftecthe Companyg’
operations.

The Company has a license frdratra Pak de Chile Comercial Ltd@Tetra Pak Chile")to package wine in Tetra Brik packages and purchtisse unassemb
pre-printed packages from Tetra Pak Chile. Wine solTetra Brik packages accounted for approxinyat@.8% and 52.8% of the Compasylomestic sales by volul
and value, respectively, in 2009 and 70.2% and%5r@spectively, in 2008. Although the Company dads that alternate suppliers are available, arirgtion in th
supply of Tetra Brik packages to the Company for m@ason could result in a short-term material estveffect on the Company’s operations. See Item ‘“4nformatior
on the Company — Business Overview — Bottling.”

The Company currently relies on approximately 75@side vineyards for supplies of grapes and apprately 70 producers for bulk wine. In 20
approximately 62%, of the grapes used in the priglu®f the Company’s premium, varietal andvhrietal wines were purchased by the Company frodependel
growers in Chile. Additionally, in 2009, the Compapurchased grapes and bulk wine required to p@dpproximately 100% of the popular wines soldhigy €ompan:
Most of the Company’s agreements with growers a@olyer one year’s production and are renewed froan y@year. In 2009, the Company had Idegn contracts wit
up to approximately 20% of its growers.

Disruptions of supplies of grapes or wine or inse=ain prices from these outside suppliers coule: lramaterial adverse effect on the Compamgsults ¢
operations.

Competition . The wine industry in Chile and in the CompangXport markets is intensely competitive. In Claifel in approximately 135 other countries,
Companys wines compete with wines and other beverages €bite and other countries. Chilean wines, in gaheompete with wines produced in the United St
Europe, Australia, South Africa, South America &telv Zealand. In addition, the Compasiyines compete with other beverages includingdrirfiks, liquors, beer ar
in Chile, pisco (a Chilean grape spirit). Many lo¢ {Company’s competitors in Chile and abroad hay@ficantly greater financial resources than ttemany.




Due to competitive factors, the Company may noallle to increase prices of its wines in line withing farming, vinification, selling and promotidrepsts. Se
Iltem 5 — “Operating and Financial Review and Pratpé&There can be no assurance that in the future tiep&oy will be able to compete successfully withciisren
competitors or that it will not face greater conifi@t from other wineries and beverage manufactur8ee Item 4 — “Information on the Company — ComypS8ales—
Chilean Markets — Local Competition” and “— Compa®gles — Export Markets — Export Sales and Comipetit

Dependence on Consumer SpendingThe success of the Compasiyjusiness depends on a number of factors whichafiiegt the level of consumer spenc
and consumer spending patterns in Chile and inGbmpanys export markets, including the general state ef ébonomy, tax rates, the deductibility of busi
entertainment expenses under applicable tax lawlscansumer preferences, confidence and income. ilslyvreported, the worldwide and Chilean econonfiase
experienced adverse conditions and may be sulgefitrther deterioration for the foreseeable futuree Company is subject to risks associated widsehadver:
conditions. These conditions include economic skoma and its impact on consumer spending in Chikk iarthe Company export markets can affect the quantity
price of wines that customers are willing to pusshaSuch changes may result in reduced demandoaret prices for the Comparg/products, limitations on t
Company’s ability to pass through increased taxeshégher product costs to prisensitive consumers, increased levels of sellimgpromotional expenses and decre
sales of the Company’s highpriced premium and varietal wines. Consequentlgnges in consumer spending could have a matenefsel effect on the Company. !
Item 5 — “Operating and Financial Review and Prospg

Difficulty of Enforcing Judgments Under U.S. Feder& Securities Laws. The ability of a purchaser of American Deposit8hares (“ADS")of the Company 1
enforce judgments under the U.S. federal secutiigs against the Company or its directors and @kee officers may be limited by several factors.

The Company is aociedad anénima abiert@an “open stock corporation”) organized under #h&d of Chile. All of the Compang'directors and officers a
many of its advisors reside outside of the Unitéate3 (principally in Chile). All or a substantjdrtion of the assets of the Company and of thessops are locat
outside of the United States. As a result, it matybe possible for investors to effect service micpss within the United States on the Companysarfficers, directors
advisors, or to enforce against them in UnitedeStaburts judgments obtained in United States sqmdicated upon the civil liability provisions thfe U.S. feder.
securities laws.

The Company’sEstatutos(the “By-Laws”) provide that all legal actions brought by sharebrddin their capacity as such, or among shareloldad th
Company, must be submitted either to resolutionhigyordinary courts of Chile or to arbitration ihil@ by an arbitrator chosen by mutual consentathtparties. If th
parties cannot select an arbitrator acceptabletio, lan arbitrator will be appointed by the ordinaeourts of Chile who will have to have served dgrthe last 3 years
assistant member of the Chilean Supreme Court.Byhkeaws also provide that the arbitrator would astanéarbitro arbitrador , who under Chilean law would not
required to apply any particular body of law orgedures (except as a matter of public policy) andld/be authorized to decide the matter in accarelavith his or he
view of what is just and equitable. Because antratior is not required to apply any particular badyaw or procedure to decide a matter, it is ¢cler that an arbitrat
would consider a claim predicated upon U.S. fedeealrities laws. Under Chilean law, thereforerahs uncertainty regarding the ability of ADS herisl to bring actior
against the Company or its officers, directorsawisors based upon U.S. federal securities law{helten Chilean courts or arbitration proceedings.

In addition, a court in the United States mightuieg|that a claim predicated upon the U.S. fedsealrities laws be submitted to arbitration in adaace with th
By-Laws. In that event, a purchaser of ADS woulcefectively precluded from pursuing remedies urttierU.S. federal securities laws in U.S. courts.

The Company has been advised by its Chilean cou@setat, Ortlizar & Mackenna Ltda.Baker & McKenzie, that no treaty exists between timéted State
and Chile for the reciprocal enforcement of forejgdgments issued by ordinary courts (exceptionenafdawards issued by foreign arbitral courts, whiie UN Ney
York Convention may be applied). Chilean courtsyéeer, have enforced judgments rendered by UnitattScourts provided that certain basic principfedue proces
and public policy have been respected (basicaly tie judgment (a) does not contain anything eontto the laws of Chile, notwithstanding differesdn procedur
rules, (b) is not in conflict with Chilean jurisdiicn, (c) has not been rendered by default withim tneaning of Chilean law and (d) is final under ldws of the releva
foreign jurisdiction rendering such judgment), witih reviewing the merits of the subject mattertie tase. Nevertheless, the Company has been adws€duzal
Ortlzar & Mackenna Ltda. Baker & McKenzie that a judgment rendered by a W8rcwill be in conflict with Chilean jurisdictioif it affects in any way properti
located in Chile, which are as a matter of Chilé&am subject to the laws of Chile as well as to jimesdiction of Chilean courts. Therefore, theredisubt as to tr
enforceability in Chile of judgments rendered wieispect to Chilean securities, by United Statestsan actions predicated upon the civil liabiliy the U.S. feder.
securities laws.




Seasonality. The wine industry in general and the Company artigular, have historically experienced and arpeeted to continue to experience, seas
fluctuations in revenues and net income. In the,ghe Company has had lower sales and net incamiegdthe first quarter and higher sales and nedrime during th
third and fourth quarters. The Company expectsttiisd to continue. Sales can fluctuate signifigabetween quarters, depending on the timing ofageholidays an
promotional periods and on the rate at which distar inventories are depleted through sales t@ weémailers. Sales volume tends to decrease iflalisdrs begin a quart
with larger inventory levels, which is typicallyeltase in the first quarter of each year. See &em“Information on the Company — Business OverviewSeasonality.”

Risks Relating to Chile

Dependence on the Chilean Economy As of December 2009, 92% of the CompangSsets were located in Chile. In 2009 and 20818sdn the Chilec
market accounted for approximately 20.7% and 19 @¥pectively, of the Compargytotal revenues. Historically, domestic wine salesw a high degree of correlat
with the economic situation prevailing in a countAccordingly, the Compang’financial condition and results of operations @ependent to a significant extent u
economic conditions prevailing in Chile. The mainil€an indicators for 2008 and 2009 were:

GDP grew 3.7% in 2008 and decreased 1.5% in 2009.
Private consumption grew 4.6% in 2008 and 0.9%0ip92

The unemployment rate was 7.5% and 8.6% in Dece2®@8 and 2009, respectively. As of February 2@1€ ,unemployment rate was 8.5%, comp
to 8.5% in February 200

As a percentage of GDP, investment in fixed assats29.2% in 2008 and 25.1% in 2009.

Source: Central Bank of Chile.

The Company’s financial condition and results ofmions could also be adversely affected by chendgch the Company has no control over, including:

the economic or other policies of the Chilean gowegnt, which has a substantial influence on mapgés of the private sector;
other political or economic developments in or etffeg Chile; and

regulatory changes or administrative practiceshife@n authorities.

The Companys financial condition and results of operationoalepend to some extent on the level of econontigigcin both Latin American and oth
countries. Although economic conditions are differen each country, investorseactions to developments in one country may affieetsecurities of issuers in ot
countries, including Chile.




Volatile and llliquid Nature of the Market for the Common Stock in Chile. The Common Stock of the Company is traded onBtlsa de Comercio |
Santiago(the “Santiago Stock Exchange”), tBelsa Electronica de Chiland theBolsa de Corredores— Bolsa de Valoregcollectively, the “Chilean Exchanges™he
Chilean securities markets are substantially smdéss liquid and more volatile than major se@esimarkets in the United States. The Santiagok¥achange, which
Chile’s principal exchange and which accountedofar 87% of Chiles equity trading volume in 2009, had a market edigétion of approximately US$230.8 billion as
December 31, 2009 and an average monthly traditdS83,465 million. The ten largest companies imteof market capitalization represented approximai®% of the
aggregate market capitalization of the Santiag@kSExchange as of December 31, 2009. Daily shawdirtg volumes on the Santiago Stock Exchange ar@verag
substantially lower than those on the principalaret! securities exchanges in the United States.t&h most widelyraded stocks in terms of trading volume accoufe
approximately 58.7% of all trading volume on thentBsgo Stock Exchange in 2009. During 2009, appnately 17.5% of the securities listed on the Saoti&tocl
Exchange traded an average of 85% or more of duéniy days.

In addition, the Chilean securities markets mawffiected by developments in other emerging marleticularly other countries in Latin America.

Currency Fluctuations . The Chilean peso has been subject to large fitions in value in the past, most recently durimg past five year period and may
subject to significant fluctuations in the futuBee Item 3 — “Key Information — Exchange Ratddlictuations in the exchange rate between the @hipeso and otk
currencies affect the performance of the CompaADS, as well as the Company’s financial conditionl aesults of operation in a variety of ways.

Because the ADS are denominated in U.S. dolladecaease in the value of the Chilean peso relativibe U.S. dollar may adversely affect the valti¢he
Company and its Common Stock underlying the ADSetér a depreciation of the Chilean peso would e affect the value of the Company and its asaeiulc
depend on a variety of factors, including the &pitif the Company and investors to access thedgorekchange markets in Chile, the timing, volume execution of th
Companys treasury functions to convert foreign currendyp i@hilean pesos, the value of revenues denominatixteign currency relative to Chilean pesos, rislative
balances of Chilean pesos and foreign currency dvayehe Company at any time and market perceptbrise severity of the impact of such events anGompany.
these and other factors, which may influence theevaf the Company and its assets in either dwactiave an aggregate negative effect on the \adltiee Company ar
its assets, a depreciation of the value of thedahilpeso would result in a decrease of the valuaficthe assets underlying the ADS in U.S. dokants, thereby resultii
in a decrease in the value of the ADS.

Because the Comparsyexport sales are primarily denominated in foreigrrencies, changes in these foreign currenciéiset&hilean peso may adversely ai
the financial condition and results of operatiohshe Company. Over 79% of the Compasyevenues are related to foreign sales that arendieated in U.S. dollal
Euros, Pounds Sterling, Canadian dollars, Argentesos, Brazilian reais and Swedish and Norwegiawres. Changes in these foreign currencies relatitbe Chilea
peso may result in operating losses for the Compentyits subsidiaries. In order to mitigate therskerm effect of changes in currency exchange ratesCompan
enters into, from time to time, forward exchangeeagients. See Item 5 — “Operating and Financiald®®eand Prospects.”

The Company holds assets in Argentine pesos thridaghrgentine subsidiaries, whose assets are sutgecurrency fluctuation. Since 2004, the Comphay
used financial instruments to minimize this effétie to the conversion of the financial stateméms Argentine to Chilean GAAP and the depreciatidéithe Argentin
peso, in 2009, the Company recognized a gain of@&nillion, in 2008 recognized a loss of Ch$471liam and in 2007 a gain of Ch$124 million.

Because the Company purchases some of its sugtligsces set at U.S. dollars and sells the pradincother currencies, the Company is exposed reigc
exchange risks that may adversely affect its firdreondition and results of operations. Most nbtathe Company purchases bottles, corks and TRttkapackages i
prices set in U.S. dollars. To the extent that@oenpany sells products with these components fsoger other nok).S. currencies, changes in the exchange ratee
U.S. dollar relative to these other currencies megylt in losses and adversely affect the Compdmesicial and operating results. See ltem 5O6pérating and Financ
Review and Prospects.”




In addition, cash distributions with respect torglseof Common Stock underlying the ADS are paidhgyCompany to the Depositary on behalf of shacdslir
Chilean pesos. The Depositary then converts thespesU.S. dollars at the then prevailing exchanage to pay the dividend on the ADS in U.S. doll#fr¢he value of th
Chilean peso falls relative to the U.S. dollar ketw the declaration of dividends and the distridsutf such dividends by the Depositary, the amairit.S. dollar
distributed to holders of ADS will decrease. Seelt3 — “Key Information — Exchange Rates.”

Restrictions on Foreign Investment and Repatriation The Law of the Central Bank of Chile authorizes €entral Bank of Chile to regulate foreign exds
transactions, including those relating to ADS fiéiei. At the time the ADS facility was issued, entral Bank had issued certain regulations (F@rher Regulation3”
imposing the obligation to obtain the previous auttation from the Central Bank of Chile and the@xtion of an agreement with such bank in ordgrézeed with a
ADS facility.

Due to the above, the ADS facility is subject tcoatract between the Depositary, the Company aa€#ntral Bank of Chile (the “Foreign Investmenn@act”)
that grants the Depositary and the holders of tB& Access to Chile’Formal Exchange Market and permits the Depositargmit dividends received from the Comp
to holders of ADS without restriction. See ltem-20‘Additional Information — Exchange Control&r a more detailed description of the new regalaiand the Forei
Investment Contract.

Under the Foreign Investment Contract, transferdeshares withdrawn from the ADS facility will nbe entitled to access ChiseeFormal Exchange Mart
unless the withdrawn shares are redeposited wétDipositary. Cash and property dividends paidneyGompany with respect to ADS held by a @ilean residel
holder are subject to a 35% Chilean withholding takich is withheld by the Company. However, staitkidends are deemed a ntaxable event pursuant to Chile
Income Tax Law and, thus, are not subject to Chiteaation. See Item 10 — “Additional Information Faxation.”

The Foreign Investment Contract is currently ircéoand will continue to govern the ADS facility il parties agree to terminate it. If the Foreigivestmer
Contract is terminated, the ADS facility would theecome subject to the New Regulations (as defirdolv). Under Chilean legislation, a Foreign Inmesint Contrac
may not be altered or affected adversely by actidrike Central Bank of Chile.

The Central Bank of Chile relaxed foreign excharnegrictions in year 2002, allowing entities andiuduals to purchase, sell, keep and remit abrfoaeigr
currency without restrictions, although the CenBahk of Chile still requires reports of such tractons to be filed with it.

The Central Bank of Chile adopted a new ForeignhBrge Regulations Compendium (the “New Regulatjopsblished in the Official Gazette on January
2002 and effective as of March 1, 2002. The NewuRgpns impose only three levels of restrictionsobligations on foreign exchange transactions hileC (i) certair
transactions requiring exchange of foreign curremesst be conducted through the Formal Exchange &dile., a commercial bank) and reported to thet@eBank o
Chile (e.g., investments, loans, deposits and icedther transactions in excess of US$10,000);d@ijtain transactions requiring exchange of foregrrency to b
remitted abroad must be conducted through the HdExehange Market without any reporting obligati@ng., all license and royalty payments to be remiabroad); ar
(iii) certain transactions requiring exchange aefgn currency must only be reported to the Cefgealk of Chile (e.g., payments regarding import ergort transaction
etc.).

Because the Law of the Central Bank of Chile autiesrthe Central Bank of Chile to regulate foreggwhange transactions, including those relating s
facilities, it may reestablish more restrictive regulations on foreighange affecting ADS holders of the Company at amg. Thus, in the event that the Fore
Investment Contract were terminated, an amendneetitet New Regulations could, among other thingstrict the ability of ADS holders to dispose of thederlying
shares of Common Stock of the ADS or repatriategeds of the Common Stock. The duration or imphahg such restrictions would be difficult to asses
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Differences in Corporate Disclosure and Accountingraxation Standards . The principal objective of Chile’ securities laws governing publicly tra
companies, such as the Company, is to promoteodis@ of all material corporate information to istees. In addition, Chilean law imposes restriction insider tradir
and price manipulation. However, the Chilean séiesrimarkets are not as highly regulated and sigefvas the U.S. securities markets and Chileaclodisre
requirements differ from those in the United Stafdsese differences may result in fewer protectimnsolders of ADS than would exist if United Statsecurities lav
governed the Compars/domestic securities transactions. Neverthelesi@ 2009 a new set of rules were enacted (La®@arporate Governance N° 20.382) in orde
improve the protection of the minority shareholdénese rules focused principally on the followingtters:

. Reducing information asymmetries between sharehoidene Law of Corporate Governance (i) requires tharthof directors of a company to gener:
set of rules designed to ensure the timely and &etmpelease of information required by the Chil&aturities and Insurance Supervisor (“SV#ig,
stock exchange markets and the general publicie@lires the board of directors of a company susnthat all legal and financial information regqa
to be released to the shareholders and the gemani€, shall not first be disclosed to anyonehe tompany other than those employees or exec
who, because of their position or activity, shokifibw this information before it is made availaldeshareholders and the general public; and (ijires
the company to issue a set of rules and procedegesding variation in or changes to securitiesq®; applicable to all directors and executi

. Strengthening the role of the independent direatoa representative of minority shareholdéree Law of Corporate Governance clearly establistie:
may serve in a company as independent directockeadly states the procedure for their electiore Thw of Corporate Governance requires at leas
independent director on a local dire’s committee

. Ensuring the Corporate welfare in transactions wétlated parties The Law of Corporate Governance provides strictedarres for approving rela
party transactions. Excluding minor exceptionssections with related parties shall have priorapal and shall be carried out only if they promthte
corporate welfare

. Long distance voting for shareholtd®meetings The Law of Corporate Governance also authoripeg Idistance voting for shareholderneeting
according to general rulings issued by the S

. New right of retirement scenar: The Law of Corporate Governance includes thetridgtthe minority shareholders to force the coritmgl shareholder 1
purchase their shares if it acquires more thar?a ke of a compan

. Insider Information The use of insider information for personal bérisfprohibited under Chilean corporate law.

There are also important differences between Ohidead U.S. accounting principles and reportingddaahs. As a result, Chilean financial statementsraporte:
earnings may differ from those reported based dB. @ccounting and reporting standards. Dividends ki paid only from the Compasyincome determined
accordance with Chilean GAAP. In 2007 the SVS dml €Company began a migration program from locabaweting principles to International Financial Repwg
Standards (“IFRS”). During 2010 the Company’s ficiahstatements will be presented in accordancle WiRS principles.

Differences in Shareholders’ Rights. The corporate affairs of the Company are govelmedchilean law and the By-Laws. The Bgws perform functior
similar to those performed by both the certificaténcorporation and the bylaws of a corporatiocoirporated in the United States. See Item 10Additional Informatior
— Estatutos (By-Laws).The principles of law applicable to the Company @sdhareholders differ from those that would gppthe Company were incorporated in
United States. However, shareholders who own 5%hare of the Company as well as any of its directesentitled to take legal action in the namehef €ompan
against anyone who may have caused damage to thpaBy.

Inflation . Although inflation in Chile has moderated in necgears, Chile has historically experienced higfels of inflation. High levels of inflation in Qb

could adversely affect the Chilean economy and lzarwterial adverse effect on the Comparfifiancial condition and results of operationse Bmnual rates of inflatic
for 2009, 2008 and 2007 were -2.3%, 8.9% and 7ré%pectively.
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The Company believes that moderate inflation wit materially affect its business in Chile. Notwitiinding the foregoing, there can be no assurdra
inflation in Chile will not increase significantfyom its current levels and that the operating ltesaf the Company or the value of the ADS will et affected adverse
by a continuation of or an increase in the levehétion.

ITEM 4: INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY
A. History and Development of the Company

Concha y Toro is a corporatiorsgciedad anénima abierfgorganized under the laws of Chile. The Compamged of incorporation was executed on Dece
31, 1921 and the Company was registered in thesRegie Comercio de Santiago on November 6, 1982.ompanys principal executive offices are located at Nt
Tajamar 481, Torre Norte, Piso 15, Santiago. The@my'’s telephone number at that location is (3585000 and the Internet address is www.conchaytomo. dde
complete legal name of the Company is Vifia Concliarp S.A.

The Company is the largest Chilean producer andréaip of wines in terms of both volume and valuéhwotal sales in 2009 of 259 million liters ¢
Ch$353,595 million.

The Company was founded in 1883 by Don Melchor @ang Toro and Don Ramén Subercaseaux Mercado. Delohgr was the grandson of Don Matec
Toro y Zambrano, who presided over the first goment following Chiles independence from Spain in 1810. The family leaeived the title of Marqués de Casa Col
from King Philip V of Spain in 1718. The winery wastablished in the Pirque region, on the bordeh@fMaipo River, on land which belonged to Don ¢helr's wife.
Dofia Emiliana Subercaseaux. The vines used cameBaydeaux, France and were the traditional vasetif that area: Cabernet Sauvignon, Merlot, Saaviglanc an
Semillon. These varieties were brought to Chileobefphylloxera devastated French vineyards. M. dboucheére, a French oenologist, came to Chile tysee th
planting and the first harvest. The Company renchaéamily business until 1921, when the Conchailfadecided to convert it into a limited liabilitstock company ar
issued shares to all of its family members. In 1988se shares began trading on the Santiago Stattlange.

The Company owns and operates vineyards that grapeg for use in the Company’s wimeking operations, vinification plants (which cortvgrapes int
wine), bottling plants and its wine distributiontwerk. Within Chile, the Company owns and operategyards located in Chile’nine principal wine growing regions.
addition to its properties in Chile, the Companyneva winery and vineyards in Mendoza, Argentina.

In domestic and export markets, the Company’s éttlines are sold in the premium, varietalydiietal and sparkling wine segments. In the doimestd expol
markets, the Company sells popular wines, packagethrily in 1, 1.5 and 2.0 liter Tetra Brik paclesy A small quantity of wine, 0.8% of total revesueas sold in bu
form in domestic and export markets.

The Company sells its premium wines under brandesaimcluding: Don Melchor, Carmin de Peumo, Amélesrunyo, Marqués de Casa Concha, Gran Re
Serie Riberas, Casillero del Diablo, Trio and Lidtgvest. The Company sells its varietal anddnietal wines under the brand names Sunrise, Gopdforo and Frontel
In addition, the Company’s subsidiaries, Vifia C&w, Vifia Maipo, Vifia Palo Alto, Vifia Maycas dehiari and Trivento, market their premium, varietad &ivarieta
wines under the brand names Cono Sur, Isla NegaigdyiPalo Alto, Maycas del Limari and Trivento.€T@ompany sells popular wines under the brand ndmesrnal
Clos de Pirque, Exportadn and Fressco. See Item 4 — “Information on the gamy — Chilean Wine Industry Overview — Wine Cléissiions,” “— Busines
Overview — Company Sales — Chilean Markets” and Gempany Sales — Export Markets.”
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The Companys first initiative toward the development of mo@plex wines was the launching of Casillero deldlban 1965. Casillero del Diablo was mi
from selected grapes and aged two years longerttfeastandard Cabernet Sauvignon then being prdddcelay, Casillero del Diablo is the largest sedimong th
Companys premium wines. In the past eight years, the Compas focused its marketing efforts on the Casiltel Diablo brand. Through a global marketing paigr
launched in August 2001 and with a new packagiigjrally unveiled in 2002, the Comparsytarget is to transform Casillero del Diablo iatglobal brand. In 2009, sa
of Casillero del Diablo totaled 2.60 million cases.

The Company has produced sustained growth in regesars in all areas of its business, maintainisgpitsition as the undisputed leader in the Chilgare
industry. Concha y Toro has strongly penetratedptiiecipal external markets, where the brand enjagé recognition and growing brand preferencefddént factor
have contributed to the Compasystrength in both the domestic and external markébst notable are its investments in the latshiiologies and production technic
for producing premium and suppremium wines, the growth of and constant innovetioits own production and the launching of newdurcts in the premium segme
In addition, the Company has a solid distributi@twork that complements an export strategy basdti@market diversification and constant expansion.

The Company also believes that it has competitdiaatages in export markets due to the lower pramlucosts in Chile as compared to the costs fégeits
competitors in other principal wine-making courgrisuch as the United States.

The Company conducts its operations directly amduph subsidiaries. The Company’s distribution bess in Chile is conducted through its whallynec
subsidiaryComercial Peumo Ltdg*Comercial Peumo”). In December 2000, the Compfamgned a fullyowned sales and distribution subsidiary in the &thiKingdom
Concha y Toro UK Limited (“Concha y Toro UK"This subsidiary commenced operations in March 2002008, Concha y Toro established distributiobsadiaries il
Brazil, Sweden, Finland and Norway in order torggthen its sales in those countries.

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidia§ociedad Exportadora y Comercial Vifia Maipo Ltfi&/ifia Maipo”), currently exports Vifia Maipo brand wines
holds investments in affiliated companies. The Canys wholly-owned subsidiary/ifia Cono Sur S.A.is involved in the sale, both in the local angh@x market, ¢
Cono Sur and Isla Negra brand wines. In 1996, thagzny, through Comercial Peumo and Vifia Maipoumed Vifia Patagonia S.A(*Vifia Patagonia”), the Comparg/’
first non-Chilean subsidiary. In 2001, Vifia Patagochanged its trading name to Trivento Bodegasiflebs S.A. (“Vifia Trivento” or “Trivento”}o reinforce th
marketability of Trivento, its main brand and ramfevines. Vifia Trivento is located in Mendoza, Angina.

In recent years, the Company has launched sevevalines, marketed and distributed by its subsilarto strengthen its position in the premium ander
premium categories. In 2006, the Company introdecpcemium wine, Palo Alto, to the market and i020he Company introduced wines from Vifia MayoalsLdmari.
a new super premium winery. Vifia Maycas del Limaidbcated in the Limari Valley, a relatively newne region in the north of Chile that the Compamjidves hs
strong enological potential and in which the Comphas invested in the recent years. In August 26@9company launched in Chile (and in selecteckets) a new lin
of wines, Gran Reserva Serie Riberas to strengtiesupepremium category of the Concha y Toro portfolioeTerie Riberas line originates in vineyards latatethe
basins of different Chilean rivers that receiveldweezes from the coast and are noted for thérfiesss of their wines.

In 2009, a new subsidiary of Vifia Cono Sur, VifieHos Robles SpA, was created to sell fair tradeegimainly in the UK and European markets. Its rbamc
is Los Robles La Fonda.

In March 2007, Concha y Toro signed an agreemetit winery José Canepa y Compafiia Limitadavering, among other topics, the winenproductio
facilities in Lo Espejo, in the Santiago metropaiitarea. The agreement includes the lease of Cané@pdication and aging cellar and warehouse fioished products, .
well as a brand licensing agreement that will alMifia Concha y Toro to market and distribute Canapé Mapocho brands in the domestic and internaltiorarkets
These wines are managed by the wholly-owned sw@giBociedad Exportadora y Comercial Vifia Canepa 8MWfia Canepa”).
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In 1997, the Company ar8aron Philippe de Rothschild S.&Rothschild S.A.”) formed a joint venture compaasganized under the laws of Chile, named “
Baron Philippe de Rothschi- Concha y Toro S.A. The joint venture company changed its nam¥ifa Almaviva S.Ain June 1998 (“Vifia Almaviva”)The Compan
contributed approximately 40 hectares of producimgyards located at Puente Alto to and controPs % the capital of, Vifia Almaviva. Vifia Almaviva expected i
produce a ‘Primer Orden,” or first-growth wine, the first of its kind ev@roduced in ChilePrimer Ordenwines are regarded to be the equivalenBadnd Cru Class
wines from the Bordeaux region of France. In 1988a Almaviva launched its firderimer Ordenwine from its 1996 harvest under the name “AlmaviwA/orldwide
distribution of Almaviva, in all countries exceptrfChile and the U.S., is handled by Bordeaux Negus. Distribution of Almaviva in Chile is handleg the Company.

In November 2000, the Company purchased 49.6%dfstria Corchera S.A(“Industria” or “Industria Corchera”)a cork manufacturer. In connection with
acquisition, the Company amfimorim & Irmaos S.G.P.S. S.A'Amorim”), a Portuguese company that produces and distribzdds worldwide, entered into
shareholdersagreement providing for the transfer of shares taedadministration of Industria Corchera. In 200& Company increased its ownership to 49.96%
English translation of the shareholders’ agreerhetween the Company and Amorim was previously filed is listed as Exhibit 4.2 to this Annual RepBge Item 19—
“Exhibits.” The Company and Amorim jointly own 98% of the capital stock of Industria Corchera.

In addition to producing and bottling wine under @wn labels, the Company has a license frorifiedos Emiliana to use Vifiedos Emiliasdirand name
Chile. The Company bottles and sells in Chile fsrown account a portion of its varietal wine pratitn under Vifiedos Emilianglabels, paying royalties in exchange
such rights. In addition, under a contract with&tds Emiliana, the Company also bottles for aviéee produced by Vifiedos Emiliana which is soldbiiedos Emilian
for its own account under Vifiedos Emiliasdabels in export markets. The Company and Vifiétdngiana have a number of directors in commonyel as a significa
percentage of common share ownership. See ltenfMajor Shareholders and Related Party TransactieriRelated Party Transactions.”

Business Strategy

Concha y Toras business strategy seeks to sustain attractivetiymates and achieve an even greater brand p&oetemd visibility in the different markets. T
Company has therefore developed a wide range diupts with which to participate in all market seguse offering high-quality wines at competitiveqas.

Concha y Toro has focused especially on growthénpremium category, a very attractive segmentalits growth potential and prices, which have déeelit tc
improve the sales mix and increase its average gaiee.

Following this strategy, the Company has investediad Ch$250 billion over the last ten years irdlarineyards, infrastructure and other wine businesorde
to increase its own production. It has also intaedlthe highest level technology to its productisethods in the wineaaking area, always with the objective of impro
the quality of its wines. There has also been asteon development of new products, investigatido imew grape varieties and incorporation of newpgfaoducing
valleys.

In the commercial area, the global distributionweek has been strengthened with the opening o€tvapany’s own distribution offices in key markets.

At the same time, it has developed in Argentinaghme business model as used in the Chilean strafiia Trivento seeks sustained growth for its akg
reflecting the acceptance of Argentine wines inghiecipal markets.

In 2009, the Company made approximately Ch$32,18Bom (approximately US$63 million) of capital iegtments, which included the acquisition of
vineyards, development of new vineyards, increasdhe vinification and cellar capacity and buyingwnagriculture machinery, among others. The Compha
established a capital expenditure budget of appratély Ch$21,500 million (approximately US$40 noifl) for 2010 to support expected future growthates throug
planting of new vineyards and expanding productapacity. Investments mainly comprise acquiring afehting new vineyards, the construction of sterag(
vinification facilities, expansion of the bottlimant and acquisition of French and American oakdbs, for the production of all wines with an emapls on premium ai
varietal wines. The Company expects to continuatjslg wine vines and developing the correspondifgastructure needed on certain properties ownetthéyompan
in Chile, as well as in Argentina. For 2010, theeistment budget includes the repair of the viniftsaand cellar capacity that was damaged or dgstiras a consequel
of the earthquake that struck Chile on February2Z.
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The Company believes that a key factor in its pastess and in any future success is its abilitpamtain competitive prices while improving theatity of its
wines. In order to increase its market share irdthraestic market, the Company has maintained poogpetitiveness with beer and wine from other peeds, introduce
new wines targeted at different consumer segmerdsrecreased marketing and advertising supporit$oproducts. In export markets, the Company bebethat it ca
continue to consistently offer high-quality wingscampetitive prices in the premium, varietal amd/drietal segments and that such wines can suctigssfnpete witl
the best European, Australian, South African ar. Wines. See Item 4 — “Information on the CompanyBusiness Overview — Domestic Marketing Stratégaes “
— Export Marketing Strategy.”

Chilean Wine Industry Overview

Wine Producing Regions - Chile Chile is a country welsuited for growing fruit, including grapes. Geodragally, Chile is a strip of land running approxirely
4,345 kilometers (2,650 miles) north to south, isubnly 400 kilometers (244 miles) at its widestrpolt is bordered by the Andes Mountains to thsteand the Paci
Ocean to the west. The area located between the abwa Serena in the north and the Bim River in the south, generally known as the @drifone, is where vinife
grapes are grown.

The Central Zone stretches for approximately 500nk&ters (309 miles) and is located between 32° 28fdlatitude south. This location coincides wilte
latitude band of 30° to 50°, in which virtually aif the world’s wine-producing areas are locateat. &ample, California vineyards are located at approximately 3
38° latitude north and Australia’s vineyards at 8220° latitude south. France’s vineyards aréhfarhorth between 40° and 51° latitude north.

The climate of Chiles Central Zone is defined as temperate Mediterramgth an extended dry season. Rainfall mainly eeauring wintertime, with annt
averages of 300 mm to 700 mm. Rainfall is stromgflienced by the El Nifio and La Nifia phenomen&l INifio brings rainier and warmer conditions, Lé&lbrings dr
and colder weather. Springs are usually mild, &lbei completely frosfree; when they do hit, frosts strongly affect freduction of grapes. The dry season spans
summertime to the early days of fall, a patternaltfavors the ripening of both red and white grapes

The Company owns or leases vineyards in the nimeipal winegrowing regions in Chile. These regions includenfrnorth to south: Limari, Aconcag
Casablanca, San Antonio, Maipo, the Rapel Valldyrsgions of Cachapoal and Colchagua, Curicé and &avibst of these regions possess distinct weathersai
characteristics. However, they share the importdatracteristics of cool nights and hot days witiyde@mperature variations of 12°C to 20°C (54°F68°F) in th
summer. This type of climatic condition is essdrftagrowing “wine quality” grapes. See Item 4 4nformation on the Company — Business Overview —-ne¥iards.”

Limari Valley. Limari is a transversal valley that runs fromteéasvest, from the Andes to the Pacific and igaitd 400 kilometers (250 miles) north of Santi
It is a fairly narrow valley bounded by small maainbus chains to the north and south; its mairufeatare sedimentary and mineral soils and a sethielimate witl
strong marine influence, particularly in the aréaser to the Pacific Ocean. The absence of raidfialing ripening season, in addition to the extrdominosity of th
skies, makes for concentrated grapes with enhacmed and aromas. The varieties that benefit thetrfrom this privileged setting are Chardonnay,\@non Blanc an
Syrah.

Aconcagua ValleyAconcagua valley is located approximately 90km iffies) to the north of Santiago. The Aconcagua Ris¢he main source of irrigation -
the fertile lands around and thus permits our ggapebe harvested in alluvial soils. This zone m®wn for its benign Mediterranean weather, in whibk higt
temperatures during the day contrast harmonicaily eolder nights. Some regions of this valley hheen recognized as ideal for the production ofwiea varieties, du
to the pleasantly warm temperatures, while thetabaseas’ marine cooling breezes are suitabléhproduction of white wines.
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Casablanca Valley The Casablanca Valley is located 100 kilomet&&riles) northwest of Santiago and has deep, sgetneable soils and a cool clim
The Company believes that this region represenexeeptional microzone to produce premium whiteesjrsuch as Chardonnay and Sauvignon Blanc, dtegarticula
climate, especially its heavy marine weather andhing fog during spring and summer.

San Antonio ValleyOne of the most recently created Chilean denonaingtithis small valley was only defined as a cdigmoorigin in 2002. San Anton
stretches to the very edge of the Pacific Oceanitantharacteristic lack of significantly high efliallows for the free entry of the strong oceanftuence. The ensui
frequent breezes, fresh temperatures and clayilshrsake it a favorite spot for cold-climate whitarieties and Pinot Noir.

Maipo Valley.The Maipo Valley, located just west of the Andesuvitains and south of Santiago, is renowned worldviéd the excellence of its red wines.
Maipo Valley has a Mediterranean climate, with g siimmer and high daily temperature variations tu@ combination of oceanic and Andean influenitsssoils ar
alluvial and colluvial, organically poor and abundan gravel. They are irrigated with glacial watéiowing from the Andes mountain range.

Rapel ValleyThe Rapel Valley is located 100 to 180 kilomet&2 {0 112 miles) south of Santiago, between thescitf Rancagua and San Fernando. It |
warm climate and deep, rich alluvial soils, irrigaitoy water from the Rapel and Cachapoal Rivers. fHgion’s production is oriented toward red wines

Cachapoal ValleyPart of the greater Rapel Valley, Cachapoal istextd00 to 180 kilometers south of Santiago an@the 80kilometer long stretch (62
112 miles south of Santiago) between the citiRaricagua and San Fernando. Its benign weatherafipiacking in frosts and warm summers, suitsefals that call fc
a delayed harvest, such as Carmenere. IrrigateldebRRapel and Cachapoal rivers, its soils havdlawia origin and are deep and rich. Most of thaley’s production i
geared toward red wines.

Colchagua ValleyThis valley is part of the grand Rapel Valley. stils vary from the deep and fertile saradgy loam organically rich soils to sandy soils
soils are irrigated by the water from the Tingugar River. The valley is renowned for growing a withnge of grape varieties, where the Caberneti@auv an
Carmenere varietals stand out.

Curic6 Valley.The Curico Valley is similar to the Rapel Valleyterms of its geographic features, soil and climatinditions. It is located between the Rape!
Maule Valleys and its main commercial center isditye of Curicd. The climate and soil conditionstire valley are suitable for the production of @ewariety of premiul
wines.

Maule Valley.The Maule Valley is located to the south of Curi¢dlley, 200 to 400 kilometers (124 to 248 milesythoof Santiago. This region has a w
climate, generous winter rains and organically solis. Wines produced from grapes grown in the [E1&falley typically have higher alcohol content.

Non4rrigated areas in the Maule Valley are plantechvétrustic grape called Pais, which is used toymedable wine for the popular wines segment o
domestic market.

The Company believes that Chilean land suitablegfape cultivation is cheaper than comparable lantost of the other winproducing areas of the wor
Chilean vineyards take typically three to four yeafter planting to produce grapes that can be fmedvine making. A vineyard can produce grapesable fo
vinification for up to 40 years or more. The anngadwing season starts in September and lasts Al or May. Harvest occurs between March and Midgpending ¢
the location of the vineyard and the variety of ghepe being grown.
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Wine Producing Regions - Argentina.The Company believes that the wine growing reggumsounding Mendoza, Argentina are capable of primduworlc
class wines and will complement the export prodaatsently being made in Chile.

Lujan de Cuyo RegionLujan de Cuyo is located in the upper part ofMendoza River, 22 kilometers (13.7 miles) to tbatk of Mendoza city. The altitude
this area ranges form 650 to 1,060 meters (frorB2tt 3,478 feet) above sea level. Together witlipkat constitutes a traditional grape-growingioggknown as First
Zone”. This First Zone is excellent for growing red vasist Malbec in particular. Its soil is alluvial asdndy, somewhat organically poor but with very djodoainag
characteristics. Day and nighttime temperatureg bgrapproximately 14°C (57°F), which favors thedarction of red wines.

Maipu RegionThe Maipu region is located in the upper part ef khendoza River, 18 kilometers (11 miles) to thetkeast of the city of Mendoza, next to Lt
de Cuyo. Its altitude is 790 meters (2,592 feetyvatsea level. The area is suitable for the pradiucif red grapes such as Malbec and Cabernet Gzuvi

Tunuyén Region Tunuyén is located 80 kilometers (49 miles) saatht of Mendoza city and, together with Tupungatd 8an Carlos, forms the Uco Vall
This valley rises to 1,400 meters (4,593 feet) abesa level, the highest gragewing altitudes in Mendoza. Because of the alétand proximity to the Andes, the L
Valley has a cooler climate than the First Zonejctvimakes this region oriented towards the produactf white varietals and certain red oneBay and nighttim
temperatures vary by approximately @577°F), an ideal range for the development ofnapin color and tannins in the grapes. Its soils siomy, sandy and ve
permeable, lacking in drainage or salinity problems

Tupungato RegiorThe Tupungato region is located 90 kilometers (H&shsouthwest of Mendoza and rises to approxilydtd 00 meters (3,600 feet) above
level. Elegant whites and early ripening reds gveell here. Syrah and Pinot Noir are popular exampfegrapes grown in this area.

La Consulta-San Carlos Regiosan Carlos region is located 110 kilometers (88gnsouthwest of Mendoza. The altitude in thisaaranges from 1,000 to 1,
meters (from 3,280 to 3,937 feet) above sea |Ve. area is well suited for red grapes such as &talb

Rivadavia RegionThe Rivadavia region is located 80 kilometers (4&s) southeast of Mendoza and is part of the EBstdocino region. Its altitude is 6¢
meters (2,165 feet) above sea level in a zonerafyssoil with very good drainage characteristidse Biverage temperature is higher than in the Eose and Uco Valle
regions which, together with the availability of teafrom the Tunuyan River, allows for the optindalvelopment of different varieties of grapes, theshimportant ¢
which are the Malbec and Syrah varieties.

San Martin RegionSan Martin is located 50 kilometers (31 miles)ite southeast of Mendoza. Altitudes in this zoneaye 640 to 750 meters (2100 to 2
feet) above sea level. Its sandy-loam and sdinty-soils are irrigated by the Tunuyan and Mendazers. The climate is temperate and is charamdrby a pronounc
annual temperature variation, a feature that fathers/ine’s vegetative rest period during winter.

Phylloxera . Phylloxera, a pest which attacks the roots ofpgvines, has widely infested vineyards outside bfieC The pest generally renders a
unproductive within a few years following initiaifestation. Although an infestation of phylloxenzeotime decreases the amount of fruit that a piregluces, it does r
directly impair the quality of the fruit and posss known human health hazards. Since no pestic@dében proven to be effective in stopping theaspod phylloxera, tF
only known solution is to replant infested vineyawith resistant root stock.

Chile is one of the few countries where ptefdloxera Bordeaux cuttings are widely used andswish, phylloxera has not been found in Chile tte.d&he
Company still uses the original French root vaetiintroduced from France approximately 125 yeas, which remain free of this pest. To proteatlitfrom the
possibility of phylloxera infestation, the Compacgrefully screens all cuttings before planting. ®ations imposed by the Chilean Agriculture Servieguire that a
vegetation introduced into the country be isolatader observation for a period of two years. Ttoene, however, be no assurance that the Compamd other Chile:
producers’ vineyards will remain free of phylloxenfestation. Infestation would have a materialerde effect on the Company and its production apgrcrops.
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Wine Classifications. Wines are classified by Chilean wine producergitieer sparkling wines or table (still) wines. 8gimg wines are wines which obt:
effervescence through a second alcoholic fermemtatiocess. With the exception of popular wines|e@h table wines are generally classified accardin(i) the variet
or varieties of vinifera grape from which they anade, (ii) region of origin and (iii) vintage. TabWines are also classified as either premium etetlri bivarietal o
popular wines.

Premium wines are wines made from selected grapasingle variety and aged in barrels. These wiresive extra care throughout the production Eeea!
command higher prices. Varietal wines can be mitlereof a single variety of grape or of a seleetilend of varieties of grapes (known avéiietals). Popular wines ¢
inexpensive wines which are not aged and are nderfram a specific variety of grapes.

In 1995, the Ministry of Agriculture implementeddacree to regulate wine bottle labeling, whichudeld the use of grape varieties, vintage yearsregidna
denominations of origin. The decree was drafted lspmmittee (which included representatives ofGhenpany) designated by theociacion de Vifias de Chile A.Ehe
“Exporters’ Association”)The decree ordered that Chilean premium and varigt@s must contain at least 75% of the varietgmipes specified on the label. This de
enhanced the image of the Chilean wine industryptoyiding for better information, quality and tsgarency for the consumer. The Company has adopost of thi
controls set forth in the decree and continuesteefit from the enhanced image of the Chilean widestry.

B. Business Overview
Vineyards

In order to decrease its dependence on purchaapeégand wines and to gain greater control ovecdbeand quality of its principal raw materialetB@ompan
initiated a capital investment program in the bedgig of the 1990s. To this end, the Company hash@ased land and planted vines for the productiograpes for it
premium, varietal and biarietal wines in order to maintain its productifrgrapes in proportion to the growth in demané@opremium wines. Over the past few year:
Company has acquired land in other wine regiormdier to diversify the agricultural risk.

As of December 2009, the Company had approximadi@|955 arable hectares (approximately 27,059 aored)l owned and eight leased vineyards in the tij
Aconcagua, Casablanca, San Antonio, Maipo, Cachafmichagua, Curic6 and Maule Valleys of the Can#one in Chile and on eight vineyards in the Mg
Tupungato, Rivadavia, San Carlos, Lujan de Cuyo%am Martin regions, all located in Mendoza, ArgentAs of December 2009, approximately 85% ofdtable lan
owned or leased by the Company is planted with ypimglucing grapes in various stages of maturityprdgimately 67% of the Comparg/planted hectares in Chile
planted primarily with five types of noble grap&abernet Sauvignon, Merlot, Carmenere, ChardonndySauvignon Blanc. In recent years, the Compasyiriaease
the planting of these five varieties of grapes @sponse to increasing consumer demand in the USitaés, Europe and Asia for premium and variefaksy Thi
Company believes that with the plantings of thesiglengrape varieties, it should be able to resgortlie shift in consumer demand for premium andet@rwines mac
from these varieties of grapes. There can be narasse, however, that consumer demand for theseswiill increase in absolute terms or that consionpdf wines
produced by the Company from these varieties opegaas opposed to those produced by its competidll increase. In addition, there can be no esste the
competitors of the Company, either singly or in #ygregate, will not be in a better position toetaklvantage of changing consumer demand pattermsdmium an
varietal wines, by reason of planted acreage @ruotise.

The Companys remaining land under cultivation is planted maiwith Syrah, Pinot Noir, Malbec, Viognier, PinotaBc, Pinot Gris, Chenin Blanc, Riesli
Gewurztraminer and Sangiovese grapes.

The Company expects that the vines planted in 200®e in full production in 2010.
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The table below shows the Company’s currently-peotiand newly-planted vineyards by valley as of&eaber 2009.

Currently Plantings Total Vineyards Total
Vineyards Producing 2006 - 2009 Planted Fallow Orchards @ Arable
(in hectares)

Chile
Owned - Chile:
Limari Valley 54¢ 32t 87:% 301 113 1,287
Casablanca Valle 14¢ 20 16€ 12 17¢
San Antonio Valley — 13C 13C — 13C
Aconcagua Valle — — — 12¢ 12¢
Maipo Valley 70& 385 74C 2 74z
Cachapoal Valle- Rapel Valley 80C 47€ 1,27¢ 53¢ 71 1,887
Colchagua Valle- Rapel Valley 1,32 278 1,59¢ 67 — 1,66
Curico Valley 50¢ 13:¢ 63¢€ 77 714
Maule Valley 1,757 44¢€ 2,20z 19z 2,39¢
Total Ownec- Chile 5,781 1,83¢ 7,62¢ 1,32( 18t 9,12¢
Leased- Chile:
Casablanca Valle®: 24C 7 247 — 247
Maipo Valley®): 24C 24 264 — 264
Colchagua ValleX¥: — 104 104 — 104
Total leased 48C 13¢ 61E — 61E
Total Chile 6,26¢ 1,97: 8,23¢ 1,32( 18t 9,74¢
Owned - Argentina
Total Mendoza, Argentina 78(C 281 1,061 151 1,211
Total 7,04¢ 2,25¢ 9,30( 1,47( 18E 10,95¢
@) These hectares include 185 hectares of fruit peged on the Compa’s La Granja, Peumo and Idahue vineyards. Thisd¢ande returned to grape producti
2) The Company leases three vineyards in the Casabl\altey (93.73, 125.79 and 27 arable hectared) l@ises expiring in 2023, 2028 and 2036, respslgti
?3) The Company has leased one vineyard with @Blarhectares since 1993 frdBociedad Protectora de la Infanc{&Protectora”), an unaffiliated, noprofit

institution. The lease of this vineyard expire2013; however, the lease is cancelable by Protetith one yeas notice and payment of a penalty. In 200«

Company leased an 80.6 hectare vineyard in prazhuyctiom Vifiedos Emiliana, this lease expires i120n 2006, the Company leased another vineyanu

Vifiedos Emiliana with approximately 112 hectareprioduction; this lease expires in 20
4) In 2008, Vifia Cono Sur leased two vineyards in Gagpia valley comprising of 104.5 arable hecte

The Company believes that the diverse microclimates soils of the areas in which its vineyardslacated, as well as the trellis systems used iwiitsyards

allow it to grow a wide variety of grapes and ttgreffer a broad range of wines. In addition, thempany believes that this diversity helps to mizienthe agricultur:
risks inherent in its operations.

Although Chilean winters are relatively mild, Clifevineyards have suffered frost damage in the @sterally, September and October are the mosly

periods for frost damage, especially in areas slbgethe Andes Mountains. The Company tries tdegtots grapes against risk from frost throughiouas preventiv
techniques, including the use of helicopters aatistary propellers to raise the temperature ofaindy hovering over vineyards. The Company has &ken steps
protect against soil erosion and other ecologieat@ge by using special irrigation methods.

Wine Production Methods

Wine production methods vary by type and qualitynafie. The Company uses the following productionthuds (certain wine industry terms used in

following discussion are defined at the beginnifithes report, in “Certain Defined Terms — GlossafySpecial Terms”):
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Premium Reds. The Company’s premium red wines are primarily miden select Cabernet Sauvignon, Merlot, Carmenere, Syetot Noir and Malbe
grapes grown in vineyards in the Maipo, Rapel araiM valleys. The wines are made in the CommaRylente Alto, Cachapoal and Lourdes plants. Asgbats capite
expenditure program, the Company has installednthst advanced stainless steel fermentation tarditable that incorporate refrigeration and heatiggtems. Grapes
crushed, separated from their stems and the msdermented with the skins and pulp in stainldsglstanks at temperatures of 28°C to 30°C (82°B6&tF), to obtai
color and develop body. The resulting wine is Ieftontact with the skin for longer periods in #ese of premium red wines than for red varietdbierarietal wines
Contact with the skin and solids (the maceratiaocess) give the wine body, color and complexityteAteparation and pressing of the solids to expregss wine, tt
wine is subjected to a malolactic fermentation pesc The malolactic fermentation uses either inited or normally present bacteria to transformntiadic acid with .
lower Ph to lactic acid of higher Ph, producingn@gosther and more biologically stable wine with emted aroma and bouquet. The wines are then ageckich an
American oak barrels for a period of eight to eégint months, depending on wine type, brand and ddifmhrrel, in order to obtain additional body armplexity. Onc
bottled, the wine is aged further in the Companyitse cellars at Pirque for two to twelve monthspetleding on the brand.

Premium Whites . Grapes selected from the noblest varieties, asdbhardonnay, Sauvignon Blanc, Viognier, Riestind Gewurztraminer from the Compasy’
Casablanca, Maipo, Curicé and Maule vineyards eushed, separated from their stems and introduttedpneumatic presses in order to extract clearejuinlike re:
wines, white wines are generally fermented withibeir skins and seeds. In order to convert thersimga alcohol, this juice is then fermented, wythast, in French ai
American oak barrels or temperature-controlledni#as steel tanks, depending on variety, vineyaddtaand. Lower temperatures between 12°C and 1B3% and 64°
F) are considered optimal for quality during thiegess. The resulting wine is aged on the fine iledise same tanks as used in fermentation faragtlsix to eight mont
in order to obtain fruitiness, body and complex@®nce bottled, premium white wines are aged from tivtwelve months in the Compasywvine cellars, depending on
brand.

Late Harvest is a sweet, aromatic dessert wine nfile Sauvignon Blanc and Riesling grapes that wefieon the vine to overipen, resulting in a hic
concentration of sugar and a reduction in aciditye vinification process for Late Harvest is simiiathat for the Company’s other premium white @gn

Red Varietals and Bi-varietals. The production process for red varietal anddietal wines is similar to that of premium reches and involves grapes from
Company’s Rapel, Curico6 and Maule vineyards. Theises are macerated for a shorter period of tinteae stored in stainless steel tanks and noniveagpoxylined
cement tanks until bottling. Bottling normally begiapproximately six months later.

White Varietals and Bi-varietals . Grapes from the ComparsyRapel, Curicd, Maule and Casablanca vineyardsrashed and separated from their stems b
they are pressed to extract the grape juice. Tige ja then fermented in temperatwentrolled stainless steel tanks. The wines amedtm stainless steel tanks or in il
epoxy-lined cement tanks for three months befot#ihg.

Sparkling Wine . Sparkling wines are the product of a second aléolietmentation of wine with yeasts in isobarickarior a period from two to eight mont
depending on the type of sparkling wine. This sectermentation allows for the retention of the clweristic effervescence. The Company produces tigpes o
sparkling wine. Casillero del Diablo and Cono Stg sparkling premium wines made from Chardonnay Rimdt Noir grapes. The Company also produces radate
sparkling wine made from Chardonnay, Riesling ahdr@n Blanc and a Sparkling Moscato made from Me$cmapes.

Popular Wine . The Company produced approximately 100% of its fapuine from grapes and bulk wine purchased frodependent growers. These gr¢
are vinified at four locations using a process kintb that used for varietal wines. Popular wiaes not aged; instead, they are bottled or packpgedptly.

Bulk Wine . Almost all the bulk wine sold by the Company isghased from outside suppliers.
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Sources of Grapes and Purchased Wine

Grapes are the main raw material in the wine magiogess. In 2009, approximately 62% of the graysesl in the production of premium, varietal anddniieta
wines were purchased from third parties. In addjtthe Company purchased grapes and bulk winerestjto produce approximately 100% of its popularesi Prevailin
prices for grapes at harvest time reflect marketid®ns.

Company Vineyards . In 2009, approximately 38% of the Company’s piidun of premium, varietal and barietal wines was from grapes grown on
Companys owned and leased vineyards in Chile. The Comjetigves that production of its own grapes offemsater control over costs and quality and impr
reliability of supply. To that end, the Company tiounes to expand its grape production. The Compapylicy is that, to the extent possible, only gsgrown in th
Company’s own vineyards are to be used to procdue€bmpany’s premium wines.

Outside Suppliers. In order to satisfy its need for grapes for thedpiaiion of premium, varietal, hiarietal and sparkling wine not otherwise met lsyatvr
vineyards, as well as its requirements for grapeskaulk wine for 100% of its popular wines, the Gmny buys grapes from approximately 750 indepengeowers ii
Chile. The identity of such growers, as well as dneounts purchased from them, does not changdfisatly from year to year and most of these graneave bee
selling to the Company for many years. The maitedd used to select independent growers are ggloigréocation, the variety of grapes grown andghmawer’s farming
methods. With the objective of assuring qualitydurction, the Company offers its suppliers technasaistance based on rigorous criteria similah#b which is applie
within its own wineries. The Company also purchasesll quantities of grapes from entities in whigveral of its directors, executive officers or nbens of thei
families have an interest. See Item 7 — “Major halders and Related Party Transactions — Relaeg Pransactions.”

In accordance with Chilean wine industry practioest of the Company’s agreements with growers calier one yeas production and are renewed from yei
year. This renewal is not compulsory and dependtherCompanys demand and seasonal market prices. In ordernomnzie the risk of crop loss, the agreement:
entered into between January and April each yétr, the grapes have begun to mature and the $ittee@rop can be more accurately estimated. Dgfisehedules a
agreed upon according to the degree of ripenessadf grape variety. The management of these outsidgards is directed by the Compasgwn technical persont
and the Company establishes standards regardings¢éhef pesticides, cultivation, harvest date,spantation system, sugar, acidity and Ph concenitraBelection of tF
grapes and approval of their quality is carried muthe Company technical department. The price of the grapgsdportional to the estimated alcohol content ch¥
in the resulting wine. Payment for grapes obtaifnexch independent growers is made mainly in tenregree installments throughout the year. In 2009,Gloenpany ha
long-term contracts with up to approximately 20%tsfgrowers.

Bulk Wine Purchases. The Company purchases wine in bulk from a numbeutside suppliers for the wine used in the praduacodf the Company popula
wines. The Company'’s technical department appreveb wine purchases. Payments are traditionallyenmaten interest-free monthly installments.

Vinification

The Company seeks to use the latest technology anems of vinification while maintaining the wimeaking traditions of its founders. The Company tresdve
wine-making plants in Chile which turn grapes iptemium, varietal and hiarietal wines. The locations of these plants duair tproduction capacity in 2009 are sh«
below. Additionally, the Company leases plants, tigds vinify generic grapes for the productionpafpular wines.

In Argentina, Trivento owns two plants for the ¥Vication and aging of its wines. Additional capgdib meet its vinification needs is leased fromdhparties.
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Plant Valley Production -2009
(in millions of
kilograms)
Chile:
Nueva Aurore Limari 9.1
Puente Altc Maipo 12.¢
Lo Espejc Maipo 5.€
Cachapoa Cachapoa- Rapel 33.1
Chimbarongc Colchagué- Rapel 69.¢
Cono Sul Colchague- Rapel 12.¢
Peralillo Colchague- Rapel 2.2
Las Mercede Colchagué- Rapel 10.Z
Lontué Curico 28.2
Curicé Curicé 9.7
Lourdes Maule 27.C
San Javier Maule 35.C
Total Chile 255.¢
Argentina :
Trivento Maipu 11.¢
Tres Portefias San Martin 9.5
Total Argentina 21.:

In addition, the Company'’s facilities at Pirque badkie capacity to produce 2.26 million bottles arrillion liters of sparkling wine.

The Company uses a combination of epbrgd cement tanks, stainless steel tanks and Rrand American oak

barrels to ferment, age ane stewine. As ¢

December 2009, the Compasytotal storage and fermentation capacity in Chides approximately 323 million liters. Total owneabacity in Argentina was 31 milli

liters. Trivento rents additional storage faciliti@s needed, for its operation.

The following table shows the Company’s approxinfatenentation and storage capacity by type of doatéor the years indicated:

December,
Type of Container 2007 2008 2009
(in million liters)

Chile:
Epoxy-lined cement tank 152.¢ 185.¢ 193.t
Steel tank 100.¢ 118.( 118.1
French and American oak barr 10.C 10.7 11.4
Chilean wood casks 0.3 0.3 0.3

Total Chile 263.7 314.¢ 323.C
Argentina:
Epoxy-lined cement tank 19.: 19.: 17.2
Steel tank: 9.€ 10.€ 12.t
French and American oak barrels 0.5 0.8 1.C

Total Argentina 29.4 30.7 30.7

The Company uses American and French oak barnetedgroduction of all its premium wines, exceptdHarvest. Although the use of oak barrels irs@sah
Companys winemaking costs, the Company is certain thanfitances the quality of its premium wines. Oakdiarare purchased in several sizes and are trpat@dc
delivery in accordance with the Compasyieeds. Oak barrels are used for up to two yegysotuce the highest quality premium wines, sicban Melchor and are th
used for another five years to enhance other wiheaf December 2009, the Company had approxim&@J§00 French and American oak barrels.

French oak barrels are used to make the Compaigmium Don Melchor, Amelia, Terrunyo, MarquésQiesa Concha and Trio brand wines, while Ame
oak barrels are used for its premium Casillero@iablo brand wine. Most of the Companystainless steel tanks are fitted with coolingesys to prevent wine fro
losing quality at higher temperatures. All of then@panys stainless steel tanks for use during fermentatierequipped with heating and cooling system&guolate th

temperature in the fermentation process.
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Bottling

After vinification and, in the case of premium wéneging, wine is ready to be bottled. The Comgaas/three bottling plants near the Santiago melitapcares
Pirque, Lo Espejo and Vespucio plants and a pfahbntué. The Pirque bottling plant, located 2®kikters from Santiago, is the Companptincipal bottling plant anc
large amount of the Company’s premium, varietalydrietal and sparkling wines are bottled there. plamt has five bottling lines accommodating batité 1.5 liter, .
liter, 750 milliliter, 375 milliliter and 187 milliter capacities. In addition the plant has one-lmagox line. The facility in Pirque is equipped withet most advanc:
bottling and labeling equipment available and hasatalled capacity of 11.7 million liters per ntbrwhen operating three eight hour shifts per daydays a week.

In March 2007, the Company leased a bottling pfeorh Vifia Canepa. This plant has five bottling neith a capacity of 3.2 million liters per montther
operating three eight shifts per day, six days ekw&his plant is located in Lo Espejo, in Santiago

During 2007 the Company added a new bottling péamt logistic center+the Vespucio plant. This bottling plant includemeadern bottling line imported fro
Italy with a nominal capacity of 12 thousand batger hour and is specially designed to work langers.

The Companys bottling plant in Lontué, located 200 kilometénam Santiago, bottles wine in five liter glass guand in 0.5 liter, 1 liter, 1.5 liter and 2.0 t
Tetra Brik packages which are made of several fagépaper, aluminum and polyethylene. Similar pags are used worldwide for juice, milk, wine atigeo productt
The Tetra Brik packaging line is completely autoedatThe Company has a license from Tetra Pak @hilgilize the Tetra Brik technology and purchapesprintec
unassembled packages from Tetra Pak Chile. Theukgplants Tetra Pak packaging machines have an installgacis of 13.0 million liters per month based oret
shifts operating eight hours a day, six days a week

The Company has a quality control department whattrols the raw materials used in each bottlirempand tracks the product up to the point of gaieugh
system of computer coding for each bottle and paséuced. The Company also uses electronic monga@guipment to ensure that bottles are fillecheodorrect level.

All of the Company’s premium and export wines aogtled in new bottles. Cristalerias, a principargholder of one of the Compasyhain competitors, Sai
Rita, supplies almost all of the Compasiyottles. The Company obtains the remainder dfatdes from other Chilean and Argentine manufaat Corks for most win
are produced in Spain and Portugal but are finidhe@hilean firms. The Company owns 49.96% of theqipal cork supplier, Industria Corchera. Seenlté — “Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions —eRkeRarty Transactionsl’abels are produced in Chile. Chilean companieplguases and capsules (the tin, plast
aluminum covering for the neck of a wine bottle).

The Company believes that, except for bottles agtdalBrik packages, alternative sources of sup@yreadily available. The Company believes thaobitld finc
alternate suppliers for bottles and Tetra Brik gaygs, but it could be adversely and materiallycaéf@ in the shorterm. New bottles and preprinted, unassembled
Brik packages are priced in U.S. dollars. Changehé Chilean peso to U.S. dollar exchange ratéddaarease the cost of components and have a islaeverse effe
on the Company.

Storage. The Company has four warehouses for finished wiitle the following capacities: Pirque 234,000 cadies,Vespucio logistic center 261,000 cases
Santa Rosa warehouse 230,000 cases and the Lo égmej 200,000 cases.

Domestic Distribution . The Company has its own direct distribution céyatrough its whollyewned subsidiary, Comercial Peumo. Comercial Pehasoi
network of fifteen regional offices to service teetire Chilean national territory. Its sales forsemade up of 144 salespeople, 37 supervisors as@le€3 manage
Comercial Peumo serves approximately 15,000 custmmeoughout Chile, making it the largest wioented distribution company in Chile. The twogdest singl
customers accounted for approximately 9.7% and @P#te Company’s domestic sales in 2009.
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A wholly-owned subsidiary, Transportes Viconto,nsports bulk wine products between the Compamgllars, production and bottling facilities aneliders
wine products to container ships located in Chilparts. Transportes Viconto relies on a tweoitye truck fleet, with a complement of trailers dadks that has a to
haulage capacity of 450 tons. This fleet also parts finished products to Comercial Peusbifteen regional offices throughout Chile. Coniard®eumo subcontrac
third party transportation services to distribugeproducts from its regional offices to its comoi@k clients.

Company Sales - Chilean Markets

Domestic Wine Sales The Companys domestic sales in liters, excluding sales of ilke, in 2007, 2008 and 2009 were approximately Tiillion liters, 71.
million liters and 74.2 million liters, respectiyelresulting in gross revenues of Ch$51,997 millich$50,184 million and Ch$53,631 million, respeety.

The Companys bulk wine sales fluctuate from year to year beeahhe Company sells bulk wine in the domestic etaitk reduce excess inventories. In 2
sales of bulk wine represented 0.2% of total welessin the domestic market.

The Company is the largest wine producer in Chilé according to AC Nielsen, in 2009, the Company th& largest share of the domestic market with.&8%
share in terms of volume and a 26.3% share in vdlne Company competes in all segments of the ledi@hilean market and seeks to keep prices convestiit make it
products attractive to consumers. Its variety ailis allows it to target different market segmeintsn its upscale premium Don Melchor to its popwiéne lines, whil:
maintaining a competitive price/quality relatiorfslaicross the range.

The following tables show the Company’s total doticesine sales in constant Chilean pesos and Iftereach of the calendar years indicated:

Domestic Wine Sale:

2007 2008 2009
Mill. Ch$ % Mill. Ch$ % Mill. Ch$ %
Bottled wine 51,997 99.%% 50,18¢ 99.(% 53,63: 99.£%
Bulk 64 0.1% 512 1.C% 85 0.2%
Total 52,06! 100.(% 50,69 100.(% 53,71¢ 100.(%
2007 2008 2009
Th. Liters % Th. Liters % Th. Liters %
Bottled wine 77,29 99.%% 71,74 98.£% 74,23¢ 99.8%
Bulk 63 0.1% 85C 1.2% 161 0.2%
Total 77,35 100.(% 72,59: 100.(% 74,39¢ 100.(%

The Chilean wine market can be divided into segmbated on the price of a 750 ml bottle. The Comparyets the following market segments: popularet
with prices ranging from Ch$500-999 per liter; bifetal (blend) wines with prices ranging from C8$91,390; varietal wines with prices ranging from$c,3902,499
premium wines with prices ranging from Ch$2,79088;Guper premium with prices between Ch$5,000-®,88d ultra premium with prices over Ch$10,000.

Local Brands and Prices. The table below lists the Compasyhajor brands by segments of the Chilean wine etakd approximate retail prices for each b
per 750 ml bottle as of April, 2010. Prices do wvaty by type of wine within brand category.
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Segment Brand Approximate Retail Price
(As of April 2010 Chilean

pesos)
Ultra Premiunr Don Melchor 55,00(
Terrunyo 15,00(
Amelia 17,00(
Super Premiur Margués de Casa Conc 9,99(
Gran Reserva Serie Ribel 6,99(
Premium Trio 4,49(
Casillero del Diablc 3,89(
Late Harves(® 2,39(
Sparkling Subercaseau 2,29(
Varietal Sunrise 1,89(
Santa Emiliani{® 1,69(
Bi-varietal Frontera 1,49(
Popular® Exportacion 1,26(
Clos de Pirqu 1,24¢
Tocornal 1,07¢
Fressco Coole 74t

Q) Late Harvest is a Sauvignon Blanc dessert wine lwisionly sold in 375 ml bottle
) The Company has a license from Vifiedos Emiliartzottie and distribute the Compé's wine domestically under Vifiedos Emilii’s labels
?3) Popular wine prices are per 1,000

Local Competition . The Company competes with a number of other @hilwineries. The Compars/’competitors in the premium segment are large
medium-sized Chilean wineries, mainly Santa Rit&iavSan Pedro Tarapaca S.A. (“San PedBbdegas y Vifiedos Santa Carolina S.A., Vifia Undar8.A., Vifii
Errazuriz S.A. and Cousifio Macul S.A.. The Compalsp competes, to a much lesser extent, with sB@talean wineries whose production and sales of prenwines
are aimed primarily at export markets. Sales inpthigular wine segment are concentrated in winekgupedl in Tetra Brik packages. For the Chilean itrgiia 2009, Tetr
Brik sales represented approximately 51% of alll€2im sales by volume in the popular wine segmeme. Company believes that n@filean wineries have negligil
sales in Chile because they find it difficult tototathe price-value relationship offered by Chiledneries, especially in the popular wine segment.

Popular wines produced in Chile, including thoséhef Company, also compete with other beveragds asibeer, pisco and soft drinks. For the two meetipc
ended March 2010, the ratio of popular wine pricéeer price decreased from 1.31 in March 200928 ih March 2010, mainly due to an increase irr Ipeiees. In th
face of increased competition by other beveragesimrorder to continue gaining market share, then@any has maintained its marketing efforts in tbpytar wine
segment. See Iltem 4 — “Information on the CompanBusiness Overview — Domestic Marketing Strategies.

The following table shows the relationship betwpepular wine and beer prices and the Company’s $atehe years indicated:

Relationship Between Popular Wine and Beer Price

2007 2008 2009 2010
For the two-month period ended March:
Popular average wine price 944 96E 1,04t 1,05(C
Beer average price 677 745 80C 822
Ratio of popular wine prices to beer pri 1.3¢ 1.3C 1.31 1.2¢

Source: Nielsen Retail Index. Measurement for e tnonth period for supermarket and traditionaitt.e. liquor and convenience stores) channels.
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Domestic Marketing Strategy

The Company is seeking to increase its market simaedl segments of the Chilean wine market, eslgcin the premium and varietal wine segment.
Company believes it is well positioned within thigrket due to its portfolio of brands, which itieges successfully competes with other wine produiceall segments
the domestic market.

In terms of distribution, the strategy of the Compas to be present in all relevant channels fanensales in Chile, with special focus in supermarikad th
retail channel. Accordingly, the retail sector lné ICompany has been strengthened both in commaraiainarketing terms.

Regarding the portfolio of products, the Companpesmanently developing new formats and updatiegpttesentation of its products. Advertising methani
marketing strategies differ depending on whethertdrgeted segment is comprised of potential coessiof the Company’s premium, varietal,viairietal, or populé
wines. During 2009, the greatest efforts in adsery were focused on strengthening ti@os de Pirque, Casillero del Diablo and Marque€dsa Concha brands in
market through mass media campaigns, includingitén and press.

Domestic Sales — Other Productdn the past few years, Comercial Peumo—the disiobusubsidiary for the Chilean local market—hateesd into new non
wine businesses, especially in the liquor and batrgories. These categories show strong growttpeasgnt an expanded business opportunity forubsidiary. In Apri
of 2008, Comercial Peumo signed a distribution egrent with SAB Miller—one of the three largest beesvworld wide—with the aim of enhancing the Compan
presence in the imported premium beer categoryoricgly, since May of 2008, Comercial Peumo hasritiuted, mainly in supermarkets, Miller Genuineafd© beer
In April 2009, Comercial Peumo signed a distribotagreement with Diageo Chile Limitada and commeéngholesale distribution of Diagepproducts in Chile, whic
include the different domestic distribution charsneixcept for the largest supermarket chains. Tiagdd products covered by the agreement includeniefWalker® ,
Pampero Rur®, Baileys Liquors®, Smirnoff Vodka®, Gordons Girf and Cuervo Tequil&.

Comercial Peumo sales of nenre products in 2008 and 2009 totaled Ch$4,154ianiland Ch$14,824 million respectively, with itew business ar
contributing 7.5% and 21.6%, respectively of sale€omercial Peumo.

Company Sales - Export Markets

According to the Exporters’Association, exports of Chilean wine totaled US81,3nillion and 694 million liters in 2009, represieg an increase of 0.4%
value and an increase of 17.8% in volume termspagpared to 2008.

Export Sales and Competition. The Company is the largest exporter of Chilean wioe both a volume and US$ value basis, with maskate in 2009
23.8% and 28.6% (including bulk) respectively, adang to the Exporters’ Association. The Companpbttled wine market share by volume and US$ velag 38.4°
and 32.3%, respectively, in 2009. The Compargtbsest Chilean competitor in the bottled exgedment, in terms of volume and US$ value, repdttecequivalent «
32% and 34% of the Company'’s sales, respectively.
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The following table sets forth the Compasgxport market share among Chilean wine produesra,percentage of both volume and US$ valuénéoyeéars 20(

to 2009:

Export Market Share

Total Wine Bottled M Wine
Volume US$ Value Volume US$ Value
22.€% 24.2% 32.2% 27.2%
21.% 25.4% 33.4&% 28.2%
22.2% 27.%% 34.% 30.2%
25.2% 28.2% 37.(% 31.4%
23.&% 28.€% 38.2% 32.2%

Source: Vinos de Chile, Exporter’s Association

(1)Bottled and be-in-box.

Principal Export Markets . This section describes principal trends and mari@ Company sales originated in Chile which ude exports to third parties ¢
sales of the Company'’s distribution subsidiariethen UK, Nordic countries and Brazil. Company safethe export market are distributed among theniuien, varietal, bi
varietal, sparkling and popular wine segments. Company also sells bulk wine abroad.

The Companys bottled export sales in volume, in 2007, 2008 20@P totaled 134 million liters, 145 million likeand 158 million liters, respectively, resultim
revenues of Ch$218,526 million, Ch$225,694 milleord Ch$250,910 million in 2007, 2008 and 2009, eetpely.

As of December 31, 2009, the Companptincipal regional export markets were Europe, Winited States, Central America, South AmericaaAasd Canad
Each market is unique and there are differencdsmibarkets due to variations in local regulations.

Wine Sales in Export Markets

2007 2008 2009
Mill. Ch$ % Mill. Ch$ % Mill. Ch$ %
Bottled wine 218,52¢ 99.4% 225,69: 98.£% 250,91( 98.9%
Bulk 1,371 0.€% 2,70¢ 1.2% 2,79t 1.1%
Total 219,89° 100.(% 228,40: 100.(% 253,70! 100.%
Th. liters % Th. liters % Th. liters %

Bottled wine 134,25 97.7% 145,46¢ 96.(% 158,17! 96.2%
Bulk 3,16¢ 2.3% 6,12( 4.0% 6,072 3.7%
Total 137,42: 100.(% 151,58¢ 137,42: 100.(% 151,58
Percentage of Export Sales by Volume to Regional Brrt Markets
(excluding bulk wine sales)

Market 2007 2008 2009
Europe 51.7% 52.(% 53.1%
United States 17.5% 17.% 17.8%
Central America, Mexico and the Caribbe 9.4% 9.(% 8.4%
South America 9.8% 7.€% 7.4%
Asia 6.7% 7.2% 7.4%
Canada 3.7% 4.4% 4.1%
Africa/Other 1.2% 1.5% 1.8%
Total 100.% 100.% 100.%
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Sales in Export Markets by Volume to Regional Markés

2007 2008 2009 Var % Var %
Th. liters Th. liters Th. liters 2008-07 2009-08

Europe 69,43( 75,59: 84,02t 8.2% 11.2%
United State: 23,50z 26,00( 28,12¢ 10.6% 8.2%
Central America, Mexico and the Caribbe 12,66: 13,07t 13,25¢ 3.2% 1.4%
South Americe 13,15¢ 11,57 11,69¢ -12.1% 1.1%
Canade 5,01: 6,421 6,55¢ 28.1% 2.1%
Asia 9,04z 10,66: 11,71« 17.9% 9.¢%
Africa/Other 1,44¢ 2,147 2,80( 48.1% 30.4%

Total 134,25: 145,46¢ 158,17! 8.4% 8.7%

Europe. In 2009, sales to Europe increased by 11.2% inmelterms to approximately 84 million liters or 34 bf Company sales volume in export marl
The Company’s European markets can be subdivided three areas: Germany and non-wine-producing &vtesturope, wingroducing Western Europe (exc
Germany) and Eastern Europe.

The Company believes that greater market oppoitisnéixist in the United Kingdom, non-wipeeducing countries of Western and Eastern EurogeGermany
For these countries, in 2009, the order of impadny sales for the Company was as follows: theddriKingdom, Sweden, Russia, Finland and Denmankorg thes
countries, the Nordic countries (Finland, Swedeorvidy and Iceland) operate under a statetrolled system where each state purchases wiheells it in its own stor
at the retail level. The Company anticipates thathie future, the monopoly system in these countmey be replaced by a private or s@mivate sales structure, |
believes that because its brands are well knovthage areas, the Compasigales will not be adversely affected as a reShkre can be no assurance, however, that
a regulatory change would not have a material agveffect on the Comparsy'sales to such markets. During 2009, the Comptaryed the operations of its o
distribution subsidiaries in the Nordic countriesSweden, Finland and Norway. Total sales in thesekets in 2009 reached 11.9 million liters, repréimg a 1.4¢
growth as compared to 2008.

In the United Kingdom, the Company continues toadien direct distribution to all market segments. (inultiples, specialists, cash and carry, whoégsan
independent vendors) and promoteprsamise consumption (e.g., sales to restaurahtglgh its Concha y Toro, Vifia Maipo, Cono Sur &adb Alto brands. The impz
of the severe economic contraction in this mankdttb strong demand in the lowgniced categories and promotional offers. The giiteand breadth of the Conchay T
UK portfolio enabled it to meet this demand withighly-competitive offer centered on the brands Isla Negima Maipo and Frontera. Although expensive prtom
activities were not taken on behalf of Casillerd @blo, it experienced a small volume growth B02, due to steady distribution gain in the coneeoé sector. In 20C
Companys sales in the United Kingdom grew by 19.2% to Bioni 247 thousand cases, compared to a markegteat 3%, which is a reflection of years of investrir
the United Kingdom market, where the Company hagldped strong brand recognition based on quatity@mpetitive pricing.

The Company’s marketing strategy in Germany andnthrewineproducing countries of Western and Eastern Europases on expanding the premium v
segment, particularly with the Casillero del Diabland and building brand recognition. Sales totiBental Europe showed growth of 2.3%, reflectihg impact of th
economic recession in the first half of the yeal arecovery toward the last quarter, with the gbation of the subsidiaries in the Nordic courdgridhe Company se
great potential in this region, with the exceptafimportant wine producing countries such as Gepidungary, Bulgaria and Moldova.

In the major wine-producing countries of Westermdpe (e.g., Italy, France, Spain and Portugal),revtiiee Company faces greater competition, the Caygipa
marketing strategy is to shift from sales of sngalintities of supepremium wines to higher volume sales of premiumesim the off trade (supermarkets and whole
chains).
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United States Sales volume to the U.S. market accounted foraqapately 28 million liters in 2009 and 17.8% daflas volume in export markets. Volur
increased 8.2% in 2009, mainly as a result of &6gPowth in the premium category with a positivefpenance by Casillero del Diablo and a 15.5% expamin the bi
varietal category, driven by the Frontera line vétlkarge preference and attractive value offer.

According to the ExportersAssociation, the Company was the leading Chilegodgr to the United States in 2009, with a masteire in volume at 41.5%
total Chilean wine exported to the US. Wine marketsldwide are divided into segments accordingh®irice range of the wines and competitors dfffam one segme
to another. According to the wine classificationtineel generally used in the U.S. market, the Compmeiigves that the following wine categories are@resentation
the wines sold by the Company in the United Statéisa premium, super premium, premium and poppltamium. The Company believes that the Compamyihe:
would be classified within such categories as fefloultra premium—Don Melchor, Amelia and Terrunysuper premium—Marqués de Casa Concha and Gran Re
Serie Riberaspremium—Trio, Casillero del Diablo, Palo Alto and Xploragand popular premium—the Company’s varietal wines and\@rietals, including Sunris
Frontera and Vifia Maipo varietal wines, among ather

The Company and its Chilean competitors are inangatheir participation in the premium segment a@stiablishing a strong presence in the varietal and
varietal segments. The Company’s strategy is tafamn sales within the premium and varietal caiegoin the United States, the Compangteatest market strength i:
the varietal and bi-varietal segments due to then@my’s competitive price/value relationship. Sesnl 4 — “Information on the Company — Business Qiew —
Export Marketing Strategy.”

In the United States, the Compasiyproducts principally compete with other Chileaines, as well as Californian wines and wines imgubifrom ltaly, Franc
Australia, Spain, Germany, Portugal, Argentina atigér wine-producing countries.

Central America, Mexico and the Caribbeafhe Companys 2009 sales volume to Central America, Mexico thedCaribbean totaled 13.3 million liters or 8
of the Company’s exports. The primary markets fier Companys products in this region are Mexico, Costa Ri@maPa and the Dominican Republic. The Compan
marketed its wines for more than twenty years irstnod the countries in this region and the Compaeljeves it is the largest Chilean exporter of ledttwines in all ¢
these countries. Sales in volume terms increased49¢, mainly impacted by the economic crisis dseffect on credit, consumption and exchange rates

South America In 2009, sales to South America increased by lirl¥olume terms to approximately 11.7 million fgeor 7.4% of the Compars/total export:
Wine sales in the region were affected by the esooadeceleration and sharp exchange rates fluongand also due to the transition to own distidouin Brazil whict
had an impact on volumes. Annual sales in Brazirelesed 16% as compared to 2008; however fromdbend half of the year, sales regained their rhyttims
confirming our decision with respect to this matkgtotential. The Company is currently the leaditmi€an exporter to most of the South American coest with th
exception of Paraguay and Venezuela. In each dafetlmeuntries, the Compasyproducts are sold through exclusive local distobs and in some countries,
Company’s secondary brands are sold by differesitidutors.

Historically, export sales to South America haverbémited by economic conditions. Chilean wineséné&raditionally enjoyed favorable customs treattria
South American countries compared with wine produmg nations outside of the region. This advantagg end as these countries lower their tariffsoiov the globe
trend toward open market economies.

Canada. In 2009, the Company’s sales to Canada increaseéd & approximately 6.6 million liters or 4.1% diet Companys exports. Canada is the fot
largest national export market for the Companydlume and value terms.

The Canadian market is governed by provincial mefiep in nine of the ten provinces and the thregteeies. The monopolies (or liquor boards) buyl sell al
imported (bottled) and locally produced liquors avides. Each province is autonomous and each mi@liiquor board has its own regulations and peticEach liquc
board is also responsible as guarantor of paynterits suppliers. Because the Canadian marketizn#&rolled market, the buying system is highly camtcated and tt
marketing policies are strictly regulated. The Campbelieves that even if privatization of the pnoial monopolies takes place, its sales will netdalversely affect
because its brands are well-known in Canada. Howvéwere can be no assurance that privatizationldvoot have a material adverse effect on the Cowyigasales to tt
Canadian market.
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Asia. The Asian market accounted for approximately hiilion liters in 2009, equal to 7.4% by volumeth& Companys exports. In 2009, sales volume to ¢
increased 9.9%, mainly due to an increase in €4dl24.5% in Japan. The other countries of the regiere impacted by the macroeconomic conditionsektheless, woi
continued on brand building and promotional supdartdamental for our strategy of increasing iwssgnce in the region.

Other. The Company’s 2009 sales to countries in Africa elséwhere totaled 2.8 million liters or 1.8% of Biompanys exports by volume. The largest ma
in this category is Angola.

Bulk Wine Exports . In 2009, the Company sold 6,072 thousand litéisutk wine overseas, primarily to the United Kimmga, representing 3.7% of its exports
volume. Bulk wine sales is a spot business withomg-term commitments. Sales depend on price and avéifadf wine in Chile and other wine growing couies. The
Company purchases almost all of the bulk wine fiagts from outside suppliers. The Company expeatk Wwine sales to diminish in significance as intoues t
promote bottled wine sales. However, bulk winesatay continue in countries depending on price,adehand availability for such wines.

Distribution in Export Markets . The Company products are distributed in approximately 135ntoes by independent distributors, including !
governmental liquor authorities. In most countribég, Company sells wine through a second and thsttibutor under the brand names of its subsid&a@ono Sur, Maif
and Canepa. The Company sells “F.O.B. Chilean gori5 distributors in export markets.

In 2009, the United Kingdom, the United StatesadaCanada and Sweden were the Comsafive largest national export markets and accalifde 60.5% ¢
the Companys exports by volume and 57.1% by value. The Comeeftigves that its success in export markets isdas developing good relationships with estabt
distributors and the good price-to-quality ratiatefproducts. The Company has written agreemeitksmost of its distributors.

Independent Distributors . The Company’s exclusive agent and importer in tmitdd States is Banfi, which imports and re-sdils €ompanys products t
distributors who service all 50 states. Banfi was €ompanys largest single customer in 2009, purchasing agmately 3.0 million cases of wine which represent@%
and 12.9% of the Company’s Chilean export salegdiyme and value, respectively. The Company ha&neawable 2Q«ear contract with Banfi which expires in 2013.
contract prohibits the Company from selling to aler U.S. importer and prohibits Banfi from camgiother Chilean wines without the Companywpproval. Ban
carries a number of competitors’ products, inclgdRiunite, one of the besetlling imported wines in the United States andediss Emiliana. Banfi also imports wil
produced by its own wineries in Italy. The Compamg Banfi share the U.S. marketing costs for then@my’s wines.

Government Liquor Authorities. In Canada and the Nordic countries, the Compmamyihe is sold through government liquor authositin such countrie
products may be offered as a general listing guexialty listing. General listings are those that purchased by liquor boards on a regular basisr@guire a minimui
sales level per period (which varies dependingtenGanadian province and from country to countryhie Nordic countries). Sales to government liqaothoritie:
represented 11.6% and 14.6% of the Compmayport sales by volume and US$ value, respegtiireR009. In all provinces in Canada, the Compapgrates with ager
that work on a commission basis and are responfblgromotion and public relations. The exceptians Alberta and British Columbia where the lodglidr boards a
buying from our agents or distributors.

Own Distribution Subsidiaries. In the United Kingdom, the Company’s wholiywned subsidiary Concha y Toro UK distributes adirals of the Company and
subsidiaries, including Concha y Toro, Cono Sur lsfedNegra, Vifia Maipo, Palo Alto and Trivento.
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In 2008, Concha y Toro established distributionssdiaries in Brazil, Sweden, Finland and Norwayonder to strengthen its sales in those countriégsi
subsidiaries started their operations during thet fjuarter of 2009. The Nordic subsidiaries conuiatize all of the Group brands including the Artiee portfolio witt
the exception of Cono Sur and Canepa. In Bratfijrd party distributor also sells some brandshef €Company.

Export Marketing Strategy

Concha y Tora export strategy seeks to sustain attractive droates and achieve increasingly higher brand patiet and visibility in different markets a
increase consumer awareness. With this goal in nfisdcompany has developed a broad product partfetich participates in all market segments by raffg higr
quality wines at competitive prices, with growingabd preference and ample recognition by influémtiae critics.

At the same time the Company has diversified itsketascope by developing a portfolio of subsidianperies with the aim of reaching more consumernd
strengthening its distribution channels. Its maibhsidiaries are Vifia Cono Sur, Vifia Maipo, VifiadPAlto, Vifia Maycas del Limari and Trivento Bodega¥ifiedos.

Another key part in the Comparsyexport marketing strategy has been to diversifyekport markets on a regional basis. Diversificehelps protect agair
economic and in some cases political, changes winiai affect the market for the Compasyiroducts. In particular, the Company has exparitdegales to Asia
African, Eastern European and Middle Eastern c@estwhere the consumption of wine is increasirfge Tompany has a strong distribution network arsddevelope
long term relationships with its international distitors. This has enabled it to invest togethahts business partners in brand building and etagkowth.

The Company may from time to time seek to strengthistribution of its products by taking a direoter in distribution within a region or country. T@mpan
may also take these steps in order to increasdnaépna and knowledge of these markets.

The Company is seeking to focus future growth ipcekmarkets on the sale of premium and varietaesi The Company believes future growth is poséilbhe
Company is successful in the following efforts:

. improving the quality of its wines as a result t#ts-of-the-art technology used by the Companyénvinification process and vineyard management;
. increasing production from current and new vinegard
. changing perception of consumers, especially irthiged Kingdom and the United States, with resped¢he quality of Chilean wines, thereby creat

growth opportunity for the Company for its premiamd highe-priced wines

. launching new products;
. marketing efforts and upgrading packaging for afiduct lines with a special focus on its globalrat&asillero del Diablo; and
. promotional and advertisement campaigns seekinguronar engagement, including on-premise sales galgs to restaurants).

The Company believes that there is a trend towtrdsconsumption of premium wines from Chile andaiarvarietal wines in particular, in its major exj
markets, principally the United States, Europe gfesid Canada. The Company has tailored its neve griaptings to respond to this trend. See Item 4lrformation ol
the Company — Business Overview — Vineyards.”
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Seasonality

The Company has experienced and expects to corttinegperience seasonal fluctuations in its reverare net income. Both domestic and export wines
tend to be lower during the first quarter of tharyand higher during the third quarter, in antitimaof the yearend holiday period. Sales volumes also typicallgrdase
distributors begin a quarter with larger-thaormal inventory levels, which is usually the caséhe first quarter of the year. For these reastivessoperating results of 1
Company in any one quarter of the year may nohbieative of the year-end results or the resulanyf other quarter.

Company Sales - Argentina

Argentine Business. In 1996, Concha y Toro began operations in Aiigantvith the establishment of Trivento winery, ltehin Mendoza. In recent years
subsidiary has experienced important growth andbleasme Argenting’ second largest export winery in terms of volumigh an 8.1% market share of all bottled w
exported from Argentina in 2009. The operating &sséTrivento primarily include a total of 1,29@dtares of land, with 1,061 hectares planted, rselléth a capacity «
31 million liters and other wine-making equipmdnt2009, Trivento had revenues of Ch$25,828 mill@pproximately US$49 million) and sales of 2.5limil cases.

Trivento exports amounted to US$33.3 million anthstents of 1.6 million cases, representing a 4.88teiase in value and a decrease of 2.3% in theme
exported. In line with its objectives, the averagee rose by 7.4%, reflecting a price strategy simaught to protect the value of its brands.

Domestic sales were US$16 million, with a volumeda# thousand cases, with a decrease of 2.4% ire\aid 2.1% in volume, partly explained by global
domestic economic conditions. Sales in the domestientine market are concentrated in the poputatidd category and represent less than 1% of tatgéntine
domestic consumption.

Trivento Winery - Sales by Volume

Export Domestic

volume volume

(cases (cases
2005 1,238,001 548,20(
2006 1,416,001 700,00(
2007 1,528,001 864,00(
2008 1,675,00! 943,60(
2009 1,636,001 924,00(

Affiliated Companies

Vifia Almaviva . In 1997, the Company and Rothschild S.A. forméairat venture company, Vifia Almaviva, to product Rrimer Orden” or first-growth wine

in Chile. The Company contributed approximatelyhé@tares of producing vineyards located at Puelite Maipo Valley in exchange for 50% of the capgttock of Vifi
Almaviva.

In 2009, Vifia Almaviva had revenues of Ch$3,470iam| representing a decrease of 2.6%, comparecht8,565 million in 2008. This resulted from a 1
decrease in sales volume —mainly explained by lawwkmes in the US market impacted by the econamgis—,partially offset by a higher average price in Cailgpesc
(5%). In US dollars, the average export price cargd its rising trend. Almaviva’main markets are Korea, Japan, China, Switzedaddthe United States. In 2009
2008, the Company recognized participation in nepvine from Vifia Almaviva of Ch$339 million and CH$lmillion, respectively, in accordance with theiiggmethod.

Industria Corchera . In November 2000, the Company acquired 49.6%ndtistria Corchera. Currently the Companghare in Industria is 49.96%. In 2(

Industria Corchera' total sales amounted to Ch$12,758 million, regrésg a 7.7% decrease compared to Ch$13,822 mili2008. The Company in 2009 and 2
recognized participation in net income from Indiasaf Ch$394 million and Ch$308 million, respectiven accordance with the equity method.
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Government Regulation

Chilean Regulation. The Company is subject to the full range of goveental regulations generally applicable to compaerggaged in business in Chile, suc
labor laws, social security laws, public healtmsamer protection, environmental laws, securit@gsland anttrust laws, as well as regulations to ensure sgn#ad saf
conditions in the production, bottling and disttibn of beverages. The main regulatory entity fdnl€an sociedades anénimds the Superintendencia de Valore
Seguros de Chilg¢'Superintendency of Securities” or “S.V.S.").

Alcoholic Beverages RegulatioriBhe Company is subject to regulation in the prodactind distribution of alcoholic beverages. Childaw regulates whic
beverages come within the scope of regulation Ephalic beverages,the type of alcohol which can be used in the mastufe of alcoholic beverages, the additit
products that can be used in the production ofagerlcoholic beverages and the packaging anditapend procedures that must be followed to im@debholic
beverages. The manufacturing and bottling of aliolamd nonalcoholic beverages is also subject to supervisiothe National Health Service, which inspects {dam
regular basis.

Chilean law requires a license for the manufactume sale of alcoholic beverages and the Compaigvieslit has all the licenses necessary for itiness.

There are currently no material legal or admintsteaproceedings pending against the Company péntaito any Chilean regulatory matter and the Cam
believes that it is in compliance in all materieépects with all applicable statutory and admiatste regulations relating to its business.

Environmental RegulatiorThe Chilean Constitution of 1980 grants all citizehe right to live in an environment free of p&itha. It further provides that it is
States duty to enforce this right and to protect theiemment. The Chilean Constitution also providest ttitizens can file a complaint with the corresgiog Court o
Appeals seeking review of government and privatéymctions on the grounds that such actions ig&ithe citizens’ rights to a clean environment.

In 1994, the Chilean Congress enacted the Law N80@, which was recently amended by Law No. 204d/liphed in January 2010 (th&rivironmente
Framework Law”).The Environmental Framework Law sets forth that aew project or activity or modification to an etkig project or activity that may have an img
on the environment requires a favorable environalemtpact assessment. The Environmental Framewsidbkshes the basic framework and regulates gbmaativities
that may likely have an environmental impact. $oatontemplates an Environmental Impact Assess8ystem (EIA System).

The Environmental Framework Law also establishesrenmental liability standards, according to whipbrpetrators of environmental damage are liak
compensate the victims and restore the environment.

A new Environmental Ministry has been formally &dighed (pursuant to Law 20417), which will have ttesponsibility of defining all environmental pods
and strategies. The Ministry will have an Underr8triat with six different divisions to undertakarious environmental matters. Along with the newistry, the lav
also established the Environmental Impact Evalaa8ervice (EIES), which will be in charge of envinsental authorizations and permits and will cocatkrthe actions
all governmental entities that are required torbelved in the EIA System. Various amendments mau#er Law No. 20,417 are still not in force, bubsll becom
completely enforceable in the course of year 2010.

U.S. Regulation. The sale of wine in the United States is subjeextensive regulation covering virtually everpest of the Compang’operations, includir
marketing, pricing, labeling, packaging and adsary. State agencies regulate the delivery andbfisdl alcoholic beverages within their jurisdiat® while the feder
government, through the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobadtimarms and Explosives, is responsible for tiyeilation of imports through permit requirements &atukl approvi
processes. Importers of wine to the United Statesrequired to obtain various licenses, bonds amthips, including a federal ImporterPermit, to comply with tt
regulations of all such agencies.
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In 1997, U.S. and Chilean news organizations ancedithat members of the California wine industrgt patitioned the U.S. Department of Commerce tooise
trade sanctions against Chilean wine producerss& hemors have been denied by the California Aasiodi of Wine Grape Growers and other industrycidfs and, t
date, no allegations of violations of U.S. antitiasvs have been announced by any U.S. federahter agency. There can be no assurance, howeaendhU.S. federal
state agency will commence any action and/or imposetrade sanctions relating to alleged violatiohs.S. antitrust laws.

The Company believes it is in compliance in all eniatl respects with all presently applicable Ueglefral and state regulations.

Trademarks . The Company has Chilean registrations for theggpal trademarks used in its business, includingdba y Toro, Don Melchor, Amelia, Terrun
Trio, Casillero del Diablo, Sunrise, Frontera, Tioad, Maipo, Fressco and San José. Trademarksesgsby subsidiaries include Cono Sur, Isla Negedo Alto, Mayca
del Limari and Trivento. While the Company also lasign registrations for many of these trademarksnost of its principal export markets, it doest mave
registrations for all of its trademarks in all & export markets. The Company believes that @sds and trademarks are important to its businesssaseeking to prote
them through registration in many countries whaeytare not currently recorded.

C. Organizational Structure

The following table lists the significant subsidésr and affiliates of the Company, the percentafgdirect and indirect ownership by the Company #me
respective country of incorporation:

Direct and Country of
Subsidiary Indirect Ownership Incorporation
Inversiones Conchay Toro S. 10C% Chile
VCT Internacional S.A 10C% Chile
Comercial Peumo Ltd: 10(% Chile
Vifia Cono Sur S.A 10(% Chile
Sociedad Exportadora y Comercial Vifia Maipo Li 100% Chile
Sociedad Exportadora y Comercial Vifia Canepa 100% Chile
Vifia Maycas del Limari Ltde 10C% Chile
Transportes Viconto Ltdi 100% Chile
Vifia Palo Alto Ltda 99.9% Chile
Conchay Toro UK Limitec 10C% United Kingdom
Cono Sur Europe Limite 10C% United Kingdom
Trivento Bodegas y Vifiedos S. 100% Argentina
Finca Lunlunta S.A 10C% Argentina
Finca Austral S.A 10C% Argentina
VCT Brasil Importacién y Exportacion Limitac 100% Brazil
Conchay Toro Sweden A 100% Sweder
Conchay Toro Finland O 10C% Finland
Conchay Toro Norway A 10C% Norway
Vifiedos Los Robles SP 10C% Chile
Vifia Almaviva S.A. 5C% Chile
Industria Corchera S./ 49.9¢% Chile
Concha y Toro Shanghai (Representative Ager 100.(% China

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

The Companys headquarters are located at Nueva Tajamar 4&lCoades, Santiago. The Company owns 15,162 hecsme: leases 807 hectares of
throughout Chile and owns 1,290 hectares of landrgentina. Of these, approximately 10,955 hectaressuitable for planting vineyards and as of Drdmr 2009, ¢
these, 9,300 hectares were planted with vineyakdsajority of the remaining 6,304 hectares are cosegl of roads, hills and riverbanks. The remainideused fc
vinification and bottling plants, cellars and otleeiildings. None of the Company’s properties thiatraaterial to its business are mortgaged or otisereancumbered.
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As described in the section Item 4 — “Informationtbe Company — Business Overview — Vineyardsg&,@mmpany leases 807 hectares, comprising three
leases in the Maipo Valley, three leases in thellasca Valley and two leases in Colchagua Valbeyt§ Cono Sur winery. All of these are long tdeases expiring
between 2013 and 2036.

As for equipment, the Comparsymain assets include harvesting machinery, grapghers, concrete and stainless steel tanks ameldafs of December
2009, Concha y Tore’'aggregated winemaking and cellaring capacityhiieGvas approximately 323 million liters includi®® thousand barrels. In the Mendoza re¢
Vifia Trivento owns two vinification and cellaringdilities and a bottling plant with a total capg®f 31 million liters.

The earthquake on February 27, 2010 affected ptmaoiuand storage facilities. See ltem 5 — “Opegtimd Financial Review and Prospects —Overview.”

Comercial Peumo leases warehouses in Iquique, Agasta and Los Angeles for distribution. The Corgdaases plants for vinification of popular winerh
purchased grapes. The Company believes it woulabbeto obtain replacement properties at acceptaidts for its leased vineyards, warehouses anfication plant:
should its leases not be renewed. See Item 4 —erfimdtion on the Company — Business Overview — Vandg.”

Although the Company believes that it is in compti@ with all applicable environmental regulatioitgs still in the process of improving the wateedatmer
systems in all of its manufacturing plants. The @any has water treatment plants or systems, ownedrdracted to third parties, in all of its planBuring 2008 an
2009, the Company invested in water treatment pleggources amounting to Ch$612 million and Ch$&8lon, respectively. Total investment in assetited to th
improvement of the environment totaled Ch$2,898ioniland Ch$2,672 million in 2008 and 2009, resjvety.

ITEM 4A: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Concha y Toro is a large accelerated filer, asnéefin Rule 1212 of the Exchange Act. As of the date of the filofghis Annual Report, the Company does
have any unresolved comments from the Securitid€Eachange Commission staff regarding its periodports under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 5: OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

This section provides an assessment by managerhéme onost significant trends and changes in then@amy’s financial condition and results of operatit
Historical results are not necessarily indicatiféuture performance. Forwaldeking statements presented in this section abgstto a number of factors that may c:
future results to differ materially from those fseen.

Overview

Concha y Toro is principally a verticallptegrated wine producer. The Company is the largesducer of wine in Chile and also owns a winenArgentina
Vifia Trivento. The Company is Chile’s leading bedtlwine exporter, topelling winery in the domestic market and the numta® wine exporter by volume frc
Argentina.

The Company faces certain key challenges whichlvevan element of associated risk. Competitiortriatsgically important markets is increasing indam witt
higher supplies of wine and larger efforts to maskies from producer countries. In an effort tetain sales growth under such conditions, the Compas a produ
portfolio offering a highly attractive price to ditp ratio. In addition, Concha y Toro has alloaatfurther funds to the strengthening of its bramane and for tt
advertisement and marketing of its products imign markets as well as expanding and fortifyisglistribution channels.
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Significant factors which impacted the Compangperating results include sales development th fayeign and domestic markets, pricing of itspipal rav
material—the cost of grapes—and exchange rates.

The wine industry in 2009 was seriously affectedhsyglobal financial crisis and the economic delon. In the Compang’principal markets, the wine mar
showed adjustments in consumption and a generalereiency toward lower-priced products. The stiergftthe Companyg business strategy, plus its wide ranc
wines and an efficient costs structure, enabléaliespond effectively to these market needs.

Consolidated sales in 2009 were Ch$353,595 milliepresenting a 12.3% increase over 2008. A pesjierformance in both the external markets incng
11% by value and in the domestic market (wine ahdrgproducts) growing 25% by value contributethie result.

Company sales outside of Chile represented 79%eot4ales revenues and were denominated in foreigancy, mainly in United States dollars, Eurosyiith
Sterling, Canadian dollars, Argentine pesos, Biaziteais and Swedish and Norwegian crowns. Ingénthe strengthening of the Chilean peso agaiveste currencit
has an adverse impact in the results of the Compemynitigate the impact of this scenario as muglpa@ssible, the Company is applying a mailtirency strategy, in lir
with its diversification in sales and takes forwaasitions as part of its hedging strategy.

In 2009, Concha y Toro had a net income of Ch$8Mdlion, representing a 28.6% increase from 20D@s result summarizes a successful comme
management in a difficult scenario, plus a favarakbkult from currency management, a central gatteocompany’s business, as described above.

We believe the Company to be highly competitiveéténmajor markets. Concha y Toro has a high prdfilend name and competitive economies of scale
principal measure for sustaining future growth ines ongoing investment in vineyard development ealfar capacity to raise overall production capaend i
permanent sales and marketing investment in aeasang competitive industry.

On February 27, 2010, Chile was hit by a devagiagimrthquake. The worst affected area was the resotgh of the country. Concha y Toro, like the sthe
wine industry, with operations in these zones wiected by the earthquake and its aftershocks, wihes of bulk wine, finished products and dantadixed assets. It
important to mention that all of the Company asgatsl those of its subsidiaries) are insured agaaghquakes and its effects, including losseslting from the
suspension of operations. The Comparniypsurers include RSA Seguros Chile S.A., Chil@aasolidada Seguros Generales S.A. and Chartie Climpafia Segur
Generales.

The Company has quantified that its loss of bulkenand finished products was 22.8 million literbjeh corresponds to a 10% of the total wine inventbat the
company had as of February 27, 2010. This percertadpss is similar to that estimated for the €ail wine industry as informed by the industry asson “Vinos de
Chile”. Regarding the damages to the fixed asst#snless steel tanks rendered unusable as a wfstlie earthquake represent less than 1% of threp@oys tota
capacity. The rest of the tanks with some degretaofage have already been repaired or will be meghaiuring the coming months.

Following the earthquake, Vifia Concha y Toro imraggly triggered its contingency plan which estdtdi an assessment of the situation of the workiees
families and as a preventive measure and as amodtteder, the Company suspended it bottling aglthc operations. Ten days after the earthquakepgterations of i
four bottling plants were resumed, enabling the Gany to continue its distribution operations botimestically and to export markets. As a resulhefsuspension of t
bottling operations, the Company registered lovisgoraents in the month of March. Volumes have resiiame the Company is currently operating at notenadls.

The vinification cellars resumed their operatiomstioe same date, allowing the Company to starh#reesting and crushing process of the 2010 har@aste
mid-March, this process has been carried out in noroatlitions and at a capacity enough to receivegthpes according to the projections of the 201@dwsdr Th
exception was the Peumo cellar which resumed igsatipns on March 18 at 63% of its normal vinification capacity. In ord® mitigate this impact, the Comps
reoriented its crushing and vinification needs tizeo cellars. The Company believes that the difieadion of its cellars and productive centers hiswed it to complet
its 2010 harvest period without affecting substhtiits ability to conduct its operations.
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The Company believes that the impact of the eagkeguo the Company’operations was concentrated on the months of iMand April, following whicl
conditions will tend to return to normal for thestef the year.

As mentioned above, the Company has amigifs insurance policy for earthquake and its effemovering all the affected assets and businegssriptior
insurance. The limit of total indemnityof cover for all physical assets and business nmpgion is UF 20,417,917 (equivalent to Ch$431,6%Mlion as of May 31, 201C
The cover includes a deductible for physical assE®% of the sum insured per location with a maximof UF 10,000 (Ch$ 211 million) and of 10 days lhoisines
interruption. The Company is diligently pursuing @aims against insurers, and believes thataisnsl for damage resulting from the earthquake eilsuccessful.

As of March 31, 2010, Vifia Concha y Toro has reedr@h$14,668 million in accounts receivable (Tr@adtors and other Accounts Receivable, net) w
corresponds to inventories lost at their book valne expenses incurred to that date with respedetmingup activities, removal of rubble, repairs to assets busine:
interruption mitigation activities. This figure doaot include the value of loss of fixed asset® Tempany is working on the classification of tkeeds that will finally b
written off.

As of March 31, 2010, Vifia Concha y Toro and subsigls had not booked the related deductible, erciilectable income due to business interrupfidre
Company also had not booked the compensation iessxaf the book value to be received for destrdiyéshed product inventories and wine in bulk, ®dompensated
their sale price, or fixed assets written off, ® dompensated at replacement value. Managememtvéglthat the amounts to be received will adequataVer th:
corresponding amount of the deductibles.

Introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards

In conformity with SVS Circulars No. 427, dated Betber 28, 2007 and No. 485, dated November 19, 200éh relate to the process for adopting IFRS
Company has decided to present its financial statésin 2009 as proforma financial statements ¢ootparative to 2008 financial statements).

The Company reported its first quarter 2010 resagtef March 2010 under IFRS for the first time.
A. Operating Results

The following discussion should be read in conjiorcivith the Consolidated Financial Statementsluiiog the Notes thereto, included in Item 18 herdihe
Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared:éordance with Chilean GAAP, which differ in centamportant respects from U.S. GAAP. See Note 3Tht
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discusefof) the principal differences between Chilean A and U.S. GAAP which affect the financial statemseof the
Company, (ii) the effects of such differences om ¢hlculation of net income and shareholdecglity and (iii) a reconciliation to U.S. GAAP oétnincome for each of t
years in the three-year period ended December®19 and of shareholdersfuity as of December 31, 2008 and 2009. The fatigwable sets forth selected Comp
income statement data expressed as a percentegeeaiies for the years indicated, as well as y@gear percentage changes covering the respeciveds.
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Year Ended December 31

% Change

2008 2009 2008/2007 2009/200¢
Revenue: 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 3.5% 12.5%
Cost of sale: (59.9) (60.7) (63.5) 4.1 18.¢
Gross profil 40.: 39.¢ 36.5 2.€ 2.7
Selling and administrative expen: (23.9) (24.0) (23.9 4.€ 11.7
Operating incomi 16.5 15.¢ 12.€ -0.3 -11.C
Non-operating incom: 0.4 0.6 0.E 52.2 -6.4
Nor-operating expenst¢ (2.0 2.3 @.7 17.1 -14.2
Price-level restatement and foreign exchange losse: (0.2 (0.5) 3.€ 229.¢ -861.2
Income tax (2.€ (2.8) (2.5) 2.3 -2.1
Net income 11.¢ 10.€ 12.5 -5.2 28.€
Revenue Breakdown
(million Ch$ as of December 31, 2009)
Year Ended December 31 % Change
2007 2008 2009 2008/2007 2009/200¢
Domestic marke— wine 52,06! 50,69° 53,71t -2.6% 6.C%
Domestic marke- other product: 2,97¢ 4,15¢ 14,82« 39.6% 256.8%
Export market: 219,89° 228,40: 253,70! 3.8% 11.1%
Argentina domesti 7,88: 9,13¢ 8,72 15.9% -4.5%
Argentina export: 14,07¢ 15,31¢ 15,65¢ 8.8% 2.2%
Other 7,17¢ 7,051 6,971 -1.7% -1.1%
Total revenues 304,06° 314,75t 353,59t 3.5% 12.2%
Sales of Bottled Wine Breakdown
Sales (in million Ch$) % Change
2007 2008 2009 2008/2007 2009/200¢
Domestic marke— wine 51,991 50,18¢ 53,63: -3.5% 6.9%
Export market: 218,52¢ 225,69: 250,91( 3.3% 11.2%
Argentina domesti 7,721 9,061 8,72 17.2% -3.7%
Argentina export: 15,62¢ 15,31¢ 15,65¢ -2.C% 2.2%
Sales (in thousand liters’
2007 2008 2009 2008/2007 2009/200¢
Domestic marke— wine 77,29: 71,74 74,23t -7.2% 3.5%
Export market: 134,25¢ 145,46¢ 158,17! 8.4% 8.7%
Argentina domesti 7,78( 8,49: 8,31: 9.2% -2.1%
Argentina export: 12,25¢ 13,307 12,42: 8.6% -6.7%

Year ended December 31, 2009 compared to year ended December 31, 2008
Figures expressed in Chilean pesos (Ch$) as of December 31, 2009

Revenues. Total revenues increased 12.3% to Ch$ 353,595amifliom Ch$314,756 million in 2008. Growth was lBgdan increase in export sales and a
performance in Chile for both wine and other prdaduthe latter resulting from new businesses.

Domestic Market Wine Total domestic wine sales (including bulk) inaea 6.0% to Ch$53,715 million in 2009 from Ch$50,68illion in 2008. Bottle
domestic wine sales increased 6.9% to Ch$53,63bmih 2009 from Ch$50,184 million in 2008. Thissult reflects a 3.5% growth in volumes and a 3h§ker averac
price. Bottled wine sales volumes in the domestckat totaled 74 million liters. Sales of bulk widering the period totaled 161 thousand liters,chhis equivalent 1
Ch$85 million.

38




Popular wine sales increased 4%, with a good pedoce from the leading brand Clos de Pirque. Whligigt the 17% growth in the premium category, dr
by larger volumes of Casillero del Diablo and Masjude Casa Concha. This result is of great relevascin the context of economic recession, theg@ehpricec
categories are the most impacted. This result thereeflects the achievements of a focus on thgsrent which has sought to protect the value ofboands and foci
ourselves strongly on wholesalers, liquor stores@ntrade.

According to AC Nielsen, domestic volumes for thdustry showed a small decline of 0.7% during tharyIn this scenario, Concha y Toro increasethéske
share by 1.9 percentage points in 2009, reachingriet share of 31.5% in volume terms.

Domestic Market- other products. Domestic sales of other products comprise thessaf liquors and premium beer carried out by tbmektic distributio
subsidiary Comercial Peumo, which totaled Ch$14,8®4on in 2009. This represents a 256.8% increagalained by the addition of the Diageo liquortfmio since
May 2009.

Export Revenues Total export sales (including sales of bulk winenfi Chile totaled Ch$253,705 million, representamgincrease of 11.1%.

Export sales of bottled wine increased 11.2% togalth$250,910 million as compared to Ch$225,694ianil This increase was driven by an 8.7% increa
volumes sold and a 2.2% higher average export prichilean pesos.

In 2009, Company volumes increased 8.7%, with sales of 17,575¢2@8@s (158,175 thousand liters) as compared t®3,600 cases (145,468 thousand lit
in 2008. In a difficult economic environment théfieated consumption, we highlight the growth ack@\by the Company in key markets such as the Uganland th
us.

Sales volumes in the UK rose 19.2%; the strengthdiversity of the grou portfolio allowed Concha y Toro UK to adapt te tieeds of the market, offer
highly competitive deals on the Isla Negra, Vinaipaand Frontera lines. The Company was able tot i@erequirements of our customers while at thaeséime
protecting the positioning of our premium brands.

Shipments to Asia grew 9.9% following strong volsnire Japan. In the US, sales increased 8.2% witbweaging results for the Casillero del Diablo, ofjpldo
and Frontera lines. Sales to Canada edged up 2.1%.

Sales volume in Continental Europe increased 2i8%his region volumes were impacted by weak ecanaronditions, but the beginning of a recover
volumes was noted in the second half of the yeanti@ America/Caribbean and South America grewelafd 1.1%, respectively.

For further information regarding the total amoohexport sales, export sales and competition aimtipal export markets, see Item 4 -taformation of thi
Company — Business Overview — Company sales — Exparkets” and Note 37(l) to the Financial Statetsen

Argentine Operations Stable sales revenues at Ch$24,379 million wererded at our Argentine business; export growth.B¢@was offset by a 4.5% decl
in domestic sales.

In 2009, Trivento$ exports of bottled wine totaled US$ 33.3 millisith shipments of 1,636,500 cases. This results fao2.3% decrease in volumes sold ar
increase of 7.4% in the average price per casempared with 2008. The average price per casedrereto US$ 20.4 per case, following increasingssaf premiur
wines, in line with the Company’s strategy.

Domestic sales decreased 2.4% in US dollar termi®4l% by volume totaling US$16 million and 923,828es respectively.
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Other Sales Other revenues comprise fees for bottling sesyisales of fruit and other revenues generatechile @nd Argentina, which amounted to Ch$6
million in 2009.

Cost of Sales Cost of sales rose 18.8% to Ch$224,644 milliemftCh$189,148 million in 2008. Cost of sales agr@entage of total sales increased to 6:
from 60.1%. This is mainly explained by a higheedt cost related to higher grape costs of the 20@&ge impacting the first half of the year amgbaby higher operatir
costs related to an extraordinary writf-of Ch$ 1,658 million in wine stocks, related mmre expensive base wines being used in lower eegwmines following th
change in the mix due to recessionary conditions.

Gross Profit . Gross profit increased 2.7% to Ch$128,951 miliio2009. As a percentage of sales, the gross maegreased from 36.5% from 39.9% in 2
This change was the result of lower priced winesa@ahigher average direct cost.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A) Selling, General and Administrative Expensesdased 11.7% to Ch$84,343 million from Ch$ 75
million. This increase reflects mainly higher expes related to the starp of foreign distribution subsidiaries. As a peitege of revenues, SG&A was 23.9% in 2
compared to 24% in 2008.

Operating Income . Operating income decreased 11%, totaling Ch$Z4rgillion compared to the Ch$50,102 million in 200®e operating margin decrea
from 15.9% to 12.6%. The decrease in the operagsglt is mainly explained by 1) the change inghks mix following the economic downturn in keyrkeds, 2) th
impact of a higher wine cost (impacting the firatftof the year) and 3) an extraordinary cost ezldb to more expensive base wines being usedvierlsegment wines.

Non-Operating Income. Non-operating income decreased to Ch$1,799 mifiom Ch$1,923 million in 2008. This is mainly thesult of higher nomperating
income in 2008 related to a gain resulting frondlampropriation.

Non-operating Expenses (Excluding Price Level Rediement and Foreign Exchange Differences) Non-operating expenses decreased 14.2% to Ch$
million from Ch$7,136 million in 2008. This resultenainly from a decrease in interest expensesidsttexpense decreased by 10.5% from Ch$6,23®Dmtlli Ch$5,58
million due to a decrease in short term debt tkbamd financial institutions and also due to awryeadjustments.

Price level restatement and Foreign Exchange Diffences. Price level restatement and foreign exchangemiffces produced a gain of Ch$12,585 millic
2009 compared to a loss of Ch$1,653 million in 200 is principally explained by a gain in excgandifferences of Ch$11,137 million, related towfard position
taken by the Company as part of its export exchaatgehedging and fixing strategy and a positiwiltein price level restatements.

For detail on price-level restatement and foreigchange differences, see Notes 23 and 24 of thedlidated Financial Statements.

Net Income. Net income in 2009 of Ch$44,160 million increabgdCh$9,817 million, 28.6%, as compared to Ch$&3,3illion in 2008.

Year ended December 31, 2008 compared to year ended December 31, 2007
Figures expressed in Chilean pesos (Ch$) as of December 31, 2009

Revenues In 2008, total revenues increased 3.5% to Ch$7564million from Ch$304,067 million in 2007. Thisainly as a result of an increase in export
from Chile, partly offset by the appreciation oétBhilean peso.

Domestic Market Wine Total domestic wine sales (including bulk) desezh2.6% to Ch$50,697 million in 2008 from Ch$52,06illion in 2007. Domest

bottled wines sales for the period decreased 3db@ht$50,184 million in 2008 from Ch$51,997 million2007. Bottled sales volume in the domestic matdiled 71.
million liters. Sales of bulk wine during the quartotaled 850 thousand liters.
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The 3.5% contraction in bottled domestic sales thhasesult of a 4% increase in the average pricéitpe offset by a 7.2% decrease in sales volufime higher
average price reflects the Compaspticing strategy which seeks to improve profiigbin this market by focusing more on sales oh@s with greater profit margins. T
results obtained were in line with the Company’gotives despite the impact of the volume sold.Wvoés by category reveal a 6.3% increase in premiimes, offset by
declines of 7.3% and 14.9% in the popular and telr@ategories respectively.

According to AC Nielsen, domestic volumes for theustry declined by 5% during 2008. In this scema@oncha y Toro decreased its market share t
percentage points in 2008, reaching a market sbfa?®.7% measured in volume terms. This is maihby itesult of volume declines in the lower pricerseqts, in lin:
with the Company’s domestic strategy.

Domestic Market-other product®omestic sales of other products comprise the saldgjuors and premium beer carried out by the dsinc distributiol
subsidiary Comercial Peumo, which totaled Ch$4,dBlon in 2008, a 39.6% increase as compared ©@72This is mainly explained by distribution agresrntha
Comercial Peumo signed with SAB Miller in April 280

Export Revenues Sales of bottled wine abroad, including exportshied parties from Chile and those of Concha y Toit6, increased 3.3% to Ch$225,¢
million in 2008 from Ch$218,526 million in 2007. iBtresult reveals the impact of a 7.7% real apptigi of the Chilean peso against the U.S. doliahe period. Th
unfavorable exchange movement partially offsetlth&% revenue growth measured in U.S. dollar terms.

Company sales of bottled wine in export markets &4% in volume terms. This increase was achibyediversified growth across all geographic area#) the
largest volume gains obtained in Europe, UnitedeStaCanada and Asia.

Volumes commercialized in Europe increased 8.9%gedrby growth in both Continental Europe and ia thnited Kingdom. Shipments to Continental Eu
increased 13.5%, demonstrating the strong positipand high preference and image of our brandedrrégion. Following strong volumes achieved inr8ia@avia, th
Company has further strengthened its position énrégion, establishing distribution subsidiarieSimeden, Norway and Finland. The Company belielvisswill enhanc
the visibility and focus on the Company’s brandd egsult in closer relations with main clients.

Company shipments to the United Kingdom increasé#o4while sales of Concha y Toro UK by volume @ased 6.3%. This positive performance, in a
tough trading environment, is a reflection of yeafdnvestment in the United Kingdom market, whéte Company has developed strong brand recogriigsed o
quality and pricing.

Sales to the United States market increased 11%)yraue to growth in the varietal category witletimtroduction of Vifia Maipo. For its part, Canadtewed
strong 28.1% expansion. In Asia, volume rose 171&dtby strong results in Japan, Korea, SingapodeGimina, combined with growth in most of the regsoemalle
markets.

Shipments to Central America/Caribbean increas8&3while volumes in South America decreased 12.fidhgwing worsening economic conditions ¢
inventory adjustments in Brazil, Venezuela and @di@.

Shipments by segment reveal a 3.4% increase inipnenvines and a 14.7% growth in varietal wines, levtthe bivarietal category increased 3.4% and poj
wines increased 19.9%.

The average price in Chilean pesos decreased Bfy, 4vith the lower average exchange rate in 2008atlgroffsetting the higher average price achiewed).S
dollar terms. The average exchange rate (relewarthé Company) in 2008 was Ch$543.9 per US$ datlampared to Ch$589.6 per US$ in 2007, represgmatin.79
appreciation of the currency. In U.S. dollar terthg, average export price per case (FOB) increfieadUS$23.17 to US$24.01 in 2008. For further infation regardin
the total amount of export sales, export salescanapetition and principal export markets, see e “Information of the Company — Business OvervienCompan'
sales — Export markets” and Note 37(l) to the FaiarStatements.
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Argentine Operations Total revenues from our Argentine business incrdd4e3% to Ch$24,450 million following expansiorfs8d% in exports and 15.9%
domestic sales.

In 2008, Trivento$ exports of bottled wine totaled US$31.8 milliarith shipments of 1,675,000 cases, which repressmiscrease of 17.5% and 9.6% by v
and volume respectively over 2007. Growth was lethbger sales in Europe, Central America/Caribbezash Asia. The average price per case increasét {6.2JS$ 19.
per case, following increasing sales of premiumesijnin line with the Company’strategy. Domestic sales increased 20.8% in dbfar terms and 9.2% by volul
totaling US$16.4 million and 943,600 cases respelsti

Other Sales Other revenues comprise fees for bottling sesyisales of fruit and other revenues generatechile @nd Argentina, which amounted to Ch$7
million in 2008, representing a 1.7% decrease apeved to 2007.

Cost of Sales Cost of sales rose 4.1% to Ch$189,148 milliomfioh$181,616 million in 2007. Cost of sales as i@grgage of total sales increased to 6(
from 59.7% mainly as a result of a higher directtc@his is explained by the higher grape costb®2008 vintage.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 2.6% to Ch$125,608 millim2008. As a percentage of sales, the gross mdegireased to 39.9% from 40.3%, as a res
a higher average direct cost and a lower averageagge rate for this period.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses (SG&A). SG&A at Concha y Toro mainly includes advertisiagd promotional expenses, salarie
administrative and salgsersonnel, general expenses, export commissiosgrance and maintenance. SG&A increased 4.6% t&%5%$6 million from Ch$72,1¢
million. This increase reflects higher expenseatesl to marketing expenses of the foreign subsidiaincluding startip expenses of the distribution subsidiary in Br
As a percentage of revenues, SG&A increased t@240m 23.7% in 2007.

Operating Income . Operating income showed a slight decline of 0.88aling Ch$50,102 million compared to the Ch$6@,2nillion in 2007. The operatil
margin decreased from 16.5% to 15.9%, this reflé@smpacts of the appreciation of the Chilearopeshigher average direct cost and higher SG&A psrcentage
revenues for the period.

Non-Operating Income . Non-operating income increased to Ch$1,923 millimm Ch$1,263 million in 2007. This is mainly dxiped by a higher nen
operating income related to a gain resulting franmdlexpropriation.

Non-operating Expenses (Excluding Price Level Restement and Foreign Exchange Differences) Non-operating expenses increased 17.1% to Ch$
million from Ch$6,094 million. This resulted mainiom an increase in interest expenses. Intergstrese increased by 28.2% from Ch$4,865 million 865239 millior
due to an increase in short term debt to bankdiaadcial institutions and also due to currencyuatipents.

Price level restatement and Foreign Exchange Diffences. Price level restatement and foreign exchangermdiffces produced a loss of Ch$1,653 millic
2008 compared to a loss of Ch$502 million in 200fis loss is principally explained by the fluctwatiof foreign exchange rates during the fourth trasf 2008 whic
moved against the Company’s forward contracts tsestabilize anticipated export income. For detail pricelevel restatement and foreign exchange differensex
Notes 23 and 24 of the Consolidated Financial Statgs.
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Net Income. Net income in 2008 of Ch$34,343 million decreasgdh$1,893 million, 5.2%, as compared to Ch$3B28lion in 2007.

U.S. GAAP Reconciliation. Net income under U.S. GAAP for 2009, 2008 and72@@&s Ch$43,590 million, Ch$32,313 million and CA&®0 million
respectively, whereas the amounts reported undéed®hGAAP were Ch$44,160 million, Ch$34,343 mifliand Ch$36,237 million, respectively. Differencesul
mainly from U.S. GAAP adjustments for derivativéise reversal of goodwill amortization, the recoglof deferred income taxes in accordance with SEAS and th
reversal of provision for restructuring.

Total shareholdergquity under U.S. GAAP for 2009 and 2008 was Ch$3®® million and Ch$249,587 million, respectivelydacompared to Chilean repor
amounts of Ch$307,409 million and Ch$257,042 millicespectively. The main differences between $tudders’equity under U.S. GAAP and Chilean GAAP are
capitalized interest, recording of deferred incommees, reversal of goodwill amortization, revershlrevaluation of technical appraisal, accumulatiegreciation ¢
capitalized interest, reversal of provision of resturing, the accrual of a 30% minimum dividend aerivatives net of deferred taxes.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

In 2009 and 2008, the Compasymain sources of liquidity were cash generatedtbyperating activities and by financing actistievhich amounted
Ch$34,620 million and Ch$2,377 million, respectigl 2009 and Ch$20,891 million and Ch$28,583 willirespectively in 2008. In 2007, the Companyain source
liquidity was cash generated by its operating &y, which amounted to Ch$62,649 million. In thempanys opinion, its working capital of Ch$125,774 mitlias o
December 31, 2009 is sufficient for the Company&spnt requirements.

On December 31, 2009, the Company had Ch$6,99®mitlf cash and other cash equivalents and appairisgn Ch$197,286 million available under undr:
bank lines of credit.

Prior to the effect of inflation in cash and casfuigalent, the Company generated positive cash fmwthe years 2009, 2008 and 2007 of Ch$3,467ianj
Ch$1,022 million and Ch$895 million, respectivelie effect of inflation decreased cash and caskvalgmts by Ch$325 million, Ch$38 million and Ch#2@iillion in
2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Net cash flows from operating activities were Ch$28 million in 2009, Ch$20,891 million in 2008 aGth$62,649 million in 2007. Net cash flow providey
financing activities were Ch$2,377 million in 2008.2009, the cash flow generated by financingvétigs was generated through a capital increasettanglacement
commercial paper undertaken during the months ofl &pd May 2009, these resources were mostly gy bank debt. In 2008, cash flow from financawgivities
amounting to Ch$28,583 million came mostly from lbéinancing, while in 2007 the Company paid banktdend net cash flows used in financing activities negativ
Ch$23,454 million in 2007. Net cash flow used imdsting activities was Ch$33,529 million in 20091$28,452 million in 2008 and Ch$38,300 million iB0Z .

There are no material restrictions, either legaboonomic, that would limit the ability of subsidés to transfer funds to the Company in the forircast
dividends, loans, or advances.

The Companyg total assets increased 1.1% from Ch$505,907omilit December 31, 2008 to Ch$511,528 million atéb@ber 31, 2009. The increase in 1
assets is due mainly to an increase in properant@nd equipment, including investments in celigracity and acquisition and development of neweyands.

Current liabilities decreased 23.2%, to Ch$125,408on at December 31, 2009 from Ch$162,990 milliat December 31, 2008. This resulted mainly frc

decrease in short term debt to banks and finair@étutions and a decrease in accounts payablert 8rm debt decreased to Ch$35,310 million indbelger 2009 froi
Ch$70,725 million in December 2008.
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Long-term liabilities, corresponding to debt to finaddiestitutions and a bond, decreased to Ch$62,08ibmat December 31, 2009, from Ch$68,142 milliai
December 31, 2008, mainly caused by exchange daistenents to UF denominated debt.

The main long term liability of the Company is aydar bond that was placed on April 26, 2005, for 2Jillion (Ch$38,190 million as of December 3109
on the local market at an interest rate of 3.9%gpeum. The amortization of this bond is done anisenual installments that began October 2009 arddst paymen
are done on a semi-annual basis starting April 2@%/enants associated with the issuance of boagabte are detailed in Note 28 to the Financiateftants—
Contingencies and Restrictions. Bond covenantsineghe Company to maintain certain financial ratidémong them, the Company is required to (1) naaingr
indebtedness ratio (the ratio of current and la@rgatliabilities to shareholdersquity plus minority interest) no greater than tides; (2) maintain, at all times, during
life of the present bond issuance, minimum equitiive million UF; and (3) maintain at all times amterest coverage ratio (the ratio of operatingpime plus depreciatir
plus operating amortization to interest expensés) minimum of 2.5 times. As of December 31, 200®& Company complies with all covenants required bas
consolidated indebtedness ratio of 0.66 times,te@fiCh$307,409 million or 14.7 million UF and theterest coverage ratio is 10.6 times.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company'’s total irstEbearing financial debt amounted to Ch$97,407 nmilled which, Ch$35,310 million was short term ¢
and Ch$62,097 million was long term debt with misies to 2013 for its bank debt and 2026 for theddebt. Around 57% of financial debt has a fixete and i
denominated in Pesos, U.S. dollars, Pounds Steingps and Argentine Pesos. The Company has edtarsy type of financial instrument to minimizeeirgst rate ris
exposure but is considering hedging as a meangigate this risk.

For further detail on interest bearing debt as e€@&@nber 31, 2009, see Item 11 — “Quantitative andli@tive Disclosures About Market Risk.”

Due to increased uncertainty in the global and ddimdéinancial markets during the final months 608, the Company took various measures with regpatd
financing strategy. A capital increase was approaethe Extraordinary ShareholdemMeeting held on December 18, 2008 for approxima@$30,000 million an
different lines of bonds and commercial paper weggstered in order to have different instrumemis #erms for obtaining the best financing available

The capital increase of the Company was effectemligh the issuance of 28,000,000 common, nominativeno par value shares. The preferential optésiog
for subscription, at a price of Ch$930 per shaommenced on April 15, 2009 and ended on May 159200this period a total of 26,325,409 shares veetescribed. C
May 28, 2009 the Company’s board of directors aglbpt plan to offer the remaining 1,674,591 unsiibedrshares from the preferential option perioth® Companys
employees at the same price (Ch$930) and subj¢lcetsame conditions as offered to the shareholders

Total proceeds from this capital increase amou@te$l18,773 million. From the total of 26,325,409rsisassubscribed, 14,046,376 shares were fully pagash ¢
the same time as subscription, corresponding tol80%3 million; and 12,279,033 shares were paytip#id (50%) corresponding to Ch$5,708 million. Tiedanc
should be paid within a maximum term of one yeantithe date of subscription of the shares, in wisibe the subscription price for such shares wilhtijusted in tt
same proportion as the variation in the value efilnidad de Fomento, as indicated in article 1hefCorporations Law.

During 2009, the capital increase was completed 2h835,247 shares were subscribed, raising thebeuwf shares to a total of 747,005,982 sharesal
proceeds from the capital increase were used fmagrdebts of the Company and its subsidiaries wiviete incurred to finance the Company’s investnpeagrams.

On April 23, 2009 the Company placed commercialepdpr Ch$5,000,000 thousand at an interest rate.266% per month. The amortization and intt

accrued will be payed in one payment at the due dfthis instrument, March 2010. Covenants asgadiaith the issuance of commercial paper are léetén Note 28 t
the Financial Statements — Contingencies and Réstis. As of December 31, 2009, the Company caapliith all covenants required.
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Capital Expenditures

Total capital expenditures which include additiomgroperty, plant and equipment and other permtangaestments were Ch$32,132 million in 2009, Ch$42
million in 2008 and Ch$33,884 million in 2007. Cabiexpenditures in 2009 in the agriculture aremmadse the acquisition of new properties and thestiment an
planting of vineyards in estates purchased in previyears. Investments in the oenology includecetpansion of vinification and cellar capacity, aisgion of barrel
and the acquisition of new cellars. In the indas$tarea, investments included mainly the expansiothe Vespucio bottling plant. In Argentina, nemvéstment we
oriented to vineyard development and cellar faesit For 2010, the Company established a capitpérediture budget of Ch$21,500 million (approximatelS$4(
million), that includes mainly the development b&tnew land acquired in the previous years, thestoaction of storage and fermentation facilitiespansion of th
bottling plants and the acquisition of French amdefican oak barrels, for the production of all véingth an emphasis on premium and varietal wimegedtments of 20:
will also include the repair of the cellar capadiat was damaged or lost as a consequence ofattleqeake. The following table sets forth the Conyps capits
expenditures for the different areas for the y@a7, 2008 and 2009.

Capital Expenditures (1)
(in million Chilean pesos (Ch$) as of December 32009)

2007 2008 2009
Area:
Agriculture @ 10,05« 18,91« 11,34¢
Oenology, technical and bottling faciliti 16,11° 18,78¢ 17,60¢
Vifia Trivento (Argentina 5,79¢ 4,39: 1,73¢
Administration and other subsidiari 1,91 2,01¢ 1,44(
Total 33,88¢ 44,11; 32,13

M The investment figures in this table correspondrtmunts net of V.A.T., while figures in the Condalied Statements of Cash Flows include V.A.T.
(@ Agriculture expenditures consist of investmentagmicultural equipment and activities in order evelop new vineyards and bring them to commergiadipction an
to maintain or expand production at existing vinega

The Company expects to continue purchasing andlaf@ng vineyards and the related infrastructuredeeeto support future growth and may incur addél
expenditures for vineyards if opportunities becamwailable. Management reviews the capital expergliwogram periodically and modifies it as requitedneet currel
business needs.

Impact of Inflation and Foreign Currency Fluctuations

The Company is required under Chilean GAAP to testnmonetary assets and liabilities, equity and inca@nd expense accounts to reflect the effe
variations in the purchasing power of the Chileasg During inflationary periods, monetary itemse@ate a gain or loss in purchasing power whidhfleenced by th
currency in which they are denominated. Noanetary assets and liabilities are restated $o esrrect the effect of inflation and remain camstin real terms from peri
to period. See Note 2(e) and Note 23 to the Codastd Financial Statements contained in Item 18.

The net monetary correction gain or loss each igezalculated as follows:

. Non-monetary assets and liabilities, shareholdersitgcqand income and expense accounts are restatad tiee CPI published by Chile’Nations
Institute of Statistics

. The CPI effect on inventories is calculated basethe turnover of inventory during the year.

. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated inifpreurrency and UF are restated at the applicgdde-end exchange rates.
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In general, inflation has the adverse effect ofidigihing the purchasing power of the Company’s pdsoominated monetary assets which are not pricg-le
indexed and has the positive effect of reducingéa value of the Company’s peso-denominated naopdinbilities which are not price-level indexed.

Over 79% of the Company'revenues are related to foreign sales that arendieated in U.S. dollars, Euros, Pounds Steri@apadian dollars, Argentine pes
Brazilian reais and Swedish and Norwegian crowrtsth& same time, approximately 35% of the CompareXpenses are also denominated in foreign curréhe
Company purchases bottles, corks and Tetra Brikadmgrs in prices mainly set in U.S. dollars), trgaa natural currency hedge. The Company enteosforwarc
foreign exchange agreements to minimize its exgosuthe risks of changes in foreign exchange r&8ee Item 11 —Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Ak
Market Risk.”

To the extent that U.S. dollar-denominated revermxeged U.S. dollar-denominated operating cosesCimpanys results of operations will be impacted by
difference between the changes in exchange ratetharChilean rate of inflation.

To the extent that the Chilean peso depreciatesstghe U.S. dollar at a lower rate than the ddt€hilean inflation, the Comparg/export sales will increase |
than inflation adjusted peso costs and margingparted in Chilean pesos will decrease. The reva@tsation would occur with respect to domesti@salenominated
Chilean pesos and related U.S. dollar denominatstscThe rates of nominal appreciation of the &inilpeso against the U.S. dollar in 2007 and 206082809 wer
1.4%, 0.2%, while the peso depreciated against@elollar 7.3% in 2009(average annual exchange)alée Chilean pricéevel restatement factors for the same pe
were 7.4%, 8.9% and -2.3% respectively.

The Company enters into forward foreign exchangeegents to minimize its exposure to the risks ladnges in foreign exchange rates. Since 199:
Company has attempted to balance U.S. dollar-demated assets and liabilities. See Item 11 — “Qtatite and Qualitative Disclosures About MarketkRis

Critical Accounting Policies

A summary of the Company'’s significant accountimdjges is included in Note 2 to the Compasmyudited Consolidated Financial Statements. Tapapatiol
of financial statements requires management to reakimates and assumptions and exert judgmenteTd@®ns affect the amounts reported in the Catesteld Financi:
Statements. Included below are the accountingipsliwhich the Company considers critical to itsibess.
a) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

The Company maintains allowances for doubtful antauPossible loss estimates are based on a cas&sbyevaluation of past due amounts of more the
months. In addition to the aging of the receivalthe Company considers historical loss experie@tber factors are also considered, including génecanomit
environment of the wine industry. Historically, badebt write-offs have not been significant andwitain the parameters for the wine industry.

The Company has contracted insurance policies wigithburse the Company for neollection of practically all accounts receivabkddnces related to exp
sales. Insurance coverage is, in general, up to®&a¥e balances in Accounts Receivable in all geplgical areas.

The Company believes that this is a critical actiogrpolicy because of the judgment involved inragtg for possible loss estimates.
b) Income and Deferred Taxes:

Our Company and each of its subsidiaries compudgpay tax on an individual tax return basis.
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Effective January 1, 2000, the effects of defeireme taxes arising from temporary differencesveen the basis of assets and liabilities for teck fmencia
statement purposes are recorded in accordanceTedhnical Bulletin No. 60 issued by the Chilean dsation of Accountants. The effects of deferrecbme taxes
January 1, 2000, which were not previously recordezte set up as a contaaset or liability account which is charged or @extito income over the estimated reve
period of the temporary differences. Under TecHriBzdletin No. 60, deferred tax assets are redumed valuation allowance if it is more likely thant that some portic
or all the deferred tax asset will not be realizedmaking this determination, the Company consd®th positive and negative evidence and makeaicerssumptior
including projections of taxable income.

Although we believe that our estimates are readenab assurance can be given that the final tésooue of these matters will not be different frdmattwhich i:
reflected in our historical income tax provisiomgleaccruals. Such differences could have a mateffiatt on our income tax provision and net incaméhe period i
which such determination is made.

In order for us to realize our deferred tax assetsmust be able to generate sufficient taxablerme in those jurisdictions where the deferred tssets ai
located. We have considered future market grovattedasted earnings, future taxable income, theafearnings in the jurisdictions in which we operahd prudent ai
feasible tax planning strategies in determiningrteed for a valuation allowance. In the event weewte determine that we would not be able to readiz or part of our n
deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustmethietaleferred tax assets would be charged to egriminthe period in which we make such determimatio

The Company believes its tax positions comply i applicable tax laws and that it is adequatedyided for all tax related matters. The Compangubiject ti
examination by taxing authorities in the variousgdictions in which it files tax returns. Specé#lly, the Company is routinely under examinationtfyy Internal Reveni
Service. The current examination includes the y@&1 through 2007. Matters raised upon audit nmaplve substantial amounts and could result in nelteast
payments if resolved unfavorably; however, managengd®es not believe that any material payments béll made related to these matters within the near
Management considers it unlikely that the resotlutbthese matters will have a material adversecefin its results of operations.

c) Inventories:

Our inventories of finished products and invent®rid inprocess goods are stated at cost plus price leggtement and include the cost of raw materiad
labor and overhead costs added to the products.

The resulting value of inventories does not exdbed estimated net realizable values. Raw matesal supplier goods acquired from third partiessaated «
average cost plus monetary correction. The Compariyrds obsolescence provisions for finished prsdyroducts in process, raw material and otheerzds$ based ¢
reports detailing slow to no turnover, which takiconsideration certain estimations and assumgtiocluding market conditions and consumer comsiaom estimate
As the Company must exercise judgment in projectigket conditions and consumer consumption, theg2my believes that the Compasydccounting policy fc
reserving inventory should be considered critical.

d) Goodwill:

Goodwill is recorded at cost plus price-level restzents and is amortized on a strailiyi- basis, over the estimated future periods hme{not exceeding :
years). Goodwill is periodically reviewed for impaient whenever events or changes occur that iredibat carrying value of the business, or assetghtoh they relate
may not be recoverable. As such, events or chaoges, management estimates the future cash floywscted to result from the use and, if applicatile, eventu:
disposition of the assets and related goodwill. Kag variables which management must estimate deckales volume, prices and other economic fac8ignifican
management judgment is involved in estimating thes@ables and they include inherent uncertaintiesyever, the assumptions used are consistentowithinterna
planning. Therefore, management periodically eweliand updates the estimates based on the cosditiat influence these variables. If the assetscansidere
impaired, they are written down to fair value aprapriate. We performed the impairment tests ofgnadwill and concluded that no impairment charge wecessary.
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e) Impairment of long-lived assets:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Amortized Intalegi The Company depreciates property, plant gouépment and amortizes intangibles by the straligiet-
method over the estimated useful lives of thesetaskstimates of useful lives are based on theeatf the underlying assets as well as the Conipaexperience wii
similar assets and intended use. Estimates of lusefa can differ from actual useful lives duete inherent uncertainty in making these estimates is particularly tru
for the Company'’s significant lonigred assets such as vineyards, buildings, farmiaghinery and equipment, tanks and irrigation systd-actors such as the conditi
in which the assets are used, availability of @i replace assets and frequency of maintenacmad influence the useful lives of these assets.

The Company reviews property, plant and equipmedtaanortizable intangibles to be held and usedhipairment whenever events or changes in circurost
indicate that the carrying amount may not be rehle. If an evaluation of recoverability is reqar the estimated total undiscounted future cashsfidirectly associati
with the asset are compared to the assetrying amount. If this comparison indicated thare is an impairment, the amount of the impairtris calculated by compari
the carrying value to the discounted expected éutash flows expected to result from the use ofaset and its eventual disposition or comparalzeket value:
depending on the nature of the asset.

f) Investments in foreign subsidiaries:

The investments in the Argentine subsidiaries, @mte and Finca Lunlunta, are recorded in accordaite Technical Bulletin 64 of the Chilean Institubt
Accountants. Under this pronouncement the finanstalements of foreign subsidiaries, which openateountries that are exposed to significant riskstrictions ¢
inflation/exchange fluctuations must be remeasiméal U.S. dollars and translated to Chilean pesdbeyearend exchange rate. As a result, no effect is gteeprice
level restatements based on inflation in this cguabd the U.S. dollar is considered to be thetional currency of these operations. Accordinghg financial statemer
of the Argentine subsidiaries are prepared in atamee with Chilean GAAP except for the applicatidrmonetary correction and then remeasured inta doBars a
follows:

Monetary assets and liabilities are translatecea-end exchange rat

All non-monetary assets and liabilities and sharehc’ equity are expressed at historical U.S. doll
Income and expense accounts at the average exctetegd the month in which the transactions oc
The resulting exchange adjustments are includégeimesults of operation

The resulting U.S. dollar amounts are then traaedl&h Chilean pesos at the observed exchangefrtite 0.S. dollar in relation to the Chilean pestha balanc
sheet date. The net equity in the foreign subs&lian Chilean pesos is compared to the investwedoed by the equity method at the beginning ofytbar, as adjusted 1
price level changes in Chile during the year. Aiffedence between the Compasyjarticipation in the equity of the subsidiariesl #he investment therein as adjuste(
Chilean inflation, arises from exchange adjustmentsch are included in the Cumulative translatamjustment account in the equity section of thefzé sheet unc
Chilean GAAP.

g) Derivatives:

Company exports sales are mainly denominated in tdbfars, Pounds Sterling, Euros and CanadiaredollThus, the Compars/financial results could
affected due to variations in exchange rates.

Regarding the Argentine subsidiaries, a portiorsales and accounts receivable are denominatedgantine pesos, while the functional currency is th8

dollar. This generates a risk associated with #aeafliation of the Argentine peso against the UdBad In addition, a proportion of such subsidistiassets in Argentit
are also denominated in Argentine pesos; thus,dheympacted by the devaluation of the Argentiesop
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In order to minimize the short-term effect of theleange rate variations on sales denominated @igiercurrency, the Company has adopted a policy of
attempting to balance assets and liabilities denate in foreign currency. With this objective, thempany enters into forward currency contracts agy to mitigate
these risks according to the exposure of the exgghaaite variations related to the currency positiine exchange rate differences of the forwardraots are registered
fair value with the effects reflected in net incoimgrear 2008 and in shareholder’s equity in ye&0® because the Company opted for hedge accout@ggNote 37(1)

(0.
h) Revenue recognition:

The Company sells to various locations around tbddwvith varied sales terms and arrangements. Resefrom the sale of goods and services relatdke
Company’s lines of business are recognized in irc@arhen there is certainty that there has beenarase in the Compars/equity as the significant risks related tc
ownership of those goods have been transferretietdtiyer, the determination of the amount of reeeand cost is reliable and there is certainty thateconomici
benefits from the transaction will flow to the Coamy. Additionally, any taxes collected from custosnend remitted to governmental authorities (i.ATYsales, taxes
excise) are accounted for on a net basis.

C. Research and Development

The companys efforts in the area of research and developmeniad involve a significant expense as it mainljeseon Chilean and foreign companies
institutes for technical assistance and technotoaysfers.

Vifia Concha y Toro has formed part of the Vine ®Wide Business Technology Consortium (Vinnova) si2@e6, together with other industry company mernr
of Vinos de Chile A.G. (a wineries association) #imel local universities Pontificia Universidad Qi@ de Chile, Santiago and Universidad de Condepcihe compar
has channeled resources through these instituimmesearch in the agricultural and enologicabare

It has also carried out a joint study with Univdesl de Chile for determining the levels of freslsniesvineyards associated with certain Chileanrrhasins
which could enjoy better protection against climel@nge. At the international level, the compangugently developing a pilot plan for estimating water footprin
together with the Dutch organization Water FootpNetwork, which promotes the global use of watea isustainable, equitable and efficient way.

D. Trend Information

The most significant trend affecting the Chileamevindustry and the Compasyresults most recently has been the economicetatiein of global proportiol
which has impacted consumption in general. The wiaeket showed adjustments in consumption and ergbred tendency toward lowgriced products. The compe
responded with a highly-competitive offer of itsgar-volume brands, although this had an impad¢heroperating result of 2009.

In addition, during the past three fiscal yearshaee evidenced a strong appreciation of the Chibemo against all major currencies with which tloenPany an
the Chilean industry operates, with an importanpagt on an industry that exports around 70% opitduction. On another front, the industry has daoereasin
competition in both the domestic and the exportk®igras a result of increasing number of compstitgreater availability of wine and the differembgucer countrie
trying to enhance their positioning world wide.

In the domestic market, the Company has faced keadlging market situation of increasing competitioith sluggish consumption in the popular (Tetrak}
wines segment in favor of its main substitute, bAetually, according to AC Nielsen wine consumptia Chile declined by around 5% in 2008 and by®i@ 2009. |
this context, the Comparg/efforts in this market were oriented to improvprgfitability. In this line, the company has foedson the premium segment, which as st
an interesting growth opportunity. The Company wihtinue to evaluate its domestic strategy intiaiato its lower-priced wines.
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In the export markets, the Company has faced isgrgacompetition in some key markets resultingailtirfg prices or increasing marketing needs. Howgethe
Company has been able to compete successfully, exiport sales increasing strongly in volume teroffset partially by appreciation of the Chilean pe$he mos
dynamic region for the Company in the past thresrybas been Europe. The Company expects this tweswhtinue in the future. The establishment efibsidiary in th
United Kingdom has allowed the Company to strenytitee position in this market. The Company belieitas very well established in Continental Eurofiee Unitet
States and Latin America.

With respect to consumption trends, the Companiebes that there is a major trend towards the copson of varietal wines in general and certainietal
wines in particular, in its major export marketsnpipally the United States, Europe, Asia and @andhe Company has tailored its new grape plastiogespond to tr
trend. In addition, the Company has experiencelifatewards the consumption of wines from the Néilerld including wines from Australia, Chile, the ithd State:
South Africa and Argentina.

E. Off - Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has not entered into any transactidtis umconsolidated entities whereby the Companyfimecial guarantees, subordinated retained iste
derivative instruments or other contingent arrangiets that expose the Company to material contingkg, contingent liabilities or any other obliget under a variab
interest in an unconsolidated entity that provifilesncing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk gport to the Company.
F. Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations
The table below is a summary of the Company’s emttial obligations as of December 31, 2009:

Payments due by perioc
Less than 1 1-3 3-5 More than

Total year Years Years 5 Years
(in millions of Ch$)

Contractual Obligations

Long term debt obligatior® 87,60¢ 8,59¢ 39,80¢ 8,40( 30,80:

Capital lease obligatior(® 5,64( 927 76¢ 74¢€ 3,19¢

Financial leasing interes 17¢ 101 77 — —

Interest payable to banks and bonds obligai®®) 14,48¢ 2,07t 3,41¢ 2,421 6,571

Purchase obligatior® 37,11¢ 25,69 7,05¢ 3,70¢ 667
Total 145,03: 37,39( 51,12] 15,27¢ 41,23t

@ Includes payables to banks, bonds, leasing, relatedunts, provisions and deferred ta

@ Corresponds to obligations from leases of reategperties, classified as capital leases foo@tiing purpose:

@ Corresponds to payables to banks and bonds irdereisose rate of interest is fixed and varia

) Corresponds to payment obligations related to gamgewine contract:

ITEM 6: DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

The Company is managed by a Board of Directorsisting of seven Directors. The entire Board of Diogs is elected every three years at an annuarg
shareholdersimeeting. Directors are not subject to term limifsa vacancy occurs, the Board of Directors electemporary director to fill the vacancy until thex
regularly scheduled meeting of shareholders in will@ectors are elected and at which time the erBioard of Directors will be elected for a new #wear term. Th
Company’s By-Laws provide that directors need reosbareholders.
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The following table lists each director of the Camnp, his current position, his age as of May 31,(2Gears with the Company and year of appointrieithe
Board of Directors:

Age at Years with Current Position

Name Position May 31, 2010 the Company Held Since
Directors:

Alfonso Larrain Santa Mari. Chairmar 73 40 199¢
Rafael Guilisasti Gani Vice Chairmar 56 31 199¢
Mariano Fontecilla de Santiago Conc Director 85 35 199t
Francisco Marin Estéve Director 67 27 1982
Pablo Guilisasti Gan Director 55 5 200t
Sergio de la Cuadra Fabr Director 68 5) 200t
Christian Skibsted Corté Director 46 5 200t

The following provides biographical information aitahe Directors of the Company.

Alfonso Larrain, Chairman

Company director since 1969. General Manager fréi#8%o 1989 and Vice Chairman from 1989 to 199&i#nlong career at the winery, he has worked guiémenting
an aggressive policy of opening up new markets. MWebecame Chairman in September 1998, the Corigpfogus changed to one of enhancing its prestigts imajo
markets as a producer of fine wines. He is alseddir of Vifiedos Emiliana and the Santiago Charob&@ommerce and is the President of Fundacion @uacional.

Rafael Guilisasti Gana, Vice Chairman

Rafael Guilisasti has been a Director and Vice @han of the board of Vifia Concha y Toro since Saptr 1998. Mr. Guilisasti has a wide and outstagéixperience |
the Chilean wine industry. He joined Vifia Conch&oyo in 1978 and served as its Export Director leetw1985 and 1998, a period of great expansiothé€ompany i
the international markets. He was Chairman of Vide<Chile (formerly Vifias de Chile) between 1986 2003, an industry association bringing togettpgraximatel
85% of the Chilean winproducers and whose object is to promote Chilearesvin the international markets and review palitend legal matters affecting the Chil
wine industry. At the present time, Rafael Guiltsasa Director of Vinos de Chile.

His experience in the financial area includes tositpns of Chief Executive Officer of Vifiedos Ermaila S.A., a company mainly focused on wine exp@teector o
Fruticola Viconto, a fruit exporting company; anddator of Vifia Almaviva. Since April 2005, he isnaember of the Directive Board of Sociedad de Fdmé&bri
(“Sofofa,” the Chilean manufacturerassociation), currently in the position of secorideVPresident of the Elective Council of SofofaDlecember 2008, he was elec
President of the Confederacion de la ProducciorlyGbmercio (CPC), which is an entrepreneur astoniaepresenting the most important productivetascof the
country.

Mariano Fontecilla De Santiago Concha, Director

Law studies. Former Chilean ambassador to NorwagjrSand Italy. Direct descendant of the first Ma¥s| de Casa Concha and of the founder of the Compaor
Melchor Concha y Toro. Made an honorary membehefChilean Brotherhood of Wine for his contributtonChilean wines. Director of the Company for saelperiods
initially in 1949 yet most recently since 1995. imer President of Vifiedos Emiliana 1998-2004. Culyehe is the diplomatic coordinator of Chile’s timal Congress.

Francisco Marin Estévez, Director

Agricultural Engineer. He has served as Directoth&f Company since 1982. Broad experience in theater sector. Director of the following compani€ompafii
General de Electricidad S.A., Gasco S.A. and Peesidf CGE Distribucién S.A. and Gasmar S.A.
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Pablo Guilisasti Gana, Director

Commercial Engineer. Vice Chairman of Fruticola anesident of Comercial Greenvic S.A. Fruticola \aaermer subsidiary of the Company, the shareshath were
distributed to the existing shareholders of the @any in 1986. Fruticola produces fruits and vedetalComercial Greenvic S.A. is an affiliate of fcola oriented to tt
sales and marketing of fresh and organic fruit igdior the export markets.

Between 1986 and 1999 he was General Manager ¢fcélas and in 1999 elected Director. Between 1988 2004 he was Director of Vifiledos Emiliana. Heo
contributes as Director of the Fundacion para ec®niento Matrimonial (Foundation for Marriage Githyy Director of the Fundacion Ayuda y Esperanzal (@nd Hop
Foundation) and advisor to the Fundacion Juan Raflohn Paul Il Foundation).

Sergio de la Cuadra Fabres, Director

Mr. De la Cuadra is a Commercial Engineer from Bomtificia Universidad Catdlica de Chile, M.A. aRth.D. from the University of Chicago (1968). Hioad an
outstanding professional career includes the cgisitnost important monetary institutions, particylast Director, Vice President and President ofBhaco Central ¢
Chile (Central Bank of Chile) and as Minister oh&ice in 1982. Mr. De la Cuadra has also beenecir of the Chilean Electronic Stock Exchange améhternation:
consultant to several Latin American countries.

Currently he is also a Director of other wkiloewn Chilean companies like Pesquera Itata Spélydtrias Ceresita S.A., Nibsa S.A., and Petrodifn and is a member
the Council of the Economics and AdministrativeeBcies Faculty of the Pontificia Universidad Casilic

Christian Skibsted Cortés, Director

Mr. Skibsted is a commercial engineer and holdsBAAMrom the Universidad Adolfo Ibafiez. He is curfgrFund Manager of IM Trust, Director of Mifactolenture
Capital Fund, Latin America and former Managingdetor of this Fund. During his professional carder,has worked in companies like Procter & Gamlile
Monsanto/Gargiulo Inc., where he was the South AgaarOperations Director.
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Senior Management

The following table lists each executive officertiké Company, his or her current position, hiserdge as of May 31, 2010, years with the Compandyyaar of
appointment as an executive officer:

Years Current
Age at with the Position
Name Position May 31, 2010 Company Held Since
Eduardo Guilisasti Gana General Manager (Chief Executive 57 31 198¢
Officer)
Andrés Larrain Santa Mar Agricultural Manage 71 36 197¢
Carlos Saavedra Echeverria Engineering and New Projects 65 36 199
Managet
Osvaldo Solar Venegas Corporate Administration and 48 22 199
Finance Manager (Chief Financial
Officer)
Cristian Ceppi Lewin Corporate Export Manager South 43 19 2001
Zone
Thomas Domeyko Cassel Corporate Export Manager North 43 16 2001
Zone
Cristidn Lopez Pascu Corporate Export Manager As 38 14 201c
Carlos Halaby Riac Oenology Manage 57 20 1997
Enrique Tirado Santelice Head Oenologist Don Melchi 43 17 2001
Daniel Duran Uriza Technology and Information Manag 38 15 2001
Isabel Guilisasti Gan Marketing Manager Origin Wine 52 13 200¢
Giancarlo Bianchetti ( Marketing Manager Global Bran 38 10 200
Tomas Larrain Le6n Supply Contracts and New 43 19 200¢
International Businesses Manai
Subsidiaries
Cristidn Canevaro Jaramil General Manager Comercial Peu 49 8 200¢
Adolfo Hurtado Cerdi General Manager Vifia Cono £ 39 13 200c
José Jottar Nasrall General Manager Triven 40 11 200¢

The following provides biographical information altéhe executive officers of the Company.

Eduardo Guilisasti Gana, Chief Executive Officer

Civil Engineer. Joined the Company in 1978 as ComiaeManager. Appointed CEO in 1989. Under hiddirahip the Company initiated a broad vineyard eglthr
oriented investment plan and expansion in the éxparkets. Highlights of this period include thenfmany’s consolidation of a worldwide sales network thatudes 13
countries and the strengthening of the leadersbgitipn in the sale of fine wines in each markensent and the strong growth and increase in th&ehamlue of th
Company. In addition, through the adoption of wiliare research and technology, the winery hastoamed into a leader in the industry. He is divectf Vifia Almaviva

Andrés Larrain Santa Maria, Agricultural Manager
Agriculture Manager since 1978 and responsibleafiwancing new grape types and plantings as wetliasing of every vineyard. Directs a multidiscigliy tean
including executives, technicians, administratitadfsand skilled labor. He is the Chairman of Feota.

Carlos Saavedra Echeverria, Engineering and New Pjects Manager
Began his career in charge of the Compangiports Division in 1973. Appointed head of thepfly, Maintenance and Haulage Department in 1@&bhtributed to th
planning of the Pirque bottling plant. Appointed&uction Manager in 1992. In 1997, he was appoiktegineering and Projects Manager.

Osvaldo Solar Venegas, Chief Financial Officer

Commercial Engineer. Has been in charge of findnuoiaters since 1992, initially as Financial Marmagad since September 1996, as Administration andn€ia
Manager. Duties include managing and developindittancial area, human resources, accounting anmdrestrative divisions. In January 2010 he was n&i@erporat
Administration and Finance Manager. He is a dinectdndustria Corchera and Director of Fundaciainit@a Nacional.
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Cristidn Ceppi Lewin, Corporate Export Manager South Zone

Commercial Engineer. Began his career at the CoynparProduct Manager for the Fressco and Tocoemaes. Assumed the position of Marketing $dmager fo
liquors and in 1992 became Marketing SvWhnager for popular wines. Held the position of kging Manager from 1994 to 1996. Commercial Managgil assumin
the position of General Manager at Comercial Pe@r. In December 2000, he was appointed Export Idan#&r the South Zone and in 2006 he was appc
Corporate Export Manager.

Thomas Domeyko Cassel, Corporate Export Manager Naéin Zone
Commercial Engineer. Joined the Company in JanL@®# as Deputy CFO. Appointed International Busidanager in 1996. Moved to Mendoza, Argentina987la:
General Manager of Vifia Trivento. Appointed Expdenager for the North Zone in December 2000 ang@uatte Export Manager in 2006.

Cristian Lopez Pascual, Corporate Export Manager A&

Publicist. In 1996, joined the marketing departmeithe export division. In December 2000 he joitled team that started the operation of Concharp TK as Ce
Manager of this subsidiary in the position of Comera Director. In 2005, he was appointed Generahiber of Concha y Toro UK, achieving in this persignifican
growth. As of January 2010 he was appointed CotpdEaport Manager Asia.

Tomas Larrain Ledn, Supply Contracts and New Interrational Businesses Manager

Agricultural Engineer. In 1991, joined Concha y @'aragricultural area. In 1995, he was named AguicaltDeputy Manager. Between 2001 and 2006, heGerere
Manager of Trivento Vifiedos y Bodegas in ArgentimaFebruary 2007, was appointed Export ManagettferUS market. As of December 2009 he was namegl§
Contracts and New International Businesses Manager.

Daniel Duran, Information Technology Manager
Civil Engineer. Joined the Company in 1995 as plaprand development projects analyst. Sub-Manaféiogistics and SuldManager of Planning and Projects s
1998. Information Technology Manager since May 2@4sponsible for development and implementaticectinology solutions.

Carlos Halaby, Oenology Manager

Oenologist. Distinguished by the National Assooiatdf Winemaking Agronomy Engineers in Chile foegenting the “Best Viticulture Dissertation of 198Carlos
Halaby joined the Company in 1990. After a decadih the Company and serving as head winemakerinar Wines until March 2000, he assumed the positif
Oenology Manager. Technical and administrative asibility for the Company’s Oenology Area.

Enrique Tirado, Oenologist Don Melchor

Oenologist. Upon joining the Company in 1993 hetsthworking with varietal ranges, Casillero dekBblo and Marqués de Casa Concha. He rose to hesinaker i
1997, responsible for every line of premium wimeluding Amelia and Don Melchor. In 1999, his egtdinary enological sensitivity led to his appoietmh as winemak
for Don Melchor.

Isabel Guilisasti, Marketing Manager Origin Wines

A graduate of the Catholic University with a degieért and with advanced studies in marketingl®98, she was appointed marketing manager of VateoGSur and i
2000 she took over as Director of Communication€afcha y Toro. In 2001 she was named assistaragearfor International Marketing of Fine Wines masgible fo
Concha y Toro’s ultra premium brands. In 2004 she mamed Marketing Manager Origin Wines.

Giancarlo Bianchetti, Marketing Manager Global Brands

Commercial Engineer. Joined the Companyiarketing department in 2000. In 2001, he toskaasibility for the brands Casillero del Diablopftera and Sunrise. |
has headed the promotion and global campaign fsill@a del Diablo. In 2004 named Marketing Mana@obal Brands. Since 2008 he is also responsiilehf
Sustainable Development Area.
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Subsidiaries

Cristian Canevaro Jaramillo, General Manager Comeraal Peumo
Commercial Engineer. Joined the Company in 200Z@smercial Manager of Comercial Peumo. In June 2086 appointed General Manager of this subsic
responsible for the sales, marketing, administmatitistribution and logistics in the domestic Chilenarket.

Adolfo Hurtado Cerda, General Manager Vifia Cono Sur

Agricultural Engineer, oenologist. In 1997, AdoHartado joined Vifia Cono Sur, as head oenologishisfsubsidiary founded in 1996. In 2000, he wasointed Gener
Manager. Under his direction, Vifia Cono Sur hasee®pced strong growth with the development of défplio of wines recognized for their quality andnstan
innovation.

José Jottar Nasrallah, General Manager Trivento Bodgas y Vifiedos.

Commercial Engineer. Joined Concha y Toro in 199%ead of planning. During 2002 and 2003, he woikedhe logistics chain improvement project of Hhading
Group in the role of internal adviser. In 2004 haswiamed as assistant manager, customer servi€@ncha y Toro. In December 2009, he was appoiase@eneri
Manager of Trivento Bodegas y Vifiedos, the compasybsidiary in Argentina.

Family Relationships

Eduardo Guilisasti Gana, Rafael Guilisasti Gana¢ J8uilisasti Gana, Pablo Guilisasti Gana and Is@bdisasti Gana are siblingsMr. Alfonso Larrain San
Maria and Andrés Larrain Santa Maria are brotl@mdos Saavedra Echeverria is their brother-in-leavnas Larrain Leoén is the son of Andrés Larraint&#aria.

B. Director and Officer Compensation
In accordance with the Company’s By-Laws, directe@mpensation for any given fiscal year is deterdi annually at the general shareholdeng’eting

occurring in the immediately following fiscal ye&@ompensation paid in 2009 in respect of 2008 egLizl5% of the net profits of the Company. The amad 300 UF
per month has been allocated to cover the exectgsmonsibilities of the chairman of the Board.
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The following table sets forth the compensatiompgaieach of the directors of the Company in 200®ia 2008.

Directors’ Compensation
Total Compensation
(in thousands of Ch$)

2009 2008

Attendance
Alfonso Larrain Santa Mar 75,17t 76,08
Rafael Guilisasti Gan 75,17¢ 76,08:
Francisco Marin Estéve 75,17¢ 76,08:
Mariano Fontecilla de Santiago Conc 75,17¢ 76,08:
Sergio de la Cuadra Fabi 75,17¢ 76,08:
Pablo Guilisasti Gan 75,17¢ 76,08:
Christian Skibsted Cort¢ 75,17t 76,08
Remuneration
Alfonso Larrain Santa Mar 75,40: 75,21¢
Remuneration Directo’ Committee:
Rafael Guilisasti Gan 3,77¢ 4,17¢
Sergio de la Cuadra Fabi 4,19¢ 4,17¢
Christian Skibsted Cortés 4,19/ 4,17¢

Total 613,79( 620,31

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the aggregabunt of compensation paid by the Company tiosenanagers, managers and to managers ¢
Company subsidiaries, totaling 93 executives, vpsaximately Ch$8,145 million. Individual senior nagers compensation disclosure is not required undele@hilav
and it is not otherwise publicly disclosed by then(any.

C. Board Practices

Members of the current Board of Directors were telé@t the annual general shareholdenseting held on April 24, 2008 and will serve umjpril 2011
assuming no vacancies occur. The Company’s execafficers are appointed by the Board of Directord hold office at the discretion of the Board.

There are no service contracts between the dieatbthe Company and the Company or any of itsidigsges providing for benefits upon termination a
director's employment.

In compliance with the current Chilean rules argltations, a Directors’ Committee was establishetiea Company on May 23, 2001. The Commitieaembel
were renewed in January 28, 2010. The designateecidis’ Committee members are Sergio de la Cuadra Fabresigent), Christian Skibsted Cortés and Ri
Guilisasti Gana. The primary functions of the Dices’ Committee include:

. reviewing balance sheets and financial statememtseports from accounting oversight bodies andtars]
° proposing outside auditors and credit risk ratiompanies to the Boar

. examining background information regarding the Cany's operations with related perso

° reviewing manage’ and executive office’ compensation plans; ai

. monitoring internal control systems used at Vifim@m y Toro and its affiliated compani
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The Directors’ Committee convened on eleven separetasions during the fiscal year 2009. The fdlhovwere among the principal activities of the Bires
Committee during 2009, Annual Activity Report:

At its meeting on January 29, the Committee revibedstate of progress in the implementation ofSHRternational Financial Reporting Standardsyl$t
revised and approved the periodic internal augibreprepared and submitted by the company’s manage

On February 26, it received and analyzed the manegeletter (definitive internal control reportpfn the external auditors KPMG for 2008. This reee
important situations for reporting to the admirasiin. It also analyzed and approved the compaaytited financial statements for the year 20@Bcamtinued to analy.
and coordinate the challenge of implementing IFRS.

At its meeting on March 26 and complementing theitad financial statements approved at the previnasting, the company’annual report was presente
the Committee for its approval. This was finallypepved by the Committee.

On April 23, the Committee proposed that KPMG Aarbt y Consultores Ltda. be re-appointed as trermadtauditors of the company.

On June 11, the quarterly internal audit report prsented to the Committee which revised matieked to the winemaking business with particulaergion
The Committee approved this report and gave guidslfor optimizing the audit management.

On July 30, the Committee received the partnehefauditing firm KPMG, Benedicto Vasquez, who preésd the compang’financial statements on the occa
of the issue of the 20-F report required from @gitegistered with the US Securities and Exch&wamission (SEC).

On October 22, the Committee revised the reporthenremunerations systems and compensation plaikdaompanys managers and senior executives.
Committee made a deep analysis of the report ancboittents and approved it without comments. Atséome meeting, the Committee received the interadit repol
which was approved, but requesting certain acti®hs. meeting also reviewed the annual audit plarihie company and subsidiaries, for which it reediand heard tl
audit partner of KPMG, Benedicto Vasquez.

Finally, on December 24, the Committee analyzedapptoved the comparg/preliminary report on internal controls (Managetrieetter) issued by KPMG. T
same meeting revised the state of progress of gipdication of IFRS in the company and the compangbmpliance with the accounting requirements @
Superintendency of Securities and Insurance omthiser.

The Committee, at its meetings of April 28, Auglig&tand October 29, revised and approved the compauarterly financial statements, without making
comments on these.

The shareholdersineeting approved a remuneration of 20 UF per mgetitended by each Committee member, to be paidlap 2010 together wi
corresponding board remuneration.

The ordinary shareholdersheeting approved an annual budget of ThCh$20,00@hfs Committee. During 2009, the Committee hieedernal profession
consultants costing a total of ThCh$15,078 (720eldf December 31, 2009).

The members of the Audit Committee are: Sergioad€uliadra Fabres, Christian Skibsted Cortés andeR&failisasti Gana. Sergio de la Cuadra Fabre:
Christian Skibsted are independent directors wiRééael Guilisasti is not independent. Mr. Guilisastrelying on an exemption of the Listing Stardfarelating to Aud
Committees of Rule 10A-3 promulgated under the Brge Act. See Item 16.D. — “Exemptions from theihis Standards for Audit Committees.”

We currently do not have a separate remuneratiomrtiee; however, the Company’s Directo@mmittee carries out the functions usually perfednby thi:
committee. It also promotes auditor independencermhibiting auditors from providing certain nond#uservices while conducting audits. The Compangxisting
oversight and corporate governance practices hdlyor the spirit and requirements of Sarba@gkey reforms in many respects. For instance, audidependence h
been strengthened with the adoption of an audiependence policy by the Company. See Item 16.AAudit Committee Financial Expert.”
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The Company’s Board of Directors is committed t@lementing measures that will promote investor iclamfce and market integrity. In response to Sarbane
Oxley Act, the Company has formalized a methodoltmgnsure the accuracy and completeness of infmmadisclosed to the market. The Company is coteahitc
complying with the laws and regulations applicablall countries in which the Company operates. upnactment of new laws and regulations resultiamf or comin
into force from the provisions of Sarbanes-Oxlég €ompany will adjust its corporate governanaecstire in a way so as to ascertain full compliance.

D. Employees

As of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, the CompaBhilean operations had 2,085, 2,328 and 2,543ogews, respectively. Personnel employed ir
foreign subsidiaries totaled 392 employees as afeBer 31, 2009. The Company also hires temporarkess during the harvesting season, which in 200&age
1,577 temporary workers.

Eight labor unions represent an aggregate of appairly 622 of the Company’employees (approximately 132 administrative eygg, 64 sales employ:
and 426 plant employees). Labor relations with nized personnel are governed by collective barggimigreements negotiated in 2008—2009 that expi2910-2012
The Company believes that it currently has a goodking relationship with its labor unions; howevére Company is unable to predict the outcome of fature
negotiations with such labor unions. Regardingdietract that expired in 2009, the negotiationsewferished and the Company formalized without argbfems. Ther
are two contracts that expire in November 2010h Ipatrties intend to negotiate and the Company egpedormalize without any problems.

In certain circumstances, the Company pays severagefits equivalent to five labor days for eaehryof services rendered by the employee. The Coynipa
agreed with one labor union (representing tensofvibrkers) to pay such severance benefits to thembers in all circumstances. Additionally, the @amy has agre:
with the 281 employees covered by one collectivgdiaing agreement to pay the equivalent of 5 dajary for each year of service in all circumstanéénder Chilea
law, all employees who are terminated for reasaherahan misconduct are entitled to the basic matnof one month’s salary for each year workeda @ix-montr
portion thereof, subject to a limit of 11 montkgVverance pay for employees hired after Augus88]l1Severance payments to employees hired beiogask 14, 1981 a
not subject to this limit.

The Company does not maintain any pension or reéirg programs for its employees. Workers in Chitke@vered by a national pension law which esthééis
system of independent pension plans administeretidéxdministradoras de Fondos de Pensioff@ension Fund Administrators"Yhe Company has no liability for t
performance of the pension plans or any pensiompays to be made to the employees in Chile.

All employees, including management, are entitted tiscount of 30% off the retail price on wineghases from Comparywned facilities. Each employee n
buy no more than two cases per month.

All of the Company’s administrative employees papthte, directly or indirectly, in an annual bomo®l equal to 4.0% of net profits in proportion to their sale
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E.

Share Ownership

The following table reflects the number of sharemed indirectly by the directors and executiveasffs and their percentage ownership of the Compaaypril

30, 2010. Executive officers not listed do not cstrares.

Share Ownership of Directors and Senior Managemend)

No. of Shares % of Total
Owned Subscribed Shared?)

Eduardo Guilisasti Gar®) 177,327,24 23.1%

Rafael Guilisasti Gan® 175,858,73 23.5%

Pablo Guilisasti Gan®® 176,762,59 23.7%

Isabel Guilisasti Gan® 3,463,83 0.5%

Alfonso Larrain Santa Mar(® 79,064,30 10.€%

Francisco Marin Estéve®) 64,621,79 8.7%

Mariano Fontecilla de Santiago Cond® 27,172,90 3.6%

Christian Skibsted Corte? 16,575,65 2.2%

Osvaldo Solar Venegi®) 169,55¢ —®

Thomas Domeyko ((10) 24,04¢ —®)

Cristian Ceppi Lewir(t1) 50,29¢ —®)

Carlos Halaby Riac? 146,70¢ —®)

Adolfo Hurtado Cerd{13) 111,52¢ —(®)

Enrigque Tirado Santelice4) 10,87¢ —®)

Daniel Duran Uriza(t5) 10,28¢ —®

Giancarlo Bianchetti Gonzald16) 8,28¢ —(8)

Cristidan Canevaro Jaramil(?) 5,02( —(®

Directors and Executive Officers in the aggre( 375,603,55 50.2¢%

1) Shares held indirectly through investment compaaresnot individually ownec

2) Calculated on the basis of 747,005,982 outstarstiages on April 30, 201

?3) Eduardo Guilisasti Gana, Rafael Guilisasti &alosé Guilisasti Gana and Pablo Guilisasti Geolgettively, the “Family Principal Shareholdersite the sons
Mr. Eduardo Guilisasti Tagle, the former Chairméntlte Company. Isabel Guilisasti Gana is the sisfethe Family Principal Shareholders. Mr. Edui
Guilisasti Tagle died on August 20, 1998. The shat&ibuted to each Family Principal Shareholdehide 87,615,431 and 85,274,628 shares heldugrsione
Totihue S.A(“Totihue”) andRentas Santa Béarbara S.ASanta Barbara”)respectively, as well as shares held directly diracttly by members of such Farr
Principal Shareholdes’immediate family and affiliated entities. Totihaled Santa Barbara are controlled by the Familydjyal Shareholders pursuant to pov
of attorney granted by the board of directors ofiffice and Santa Barbara. Each power of attorneytgi@ny two Family Principal Shareholders, activgethel
the power to, among others, vote or direct thengptf, or dispose or direct the disposition of, shares held by Totihue or Santa Barbara, as s$eroay be. M
Eduardo Guilisasti Gana is the Company’s Generahddar, Mr. Rafael Guilisasti Gana is the Comparlice Chairman and Mr. Pablo Guilisasti Gana
director of the Company. Ms. Isabel Guilisasti Garss named Marketing Manager Origin Wines on J2004. The address for Mr. Eduardo Guilisasti Gard
Mr. Rafael Guilisasti Gana is cMifia Concha y Toro S.AGasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, Torre NdPiso 15, Santiago, Chile. The address fot
Pablo Guilisasti Gana is ckeruticola Viconto S.A.Apoquindo 4775, Piso 16, oficina 1601, Las Con@&=mtiago, Chile. The address for Ms. Isabel Gusti
Gana isVifia Concha y Toro S.AAvenida Nueva Tajamar 481, Torre Norte, Piso 15iti&go, Chile. The other Family Principal ShareleoJdr. José Guilisas
Gana, is neither director nor executive officertttd Company. The address for Mr. José Guilisastia@GaFruticola Viconto S.A.Apoquindo 4775, Piso 1
oficina 1601, Las Condes, Santiago, Ct

4) Mr. Alfonso Larrain Santa Maria is the Compan@€hairman of the Board. The number of sharesbatad to Mr. Larrain includes 895,100 shares hgldik
brother Andrés Larrain Santa Maria and 155,840eshiaeld by his brother ilaw, Carlos Saavedra Echeverria (managers of tinep@oy), shares held by ot
members of his family and affiliated entities atsbancludes 26,964,775 shares helddayndacion Cultura Nacional‘Cultura Nacional”).Cultura Nacional is
Chilean norprofit institution which primarily funds grade sdablaeligious education. Mr. Alfonso Larrain Santaifia is the Chairman of Cultura Nacional.
Larrair's address is c/Vifia Concha y Toro S.ACasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, Torre Nd?ieo 15, Santiago, Chil

(5) Mr. Francisco Marin Estévez is a director of themPany. The number of shares attributed to Mr. Maréhudes shares owned by members of his family
affiliated entities. Mr. Mari’'s address is c/Vifia Concha y Toro S.;, Casilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, TorretdldPiso 15, Santiago, Chil

(6) Mr. Mariano Fontecilla de Santiago Concha is aadieof the Company. The number of shares attribtdeMr. Fontecilla includes shares owned by memio
his family and affiliated entities. Mr. Fontecillaaddress is cMdifia Concha y Toro S.ACasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, TorretdldPiso 15, Santiac
Chile.

) Mr. Christian Skibsted is a Director of the Compaiiyie number of shares attributed to Mr. Skibsteduides shares owned by members of his family
affiliated entities. Mr. Skibste¢ s address is c/o Alcantara 857, Las Condes, Santizgle.

(8) Less than 1%
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9) Mr. Osvaldo Solar Venegas is the Compar@brporate Administration and Finance Manager. ®&valdo Solar is Director of Cultura Nacional, fidation the
holds 26,964,775 shares of the Company. Mr. Soktiress is c/¥ifia Concha y Toro S.A.Casilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, Torret®loPiso 1t
Santiago, Chile

(20) Mr. Thomas Domeyko C. is Corporate Export Bigar North Zone. Mr. Domeyko’s address is\¢iida Concha y Toro S.ACasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajar
481, Torre Norte, Piso 15, Santiago, Ct

(12) Mr. Cristidn Ceppi L. is Corporate Export Maer South Zone. Mr. Ceppi's address is\¢ifia Concha y Toro S.A.Casilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar ¢
Torre Norte, Piso 15, Santiago, Ch

(12) Mr. Carlos Halaby R. is Eonology Manager. Malaby’s address is cMifia Concha y Toro S.ACasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, TorretéldPiso 1¢
Santiago, Chile

(23) Mr. Adolfo Hurtado C. is General Manager afi& Cono Sur. Mr. Hurtado’s address is ®idda Cono Sur, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, Torre Sur, Pisc
Santiago, Chile

(14) Mr. Enrique Tirado S. is Oenology Manager Ddelchor. Mr. Tirado’s address is c¥fia Concha y Toro S.ACasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar 481, T
Norte, Piso 15, Santiago, Chi

(15) Mr. Daniel Duran U. is Technology and Infotina Manager. Mr. Duran’s address is &ia Concha y Toro S.A.Casilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar <
Torre Norte, Piso 15, Santiago, Ch

(16) Mr. Giancarlo Bianchetti G. is Markting MaragGlobal Brands. Mr. Bianchetti’s address is ¢ida Concha y Toro S.A.Casilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajar
481, Torre Norte, Piso 15, Santiago, Ct

17) Mr. Cristian Canevaro J. is General Managam€rcial Peumo. Mr. Canevaro’s address isvifia Concha y Toro S.ACasilla 213, Avenida Nueva Tajamar ¢
Torre Norte, Piso 15, Santiago, Ch

ITEM 7: MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A. Major Shareholders

The Company’s only outstanding voting securitiee #re shares of its Common Stock. According to @menpany’s shareholder records, the Company’
747,005,982 shares of Common Stock outstanding wele by 1,609 shareholders of record as of Apil 3010. There are no differences in the votingptagof the
shareholders.

The principal shareholders of the Company are ReBtmta Barbara S.A. (“Santa Barbara”), Inversiohashue S.A. (“Totihue”),AFP Provida S.A., AF
Habitat S.A., Inversiones Quivolgo S.A., AFP Cap8aA., Fundacion Cultura Nacional (“Cultura Naad), BICE Inversiones Corredora de Bolsa S.A., The Baf
New York (according to Circular 1375 issued by ®&.S. on February 12, 1998, hereinaf‘Circular 1375 S.V.S.,'which states that the Depositary shall be
shareholder of record of the shares underlyingAB§), Inversiones GDF S.A., AFP Cuprum S.A., Canstivra Santa Marta Ltda. (“Santa Marta”), La Gldsid. (“La
Gloria”), Foger Soc. Gestion Patrimonial Ltda. &ahco de Chile (Third party account Chapter XIV).

Santa Barbara and Totihue are investment companoiesolled by Eduardo Guilisasti Gana, Rafael Ga#ii Gana, José Guilisasti Gana and Pablo Gui
Gana (collectively, the “Family Principal Sharetmid!’). Inversiones GDF S.A., Santa Marta, La Gloria, Qlgeand Foger Soc. Gestion Patrimonial Ltda. avestmer
companies controlled by directors of the Company.

For information concerning the beneficial ownersinighares of Common Stock of the Family Principhahreholders and other Directors and Executivec€rf

of the Company, see ltem 6 — “Directors, Senior Bgement and Employees — Share OwnersHipé following table sets forth certain informatiooncerning dire
ownership of the Company’s Common Stock with respethe principal holders of the outstanding sulbsel shares of Common Stock.
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Direct Share Ownership of Principal Shareholders

As of December 31si

2008 2009 As of April 30, 2010
% of Total % of Total % of Total
No. of Shares Subscribed No. of Shares Subscribed No. of Shares Subscribed

Principal Shareholders Owned Shares Owned Shares Owned Shares
Inversiones Totihue S.A2 82,913,70 11.52% 87,615,43 11.79% 87,615,43 11.7%
Rentas Santa Barbara S@ 83,421,70 11.6(% 85,274,62 11.42% 85,274,62 11.42%
AFP Provida S.A®) 48,400,01 6.7:% 43,327,82 5.8(% 43,601,69 5.84%
AFP Habitat S.A®) 33,548,20 4.66% 33,821,69 4.5%% 35,891,69 4.8(%
Inversiones Quivolgo S.A% 21,207,50 2.95% 28,831,55 3.86% 28,831,55 3.86%
AFP Capital S.A® 24,649,81 3.4% 27,453,48 3.68% 28,033,39 3.7%%
Fundacién Cultura Nacion(®) 25,954,27 3.61% 26,964,77 3.61% 26,964,77 3.61%
BICE Inversiones C. de Bolt 21,105,58 2.9% 24,477,42 3.28% 26,232,18 3.51%
The Bank of New Yorl® 29,986,68 4.17% 24,765,04 3.32% 25,383,02 3.4(%
Inversiones GDF S.A®) 24,439,85 3.4% 24,439,85 3.27% 24,439,85 3.27%
AFP Cuprum S.A® 22,144,13 3.08% 14,128,04 1.8%% 23,090,87 3.0%
Constructora Santa Marta Ltc?) 21,457,88 2.98% 22,293,32 2.98% 22,293,32 2.98%
Inversiones La Gloria Ltd{4) 15,682,33 2.1&% 16,082,33 2.15% 16,082,33 2.1%%
Foger Soc. Gestién Patrimonial Lt 14,058,06 1.95% 14,665,84 1.96% 14,665,84 1.96%
B.de Chile C. Terceros Cap. Xl 19,949,69 2.71% 19,404,49 2.6(% 14,576,50 1.95%
Total Largest 15 Shareholders 488,919,44 67.98% 493,545,74 66.01% 502,977,10 67.3%
Other Shareholders 230,251,228 32.02% 253,460,23 33.9% 244,028,88 32.61%

Total 719,170,73 10C% 747,005,98 10C% 747,005,98 10C%
Q) Depositary Bank for the AD¢
2) Investment Company controlled by the Guilisasti Ba“Family Principal Shareholde”).
?3) Chilean Pension Fun
4) Investment Company controlled by Mr. Alfonso Lanr&anta Marizs
5) Cultura Nacional is a Chilean non profit instituticShares are attributed to Mr. Alfonso Larrais Ghairman
(6) Investment Company controlled by Mr. Mariano Foiliecle Santiago Conch
) Investment Company controlled by Mr. Francisco M&tstévez

In August 1999, members of the Guilisasti familydanther affiliated parties entered into a SharetiadAgreement relating to, among other issues, thestes
and voting of Common Stock. An English translatidrsuch Shareholdergigreement was previously filed and is listed asiBix!8.4 to this Annual Report. See Item
— “Exhibits.”

Pursuant to the Shareholdefgjreement, each party that is a holder of CommackSagreed to provide to Totihue and Santa Bartveraight to purchase all
part of any shares the selling shareholder wishieglt from time to time. In addition, both SantarBara and Totihue agreed to provide to one anaiggs to purchase i
or part of any Common Stock it wishes to sell frome to time. Santa Barbara and Totihue will haledays from the date of receipt of notice of thepmsed sale
accept the offer (in whole or in part) to purcht#seselling shareholder's Common Stock subjedb¢oproposed sale.

The preferential purchase rights of Santa BarbadaTatihue described above are applicable in tise cd transfer of subscription rights of sharehalgsrty t
the Shareholders’ Agreement resulting from a chjpiterease, as well as in the case of issuanceapitat stock in the event of a merger or spfft- The preferentic
purchase rights of Santa Barbara and Totihue areppulicable to a transfer of Common Stock to ¢erpersons, including subsidiaries in which thensfaror control
75% or more of such subsidiary’s capital stock dineict ascendants and descendants of such transfero

The ShareholdersAgreement is of indefinite duration and may be rfiedior terminated pursuant to a written agreensegried by the shareholders party tc
Shareholders’ Agreement holding no less than 75%efCommon Stock subject to the Shareholders’ émgemnt.
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B. Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compengages in transactions with its affiliates. ldieidn, the Company has engaged in transactioris ditector:
and executive officers of the Company. A detaialbtransactions realized with affiliates or rethfgarties is presented in Note 6 to the ConsolilRteancial Statements
Balances and Transactions with Related Partiese-pfincipal transactions with such related padiesng the last three fiscal years are as follows:

Vifiedos Emiliana. Vifiedos Emiliana is a Chilean corporatiosociedad anénima abierfawhich produces wines for export and domestic mi@riand is listed ¢
the Chilean Exchanges. Vifiedos Emiliana was orilyire subsidiary of the Company until 1986, whee tBompany distributed shares of Vifiedos Emiliandht
Companys then existing shareholders. Although Vifiedos Emél is a separate corporation, the Company andddii Emiliana remain under common control. Ceraé
the principal shareholders of the Company own direend indirectly approximately 59.74% of Vifiedos Emiliasadbutstanding capital stock and, additionally,
Company and Vifiedos Emiliana have other commonesiadders. Vifiedos Emiliana’s seven-member BoarBigéctors includes one of the Compasigeven directo
(Alfonso Larrain Santa Maria). Vifiedos Emiliana éimel Company have various business dealings, tis significant of which are described below.

The Company has a license from Vifiedos Emilianas® Vifiedos Emiliana’brand name in Chile. The Company bottles (or pgek in Tetra Brik containe
and sells in Chile for its own account a portiontefvarietal wine production under Vifiedos Emiligmlabels. The Company pays licensing fees to Viéidgtiliana fo
the use of its labels. Licensing fees are baseti@Company’s gross revenues from sales of windenivifiedos Emiliana’s labels.

Vifiedos Emiliana does not have its own bottlinglfées. Pursuant to a contract with Vifiledos Enmbathe Company bottles wine produced by Vifiedodi&ma.
This wine is sold by Vifiedos Emiliana in export kets for its own account under Vifiedos Emilianalsdls. The Company receives a pettle fee for bottling servic
provided to Vifiedos Emiliana. This fee is for tleene amount as the Company would charge to an tedeldne producer for bottling services.

With the Company’s consent, Banfi, the Company'dsive distributor in the United States, also astshe exclusive distributor for Vifiedos Emiliaaal/ines il
the United States.

In 2009, the Company recognized Ch$952 millioneimenues from Vifiedos Emiliana, or 0.3% of totakrawes, including mainly revenues from sales inlihg
fees and sales of raw materials. In 2009, the Compaid Vifiedos Emiliana Ch$238 million in licengifees. The Company recognized revenues from Vgiéshoilian:
of Ch$1,418 million in 2008 and Ch$1,314 million2807. The Company paid Vifiedos Emiliana Ch$23%aniin 2008 and Ch$276 million in 2007 in licengifees.

From time to time, the Company engages in othestetions with Vifiedos Emiliana, including purctsaeéwine in bulk at market prices, grapes and rothe
materials. In 2009, 2008 and 2007 total purchases Vifiedos Emiliana totaled Ch$728 million, Ch®2nillion and Ch$1,350 million, respectively.

Fruticola Viconto (“Fruticola”). Fruticola is the Company’principal customer for fruit. In 2009 and 200& tBompany sold Ch$10.7 million and Ch
million, respectively, of fruit to Fruticola for prrt. In 2007, the Company did not sell fruit tarficola. The Company also purchases grapes froticBla for vinification
In 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Company purchased Chfiién, Ch$24 million and Ch$77 million of grapé®m Fruticola, respectively. Fruticola is a Chilecorporatio
( sociedad andnima abiertplisted on the Chilean Exchanges. Fruticola wamésly a subsidiary of the Company until 1986 wiieea Company distributed Frutic
shares to the Company’s then existing shareholders.

The Company and Fruticola are under common confreb of the Company’s seven directors are membéfSraticola’s sevenmember Board of Directc
(Rafael Guilisasti Gana and Pablo Guilisasti Gahr). Andrés Larrain Santa Maria, the Companygricultural Manager and Mr. Felipe Larrain Viabn of th
Company’s Chairman, are also directors of FruticGlertain Principal Shareholders directly and ieclily own approximately 57.23%of the outstanding common stc
of Fruticola.
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In May 2008, the Company purchased a planted videfyam Fruticola and water rights for a purchasegpof Ch$3,779 million (approximately US$ 8 nolh).
Itis located in the Maipo Valley. The transactivas approved by the Directors Committee, in acawdavith applicable law.

Industria Corchera . In November of 2000, the Company acquired 49.6%e capital stock of Industria Corchera througlir@ct purchase of shares fr
Quivolgo, Totihue and two investment companies dled by a director of the Company. Based on arptonomic valuation of Industria Corchera by &iaterhous:
the Company invested a total of US$6 million. Invidimber 2002, with the acquisition of 4,818 sharepresenting 0.24% of the capital stock of Indas@orchera, tt
Company increased its ownership in Industria Corecb®49.84%. In 2008, the Company increased itseoship to 49.96%.

Industria Corchera is the primary cork suppliertfte Company. The Company purchased Ch$6,878 militn$7,571 million and Ch$8,167 million of corkd
other raw material from Industria in 2009, 2008 2007, respectively. The Company believes thaptiee and terms it receives from Industria Corcteeequivalent
those available from its other cork suppliers. ®svaldo Solar Venegas, the Company’s CFO is diredttndustria Corchera.

Vifia Almaviva . Vifia Almaviva is a 5@0 joint venture company between the Company anwrB&hilippe de Rothschild. The Company purchases
Almaviva used French oak barrels (used during giregeseason) and the Almaviva wine that is sol@ile through Comercial Peumo. Total purchases #fdmaviva ir
2009, 2008 and 2007 were Ch$410 million, Ch$458aniland Ch$437 million, respectively. In additisghe Company sells to Almaviva raw materials angises. Sale
to Almaviva totaled in 2008, 2007 and 2006, Ch$8ian, Ch$198 million and Ch$95 million, respeatiy.

Related Transaction With Entities in Which the Directors and Executive Officers Have an Equity Interes. The Company purchases small quantitie
grapes, plants and other services from entitieshiith several of its directors, executive officersmembers of their families have interests. IN2@D08 and 2006, t
Company purchased an aggregate of approximatel{t Thsillion, Ch$1,687 million and Ch$1,396 milliarspectively, of such goods and services from sudtities.

Other . Besides formal requirements, Title XVI and esplgiarticle 147 of the Chilean Corporation Law derd to Open Corporations that any rele
Companys transactions with related parties shall only bkelrated if actually contributes to the sociakiest and if it subject to terms and conditionstamstrily
prevailing in the market at the time of it approvairectors, managers and principal officers of pamies that violate Article 147 are liable for lessesulting from sur
violation. In addition, Article 147 of the Chile@orporation Law provides that any transaction inclta director has a personal interest or is aaimdpehalf of a thir
party must be immediately informed by the compreiBirector to the boards of directors and shdly be approved if the absolute majority of the dices consider th
the transaction is beneficial for the social inser€hilean law requires that an interested direabstain from voting on such a transaction. If dbsolute majority of tt
director is obliged to abstain for voting on anyrtigallar transaction, the transaction shall only dgproved unanimously by the not involved directorsby an
extraordinary shareholders meeting. See Item 10Additional Information — Estatutos (By-Laws) — Daters” for further information relating to conflict of iates
transactions. Resolutions approving such transastioust be reported to the Company’s shareholdéhe mext shareholdermeeting. Violation of Article 147 may res
in administrative or criminal sanctions and civéHility to the Company and shareholders or intexshird parties who suffer losses as a resufiuch violation. Th
Company believes that it has complied with the ieguoents of Article 147 in all transactions withiated parties during fiscal year 2009.
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For additional information concerning the Companyansactions with affiliates and other relatedtipar see Note 6 to the Consolidated FinanciakStahts—
“Balances and Transactions with Related Parties.”

ITEM 8: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

See ltem 18 — “Financial Statements” and the firgrstatements referred to therein for the Constdéid Financial Statements and other financial méimon.
Wine Exports

Vifia Concha y Toro and its subsidiaries export fiGhile to 135 countries. Concha y Toro is the latgsporter in Chile. The Company also exports viiom
é;gllggti_naAtrgrgrl]Jt?:aEhe subsidiary, Trivento. Trivems the second largest wine exporter by volumArgentina. See “Item 4: Information on the ComparyCompan

The following table presents wine exports by volumeChilean pesos and as a percentage of toed éal the last three years.

Exports by Volume and Value

2007 2008 2009
Exports (thousan- liters) 149,86¢ 164,89: 176,66¢
% of total sale: 63.2% 66.% 68.1%
Exports (Ch$ million’ 233,97: 243,71t 269,36
% of total sale: 76.9% 77.2% 76.2%

Legal and Arbitration Proceedings

The Company is not involved in any litigation obimation proceedings which, if determined adverdelthe Company, individually or in the aggregateulc
have a material adverse effect on the Companytarsiibsidiaries taken as a whole, nor to the Cogip&nowledge are any such proceedings threatened.

Policy on Dividend Distributions

In accordance with Chilean law, the Company mustribute cash dividends equal to at least 30% @fGbmpanys annual net income calculated in accord
with Chilean GAAP, unless otherwise decided by animous vote of the holders of the shares and siEed to the extent that the Company has accunduledses.
there is no net income in a given year, the Compaay elect, but is not legally obligated, to distite dividends out of retained earnings. Sharehsldéio do nc
expressly elect to receive a dividend other thacash are legally presumed to have decided touweteé dividend in cash. A U.S. holder of ADS miaythe absence of
effective registration statement under the Seasrifict or an available exemption from the regigiratequirement thereunder, effectively be requiredceceive a divider
in cash.

The Company'’s dividend policy approved at the genehareholdersmeeting is to distribute 40% of net earnings. kscdl year 2009, interim dividends N
236, 237 and 238 of Ch$2.50 per share were paleptember 30, 2009, December 30, 2009 and MarcB@D, respectively. A final dividend No. 239 of &116.20 pe
share was paid on May 14, 2010 against the profitse 2009 fiscal year. Total dividends disburagdinst the profits of 2009 fiscal year were 40%etfearnings.

For fiscal year 2010, the Board approved to pagehprovisional dividends of Ch$3.0 per share, atduapainst the profits for fiscal year 2010. Thegkbe pait
on September 30, 2010, December 29, 2010 and MircP011, while the remaining profits up to a limit40% of the earnings shall be disbursed in May/12

The above detailed dividend policy is the Boardt®mnt; however, fulfillment thereof will be contiegt on cash flows. Consequently, at the annuaksloéders
meeting, the Board shall solicit shareholder apgktw modify the amounts and payment dates shbelahécessity arise.
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The following table sets forth the dividends pagét phare of common stock in respect of each ofélaes indicated:

Total Dividends Paid

Fiscal year, Ch$per share®

2005 10.6(

2006 9.0C

2007 18.9¢

2008 19.5¢

2009 23.7(

@) Dividends per share are expressed in historicalgpaad correspond to interim and final dividendrghd against net income of the corresponding figeat. Th:

final dividend with respect to each year is dedaard paid within the first five months of the sedpsent yeat

Significant Changes

No significant changes have occurred since theafader last annual financial statements.

ITEM 9: THE OFFER AND LISTING

Prior to the offerings of the ADS and the sharesCommon Stock in October 1994, there was no pubbcket for such securities in the United States
Common Stock is currently traded on the Chileanharges. In 2009, trading on the Santiago Stock &b accounted for approximately 85% of the tradisigme o
the Common Stock in Chile. The ADS are listed anlftew York Stock Exchange and trade under the syfimz0.”

The tables below show, for the periods indicatégh fand low closing sale prices of a share of Comi@tock in nominal Chilean pesos and the quartdrhre
trading volume of the Common Stock on the Santi@gek Exchange. The U.S. dollar figures reflect,tfe periods indicated, actual high and low clggpnices for th
ADS on the New York Stock Exchange in the Unitedt&. The ADS may or may not actually trade air@@g the price per share. As of Monday OctobeOB52he rati
of one (1) ADS representing fifty (50) ordinary stmwas changed to one (1) ADS representing tw@®yordinary shares. Therefore, as of Octobe0852Vifia Conck
y Toro’'s ADS quotation will correspond initiallyo tthe closing quotation of September 30, 2005 éwitly 2.5 (two and one half). See Item 3 — “Keyotnfation—
Exchange Rates” for the exchange rates applicablagithe periods set forth below. The followindgommation is not restated in constant Chilean pesos

Annual High and Low Closing Sale Prices

Chilean Pesos U.S. Dollars Per

Per Shares® ADS ®
Year Ended Decembel High Low High Low
2005 1,120.( 695.( 99.5( 26.0C*
2006 850.( 679.¢ 32.2¢ 25.12
2007 1,375.( 800.( 55.1¢ 29.81
2008 1,132.7 780.( 43.3¢ 26.01
2009 1,200.1( 931.( 45.0( 28.5(

*On October 3, 2005 the ratio of 1 ADR to commowocktchanged from 1:50 to 1:20
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Quarterly High and Low Closing Sale Prices

Chilean Stock Trading ADR Trading
Chilean Pesos U.S. Dollars Per
Per Shares® ADS )
Share Share

Year Quarter Volume(000)®) High Low Volume ) High Low
2008

1st Quarte 38,327.8! 1,040.( 780.( 398,55¢ 43.3¢ 32.7(

2nd Quarte 52,401.3. 959.¢ 804.¢ 515,68! 41.0C 33.7¢

3rd Quartel 35,424.9 1,050.( 835.7 350,83( 40.47 26.4¢

4th Quarte! 41,236.01 1,132, 825.( 253,56! 34.6( 26.01
2009

1st Quarte 17,482.6 1,100.( 931.( 251,53¢ 37.7% 28.5(

2nd Quarte 32,336.7! 1,149.( 945.( 245,67t 39.0¢ 31.4¢

3rd Quatrtel 33,322.6! 1,185.( 963.( 251,43t 43.9% 34.7¢

4th Quartel 27,151.11 1,200.: 970.( 329,89: 45.0( 39.1¢
2010

1st Quarte 24,179.3 1,260.( 1,010.( 447,68! 50.9¢ 41.5(
Month ended
November, 200! 6,901.1: 1,140.( 970.( 227,61( 45.0( 39.5¢
December, 200 15,903.1! 1,125.( 992.( 65,36: 44.2° 39.1¢
January, 201 6,067.3 1,231.( 1,010.( 75,41 50.9¢ 41.9¢
February, 201! 3,775.4: 1,260.( 1,150.( 88,30¢ 48.4( 41.57
March, 201C 14,336.5! 1,250.( 1,050.( 283,96t 49.6( 41.5(
April, 2010 15,943.2 1,225.( 1,115.( 209,50: 47.5¢€ 42.1F

*On October 3, 2005 the ratio of 1 ADR to commoaocktchanged from 1:50 to 1:20. This means thatMB& price US$34.24 for the new ratio corresponc
85.60 on the former ratit

1) Source: Volume traded in the Santiago Stock Excbatig Chilean Electronic Exchange and the Valpar8iock Exchang:
2) Source: Santiago Stock Exchange. Chilean pesashpee reflect nominal price at trade di
3) Source: Monthly Repc-The Bank of New York. Reflects actual high/low éf@sprices.

According to the Compang’records, as of April, 2010, there were 1,609 éradf record of the Common Stock. Only the Depogijtas shareholder of record for
shares underlying the ADS (according to Circular8.8.V.S.), has an address in the United States.

At an Extraordinary ShareholderMeeting held on December 18, 2008, a capitabase was approved for approximately Ch$30,000amillThe capital increa
of the Company was effected through the issuan@3&00,000 common, nominative and no par valueeshdhe preferential option period for subscripttbmmence
on April 15, 2009 and ended on May 15, 2009. Is fieriod a total of 26,325,409 shares were sutestriOn May 28, 2009 the Compasyjoard of directors adopte
plan to offer the remaining 1,674,591 unsubscrilegres from the preferential option period to tlenfanys employees at the same price (Ch$930) and sulbjeht
same conditions as offered to the shareholders.

As a result of the capital increase total sharésaibed were 27,835,247 and the total amountafeshsubscribed increased to 747,005,982.
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ITEM 10: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
A. Share Capital

Not Applicable.
B. Memorandum and articles of association

The following is a summary of certain informatiomgarding the Company’s Byaws and provisions of Chilean law. This summanndé complete. For
complete overview of the provisions of the By-Lasliscussed in this summary, you are encouragedatbtiee Company’s Byraws, previously filed and incorporated
reference as Exhibit 1.1 to this Annual Report. Bem 19 — “Exhibits.”

Registration and corporate purposesThe Company is a corporation (sociedad anénimatapierganized by means of a public deed (escripitsica) date
December 31, 1921, the abstract of which was recbath Page 1051, Number 875, of Santiago’s RegitGommerce in 1922 and published in Chul&fficial Gazett
on November 6, 1922. Its existence was approved Bypreme Decree Number 1556, dated October 12, Bd&r corporate amendments were made, the Coyhpan
public deed was recorded on Page 15,664, Numbéd1af Santiago’s Registry of Commerce in 1999 mubrded at Chile' Securities Registry of the Superintends
of Securities under No. 0043 on June, 14, 1982seéidorth in Article 2 of the Company’s Byaws, the purposes of the Company are: the operatid marketing of tt
wine-smaking industry in all its forms and all its disttrphases, whether with its own stock or stock lpased from third parties; the operation of agrimalt real esta
owned by the Company or leased from third partest the carrying out of real estate investmentsiéiieg acquiring, transferring and constructingl eestate, either wit
its own personnel or through third parties.

Directors. Under the Chilean Corporation Law, a corporatiorymat enter into a contract or agreement in whidfiractor has a direct or indirect interes
conflicting interest transaction) without prior appal by the Board of Directors and only if thentsrof the conflicting interest transaction are &mio those of an arm’
length transaction and only is it beneficial foe $ocial interest.

If the conflicting interest transaction does notdlve a “material amount,the transaction shall be executed only with theviptes approval of the Board
Director. A conflicting interest transaction is deed to involve a “material amounif’the amount involved is both greater than 2,000dddes de Fomento (as of May
2010, approximately US$80,000) and exceeds 1% efas$sets of the corporation, or if the amount edse20,000 Unidades de Fomento (as of May 31, :
approximately US$800,000) regardless of the sizéheftransaction. Same procedure shall be appéicabtase the transaction complies with the Comahgbitue
policies and in if the Company owns directly oriredtly at least the 95% of the other party in tifzmsaction.

If the transaction does not comply with the aforatimmed scenarios it will only be able to be exeduf: (i) it is immediately informed to the Boaofl Directors
(ii) is approved by the Board of Directors with thiestention of involved Directors; (iii) if the Trsaction is informed to the next shareholders mgeth case the majori
of the directors are involved in a related transacit will only be able to execution if it is apgpred unanimously by the not involved directors gram extraordinal
shareholders meeting. If the Transaction is sulijeetn extraordinary shareholders meeting, the @o&Directors shall appoint at least one indepahdelvisor whic
shall inform the shareholders before the extraamgishareholders meeting.

The amount of any director’s remuneration is eshbd each year at the annual shareholders’ meeting
Directors are forbidden from borrowing or otherwiseking use of corporate money or assets for their benefit, unless previously authorized by themoo
Directors. Directors are also prohibited from berirg or otherwise making use of corporate monegssets for the benefit of companies in which sudctbrs are eith:

directors or owners of a 10% interest or more, ssifgreviously authorized by the Board of Direct@Bectors who receive such loans are excluded fvoting on the
matter. However, shareholders’ authorization isreqtired if authorized by the Board of Directdarhese rules can only be modified by law.
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It is not necessary to hold shares of the Compamgtelected a director and there is no age listét#ished for the retirement of directors.

Rights, preferences and restrictions regarding shas.At least 30% of the Comparsyannual net income is required to be distributechish to the shareholdt
unless the shareholders unanimously decide otherwisy remaining profits may be used to establishszrve fund (that may be capitalized at any tiameending th
corporate By-Laws, by the vote of a majority of tliging stock issued), or to pay future dividends.

Compulsory minimum dividends become due thirty dafter the date on which the shareholders meetasgapproved the distribution of profits for thatch
year. Any additional dividends approved by the shalders become due on the date set by the shdeshalr the Board of Directors.

According to the Compang’dividend policy, the dividends are distributedyirarterly interim payments plus a final dividewdoe paid in May of the followir
year. Accrued dividends that corporations fail &y pr make available to their shareholders witlgirtain periods are to be adjusted from the datettoh those dividenc
became due and that of actual payment. Overdudetids will accrue annual interest established dfurstable operations over the same period.

Dividends and other cash benefits unclaimed byediwdders after five years from the date on whigythecame due will become the property of the @hilEire
Department.

The Company has only one class of shares andfdner¢éhere are no preferences or limitations @nwibiting rights of shareholders. Each sharehoklentitled ti
one vote per share. In shareholdengetings, determinations are generally made bynalsimajority of shareholders entitled to vote. téoer, the Chilean Corporati
Law provides that certain determinations requigeubte of a two-thirds majority of the voting staskued.

The Companys directors are elected every three years and tineirs are not staggered. Chilean law does notipetmulative voting. However, shareholc
may accumulate their votes in favor of just onesperor distribute their votes to more than onegerk addition, by unanimous agreement of theeti@ders present a
entitled to vote, the vote may be omitted and teet®n made by acclamation.

In the event of liquidation, the Chilean Corporaticaw provides that corporations may carry outritigtions to shareholders on account of a reimbuesg o
capital only once secure the payment of corporatehitedness or after its actual payment.

Under Chilean law, certain provisions affect arsBrg or prospective holder of securities as altefuhe shareholder owning a substantial numbehares. Th
Securities Market Law establishes that (a) any gensho, directly or indirectly, (i) owns 10% or neoof the subscribed capital of a corporation (theajbrity
shareholders”whose shares are registered in the Securities Regfthe Superintendency of Securities, or (iyns any such percentage because of the purch
shares; and (b) all directors, the chief execuifieer and the other principal officers of any poration whose shares are registered with the 8upedency of Securitie
regardless of the number of shares they own, nepsirt any purchase or sale of shares made by srsbns or entities no later than day after the dfageich transactio
to the Superintendency of Securities and to eadhefktock exchanges in Chile where such corpordtas securities registered. In addition, majostigreholders mu
inform the Superintendency of Securities and tbheksexchanges with respect to whether the purcisasiened at acquiring control of the corporatiommrely a financi:
investment.

The Securities Market Law also provides that whea or more persons intend to take over a corparatibject to oversight by the Superintendency cliSges
they must give prior written notice to the Compathe Superintendency of Securities and the stockanges in Chile where such corporation has sésrigistere
This notice must include the price to be offered gigare and the conditions of the proposed traimsgdhcluding the expected manner of acquiring shares. Publ
notice shall be released through two publications hewspaper of national presence as well.
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Chapter XXV of the Securities Market Law was enddteorder that controlling shareholders share withority shareholders the benefits of a changeootrol
by requiring that certain share acquisitions be enaatsuant to a tender offer.

The Chilean Corporation Law provides shareholdeits wreemptive rights. The Act requires that opsidn purchase stock representing capital increan
corporations and debentures duly convertible itbalsof the issuing corporation, or any other sii@sr extending future rights over such stock, mhesbffered, at lea
once, to existing shareholders, proportionallyi® tumber of shares owned by them. This right imently renounceable or transferable. A corporatiarst distribute ar
bonus stock in the same manner.

The Chilean Corporation Law also provides sharedrslavith a right to withdraw from a corporationdertain situations. Unless there is an ongoing haptky
proceeding, if a shareholderseeting approves any of the following matters, ehisisg shareholders will be automatically entittedvithdraw from the corporation up
payment by the corporation of the market valuéhefrtshares:

a) conversion of the corporation into a different tyyfdegal entity;

b) merger of the corporatiol

) disposition of 50% or more of the assets of th@axation, whether or not including the liabilitie

d) guarantee of a third pa’s liabilities with collateral exceeding 50% of tbarporatior's assets

e) establishment or extension of preferences in cdioresvith a series of shares, or any other modificaof existing preferences, in which case |

dissenting shareholders in the affected series haille the right to withdraw; and curing certainoesror defects affecting the corporate charte
amending the B-Laws in respect of one or more of the mattersdistieove

In addition, shareholders may withdraw if a perbatomes the owner of twbirds of the outstanding shares of the corporatiera consequence of a sl
acquisition.

The Company'’s By-Laws do not provide for additioo@tumstances under which shareholders may withdra

Action necessary to change the rights of holders aftock. Rights of shareholders are established by law amduant to the By-aws of a corporation. Ar
change to the rights of shareholders must be addptea majority of shareholders or, in some cabgsa twothirds majority vote, as discussed above. Howetre
amendment of certain rights requires a unanimots @bthe shareholders, including the right of shafders to receive at least 30% of the net prédit®ach fiscal yee
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no decision of thargholders can deprive a shareholder from hisrjgtapy interest in its stocl

The Company’s By-Laws do not provide for additiooahditions in connection with matters describethia subsection.

Shareholders’ meetingsAnnual shareholdersheetings are to be held during the first four mergheach year. During the meetings, determinatasesmad
relating to particular matters, which must be sfperlly indicated in the notice of such meeting.eTduorum for a shareholdersieeting is established by the presenc
person or by proxy, of shareholders representirigast an absolute majority (50% plus one) of #seiéd voting stock of the Company; if a quorumaspresent at tt
first meeting, the meeting can be reconvened awad tipe meeting being reconvened, shareholdersrgras¢he reconvened meeting are deemed to caesétgquorur
regardless of the percentage of the voting stopkesented. In that case, decisions will be madthéyabsolute majority of stock with voting rightegent or otherwit
represented. The following matters are specificalierved for annual meetings:
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a) review of the state of the corporatéomd of the reports of internal and independenttexsdand the approval or rejection of the anneglort, balanc
sheet, financial statements and records submittetebofficers or liquidators of the corporation;

b) distribution of profits, including thiéstribution of dividends;
c) election or revocation of regular aitérnate Board members, liquidators and managesupetrvisors;
d) determinations regarding compensatiothe Board members;
e) designation of a newspaper to pulthghnotice of meetings; and
_ f) in general, any other matter to beltdeéh by the annual meeting relating to the Compand not specifically reserved to extraordinarmgreholders
meetings.

Extraordinary shareholdersieetings may be held at any time. During extra@gimeetings, determinations are made relatingiyonaatter which Chilean law
the Company’s By-aws reserve for consideration at such extraorglimaeetings, which matters shall be expressly sehfm the relevant notice. Whenever in
extraordinary shareholdersheeting determinations must be made relating tatemgatspecifically reserved to annual meetings, dperation and decisions of si
extraordinary meeting will follow the requirememigplicable to annual meetings.

The following matters are specifically reserveddatraordinary meetings:

a) dissolution of the corporation;

b) transformation, merger or spin oftlé corporation and amendments to its By-Laws;

c) issuance of bonds or debentures ctibleeinto stock;

d) transfer of corporate fixed assets latllities; and

e) guarantees of third partiesligations, except when these third parties afitaaéd companies (in which case approval of theail of Directors wi
suffice).

In addition to the above, annual and extraordiséigreholders’ meetings must be called by the BoaBirectors in the following circumstances:
- when requested by shareholders representingstt 1€% of issued stock;

- when required by the Superintendency of Secsrigad

- whenever the social interest so warrants.

Only holders of stock registered in the Record lvéir8holders five days before the date of the partimeeting may participate with the right to spaa# vote i
shareholders’ meetings. Directors and officers rotia@n shareholders may participate in sharehdldegstings with the right to speak.

Shareholders may be represented at meetings byintheiduals, regardless of whether or not thosespns are shareholders themselves. Represemntatistrb:
conferred five days before the date of the relewageting, in writing or public deed and for theatatumber of shares held by the shareholder.

Limitations on the right to own securities. The right to own any kind of property is guarantégdhe Chilean Constitution and th€hilean Corporation La
does not contain any general limitation regardimg ight to own securities. There are, howevertagetimitations on the right of foreigners to owacurities of Chilee
corporations, but only for certain special typesofmpanies. The Company’s securities are not céstriby these limitations and the Company’slByvs do not conta
restrictions or limitations in this respect.
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Takeover defensesThe Company’s By-aws do not contain any provisions that would heneeeffect of delaying, deferring or preventinghamge in control
the Company and that would operate only with relsfea merger, acquisition or corporate restruoguinvolving the Company (or any of its subsidiayie

Ownership threshold. The Company’s By-Laws do not contain any ownershipshold above which shareholder ownership muslidgmosed.

Changes in capital. The ByLaws do not impose any conditions that are moiiegent than those required by law for effectingrades in the capital of t
Company.

C. Material Contracts

Vifia Almaviva . On June 30, 1997, the Company entered into & y@nture with Baron Philippe de Rothschild S.AR¢thschild S.A.”),a French compar
establishing Vifia Almaviva S.A. (formerly “Baron iRppe de Rothschild - Conchay Toro S.A.”) for theduction of “Primer Orden” wines in Chile. For a discussior
Vifia Almaviva, see Item 4 — “Information on the Copamy — History and Development of the Company.”

Industria Corchera . In November of 2000, the Company purchased 4%6%e capital stock of Industria Corchera fromtair directors of the Company.
November, 2002 the Company increased its ownersh#0.84%. In 2008, the Company increased its ositiprto 49.96%. See Iltem — “Major Shareholders a
Related Party Transactions — Related Party Traiseitfor a discussion of the acquisition and tgeeaments with Industria Corchera.

In connection with this acquisition, the Companyl ékmorim entered into a shareholdeegjreement establishing provisions, among othersthi® transfer ¢
shares and other agreements in relation to therastmaition of Industria Corchera. An English tratisin of the shareholdergigreement between the Company
Amorim was previously filed and is listed as Exhihi2 to this Annual Report. See ltem 19 — “ExtgbiitThe Company and Amorim jointly own 99.93% of theita
stock of Industria Corchera.

D. Exchange Controls
The Central Bank of Chile is responsible for, amotiter things, monetary policies and control oéfgn exchange transactions.

The Law of the Central Bank of Chile authorizes @entral Bank of Chile to regulate foreign exchatrgesactions, including those relating to ADS Ifies. At
the time the ADS facility was issued, the CentranB had issued certain regulations (the “FormeruRdigns”) imposing the obligation to obtain the previ
authorization from the Central Bank of Chile and #xecution of an agreement with such bank in dalproceed with an ADS facility.

Due to the above, the ADS facility is subject tooatract between the Depositary, the Company am€#ntral Bank of Chile (the “Foreign Investmenh@act”)
that grants the Depositary and the holders of tB& Access to Chile’Formal Exchange Market and permits the Depositargmit dividends received from the Comp
to holders of ADS without restriction. The Foreigivestment Contract is currently in force and wohtinue to govern the ADS facility until all pasi agree to termine
it. If the Foreign Investment Contract is termimgtthe ADS facility would then become subject te tilew Regulations (as defined below). Under Chillegislation, .
Foreign Investment Contract may not be alteredfected adversely by actions of the Central BanKbile.
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The Central Bank of Chile adopted a new ForeignhBrge Regulations Compendium (the “New Regulatjopsblished in the Official Gazette on January
2002 and effective as of March 1, 2002. The NewuRgpns impose only three levels of restrictionsobligations on foreign exchange transactions hileC (i) certair
transactions requiring exchange of foreign curremesst be conducted through the Formal Exchange &ldile., a commercial bank) and reported to thet@eBank o
Chile (e.g., investments, loans, deposits and icedther transactions in excess of US$10,000);d@ijtain transactions requiring exchange of foregmrency to b
remitted abroad must be conducted through the HdExehange Market without any reporting obligati@ng., all license and royalty payments to be reemliabroad); ar
(iii) certain transactions requiring exchange akfgn currency must only be reported to the CeiBeaik of Chile (i.e., payments regarding import axgort transaction
etc.).

Because the Law of the Central Bank of Chile autiesrthe Central Bank of Chile to regulate foreggwhange transactions, including those relating s
facilities, more restrictive regulations on foreigrchange affecting ADS holders of the Companyrst @Bme may be imposed. Therefore, in the eventRbeeigr
Investment Contract were terminated, an amendneetitet New Regulations could, among other thingstricg the ability of ADS holders to dispose of thederlying
shares of Common Stock of the ADS or to repatpateeeds of the Common Stock. The duration or itnpiany such restrictions would be difficult tosass.

The following is a summary of certain provisionsittlare contained in the Foreign Investment ContfHuis summary does not purport to be completeis
qualified in its entirety by reference to the Fgreinvestment Contract and Chapter XXVI of the ferrfroreign Exchange Regulations, which were filedEghibits 2..
and 4.4, respectively, to the Company’s RegistnaStatement on Form F-1 (No. 83298) and incorporated by reference herein. AghoGhapter XXVI of the form:
Foreign Exchange Regulations is no longer in foitseerms do apply to the Company through the igartnvestment Contract.

Under Chapter XXVI of the former Foreign ExchangegRlations and the Foreign Investment Contract, Geatral Bank of Chile agreed to grant to
Depositary, on behalf of ADS holders and to anyester neither resident nor domiciled in Chile whithdraws Common Stock upon delivery of ADS (suchrsk o
Common Stock being referred to herein as “Withdr&hares”)access to the Formal Exchange Market to convedspesU.S. dollars (and to remit such dollars ales
Chile) in respect of shares of Common Stock remteseby ADS or Withdrawn Shares, including amoueteived as (a) cash dividends; (b) proceeds frersale i
Chile of Withdrawn Shares; (c) proceeds from tHe gaChile of rights to subscribe for additionalases of Common Stock; (d) proceeds from the ligtigah, merger ¢
consolidation of the Company; and (e) other distigns, including, without limitation, those resnf from any recapitalization, as a result of hotgdshares of Comm:
Stock represented by ADS or Withdrawn Shares. Hewebhapter XXVI also provided that access to thefal Exchange Market for repatriation of the s@iesceeds «
Withdrawn Shares or distributions thereon would:beditioned upon receipt by the Central Bank ofl€bf certification by the Depositary (or the cuditm on its behal
that such Shares had been withdrawn in exchang&D®&; a waiver of the benefits of the Foreign Inwesnt Contract until such Withdrawn Shares werepedited ar
the Withdrawn Shares are redeposited with the Degpys Investors receiving Withdrawn Shares in exae for ADS will have the right to redeposit swttares i
exchange for ADS, provided that the conditionsedeposit are satisfied. For a description of therfab Exchange Market, see Item 3 — “Key InformatienExchang
Rates.”

Chapter XXVI of the former Foreign Exchange Regaole provided that access to the Formal Exchangekéfidor repatriation of dividend or distributi
payments would be conditioned upon certificationtily Company to the Central Bank of Chile thatvadéind or distribution payment had been made aydapplicabl
tax had been withheld. Cash, dividends and othsrildiitions paid by the Company with respect to ARl by a norChilean resident holder are subject to a 35% Ch
withholding tax, which is withheld by the Compamjowever, stock dividends are deemed a non taxaldetgursuant to Chilean Income Tax Law, thus,suttject ti
Chilean taxation. See Iltem 10 — “Additional Infortioa — Taxation.”

Chapter XXVI of the former Foreign Exchange Regals and the Foreign Investment Contract provide ghperson who brings foreign currency into Chiles
convert it into Chilean pesos (Liquidation restan) on the same date and has five days within wtocnvest in shares of Common Stock in orderet®ive the benefi
of the Foreign Investment Contract. If such perdenides within such period not to acquire share€ahmon Stock, he can access the Formal ExchangkeMia
reacquire U.S. dollars, provided that the appliealluest to purchase U.S. dollars is presentétet€entral Bank of Chile within five days, plusotadditional days °
request the Central Bank authorization of the ahitionversion into pesos. Shares acquired as tescabove may be deposited for ADS and receivdénefits of th
Foreign Investment Contract, subject to receiptHgyCentral Bank of Chile of a certificate from tBepositary (or the Custodian on its behalf) thathsdeposit has be
effected and that the related ADS have been isandda declaration from the person making such dep@sving the benefits of the Foreign Investmemin@act witt
respect to the deposited shares of Common Stock.

72




Access to the Formal Exchange Market under anhetircumstances described above is not autonfaiisuant to former Chapter XXVI, such access req
approval of the Central Bank of Chile based onquest presented through a banking institution &stedd in Chile. The Foreign Investment Contracivistes that if th
Central Bank of Chile has not acted on such requitsin seven banking days, the request will benuee approved.

As noted above, all the rights, procedures and @@ benefits contained in the Foreign Investmemti@ct are still in force in connection with thé>8
issuance.

E. Taxation

The following discussion is a summary of certainl€mn and U.S. federal income tax consideratioteting to an investment in the ADS or the shards
discussion is based on current law and is for ggrieformation only. Moreover, while the Compasyax advisors believe this discussion to be aecbiinterpretation «
existing laws in force as of the date of this ArirRaport, no assurances can be given that thesoutiax authorities responsible for the adminigiraof such laws wi
agree with this interpretation or that changesuithdaws will not occur. In addition, the discussitpes not address all possible tax consequenlegimigeto an investme
in the ADS or the shares.

Each holder of ADS or shares of Common Stock shoatwsult his or her own tax advisor regarding thdlipular tax consequences of the purchase, owip
and disposition of ADS or shares of Common Stock.

Chile

Chile and the United States signed a double taxateaty on February 4, 2010. The treaty will camte force only upon approval by the legislativedi®s o
Chile and the United States in accordance withr tlesipective laws. The following discussion is lobseclusively on Chilean domestic tax legislation.

The discussion summarizes the material Chileanniectax consequences of the purchase, ownershigispdsition of ADS or shares of Common Stock b
individual who is neither domiciled in, nor a remid of, Chile for tax purposes or a legal entitgttis not organized under the laws of Chile andsdast have a perman:
establishment in Chile (a “foreign holderBlowever, it is not a full description of all taxriderations that may be relevant to a decisicated|to the ADS or shares
Common Stock. The discussion is based on Chileeonie tax laws, regulations and rulings of the Gimilénternal Revenue Service, including Rulings 824 of 199C
No. 3985 of 1994, No. 1969 of 1995, No. 3807 of @09° 1705 of 2006 and 224 of 2008 and Circulatdreilo. 7 of 2002, all of which are subject to apeu

It is not intended as tax advice to any particih@estor, which can be rendered only in light dadttmvestors particular tax situation. For purposes of Chi
taxation, an individual holder is a resident of IElif he has resided in Chile for more than sixsmEmutive months in a calendar year, or a total @fenthan six montl
within two consecutive tax years.

Pursuant to the Chilean Constitution, provisionstaimed in statutes such as tax rates applicabfereagn investors, the computation of taxable meofol
Chilean purposes and the manner in which Chileaestare imposed and collected, may only be amebgethother statute. In addition, the Chilean tathauity issue
rulings, circular letters and regulations of eitigeneral or specific application and interpret pinevisions of Chilean tax law. Pursuant to Arti@lé of the Chilean Te
Code, Chilean taxes may not be assessed retrdgciiyainst taxpayers who in good faith relied oohstulings, regulations and interpretations, builézim tax authoritie
may change such rulings, regulations and interpoets prospectively.
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Cash Dividends and Other Distributions

Cash dividends paid by the Company with respetii@cADS or shares of Common Stock held by a foréigider will be subject to a 35% Chilean withholg
tax (the “Withholding Tax")which will be withheld and paid to the Chilean Tseey by the Company. Chile has an imputation tatesy. A credit against the Withhold
Tax is available based on the level of corporatenme tax actually paid by the Company on the inctorige distributed (the “First-Category Taxtpwever, this crec
does not reduce the Withholding Tax on a one-fa-basis because it also increases the base on thigidlvithholding Tax is imposed. From 1991 untiD20the First
Category Tax rate was 15% resulting in an effedtivedend withholding tax rate of approximately 23%. For 2002, the FirsEategory Tax rate was 16% resulting it
effective dividend withholding tax rate of approxtaly 22.62% and for year 2003 the First-Categay flate was 16.5%. Finally, from year 2004 thetFrategory Ta
rate is 17%, resulting in an effective dividendhhiblding tax rate of approximately 21.69%.

The example below illustrates the effective Chil&dithholding Tax burden on a cash dividend receiligch nonresident holder, assuming a Withholding
rate of 35%, an effective First-Category Tax reté %% and a distribution of 50% of the net inconfi¢he Company distributable after payment of thestFCategory Tax:

Company taxable incon 200.(
First-Category Tax (17% of Ch$20 (34.0
Net distributable incom 166.0(
Dividend distributed (50% of net distributable ince) 83.0(
Gross Up to compute Withholding Tax: Ch$83.00 @17 First Category Tax effectively pz (200.00)
Withholding Tax Rate 35% of Ch$100.00 equal to Gh$8inus credit for 50% of First Category Tax

(17%) 18.0(
Net withholding tax (18.00
Net dividend receive 65.0(
Approximate effective dividend withholding rate (&8) 21.68%

In general, the effective dividend Withholding Tiate, after giving effect to the credit for thedti€Category Tax, can be calculated using the fafigiformula:

Effective dividend Withholding Tax rat= (Withholding Tax rate (35)) (First-Category Tax rate (17))
100- (Firs-Category Tax rate (17

Under Chilean income tax law, dividends generatly assumed to have been paid out of the Companigiest retained profits for purposes of detemgjrthe
level of First-Category Tax that was paid by thex(pany. For years prior to 1991, the First-Categarywas 10%. Although this reduced Fi&ttegory Tax resulted
relatively greater amounts of distributable postitecome for those years, the credit against ththWdiding Tax for the FirsGategory Tax paid by the Company for tt
years will commensurably be diminished. DistribnSmf profits made with retained profits of thosass, therefore, resulted in an effective dividesithholding tax rat
of approximately 27.8%. Distributions of profits deawith retained earnings of years 2002 and 2G83jlted or will result in an effective dividend hliblding tax rate «
approximately 23.52% and 22.62%, respectively. Histributions of profits generated during year 2084d onwards, the effective dividend withholding ta
approximately 21.69%.

Dividend distributions paidh kind would be subject to the same Chilean tdgsas cash dividends. Stock dividends are deenmexh daxable event, thus,

subject to Chilean taxation for the shareholdehatmoment the shares are distributed. Subseqisusition of shares arising from stock dividendsyrbe taxed in Chi
(see Capital Gains). Disposition of the preemptights on compensated basis would be deemed i @hibrdinary business income subject to taxation.
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Capital Gains

Gains from the sale or exchange of ADS by a foréiglder (or ADRs evidencing ADS) outside of Chilédlwe deemed a foreign source income, not sulij
Chilean taxation. Gains from the sale or excharig&d$ by a Chilean resident outside of Chile, vadl deemed a foreign source income, but subjeeixttion in Chile &
Chilean residents are subject to taxes in Chiltheir worldwide income.

The deposit and withdrawal of Common Stock in ergeafor ADRs is not subject to Chilean taxationxdteon, if any, will be triggered at the time Comm
Stocks are sold. The tax base of shares of Comrtamk $eceived in exchange for ADS for capital gaers assessment will be the acquisition cost oishas the share
The basis on the shares delivered to any holdem spoender of ADRs shall be the highest reporédekssprice of the shares on the Santiago Stockdexgghfor the day «
which the transfer of the shares is recorded utidename of the holder. Consequently, the conversidADS into shares of Common Stock and the imatedsale of tr
shares for the value established under the Depgsiiement, as amended, would normally not generaspital gain subject to taxation in Chile.

If a capital gain is recognized on a sale or exgbaof shares of Common Stock acquired upon surresfd8DRs (as distinguished from sales or exchargf
ADS abroad representing such shares) made by &fiooe Chilean resident or domiciled holder, sucingwill be deemed a non taxable event provided the
requirements of Article 18 ter of the Chilean Inefax Law are met. Article 18 ter was introducedhe Chilean Income Tax Law by Law No. 19,768 whichs
published in the Official Gazette on November M20The requirements of Article 18 ter of the Childncome Tax Law are: (i) the share at the timsadé must have
market presence. In case the market presence shtre was lost, the sale must be made withinali@afing 90 days after the loss of the shanelarket presence; (ii) t
share must have been acquired and sold after 2pri2001; and (iii) the acquisition and sale mustehbeen made, amongst others, in a Chilean siatiarge market
in a foreign stock exchange market authorized byGhilean Superintendency of Securities.

Rev. Ruling 224 of 2008 was issued in the contéxXrticle 18 ter tax exemption application and ARRerations and it confirmed that the referenceaioetl ir
Article 18 ter to a foreign exchange stock markeharized by the Chilean Superintendency of Seesritvould cover the acquisitions on the London StBrchange
NYSE and Madrid Stock Exchanc

In case the requirements of Article 18 ter aremet and a capital gain is realized at the timehefdale of Common Stock, such capital gain, matthereby
foreign holder or by Chilean resident holder, Wil subject to both the Fir§tategory Tax and the Withholding Tax (the formeingecreditable against the latter) if eit
(i) the seniority on the Common Stock is less tbar year since exchanging ADS for the Common Stockij) the shareholder acquired and disposedchefGommo
Stock in the ordinary course of its business or mayleemed an habitual trader of shares andh@iyransaction takes place among parties deensédelnlikely to tak
place in the sale is made in a stock market. lotlér cases, gain on the disposition of CommomrkStall exclusively be subject to the FirSategory Tax (presen
imposed at a rate of 17%) assessed as a soledanoasecond level taxation will apply e.g. the Willing Tax in case of non-resident holder.

Amounts received by a foreign holder on the salpreémptive rights relating to the shares of Comi@totk will be deemed as business income, thugestuta
both the First-Category Tax and the Withholding Tidwe former being creditable against the latter).

Other Chilean Taxes
There are no gift, inheritance or estate taxesiegde to the ownership, transfer or dispositiorA8fS by a foreign holder, but such taxes will getigrapply tc

the transfer at death or by gift of the Common tog a foreign holder. There are no Chilean staisgye, registration or similar taxes or duties péydy holders ¢
Common Stock or ADS.
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Withholding Tax Certificates

Upon request, the Company will provide to foreigiders appropriate documentation evidencing themaay of the Withholding Tax (net of applicable [Eirs
Category Tax).

United States

The following discussion summarizes the materigd.Ufederal income tax consequences of the purcloaggership and disposition of the ADS or share
Common Stock. However, it is not a full descriptiohall tax considerations that may be relevanatdecision related to the ADS or shares of CommioiekS The
discussion is based on the United States IntermaleRue Code of 1986, as amended (the “CodE®asury regulations promulgated thereunder anétipldanc
administrative interpretations thereof, all asfiee on the date hereof and all of which are scitfie change, which change could apply retroagtivel

The U.S. federal income tax treatment of a holdex®S or shares of Common Stock may vary dependjman its particular situation. Certain holders I{igiing,
but not limited to, insurance companies, &empt organizations, financial institutions, pesssubject to the alternative minimum tax, perdwiding offsetting positior
in respect of the ADS or shares of Common Stockkdardealers, U.S. expatriates, U.S. Holders (as deforeddw) whose functional currency is not the U.Slia,
partnerships or other pass-through entities orgmardiolding ADS or Common Stock through a partriprein other pass-through entity, traders that eleanark-te
market, persons who acquired ADS or Common Stoc&uaunt to the exercise of any employee share optiaitherwise as consideration and persons owuiingctly ol
indirectly, 10% or more of the voting shares of @@mpany) may be subject to special rules not dsed below. Unless otherwise stated, the followingmary is limite
to U.S. Holders who hold the ADS or shares of Comr8tock as “capital assetsiithin the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code. dseussion below also does
address the effect of any foreign, state or logallaw, or any federal tax law other than incomeléav on a holder of the ADS or shares of Commarci§tin additior
unless otherwise stated, the following discussissumes that the Company is not currently and watl in the future be, classified as passive foreign investme
company” (“PFIC") within the meaning of the Code.

As used herein, the term “U.S. Holdentans a beneficial owner of ADS or shares of Com8tock that is, for U.S. federal income tax purgo@gan individue
who is a citizen or resident of the United Staf@sa corporation, or other entity taxable as apowation organized in or under the laws of thetehhiStates or any sti
thereof, (iii) an estate that is subject to U.$lefal income taxation without regard to the sowrfcitss income, or (iv) a trust if (1) a court withthe United States is able
exercise primary supervision over the administratibthe trust and (2) one or more United Statesgres have the authority to control all substamtedisions of the tru:
The term “Non-U.S. Holder” refers to any benefi@ainer of ADS or shares of Common Stock other #h&hS. Holder.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, holders o8APr ADRs evidencing ADS) generally will be trecht@s the owners of the Common Stock represent
those ADS.

Cash Dividends and Other Distributions

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the grossuatmof a distribution with respect to ADS or shacdsCommon Stock will include the net amount of
Chilean tax withheld {.e., the Withholding Tax reduced by any credit forsE{€ategory Tax paid) and will be treated as a divitden the date of receipt by the Deposi
or the U.S. Holder of such shares, respectivelyhéoextent of the Comparsycurrent and accumulated earnings and profitseéermdined for U.S. federal income
purposes. Distributions, if any, in excess of saghrent and accumulated earnings and profits esrmétied for U.S. federal income tax purposes wahstitute a non
taxable return of capital to a U.S. Holder and Wwél applied against and reduce such U.S. Hadax basis in such ADS or shares of Common Sfbekhe extent th.
such distributions are in excess of such basisdistebutions will constitute capital gain. U.Solders that are corporations will not be allowedealuction for dividenc
received in respect of distributions on ADS or slsasf Common Stock. For tax years through 2010yithgal U.S. Holders are generally subject to are on dividenc
equal to 15%, which corresponds to the maximunrdsx for longterm capital gains. However, for tax years begigrafter December 31, 2010, dividends will be taad
the same rate as other items of ordinary incomechwivill exceed the tax rate for lortgem capital gains. U.S. Holders should consulirthersonal tax advisors
determine the applicability of the 15% rate foridends, if any, paid to them.
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If a dividend distribution is paid with respectA®S or shares of Common Stock in Chilean pesosatheunt includable in income will be the U.S. doitalue
on the date of receipt by the Depositary or the. Bidder of such shares of Common Stock, respdytie¢ the Chilean pesos amount distributed. Angsaguent gain
loss in respect of such Chilean pesos arising fe@ohange rate fluctuations will generally be U@&irse ordinary income or loss for U.S. Holdershaligh under certa
limited circumstances may be capital gain or ldkshe Depositary converts the Chilean pesos to. ddilars on the date it receives such pesos, Hdklers will no
recognize any such gain or loss.

Subject to the limitations and conditions set farttthe Code and Treasury regulations promulgdtedeunder, U.S. Holders may elect to claim a cragitins
their U.S. federal income tax liability for the resnount of any Chilean tax withheld.¢. , the Withholding Tax reduced by any credit forsE€ategory Tax paid) fro
dividends received in respect of the ADS or shaféSommon Stock. If the dividends are subject ®16% tax rate described above, the amount ofithaetid taken int
account for purposes of calculating the foreigndeedit limitation will in general be limited to éhgross amount of the dividend, multiplied by teduced rate divided
the highest rate of tax normally applicable to dénds. Dividends generally will constitute non-UsBurce “passive category income” or “general aatggncome.”The
rules relating to the determination of the forefgr credit are complex and prospective purchadesalg consult their personal tax advisors to deiteemvhether and
what extent they would be entitled to such crddiS. Holders that do not elect to claim foreign ¢aedits may instead claim a deduction for Chilianwithheld.

A Non-U.S. Holder of ADS or shares of Common Stock gdhevéll not be subject to U.S. federal income tax dividends received on Common Stock or A
unless such income is effectively connected withabnduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade ortess in the United States.

Capital Gains

The sale or other disposition of ADS or shares @ih@on Stock will generally result in the recognitiof capital gain or loss in an amount equal todifierence
between the amount realized on the sale or otlspodition and the U.S. Holder's tax basis in su€iSfr shares of Common Stock. The U.S. Hokleritial tax basis i
the ADS or shares of Common Stock will be such o&lcost for the ADS or shares of Common Stock. ®aipss upon the sale or other disposition of ADShares ¢
Common Stock will be long-term or shaerm capital gain or loss, depending on whetheAB& or shares of Common Stock have been held @erthan one year a
generally will be U.S. source gain or loss (in dase of losses, subject to certain limitationshd-term capital gains realized by individuals gengralle subject to tax
preferential rates. The deductibility of capitatdes is subject to limitations.

As discussed under the heading “Chile-Capital Gaigain realized from a sale or other disposition ledres of Common Stock by a U.S. Holder, unlike
realized from a sale or disposition of ADS, couddtaxable in Chile. Because U.S. taxpayers gearaly only take a foreign tax credit against th8.Uederal income ti
liability in respect of nord.S. source income, in the case of gain realizedh fthe sale or other disposition of shares of Com@imck, a U.S. Holder may not be abl
use the foreign tax credit for Chilean tax imposedthat gain (because such gain would generally /8¢ source for U.S. federal income tax purposefss such U..
Holder can apply such foreign tax credit agairstitS. federal income tax liability in respect ohrU.S. source income.

Deposits and withdrawals of Common Stock by U.SdEls in exchange for ADS generally will not resalthe realization of gain or loss for U.S. fedenaome
tax purposes.

A Non-U.S. Holder of ADS or shares of Common Stock gdhevell not be subject to U.S. federal income @ gain from the sale or other disposition of «

ADS or shares unless such gain is effectively cotatewith the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder ofadé or business in the United States or the N@&h-Holder is a
individual who is present in the United States88 days or more and certain other conditions @& m
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Passive Foreign | nvestment Company
The Company believes that it was not a PFIC in@ior taxable year and does not expect to be a Rifllfs current taxable year or any succeedingliéxyear.

Under the Code, a foreign corporation will be a®ffdr any taxable year in which either (1) 75% asrenof its income is passive income or (2) the age
percentage of the value of its assets that pro¢rcare held for the production of) passive incasm&0% or more.

If the Company were classified as a PFIC for altkxgear, certain adverse U.S. federal income texsequences would generally apply to a U.S. Hadl&DS
or Common Stock.

Backup Withholding and I nformation Reporting

Dividends paid to a U.S. Holder that does not éistatan exemption and proceeds from such a U.Sdétsl sale or other disposition of ADS or share
Common Stock may have to be reported to the Ui8rral Revenue Service (“IRS"Buch payments may also be subject to a backup elihiy tax unless the U.
Holder (i) provides an accurate taxpayer identtffaranumber and otherwise complies with the reguéets of the backup withholding rules or (ii) othise establishes
exemption.

For taxable years beginning after March 18, 208y fegislation requires certain U.S. Holders whe iadividuals to report information relating to ewerest it
the Companys ADSs or shares of common stock, subject to cegeteptions (including an exception for ADSs aathmon stock held in accounts maintained by ce
financial institutions).

Subject to certain certification requirements, dérids paid to a Non-U.S. Holder on and proceeds idNon-U.S. Holdes sale or other disposition of, ADS
shares of Common Stock will generally not havedaédported to the IRS and will not be subject toking withholding tax.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any @mts withheld under the backup withholding rulesynbe refunded or credited against the hoklé&t'S
federal income tax liability if the required infoation is timely furnished to the IRS.

F. Dividends and paying agents
Not applicable.
G. Statements by experts
Not applicable.
H. Documents on Display
The Company files reports and other informatiorhwfite Securities and Exchange Commission (the “$ECGiy documents that the Company files with the :
r6noag/6§).e read and copied at the SE@ublic reference rooms at 450 Fifth Street, N.Washington, D.C. 20549; and 500 Madison StreeiteS1400, Chicago, lllino

I. Subsidiary Information

See Item 4 “Information on the Company — Organgadi Structure.”
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ITEM 11: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Companys principal line of business is the production &ottling of wine for sale both domestically andeimtationally. The principal exposures to ma
risks faced by the Company are interest rate fiskjgn currency exchange rate risk and risk odtfhations in the price of raw materials.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk reledéts debt obligations. As of December 31, 20@9Company’s total interebearing financial debt (includii
current maturities and accrued interest) amourte€hi$97,407 million of which, as of December 31020Ch$35,310 million is short term debt and Ch882,million is
long term debt with maturities through 2013 fortiemk debt and 2026 for the bond debt.

As of December 31, 2009, 57% of the debt has alfiaée and is denominated in Chilean pesos and Airgepesos. The fair market value of total bank dabo
December 31, 2009, does not significantly diffenirthe value at which it is listed in the ConsdighFinancial Statements and has an average intatesof 3.55% wit
maturities through 2026. The interest rate riskemifrom the uncertainty regarding interest rat@tath the Company can refinance its short ternt delen the currel
uncertainty in the global financial markets.

The following table lists the cash flows relatedrterest payments, amortization of debt obligatiand related interest rates by fiscal year maguniith respec
to the Company’s debt obligations. Interest ratiesldsed represent the weighted average ratesegpdrtfolio at yeaend and fairly represent the approximate ave
annual interest rates for each of the years of ntgtu

Interest Bearing Debt As of December 31, 2009
(in millions of Ch$)
Expected Maturity Date

Short
Term
and Long- Fair
Term Average Value
Financial Interest 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 There after Total Total
Debt Rate Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Debt
U.S. dollar  Variable
rate 2.18% 14,58¢ 15,66¢ 1,82¢ 1,82¢ — — 33,90¢ 33,76:
Ch$ Variable
rate 1.95% 4,01¢ — — — — — 4,01¢ 4,001
Ch$ Fixed rate 2.62% 9,90¢ — — — — — 9,90¢ 9,87¢
Ch$(UF) Fixed rate 3.9(% 2,79: 2,46¢ 2,46¢ 2,46¢ 2,46¢ 28,33« 40,98t 40,76
ARG$ Fixed rate 13.7% 2,62¢ 414 — — — — 3,03¢ 3,06:
ARG$ Variable
rate 13.4% 47C — — — — — 47C 474
GBP Variable
rate 2.31% 1 2,892 — — — — 2,892 2,88¢
Euro Variable
rate 2.22% 1 727 — — — — 72¢ 727
Total 34,39: 22,16¢ 4,29( 4,29( 2,46¢ 28,33¢ 95,93¢ 95,55:
UF(leasing  Fixed rate 14.85% 91z 251 304 — — — 1,46¢ 911
Total 35,31( 22,41F 4,594 4,29( 2,46¢ 28,33¢ 97,407 96,46:
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By comparison, as of December 31, 2008 the Compatofal interesbearing financial debt (including current matustiand accrued interest) amounte
Ch$138,867 million of which, as of December 31,200h$70,725 million was short term debt and Ch$63 million was long term debt. As of December 3108, mos
of the financed debt had a fixed-rate with an ayeraterest rate of 5.7% with maturities throug@®@s presented in the table below.

Interest Bearing Debt As of December 31, 2008
(in millions of constant Ch$)
Expected Maturity Date

Short
Term and
Long-
Term Average
Financial Interest 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 There after Total Fair Value
Debt Rate Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Mn.Ch$ Total Debt
U.S. dollar  Variable
rate 4.3% — — 1,12( 2,23¢ 2,23¢ — 5,59¢ 8,52
U.S. dollar  Fixed rate 4.7%% 28,36¢ 10,35( — — — — 38,71¢ 38,24¢
Ch$ Fixed rate 7.88% 24,77: — — — — — 24,77: 24,49¢
Ch$(UF) Fixed rate 3.82% 9,811 6,65¢ 5,61( 2,46¢ 2,46¢ 30,82: 57,83 54,17
ARGS$ Fixed rate 17.0%% 4,91« 2,50¢ 55¢& — — — 7,981 7,54¢
Euro Fixed rate 6.0%% 2,41¢ — — — — — 2,41¢ 2,07¢
Total 70,27¢ 19,517 7,28¢ 4,704 4,704 30,82 137,31: 135,05¢
UF(leasing Fixed rate 13.3% 447 387 342 37¢€ — — 1,55 1,451
Total 70,72¢ 19,90 7,63( 5,082 4,704 30,82: 138,86 136,50¢

Exchange Rate Risk

The primary exchange rate risk that the Compangdas the depreciation of the peso against theowsrturrencies in which Compasytevenues a
denominated. The Compamsyéxport sales are primarily denominated in U.Hads) Euros, Pounds Sterling, Canadian dollarazBean reais and Swedish and Norwe:
crowns. During 2009 and 2008, 79% and 81%, respelgtiof the Company total revenues were related to foreign currefibys risk is partly offset by the natural he
resulting from approximately 30% of the Companydsts and expenses being denominated in foreigermeyy primarily U.S. dollars

Additionally, to manage and mitigate the short-tefiect of changes in currency exchange rates eiCtimpanys functional currency based sales, the Com
has adopted a policy of attempting to balance doreixchange denominated assets and liabilitiesibimize its exposure to exchange rate risks. Tiis,Compan
periodically purchases and/or sells forward instuats including forward exchange contracts, as g@aits exchange rate hedging strategy. In addit@mna case-bgast
basis, the Company fixes the exchange rate for@eptage of its exports as part of its pricingtsgg related to its exports operations. The Compeg these instrume
solely to reduce the financial impact of thesesiakd does not use forward instruments for tragimgoses.

In addition, domestic sales of the Company’s Argensubsidiaries are denominated in Argentine pestsch represent 2.5% of total sales of the Compart
would therefore be affected by the devaluatiorheflbcal currency. To manage this risk the Compaaintains debt in Argentine pesos.

The following table sets forth the Compasydssets and liabilities subject to exchange igkeas of December 31, 2009. The value of theseidorcurrenc

denominated assets and liabilities are representedllions of Chilean pesos at the applicable exde rate on December 31, 2009, which is includetie final row ¢
the table.
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Assets and Liabilities Subject to Exchange Rate Ris
As of December 31, 2009
(in million of Ch$ / except Exchange Rate)

Applicable Currency of

Asset/Liability Us$ Euro GBP CAD ARG$ SEK NOK REAL
Cash 47¢ 457 1,40z 29¢ 34¢ 53t 98z 15¢
Accounts and Notes Receival 30,23( 7,58¢ 23,60« 2,60z 5,482 4,371 1,08( 3,77¢
Fixed Asset: 21,917 — 48 — — — — 25
Other Assets 3,87¢ 97 81t 25 5,74¢ 16€& 31 5
Total Assets 56,50+ 8,14( 25,86¢ 2,92¢ 11,577 5,07¢ 2,09: 3,96:
Current Liabilities 21,16: 3,35¢ 7,77¢ 90t 9,83: 3,12¢ 1,55(C 4,82%
Long-Term Liabilities 19,32: — — — 96¢ — — —
Total Liabilities 40,48 3,35¢ 7,77¢ 90¢& 10,80( 3,12¢ 1,55( 4,82%
Derivative Contracts
Expiring in 1Q201( 59,32t 5,47¢ 12,01t 1,90: — — — 11,46¢
Expiring in 2010 after 1Q1 41,28¢ 18,31¢ 15,16¢ 3,28( — — — 2,70(
Expiring 201:- 2013 27,53: 30,40° — 2,961 — — — 1,26¢
Total Forwards 128,14! 54,19¢ 27,18:¢ 8,14« — — — 15,43t
Exchange Rat 507.1( 726.8: 814.4: 481.1: 133.4¢ 70.7¢ 87.4¢ 290.9¢

By comparison, the following table represents tlmenfanys assets and liabilities subject to exchange
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009.

Assets and Liabilities Subject to Exchange Rate Ris
As of December 31, 2008
(in million of Ch$ / except Exchange Rate)

Applicable Currency of

iskeas of December 31, 2008,

expressed in cor

Asset/Liability US$ Euro GBP CAD ARG$ SEK NOK REAL
Cash 1,23¢ 23€ 65% 84 9 32 18 14¢€
Accounts and Notes Receival 39,82« 15,45¢ 27,84¢ 2,84: 2,53: — — 51¢&
Fixed Asset: 26,807 — 47 — — — — 24
Other Assets 1,03( 84( 5,352 25 15,00z 53¢ — 351
Total Assets 70,51¢ 16,53: 33,90: 2,952 17,54« 57C 18 1,03¢
Current Liabilities 40,69¢ 7,69¢ 18,09 1,561 11,11( — — 90¢
Long-Term Liabilities 15,94¢ — — — 4,08 — — —
Total Liabilities 56,64* 7,69¢ 18,09 1,561 15,19: 9 — 90¢
Derivative Contracts
Expiring in 1Q200¢ 33,57: 9,16¢ 12,32 1,847 — — — —
Expiring in 2009 after 1Q0 61,14¢ 30,76( 14,81¢ 2,997 — — — —
Expiring in 201C 23,69¢ 28,51 — 1,25¢ — — — —
Total Forwards 118,41¢ 68,43¢ 27,14( 6,09t — — — —
Exchange Rat 636.4¢ 898.8: 918.27 521.7: 184.4¢ 81.9¢ 90.9¢ 271.7(

Commodity Price Risk

The Company relies on outside vineyards for suppiegrapes and bulk wine. Grapes purchased frasidauvineyards are subject to fluctuation in prace

quality and generally cost more than grapes froenGbmpany’s vineyards.

In 2009, 68% of the grapes used in the productfoilsqpremium, varietal, birarietals and sparkling wines were purchased byGbpany from independe
growers in Chile. Additionally, in 2009, the Compapurchased the grapes and bulk wine required ¢dyme approximately 100% of the popular wines dnidhe
Company. Disruptions of supplies of grapes or winéncreases in prices from these outside supptiessd have a material adverse effect on the Cogigarsults ¢

operations. As of December 31, 2009, the Compathyadi hold any grape price-sensitive instrument.
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ITEM 12: DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURIT IES
D. American Depositary Shares

D.3. Fees and expenses

The following charges shall be incurred by any ydepositing or withdrawing shares or by any partgrendering ADRs or to whom ADRs are issued (idiclg,
without limitation, issuance pursuant to a stockidéind or stock split declared by the Company oearhange of stock regarding the ADRs or depositedirities or
distribution of ADRs), whichever applicable:

° taxes and other governmental charges,

° such registration fees as may from timéime be in effect for the registration of tramsf of shares generally on the share registereoCimpany ¢
foreign registrar and applicable to transfers @freb to the name of the Bank of New York Melloh¢‘Depositary”)r its nominee or the agent of the Depositary s
nominee on the making of deposits or withdrawateteder,

° such cable, telex and facsimile traission expenses as are expressly provided in tleeagnt between the Company and the Depositary

° such expenses as are incurred by tipeddary in the conversion of foreign currency,

° a fee not in excess of $5.00 or lesslp8 ADS (or portion thereof) for the executiordatelivery of ADRs and the surrender of ADRs,

° a fee for and deduct such fee fromdik&ibution of proceeds of sales of securitiesigits, such fee being in an amount equal to teddethe issuant

of ADS which would have been charged as a resuti®feposit by owners of securities (for purpasfehis clause 6 treating all such securities dhefy were shares)
shares received in exercise of rights distributetthém, but which securities or rights are insteald by the Depositary and the net proceeds diggth

The Company will pay the fees, reasonable expessg®ut-ofpocket charges of the Depositary and those of egigtrar only in accordance with the agreemr
in writing entered into the Depositary and the Campfrom time to time.

D.4. Amounts payable by the depositary to the Compey
Fees Incurred in Past Annual Period

Under the fee agreement between us and the Depodit® Depositary agrees to pay certain feesinglab the maintenance of the ADRs. Certain fee
encounter related to our ADRs are reimbursed tdoyushe Depositary. From January 1, 2009 to Decen3fier2009, we received from the Depositary US$3E
corresponding to the annual stock exchange liséng.

ITEM 13: DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES

None.
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ITEM 14: MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HO LDERS AND USEOF PROCEEDS

To the Company’s knowledge, no one has (i) matgriabdified the instruments defining the rightstbé Companys shareholders or (ii) materially modifiec
qualified the rights, evidenced by the Companysstered securities, by issuing or modifying anyeotclass of securities.

ITEM 15: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedurehe Company carried out an evaluation under tiperwision and with the participation of the ComyganManagemer
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief &irtial Officer, of the effectiveness of the deségnl operation of the Company’s “disclosure contesid procedures”
for the year ended December 31, 2009. Neverthelesse are inherent limitations to the effectivenekany system of disclosure controls and proasiuEven effectiy
disclosure controls and procedures can only proredsonable assurance of achieving their contrjglctibes. Based upon the Compangvaluation, the Chief Execut
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concludéwht the disclosure controls and procedures weeetdfe in providing reasonable assurance that imébion required 1
be disclosed in the reports the Company files arinits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processenmarized and reported, within the time pergpicified in th
applicable rules and forms and that it is gathemed communicated to the Compamlanagement, including the Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer,
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control off@rancial Reporting. Concha y Tor@s management is responsible for establishing ardtamainc
adequate internal control over financial reportiige Companys internal control over financial reporting is dgsd under the supervision of the Chief Executifiéecer
and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonaldswsance regarding reliability of financial repogtiand the preparation of financial statementsfternal purposes
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. It can only provide reasonabderasc
regarding financial statement preparation and ptasien. Also, projections of any evaluation ofeefiveness to future periods are subject to tHethat controls me
become inadequate because of changes in conditibtigt the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivefgle Companys internal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2009. In making t
assessment, the Compasiyhanagement used the criteria set forth by the mitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TreadwWaynmission (COSO) in Interr
Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on the evaluation under these criteria, m@anagt has concluded that, as of December 31, 2009Companys internal control over financial report
was effective.

The effectiveness of the Compasyhternal control over financial reporting has meeidited by KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda., maependent register
public accounting firm, as stated in their repohieh is included herein.

(c) Attestation Report of the Registered Public AccioagnEirm See page F-3 of this Annual Report for the attestatport on the effectiveness of the Company’
internal control over financial reporting of KPMGuditores Consultores Ltda., the Companiidependent registered public accounting firmeil httestation report
incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial RepoginThere were no changes in the Compangternal control over financial reporting thatooed durin
the period covered by this Form 20-F that have riadhe affected, or are reasonably likely to maddlyi affect, the Company’s internal control overdncial reporting.
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ITEM 16.A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT

The Company currently does not have an audit coteenfinancial expert serving on its Audit Committ&ader Chilean law, the Company is not requiretawe
an audit committee financial expert serving oraiislit committee.

ITEM 16.B: CODE OF ETHICS
As of June 2004, the Company has disclosed its ob@¢hics to reflect SEC rules and other propasemllations that were adopted by the Compsutgard ¢

directors, officers and employees. All of the Comya officers and employees accepted the provisiortketode of ethics, which governs the actionsvefyone wh
works for the Company, including the employeeshef €ompany’s subsidiaries. The Company’s codetaé®teals primarily with the following issues:

e Duties of managers and personi

e  Conflict of interests

e Use of property and informatio

e  Privileged information

e Independence

e Communications and certificate

e  Fair behavior; ani

e  Compliance with environment, health and safety land regulations

A copy of the Company’s code of ethics is availalidts website ( www.conchaytoro.cgm

ITEM 16.C: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT 'S FEES AND SERVICES

Aggregate fees for professional services rendeyadRMG Auditores Consultores Ltda. (“KPMG™ur independent registered public accounting fimeach o
the last two fiscal years, in each of the followzajegories are:

2008 ThCh$ 2009 ThCh$
Audit fees 115,49( 206,42¢
Audit-related fees — —
Tax fees — 100,40:
All other fees — —
Total 115,49( 306,82¢

“Audit Fees” are the aggregate fees billed andabié by KPMG for the audit of the Compasyonsolidated and annual financial statementsgwavof interin
financial statements and attestation servicesateaprovided in connection with statutory and ratury filings or engagements. Fees related to tiokt af internal contrc
over financial reporting are included in Audit Fe¢3ax fees"are for aggregate fees billed by KPMG for tax adviegarding transfer pricing, setup of foreign agiens
and other tax planning services.
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Pre-approval Policies and Procedures

Chilean law states that public companies are stiligetpre-approval’requirements under which all audit and nonaudivises provided by the independ
auditor must be pre-approved by the Directors’ Catte®. In the Company’s case, its Directors’ Conteeitapproves all audits, audilated services, tax services
other services. Any services to be provided by petielent auditors that are not specifically includetthin the scope of the audit must be pre-apprdwedhe Directors
Committee prior to any engagement.
ITEM 16.D: EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COM MITTEES

Mr. Guilisasti is an affiliate of the Company orepresentative of such an affiliate. Mr. Guilisdsis only observer status on the Audit Committegtiamot
voting member or the chair of the committee. He @ses not serve as an executive officer of the g@my. Therefore, he relies on the exemption pralideRule 10A-3
(b)(2)(iv)(D) of the Exchange Act. We do not bekethat his status as an affiliate materially adslgraffects the ability of our Audit Committee totandependently or
satisfy the other requirements of the listing stadd relating to audit committees contained in R@A-3 under the Exchange Act. See Item 6.C. — tBdractices.”
ITEM 16.E: PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS

Not Applicable.

ITEM 16.F: CHANGE IN REGISTRANT 'S CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT

Not Applicable.

ITEM 16.G: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

American Depositary Shares representing shareoofn@n Stock are listed on the New York Stock ExdeatfNYSE"). However, because the Company
“foreign private issuer,as defined in the rules of the Securities and ExghaCommission, the Company is exempt from the igraree rules set forth in Section 3034
the NYSE's Listed Companies Manual, other thandiiégation to maintain an audit committee in aceorcke with Rule 1048 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1
as amended and the obligation to notify the NYSEn§ of the Company’s executive officers becomearavof any norcompliance with any applicable provisions
Section 303A. Instead, the rules of both the SEG e NYSE require the Company to provide a summagiuded below, of the significant ways in whitte
Company’s corporate practices differ from thoseligpple to U.S. domestic companies under NY SEngsstandards.

Independent directors in the Board of Directors

According to NYSE, listed U.S. companies must havaajority of independent directors. Chilean lawyarquires at least one independent director e
Company’s Board of Directors is, in fact, comprigéc minority of independent directors.

Non-Executive or Independent Director Meetings
Pursuant to the NYSE listing standards, mesecutive directors or independent directors of.UiSed companies must meet on a regular basikow

management present. In compliance with Chilean lae, Company does not have directors that simultaslg serve as executives, accountants or auditbihe
Company. The Compargydirectors may meet individually or collectivelytivthose they deem necessary to inform themselmdsnake decisions regarding the comp
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Directors’ Committee and Audit Committee
According to the NYSE, listed U.S. companies mustehan audit committee consisting of a minimumhoé¢ independent directors who are financiallydite
and at least one who is a designated financialrex@hilean law requires open stock companies witharket capitalization greater than UF 1.5 milll@pproximatel
US$59.3 million) and at least 12.5% of its shasssieéd with voting rights are held by individual r&ttenlders who control or have less than 10% sheines such as tr
Company, to have a DirectoiSommittee, composed of three directors who meeintthependence requirements under Chilean law (eitbed below). The Company |
a Directors’Committee, composed of a majority of independergatiors as required by Chilean law, which alsogrerf the functions of the Audit Committee requiby
the NYSE. For the non-independent director on tiredors’ Committee, the Company relies on an exemption ®\NNSE listing standards relating to Audit Comngt
of Rule 10A-3 promulgated under the Exchange Abfléan law has no requirement for members to kenfiral experts.
The Directors’ Committee is responsible for
i. reviewing balance sheets, financial statememntisraports from accounting oversight bodies andtersd
ii. proposing outside auditors to the Board of Bices;
iii. reviewing background information regarding tBempany’s operations with related parties;
iv. reviewing managers’ and chief executive off&@ompensation plans;
v. preparing an annual management report with maiammendations to shareholders;
vi. inform and advice the Board of director abouirly the external auditors for non-audit neitheshpbited services; and

vii. any other task established in the By-laws mir@sted by the Board of Director or the sharehsladeeeting.

Director’s independence qualification

Under the NYSE rules, a director must meet the irements in the “Independence Test” in order tocbasidered an “Independent DirectoChilean lav
establishes a strict set of rules in order to @erssomeone as “Independent Director”. This setlgfs is principally related with the perserfinancial, management ¢
kin relationship with the company, its controllerdeor its principal executives. Accordingly, altlybucertain of our directors are “Independentaccordance with Chile.
law, they may not be deemed to be “IndependentcRire” under NYSE listing standards.

Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee
According to the NYSE, listed U.S. companies musieha Nominating/Corporate Governance Committeeposed entirely of independent directors, wil
activities include identifying qualified individuslto serve on the board of directors and developireet of corporate governance principles. This mitee is nc

contemplated as such by Chilean law. NominationsBfward of Directors are made at the Ordinary Stalders’ Meeting, while the Board of Directors nominates
members of the Directors’ Committee.
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Corporate Governance Guideline
According to the NYSE, listed U.S. companies muasis corporate governance guidelines establistiiaddllowing:

(i) director qualification standard
(ii) director responsibilities
(iii) director access to manageme
(iv) director compensatiot
(v) director orientation and continuing educati
(vi) management succession; ¢
(vii) annual performance evaluation of the Boardakctors.

Under Chilean law, no corporate governance guidsliare required, but directorsbmpensation must be discussed and voted on apratathe ordinar
shareholders’ meeting.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

According to the NYSE, U.S. listed companies mukiph and disclose a Code of Business Conduct anmidsEfor directors, officers and employees. The &
must be uploaded on the Company website or otheragsavailable for shareholders to obtain a copZaofle of Conduct and Ethics is not required by &tnillaw, but
has become a common practice for Chilean companikave a Code. The Company has a Code of Bus@sduct and Ethics entitledCbde of Business Conduct ¢
Ethics of Concha y Toro,foverning the actions of directors, officers andpkayees. Its observance and compliance is regulayethe senior management of
Company, including the General Manager and thefGhiancial Officer. The Code is available on thentpany website at www.conchaytoro.com

Internal Audit

According to the NYSE, listed U.S. companies mustehan internal audit function to provide managenweth ongoing assessments of the compamjgk
management process and the system of internalatenflthough there is no local law requirementtmso, but the Company conducts an internal aulkiictwprovide
evaluation, analysis and recommendations to semémragement, the Board of Directors and the Dirst@ommittee.

CEOQ'’s awareness and certification of corporate goveance violations

According to the NYSE, the CEO of a U.S. listed pamy must annually certify to the NYSE that he loe & not aware of any violation by the Companyhe
NYSE's corporate governance listing standards. Chilaandioes not establish such a requirement and thigson of the NYSE does not apply to foreign pierissuel
such as the Company. However, according to the NY&iEoreign private issuers, including the Compamust report to the NYSE when they become awéra
violation of the corporate governance listing stmdd and must provide an annual written affirmatorthe NYSE of its compliance with the applicabl¥ SE audi
committee rules and disclose significant differenaith NYSE corporate governance rules applicabléamestic companies. In compliance with thesesrule Compar
annually submits a written annual affirmation te tHYSE.

The amended rules provide that all egerd parties, not just shareholders, must betalemmunicate their concerns regarding the listadpany to the presidi
director, or the non-management or independenttdire as a group. There is no similar provisio€mlean law.
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ITEM 17:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See Item 18 — “Financial Statements.”

ITEM 18:

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following financial statements, together witle teports of KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda.fdeel as part of this Annual Report:

Page

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-2

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 200800¢ F-4

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of daesyin the thre-year period endeDecember 31, 20C F-6

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity for each of the years in the th-year period ended December 31, 2 F-7

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheof¢ars in the thr-year period ended December 31, 2 F-8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-10

ITEM 19 EXHIBITS
List of Exhibits

1.1* By-Laws (Estatutos) of the Company, together with an English tramstafiled as Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s AnnualpRe on Form 20-F (No. B358) fo
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

2.1* Form of Deposit Agreement among the Company, ThekRd New York and holders from time to time of Aroan Depositary Receipts issued thereui
including the form of American Depositary Receified as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registratitatement on Form F-1 (No. 33298) and incorporat
by reference hereii

2.2*% Form of Foreign Investment Contract among the Camp@he Bank of New York and the Central Bank ofl€helating to the foreign exchange treatmel
the investment in ADS and ADRs (with English tratigin), filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Régison Statement on Form F-1 (No. 83298) an
incorporated by reference here

2.3*% Central Bank of Chile Chapter XXVI, filed &xhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Registration Statenmnform F-1 (No. 384298) and incorporated by refere
herein.

3.1 Agency Agreement dated as of August 31, 1888veen the Company and Banfi Products Corporafilmn as Exhibit 10.1 to the CompasyRegistratio
Statement on Form-1 (No. 3:-84298) and incorporated by reference hel

3.2% English Translation of Powers of Attorney gted by the Board of Directors bfversiones Totihue S.Ao Family Principal Shareholders filed as ExhBi2 tc
the Compan’s Annual Report on Form -F (No. 1- 3358) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1

3.3* English Translation of Powers of Attorney igtieed by the Board of Directors of Renfanta Barbara S.Ato Family Principal Shareholders filed as Exh88ttc
the Compan’s Annual Report on Form -F (No. 1-3358) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1

3.4* English Translation of Shareholders Agreement,cdlategust 20, 1999, entered into by Guilisasti fanaihd other affiliated parties relating to, amonigess, th

transfer and voting of Common Stock filed as Exthih# to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 20NB.(1-3358) for the fiscal year ended Decembel
1999.
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4.1*

4.2*

8.1

121

12.2

13.1

English Translation of the Shareholdekgreement, dated June 30, 1997, entered into by Cidncha y Toro S.A. and Baron Philippe de Rothdctelating tc
the creation of Vifia Almaviva S.A. filed as Exhilitl to the Compar's Annual Report on Form -F (No. 1-3358) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2

English Translation of the Shareholdekgreement, dated November 15, 2000, entered intdifig Concha y Toro S.A. and Amorim & Irmaos, S.G.PS.A
relating to, among others, the transfer and votihgommon stock and the management and admingstrafi Industria Corchera, S.A. filed as Exhibit #02he
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -F (No. 1-3358) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2

List of Significant Subsidiaries. Our significanttsidiaries, their jurisdictions of incorporationdsthe names under which they do business areifiderin Iten
4 “Information on the Compar— Organizational Structur”’

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of Sarbar-Oxley (filed herewith)
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant$ection 302 of Sarbar-Oxley (filed herewith)
Certification of Chief Executive Officer atthief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sacti350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 ofébad®Dxley
(filed herewith). (This Exhibit is furnished herekyi but not deemed “filedfor purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exgka#ict of 1934, as amended

otherwise subject to liability under that secti@uch certification will not be deemed to be incogted by reference into any filing under the SamsiAct o
1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange setm@nded, except to the extent that the Compaplicitly incorporates it by reference

*Previously filed.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 12 of gmufties Exchange Act of 1934, the registrantiftestthat it meets all of the requirements foinfijl on Form 20-
F and has duly caused this Annual Report to beesigm its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto dutiorized.

VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A.

Registran

By: /sl EDUARDO GUILISASTI G.
Name: Eduardo Guilisasti C
Title: Gerente Genera

General Manage
(Chief Executive Officer

Date: June 30, 201

By: /sl OSVALDO SOLAR V.
Name: Osvaldo Solar V
Title: Gerente de Administracién y Finanz

Administration and Financial Manag
(Chief Financial Officer

Date: June 30, 201
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Opinion KPMG ESTADOS FINANCIEROS

KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda. Phone +56 (2) 798 100!
3520 Isidora Goyenechea Av."dfloor Fax +56 (2) 798 100:
Las Condes, Santiago, Ch www.kpmg.cl

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Vifia Conchay Toro S.A.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. and subs@liathe Company) as of December 31, 2008 and 20@Bth:
related consolidated statements of income, chaimgsisareholders’ equity, and cash flows for eacthefyears in the thregear period ended December 31, 2009. T
consolidated financial statements are the respilibsitit the Companys management. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these consolidated financial staternr
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigharf8lo(United States). Those standards require teaplan an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoatabhether the financial statements are free dera misstatement. An audit includes examining,aotest basi
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made agagement, as w
as evaluating the overall financial statement prieg®n. We believe that our audits provide a reabée basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of Vifia Conchdgro S.A. an
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2009ttendesults of their operations and their cash $léor each of the years in the thrgear period ended December
2009, in conformity with accounting principles gealy accepted in Chile.

Accounting principles generally accepted in Chibrywin certain significant respects from accountprinciples generally accepted in the United State&merica
Information relating to the nature and effect aftsdifferences is presented in Note 37 to the apemying consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemast®f and for the year ended December 31, 2009 heea translated into United States dollars sdietythe
convenience of the reader. We have audited thsl&®on and, in our opinion, the consolidated ficiahstatements expressed in thousands of Chileaosp as restated
general price-level changes, have been translatedUnited States dollars on the basis set fortiobe 2 y) of the notes to the consolidated finalrstatements.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Vifia Concha y Toro SsAinternal contrc
over financial reporting as of December 31, 20085€edl on the criteria establishedlimernal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponso

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQJ, @ report dated June 30, 2010, expressed aralifieg opinion on the effectiveness of the Comparipterna
control over financial reporting.

Erie

KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda.

Santiago, Chile
June 30, 2010

KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda. a Chilean member bf KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. Adlhts reserved.
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Opinion KPMG SOX

KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda. Phone +56 (2) 798 100!
3520 Isidora Goyenechea Av."floor Fax +56 (2) 798 100:
Las Condes, Santiago, Ch www.kpmg.cl

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Vifia Conchay Toro S.A.:

We have audited the internal control over finanmégilorting of Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. (the Compaag)of December 31, 2009, based on criteria estaddliininternal
Control - Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatairte Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compamyanagement is respons
for maintaining effective internal control over dincial reporting and for its assessment of thecgffeness of internal control over financial repagt included in th
accompanyingManagement’s Annual Report on Internal Control o@rancial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion o@ @ompanys internal contrc
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@nited States). Those standards require thaplase an
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether effective internal control over finaaidgieporting was maintained in all material respe@ur audit include
obtaining an understanding of internal control dgancial reporting, assessing the risk that aematweakness exists, and testing and evaluat@glé€sign and operati
effectiveness of internal control based on thesseskrisk. Our audit also included performing soitter procedures as we considered necessary oirthenstances. W
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Hasizur opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is sopess designed to provide reasonable assurancediregahe reliability of financial reporting ande
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. A compang’internal control over financial report
includes those policies and procedures that (aeto the maintenance of records that, in reaslendetail, accurately and fairly reflect the tractsons and dispositio
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenafdurance that transactions are recorded assaecés permit preparation of financial statementaccordance wi
generally accepted accounting principles, and rbegipts and expenditures of the company are bmiade only in accordance with authorizations of ngengent an
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteaifounauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositidrthe companyg
assets that could have a material effect on ttenéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of any evatumtf effectiveness
future periods are subject to the risk that costrolly become inadequate because of changes irtioasdor that the degree of compliance with thkcpes or procedure
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. maintainedall material respects, effective internal cohtver financial reporting as of December 31, 20df¥sed on criter
established iinternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@/nited States), the consolidated balance sléétgia Conch
y Toro S.A. and subsidiaries as of December 31820 2009, and the related consolidated staternéitsome, changes in shareholderguity, and cash flows for ee

of the years in the thregear period ended December 31, 2009, and our refaded June 30, 2010 expressed an unqualified avpion those consolidated finan
statements.

2NN

KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda.

Santiago, Chile
June 30, 2010

KPMG Auditores Consultores Ltda. a Chilean member bf KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. Adlhts reserved.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
( Restated for general price-level changes and ex@des thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 and thousétds dollars)

As of December 31

2008 2009 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThUuSD
Note 2(y)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivale 3,859,01: 6,992,17. 13,78¢
Accounts receivable, n 101,213,14 94,993,82 187,32t
Notes receivable, ni 2,618,49! 3,560,23: 7,021
Other accounts receivable, 1 4,158,73! 4,436,63 8,74¢
Amounts due from related compan 234,63: 220,82( 43t
Inventories, ne 110,746,30 116,574,73 229,88!
Recoverable taxe 9,832,18I 7,687,97 15,16
Prepaid expenst 13,265,56. 12,058,17 23,77¢
Deferred income taxe 2,802,94i 3,378,95! 6,66%
Other current assets 1,926,322 979 ,11¢ 1,931
Total current assets 250,657,31 250,882,64 494,74
Property, plant and equipment:
Land 55,924,77 58,773,21 115,90:
Buildings and infrastructur 206,585,33 220,360,36 434,55(
Machinery and equipme 69,056,72 69,819,31 137,68
Other fixed assef 17,501,97 18,853,47 37,17¢
Revaluation from fixed asset technical appre 3,738,88. 3,712,53 7,321
Less: accumulated depreciation (116,241,00) (130,044,46) (256,44
Total property, plant and equipment, net 236,575,68 241,474,43 476,18t
Other assets:
Investments in related compan 7,911,98: 8,548,78 16,85¢
Investments in other compani 357,00« 498,20« 982
Goodwill, net 999 ,66° 915 ,78( 1,80¢
Intangibles 7,230,92 7,728,22. 15,24(
Accumulated amortizatio (994,67() (1,285,169 (2,539
Other assets 3,169,39! 2,764,83! 5,452
Total other assets 18,674,31 19,170,66 37,80+
Total assets 505,907,32 511,527,74 1,008,73.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
( Restated for general price-level changes and es@des thousands of constant

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 and thousétdfs dollars)

As of December 31

2008 2009 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThUuSD
Note 2(y)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Shor-term debt due to banks and financial institutionsluding interes 57,764,07 21,071,39 41,55:¢
Current portion of lon-term debt due to banks and financial institutionsluding interes 10,940,02 5,418,76: 10,68¢
Commercial pape — 5,113,401 10,08¢
Current portion of bonds payat 1,574,46: 2,793,31 5,50¢
Other lon-term liabilities with maturities within one ye 446,29! 913,12 1,801
Dividends payabl 1,767,57 1,942,84. 3,831
Accounts payabl 44,588,32 39,726,81 78,34:
Notes payabli 3,475,68: 2,998,92: 5,91«
Other payable 2,334,79 907,37: 1,78¢
Amounts payable to related compar 3,537,40: 2,479,22. 4,88¢
Accrued expense 29,397,99 29,529,82 58,23:
Withholdings 4,641,28 8,560,32: 16,88:
Income taxes payab 650 ,47¢ 3,641,12. 7,18(
Deferred revenu 1,665,55! 12 ,69¢ 25
Other current liabilities 206,04« — —
Total current liabilities 162,989,99 125,109,13 246,71!
Long-term liabilities:
Due to banks and financial institutio 26,348,19 23,352,56 46,05
Bonds payabli 40,685,43 38,189,95 75,312
Miscellaneous payable 1,108,422 554,66: 1,09¢
Amounts payable to related compar 1,902,45: 1,664,25! 3,28:
Accrued expense 1,573,12: 1,633,92 3,22
Deferred income taxes 14,257,88 13,614,32 26,84
Total long-term liabilities 85,875,51 79,009,69 155,80
Minority interest 7 (4) —
Shareholder¢ equity:
Paid-in capital, no par value , 719,170,735 and(0%,982 shares issued and outstanding as of 2a08 .

2009, respectivel 52,182,89 72,812,24 143,58t
Additional paic-in capital- share premiur 6,089,06! 6,004,28! 11,84(
Other reserve 8,359,08: 8,359,16: 16,48«
Reserve for future dividenc 161,711,23 181,616,77 358,14¢
Net income for the ye: 34,343,39 44,160,44 87,08
Less: provisional dividends (5,643,87) (5,543,98) (110,937

Total shareholders’ equity 257,041,81 307,408,92 606,21

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 505,907,32 511,527,74 1,008,73.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

( Restated for general price-level changes and ex@des thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 and thousétdfs dollars)

Operating income:
Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative and selling expenses
Operating income
Non-operating income and expense:
Interest incom«
Equity participation in net income of related comigs
Other nor-operating incom:
Goodwill amortizatior
Interest expens
Other nor-operating expenst
Price-level restatement, n
Foreign exchange gains (losses), net
Non-operating income (expenses), n
Income before income taxes and minority interes
Income taxes
Income before minority interest
Minority interest
Net income for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part otthessolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThUuSD
Note 2(y)
304,067,07 314,755,93 353,594,73 697,28t
(181,616,49) (189,148,15) (224,644,20) (442,99))
122,450,58 125,607,78 128,950,53 254,29(
(72,183,45) (75,505,70) (84,343,32) (166,32}
50,267,12 50,102,08 44,607,21 87,96¢
170,99¢ 541,47 728,69: 1,43
677,37t 452,67 732,74¢ 1,44¢
414,89: 928,64¢ 337,76¢ 66€
(83,889 (83,889 (83,889 (165)
(4,864,85) (6,238,55) (5,580,961) (11,006)
(1,145,48) (813 ,47Y) (460,03 (907)
(884,19) (581,49)) 1,447,78 2,85¢
382,64¢ (1,071,83) 11,137,30 21,96:
(5,332,50) (6,866,45) 8,259,411 16,28¢
44,934,62 43,235,63 52,866,63 104,25:
(8,688,45) (8,892,20) (8,706,18) (17,169
36,246,16 34,343,42 44,160,45 87,08
(9,292) (23) (8) -
36,236,87 34,343,39 44,160,44 87,08




Balance as of January 1, 2C

2006 net income distributic

Dividends declare

Foreign currency translation
adjustmen

Price-level restatemer

Net income for the ye:

Interim dividends

Balance as of December 31, 20

Balance as of December 31, 20
restated to constant Chilean
pesos as of December 31, 20

Balance as of January 1, 2C
2007 net income distributic
Dividends declare

Price-level restatemer

Net income for the ye:

Interim dividends

Balance as of December 31, 20

Balance as of December 31, 20
restated to constant Chilean
pesos as of December 31, 20

Balance as of January 1, 2C

2008 net income distributic

Dividends declare

Capital increas

Foreign currency translation
adjustmen

Price-level restatemer

Net income for the ye:

Interim dividends

Balance as of December 31, 20

VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 )

Additional
paid-in Reserves for
Paid-in capital- share Other future Provisional Net income
capital premium reserves dividends dividends for the year Total
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
45,666,89 5,328,73! 7,382,67! 113,113,06 (5,496,26) 16,160,51 182,155,61
— — — 10,664,25 5,496,26: (16,160,51) —
— — — (1,078,75) — — (1,078,75)
— — (72,36() — — — (72,36()
3,379,35! 394,32¢ 546,31¢ 9,087,24. (361,38) — 13,045,85
— — — — — 34,058,71 34,058,71
— — — — (5,393,78) — (5,393,78)
49,046,24 5,723,06. 7,856,62! 131,785,80 (5,755,16) 34,058,71 222,715,28
52,182,89 6,089,06! 8,359,08: 140,213,89 (6,123,22) 36,236,87 236,958,60
49,046,24 5,723,06: 7,856,62! 131,785,80 (5,755,16) 34,058,71 222,715,28
— — — 28,303,55 5,755,16 (34,058,71) —
— — — (8,234,50) — — (8,234,50)
4,365,111 509,35: 699,24( 13,663,30 (382,95%) — 18,854,05
— — — — — 35,151,89 35,151,89
— — — — (5,393,78) — (5,393,78)
53,411,36 6,232,41! 8,555,86i 165,518,15 (5,776,73) 35,151,89 263,092,94
52,182,89 6,089,06! 8,359,08: 161,711,23 (5,643,87) 34,343,39 257,041,81
53,411,36 6,232,41! 8,555,86i 165,518,15 (5,776,73) 35,151,89 263,092,94
— — — 29,375,15 5,776,73 (35,151,89) —
— — — (8,820,29) — — (8,820,29)
20,668,64 (84,84)) — — — — 20,583,79
— — 79 — — — 79
(1,267,76) (143,28)) (196,78 (4,456,23) 16,47¢ — (6,047,58)
— — — — — 44,160,44 44,160,44
— — — — (5,560,46) — (5,560,46)
72,812,24 6,004,28! 8,359,16! 181,616,77 (5,543,98) 44,160,44 307,408,92

The accompanying notes are an integral part otthessolidated financial statements.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 and thous&tdfs dollars )

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 2009 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThUSD
Note 2(y)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Received from custome 341,534,46 315,483,74 287,257,49 566,47:
Interest receive 163,20t 516,61 765,68 1,51(
Dividends and other distributions recei\ 1,273,09! 149,71: 4,32¢ 9
Other income receive 27,668,45 33,710,95 26,593,67 52,44
Payments to suppliers and persor (280,764,02) (289,093,94) (258,611,21) (509,98
Interest paic (5,616,64) (3,131,92) (5,400,57) (10,650
Income taxes pai (4,881,49)) (5,387,92) (3,739,651 (7,375
Payment of other expens (2,169,90) (52,159 (194,019 (389
Value-added and others taxes paid (14,558,08) (31,304,50) (12,056,11) (23,779
Net cash provided by operating activities 62,649,08 20,890,56 34,619,61 68,27¢

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of stc — — 20,625,28 40,67
Bank financing 44,351,40 81,713,58 57,458,54 113,30t
Proceeds from commercial paj — — 5,113,401 10,08¢
Dividends paic (7,141,39) (14,038,29) (14,299,47) (28,199
Payment of bank financir (58,671,26) (39,092,30) (65,877,41) (129,91
Other financing cash flown — — (643,53) (1,269
Payment of other loans to related companies (1,992,74,) — — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (23,453,99) 28,582,98 2,376,80: 4,68

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equip 47,52¢ 1,282 299,04 59C
Investmentt 75,55( — — —
Additions to property, plant and equipmt (37,509,42) (45,923,86) (32,814,76) (64,717
Payment of capitalized intere (481,96 (916,449 (764,979 (2,509
Permanent investmer — (15,787 — —
Other investing disbursements (431,757 (1,596,99) (248,65 (490)
Net cash used in investing activities (38,300,06) (48,451,80) (33,529,35) (66,120
Positive net cash flow for the ye 895,03. 1,021,74 3,467,06! 6,837
Effect of price-level restatement on cash and eaghvalents (294,36¢) (38,27¢) (339,91 (647)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 600,66! 983,46: 3,133,15! 6,19¢
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 2,274,89! 2,875,55! 3,859,01! 7,598
Cash and cash equivalents end of yei 2,875,55! 3,859,01 6,992,17. 13,78¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 and thous&tdfs dollars )

Year Ended December 31

2007 2008 2009 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThUSD
Note 2(y)
Reconciliation of net income to net cash providedyboperating activities:
Net income for the yes 36,236,87 34,343,39 44,160,44 87,08«
Net gain on sales of property, plant and equipr (72,049 (26,799 (125,49) (247)
Net gain on sales of other investm (73,71 — — —
Charges (credits) to income which do not represertash flows:
Depreciatior 13,926,65 13,787,81 14,612,55 28,81¢
Amortization of intangible 137,96t 189,51t 176,11: 347
Provisions and writ-offs 1,669,81! 1,007,761 4,149,021 8,18:
Equity participation in net income of related comigs (677,37 (452,67:) (732,749 (1,445
Amortization of goodwill 83,88t¢ 83,88t¢ 83,88¢ 16t
Price-level restatement, n 884,19: 581,49! (1,447,78) (2,855
Foreign exchange (gains) losses, (382,644 1,071,83. (11,137,30) (21,967
Other credits to income that do not represent dasls (311,889 — — —
Other charges to income that do not representftask — 1,349,51. 90,81: 17¢
Changes in assets which affect cash flown
Decrease (increase) in trade receiva 334,02 (30,149,60) (40,981,56) (80,81¢)
Increase in inventor (8,771,92) (20,879,02) (15,001,30) (29,58
Decrease (increase) in other current as 297,49 (4,971,84) 3,445,30: 6,79¢
Changes in liabilities which affect cash flows
Increase in accounts payable associated with apegnagsults 16,612,36 12,909,78 32,664,46 64,41t
Decrease in interest payal (1,184,49)) (1,155,479 (31,759 (62
Increase in income tax payable, net of decreaseciverable taxe 2,583,52 7,792,35! 5,273,27 10,39¢
Increase (decrease) in other accounts payableiatsbwith noi- operating result 1,122,20. 7,010,15 (1,662,83) (3,279
Increase (decrease) in value added tax and otheuats payabl 224,88( (1,601,569 1,084,51 2,13¢
Loss attributable to minority intere 9,29 23 8 —
Net cash flows provided by operating activitie: 62,649,08 20,890,56 34,619,61 68,27¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oethessolidated financial statements.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 209

Note 1 - Description of business

Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. is a corporation organineder the laws of the Republic of Chile registenseder No. 0043 of the Chilean Superintendency cuBges an
Insurance and in the New York Stock Exchange (“NY)S#ad is therefore subject to the supervisionhef €hilean Superintendency of Securities and Imeer§‘SVS’)
and the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SBE€the United States of America. The Company ig@pcer and exporter of wines. It is a verticalijegrate:
company that is involved at every stage of the petidn and marketing of wine. It manages its owneyards, vinification and bottling plants and hasextensiv
distribution network for wines.

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies

a)

b)

Periods coverec

These financial statements reflect the constiiéinancial position of Vifia Concha y Toro S.Adasubsidiaries (the “Companyds of December 31, 2008 ¢
2009 and the consolidated results of their opemafithe changes in their consolidated sharehol@epsty, and their consolidated cash flows for tearg ende
December 31, 2007, 2008 and 20

Basis for consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemeat® been prepared in accordance with generallgpaed accounting principles in Chile and the acting
regulations of the SVS (collectively “Chile GAAP’$hould any discrepancy exist between generallypgedeaccounting principles in Chile and the regore
issued by the Chilean SVS, the latter shall preVidie preparation of financial statements in acancé with Chile GAAP requires management to makmate:
and assumptions that affect the reported amourdsssts and liabilities, disclosures of contingesiets and liabilities as of the date of the firdrstatements ai
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhemreporting period. Actual results could diffieem those estimate

The consolidated financial statements include dbcounts of Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. (the “Pa@ampany”)and subsidiaries. The Parent Company ar
subsidiaries are referred to as the “Compamyf’intercompany balances and transactions have leéminated in consolidation. In addition, the trapation o
minority shareholders has been recognized and slagwminority interes'

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to the 200728@8 consolidated financial statements to comfiivem to the 2009 presentatic
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes and es@des thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)
Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policigontinued
The consolidated financial statements for the y2a6¥, 2008 and 2009 include the following subsid&a

Ownership interestAs of December 31

2007 2008 2009
Company Country Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total
% % % % % % % % %

Comercial Peumo Ltd: Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Vifia Palo Alto Ltda. (1 Chile 99.0( 0.0C 99.0( 99.9¢ 0.0C 99.9¢ 99.9¢ 0.0C 99.9¢
Sociedad Exportadora y Comercial

Vifia Maipo Ltda. Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Transportes Viconto Ltd: Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Vifia Cono Sur S.A Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Trivento Bodegas y Vifiedos S. Argentine 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 19.0¢ 80.9t 100.0(
Concha y Toro UK Limitec UK 99.0( 1.0C 100.0( 99.0( 1.0C 100.0( 99.0( 1.0C 100.0¢
Sociedad Exportadora 'y

Comercializadora. Vifia Canepa

S.A. (2) Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Finca Lunlunta S.A Argentiné 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Conosur Europe Limite UK 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Inversiones Conchay Toro S. Chile 99.9¢ 0.0z 100.0( 99.9¢ 0.0z 100.0( 99.9¢ 0.0z 100.0¢
VCT Internacional S.A Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Vifia Maycas del Limari Limitada (X Chile 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Finca Austral S.A. (3 Argentin¢ 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
VCT Brasil Importacion y

Exportacion Ltda. (4 Brazil 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Concha y Toro Sweden A.B. ( Swedel 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Conchay Toro Finland O.Y. (« Findlanc 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Conchay Toro Norway A.S. ( Norway 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 100.0( 100.0( 0.0C 100.0( 100.0(
Vifiedos Los Robles SPA (! Chile 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 100.0¢ 100.0¢
Conchay Toro Shangai ( Chine 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 0.0C 100.0( 0.0C 100.0¢

(1) On December 26, 2008, Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. aequirom Vifiedos Emiliana S.A. a 0.99% of Vifia PAlto Ltda. leaving the participation of Vifia Corach
Toro S.A. over the subsidiary at 99.9¢

(2) Name change during 2007 from Sociedad Villa Ale§.

(3) Subsidiaries incepted in 20C

(4) Subsidiaries incepted in 20C

(5) Subsidiaries incepted in 20C

d) Translation of foreign currency financial statemens

Financial statements of consolidated foreign suases have been converted into Chilean pesosdardance with Technical Bulletin No. 64A¢counting for Investmen
Abroad” (“TB 64"), of the Chilean Association of Acuntants, as follows:

Financial statements of foreign operations with@élean peso as the functional currency are tdszse activities are considered an extension o€thieean operation
and are remeasured as follows:

. Monetary assets and liabilities are translateti@tea-end exchange rat

. Non-monetary items, primarily property, plant and @uoént and shareholdersfuity, are measured using historical exchanges riateffect at the time of t
transactions adjusted by changes in the Chilears@oer Price Index (CP

° The statement of income is translated into Chilpaesos at the average exchange rate of the montihich the transactions occur, except for those es@
related to assets and liabilities that have beessored at historical exchange ra

° Exchange differences resulting from the above tatios are recorded in the statement of inco
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policieontinued

Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries whaadvities do not constitute an extension of théezm operations, or which operate in unstable treesmare measured
using the US dollar as the functional currency treeh translated into Chilean pesos at the yearegodange rate. Measurement into US dollars is pedd as follows:

. Monetary assets and liabilities are translatecear-end rates of exchange between the US dollar anid¢hécurrency

. All non-monetary assets and liabilities and sharehc’ equity are translated at historical rates of exgearetween the US dollar and the local curre

. Income and expense accounts are translated avénage exchange rate of the month in which thes&retions occur, except for those expenses relatadset
and liabilities that have been measured at histberchange rate

. Any exchange differences are included in the resafloperations for the perio

On the Company'’s books, pritevel restatements based on Chilean inflation ppdied to the beginning balance of the investmenbant and then the participation in
net income of the subsidiary (determined as desdréibove) is recorded. The Company then compares/dliue to its participation in the equity of thevestee ¢
measured in US dollars and translated into Chijgssos. The difference is recorded as an adjusttoehie investment account with a corresponding sidjent to th
foreign currency translation account in sharehaldequity.

e) Price-level restatement
The consolidated financial statements are preparethe basis of general priterel accounting in order to reflect the effectabianges in the purchasing power of

Chilean peso during each year. At the end of eapbrting period, the consolidated financial statetm@re stated in terms of the general purchasimgepof the Chiles
peso using changes in the Chilean CPI as follows:

. Non-monetary assets, liabilities, and shareho’ equity accounts are restated in terms of-end purchasing powe

. Monetary items are not restated as such itemdwrieir nature, stated in terms of current purctgapower in the financial statemer

. The price-level restatement credit or charggéincome statement represents the gain or Igssrchasing power from holding nanenetary assets and liabilit
exposed to the effects of inflatic

. The accompanying consolidated financial statésbave been restated in constant Chilean pesgsreral purchasing power of December 31, 2088nStar

pesos”) applied under the “prior-month rule§ described below, to reflect changes in the @hiléPl from the financial statement dates to Deezrgt, 200¢
This updating does not change the prior 's statements or information in any way except tdat® the amounts to constant pesos of similar jpsiog power

The general pricéevel restatements are calculated using the offickdlean CPI of the Chilean Instituto Nacional Bstadisticas (National Statistics Institute) ane
based on the priamonth rule, in which the inflation adjustments aesed on the Chilean CPI at the close of the mpregbeding the close of the respective peric
transaction. The Chilean CPI index is consideredhgybusiness community, the accounting profesaiahthe Chilean government to be the index whicstratosel
complies with the technical requirement to reflbet variation in the general level of prices in toeintry and, consequently, is widely used forriitial reporting purpos
in Chile.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 209
Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policigscontinued
The values of the Chilean CPI used for price-legstatement purposes are as follows:

December 31

Change in
Year Index * index
2008 101.2: 8.S%
2009 98.9:2 -2.2%

* Index as of November 30 of each year, under pmionth rule described above.

The pricelevel restated consolidated financial statementsiatopurport to represent appraised values, repiané cost, or any other current value of assetshéth
transactions would take place currently and arg oriended to restate all nanenetary financial statement components in termsazl currency of a single purchas
power and to include in earnings for each yeargthia or loss in purchasing power arising from hbéding of nonmonetary assets and liabilities exposed to the&ffe
inflation.

Assets and liabilities denominated in UF are prie=sbim Chilean pesos at the following year-endsgstated in Chilean pesos per foreign currency):

At December 31,

2007 2008 2009

Chs$ Ch$ Ch$
UF 19,622.6! 21,452.5 20,942.8i
f) Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curracies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cocies are presented in Chilean pesos at the exehatgat the end of each year published by thér&@éBank o
Chile. The detail of exchange rates for foreigrrencies is as follows

As of December 31

2007 2008 2009

Ch$ Ch$ Chs$
US dollar (USD) 496.8¢ 636.4¢ 507.1(
Canadian dollar (CAD 506.2¢ 521.7: 481.1:
Argentine peso (ARS 157.7¢ 184.4¢ 133.4¢
Euro (EUR) 730.9¢ 898.8! 726.8:
Australian dollar (AUD) 433.5¢ 439.7: 453.0¢
British pound (GBP 989,4: 918.2% 814.4¢
Swedish krone (SEK 77.4¢ 81.9¢ 70.7¢
Japanese yen (JP 4.41 7.0E 5.4¢
Norwegian krone (NOK 91.8:¢ 90.9¢ 87.4¢
Brazilian real (REAL;} 280.3. 271.7( 290.9¢

Q) Time deposits

Time deposits are presented at f-level restated principal plus accrued interest. ditiginal maturity dates are less than 90 d
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 )

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policigontinued

h)

Inventories

Inventories of raw materials, materials and siggphre presented at price-level restated cosselti@lues do not exceed net realizable valBelk wine inventor
is stated at weighted-average cost plus pewet restatement in accordance with Technical@ulINo. 3 of the Chilean Association of Accounsanthich doe
not exceed net realizable value. Cost of bulk winealculated using the absorptioasting method, which includes indirect costs inedrduring the productic
process plus direct acquisition or grape produatosts.

Finished goods and in-process wine inventoriesséated at cost plus price-level restatementsk&u goods and iprocess wine inventories include the cos
purchased grapes and agricultural costs, includireghead for the production of grapes, as welllladirect and indirect costs associated with theeanaking
process, including the bottling proce

The Company records a provision for inventory obsoénce based on technical reports, inventory werrend/or inventory us
Prepaid expense:

Prepaid expenses include prepaid rent, prepaidansa, deferred harvest costs and other prepaiehsgg. Deferred harvest costs consist of direatnmagtlabor
and an allocation of indirect costs incurred durihg period from April/May through December whicHate to the harvest of April/May of the followirygar
These costs are charged to the cost of wine omckatvest is completed in the following peri

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are presentedcatisiton and/or building or development cost piuigedevel restatement. This cost includes applicalslarfcing
costs incurred by the Company until the assetaslydor use. The carrying value of property, plant equipment was adjusted in 1979 in accordantu
regulations of the SV¢

Fixed asset maintenance costs are charged to gamsnncurrec

In accordance with Chile GAAP, the Company hasetald the recovery of the value of its investmait®ad in consideration of the guidelines estabtisin
Technical Bulletins Nos 33 and 72 issued by the Chilean Association afofintants. Following these guidelines, when tremidkin 2 or 3 consecutive ye:
indicate a possible impairment in the value ofdkeets from the business purchased or when thargyisther indicator of impairment, the Companyfqrens ¢
critical analysis to this respect. As the goodisilhot associated to any asset, the Company caossitgnly the capacity of the business purchasegherate ca:
flows in their determination of impairment. Furttrare, when there is permanent evidence that thep@oys operations will not generate enough cash flo\
cover all costs, including the depreciation of gndp, plant and equipment, and when the book valuthese assets is greater than their fair valen thi
Company adjusts the book value down to its faineaivith a charge to n-operating earning:

As a result of this evaluation, no impairment atipjents were recorde
Leased asset
Assets acquired through lease agreements thatlassifed as capital leases are recorded at theeptevalue of future minimum lease payments, wihs

calculated by discounting regular instalments amglrelated purchase option at the interest ratdiéir stated in the respective agreement. Leagalpes ai
recorded net of unaccrued future interest in tleetsdnd lon-term portion.

F-14




VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 )

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policiescontinued

)

m)

p)

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated according to the ghline method based on the estimated useful livethefdifferent classes of assets, and includes diggpic
pertaining to fixed asset technical apprais

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent rights or privilegeguired that will benefit the Compasydperations beyond the period in which they weguied. These cons
primarily of water rights and industrial brand nanghts, which are amortized by the straight-linethod over 40 and 1fear periods, respectively. These as
are presented at restated cost and include otheisétion related costs, except for the cost aodificing.

Investments in related companie:

Investments in shares of public and private comgmm which the Company exercises significant erfice are accounted for according to the equity od
whereby the investment is carried at acquisitiost,cplus the Compang’equity in undistributed earnings or losses samguisition, including the elimination
unrealized gains or losses. Investments in fore@npanies have been valued in accordance withrthaspns of Technical Bulletin No. 64 issued bg thhileal
Association of Accountant

Investments in other companie:

Investments in equity shares traded in the Chigtack Market in which the Company cannot exercigrificant influence are valued at the lower ofta¢sd cos
or quoted market value of the portfolio at the dtéhe financial statements. When the Companyivesalividends, it records them within r-operating income

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisitimst of shares of related companies over the fdirevaf these investments at the date of the ad@urisiThes
differences are amortized over 5 to 20 years, usiagtraightine method. Goodwill for acquisitions that occutrater December 31, 2004 have been recorc
accordance with Technical Bulletin No. 72 of thal€m Association of Accountant

Goodwill is periodically reviewed for impairment ehever events or changes occur that indicate thgirng value of the business, or assets to whiely tielate
may not be recoverable. As such events or changas,omanagement estimates the future cash floweated to result from the use and, if applicatie
eventual disposition of the assets and related witlod' he key variables which management must estéminclude sales volume, prices and other ecor
factors. Significant management judgment is invdlve estimating these variables, and they includesiient uncertainties; however, the assumptiond as
consistent with the Comparsyinternal planning. Therefore, management peradgievaluates and updates the estimates basekeoconditions that influen
these variables. If the assets are considered iathahey are written down to fair value as appaipr The Company performed the impairment testpootwill
as of December 31, 2008 and 2009 and concludea¢hapairment charge was necess
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009 )

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policigontinued

q)

n

s)

t)

v)

Income and deferred taxes
The Company determines and records its income taxes accrual basis based on the net taxable m@oeonformity with current Chilean tax regulatso

Deferred income taxes are recorded in accordaitbeTechnical Bulletin No. 60 and the complementzchnical bulletins thereto, Ne.68, 69, 71 and 73 isst
by the Chilean Association of Accountants. Defettades are recorded based on the total amountgfdeary differences between the book and tax lmdsisset
and liabilities. The effects of deferred income esxnot previously recorded at January 1, 2000, weoegnized against assets and liability accc
(complementary accounts) recorded to offset thecesfof the deferred tax assets and liabilitiesraobrded prior to January 1, 2000 in accordandb tiie
transitional period provided by Technical Bullethp. 60. Complementary accounts are amortized tonmc over the estimated average reversal pe
corresponding to underlying temporary differenaesvhich the deferred tax asset or liability relddeferred taxes at January 1, 2000 are recordestb@s th
total amount of temporary differences between thekand tax basis of assets and liabilities. Tiecef on deferred taxes generated by the absorptitax losse
against current year taxable income are recordathstgdeferred tax expense in the associated

Staff severance indemnitie:

Severance benefits payable to employees are sittbe present value of the projected obligatidnbaitable to each employee for his/her accumulgats ¢
service. The liability considers an annual discaate of 5.00% and an average remaining servidegef 7.2 years

Vacation

The cost of employe’ vacation is recorded on an accrual be

Statement of cash flow:

The Company prepares the statement of cash floimg tise direct method. The Company classifies ah emuivalents all highly liquid investments pursds
with a maturity date of three months or less. Gslis provided by operating activities include edish flows related to the Company, also includimigrest paic
financial income and, in general, all cash flowsiahare not defined as being part of investinginaricial activities. It should be noted that thexaept o
operations applied in the preparation of this st&tet is broader than that used in the statementofme.

Revenue recognitior

Revenues from the sale of goods and servicetedeta the Companyg’lines of business are recognized in income wheretis certainty that there has bee
effect in the Compang’equity as the significant risks related to theership of those goods have been transferred touier, the determination of the amour
revenue and cost is reliable, and there is ceytdiratt the economical benefits from the transactidhflow to the Company

Additionally, any taxes collected from customersl aemitted to governmental authorities (i.e. VA&les or excise taxes) are accounted for on a re$ bac
therefore, are excluded from revenues in the cateteld statements of incorr

Derivative contracts

The Company has foreign exchange forward contthaetishave been designated as hedge instrumentssagariations in the foreign exchange rate of i
items, and are recorded in accordance with TechBigiéetin No. 57 issued by the Chilean AssociattdrAccountants
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes and es@des thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policigscontinued

w)

X)

Derivative instruments are accounted as follc

Contracts to cover existing transactions, hedg@agthe risk of a change in the fair value of dded item. The differences resulting from the clesng the fa
value of both the hedged item and the derivatig&riment are accounted as folloy

a. If the net effect is a loss, it should be recogdizeearnings in the period of chan

b. If the net effect is a gain, it should be recogdinghen the contract is closed and accordingly defieon the balance she

c. If the net effect is a gain and net losses wererdeml on the transaction in prior years, a gairukhbe recognized in earnings in the current peudpdc
the amount of net losses recorded previot

d. If the net effect is a loss and net gains werendzmb (as a deferred revenue) on the transactipnian years, the gain should be utilized to offtet ne

loss before recording the remaining loss in thelte®f operations for the yet

Hedges of forecasted transactions are recordeldea¢dtimated fair value, with the correspondinghgar losses deferred and recorded as offsettisgtsa®
liabilities until settlement, at which time theyearecognized in earning

Computer software

Investments in computer programs relate principaslycapitalized costs incurred in the implementatad the SAP R/3 system and other complementa
additional programs, which are presented underr ditked assets and are being amortized using théghi-line method over their estimated useful liv

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Company and its subsidiaries record allowsrfoe doubtful accounts based on a casedse assessment of balances not covered by aneditance. |
addition, the Company considers its historical eigpee with writ-offs, which has not been significa

Convenience translation to US dollar:

The Company maintains its accounting records aegayes its financial statements in Chilean pesbs. US dollar amounts disclosed in the accompal
financial statements are presented solely for trevenience of the reader at the December 31, 2[8@8g exchange of Ch$507.10 per USD1. This traiosi
should not be construed as a representation tealiiiean peso amounts actually represent or heer, lor could be, converted into US dollars atdhiany othe
rate.

Obligations with the public (Bonds payable]
Obligations with the public (bonds payable) reltehe placement in Chile of bonds denominated fh These bonds are stated at principal value piteses

accrued at year-end. Expense incurred for the igguand placement of bonds issued are presented atiter long-term assets and amortized usingtth@bkt
line method in consideration of the terms of thigathion.

Note 3 - Changes in accounting principles

During the year from January 1 through Decembe28@9, there were no changes in the applicatiddhifean accounting principles compared to the préear.

Note 4 — Investments in debt and equity securities

There were no marketable securities as of DeceBihe2008 and 2009. The Company holds certain egeityrities which have been classified as Itmrg: investment
see Note 11.
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 5 - Short-term receivables

Trade accounts receivable:

As of December 31

Description 2008 2009
ThCh$ % %
Trade accounts receivat— export sales, ne 89,209,52 88.1% 77,251,88 81.3%
Trade accounts receivable — domestic sales, net 12,003,62 11.86% 17,741,93 18.6¢%
Total trade accounts receivable, net 101,213,14 100.0(% 94,993,82 100.0(%
Notes receivable
As of December 31
Description 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Pos-dated checks, ni 2,473,11. 3,264,68!

Notes receivable denominated in foreign curren 145,38 295,54«

Total notes receivable, net 2,618,49! 3,560,23.
Other accounts receivable:

As of December 31
Description 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Receivable from employe:! 326,75 1,594,68

Other accounts receivak 802,91° 291,62¢

Accounts receivable for other sa 555,13: 796,46

Advance to supplier 2,473,93 1,753,86:

Total other accounts receivable 4,158,73! 4,436,63!
Maturities of short-term receivables are as follows

More than 90 days up tc
Up to 90 Days 1 year Total
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Trade accounts receivak 89,474,56 93,597,00 12,263,49 1,891,74. 101,738,06 95,468,74
Allowance for doubtful accounts (524,919 (474,92))
Trade accounts receivable, | 101,213,14 94,993,82
Notes receivabl 2,679,75 3,614,35! — — 2,679,75 3,614,35
Allowance for doubtful accounts (61,267) (54,12¢)
Notes receivable, ni 2,618,49 3,560,23:
Other accounts receivak 4,471,70. 4,576,97. — — 4,471,70. 4,576,97.
Allowance for doubtful accounts (312,96%) (320,334
Other accounts receivable, net 4,158,73 4,436,63
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VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 6 - Balances and transactions with related p&es

Balances and transactions with related partiesesemt all those transactions realized with afékabr related persons. In addition, this note dgs all those significe
transactions with related companies whose totalernexceeds 1% of the Company’s results as welpasations related to the sale and purchase oéshar

These transactions and loans accrue no interedbans are adjusted using the variation in the amgk rate for foreign currency which is mainly Usliats.

a) Notes and accounts receivable
As of December 31
Company 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Agricola Gabiela Ltda — 44,48:

Vifia Almaviva S.A. 233,29! 108,92:

Soc. AG. Orrego Dos Ltd: 1,33¢ —

Los Boldos de Tapihue S., — 10,17(

Fruticola Viconto S.A — 1,901

Soc. AG. El Marco Dos Ltd: — 13,16

Comercial Greenvic S.A. — 42,18:

Total 234,63: 220,82(
b) Notes and accounts payable

As of December 31
Short-term Short-term Long-term Long-term
Company 2008 2009 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

FRUTICOLA VICONTO S.A. 33t — — —
VINEDOS EMILIANA S.A. 657,99¢ 459,11( 1,902,45: 1,664,25!
AGRICOLA ALTO DE QUITRALMAN LTDA. 10,45« 4,04( — —
INDUSTRIA CORCHERA S.A 2,801,40: 1,983,98 — —
IMPORTADORA Y COMERCIAL HUASCO S.A 40,49( 14,92¢ — —
AGRICOLA LAS PETRAS S.A 3,97(C 10,09¢ — —
SOCIEDAD AGRICOLA ORREGO DOS LTDA — 1,52¢ — —
SOCIEDAD AGRICOLA EL MARCO DOS LTDA 4,02¢ — — —
LOS BOLDOS DE TAPIHUE S.A 8,26¢ — — —
COMERCIAL GREENVIC S.A. 4,50¢ — — —
AGRICOLA SEXTAFRUT S.A. 1,31« — — —
MARIA INES FERNANDEZ 2,93¢ 1,52( — —
SOCIEDAD COMERCIAL Y PROMOTORA LA UVA LTDA. 327 1,78¢ — —
OSVALDO SOLAR VARELA 1,37¢ 2,23% — —
Total 3,537,40: 2,479,222 1,902,45. 1,664,25!
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( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 6 - Balances and transactions with related p#es, continued

C) Transactions:

Company Taxpayer |.D. Relationship

FRUTICOLA VICONTO S.A.  96512190-0 COMMON
i SHAREHOLDER

FRUTICOLA VICONTO S.A.  96512190-0 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

FRUTICOLA VICONTO S.A.  96512190-0 COMMON
i SHAREHOLDER

FRUTICOLA VICONTO S.A.  96512190-0 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

VINEDOS EMILIANA S.A. 96512200-1 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

VINEDOS EMILIANA S.A. 96512200-1 COMMON
- SHAREHOLDER

VINEDOS EMILIANA S.A. 96512200-1 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

VINEDOS EMILIANA S.A. 96512200-1 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

VINEDOS EMILIANA S.A. 96512200-1 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

INDUSTRIA CORCHERA 90950000-1 AFFILIATE

S.A.

Transaction description

PURCHASE OF FIXED
ASSETS

PURCHASE OF
SERVICES AND
OTHERS

SALE OF SERVICES
AND OTHERS
PURCHASE OF RAW
MATERIALS AND
OTHERS

SALE OF RAW
MATERIALS AND
PRODUCTS

SALE OF SERVICES
AND OTHER
PURCHASE OF RAW
MATERIALS AND
PRODUCTE
PURCHASE OF
SERVICES AND
OTHERS

CESSION OF RIGHTS

PURCHASE OF RAW
MATERIALS

12-31-2007 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
Effect on Effect on Effect on
earnings earnings earnings
( charge)/ (charge)/ (charge)/
Amount credit Amount credit Amount credit
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
— — 117,19: — — —
— — 6,121 (6,121) 10,74: (10,747
8,55¢ 8,55¢ 9,25¢ 9,25¢ 9,56¢ 9,56¢
76,72¢ — 24,28( — 15,62( —
21,60( 4,147 332,21t 38,81: 152,88l 17,86(
1,292,73 1,292,73 1,085,49: 1,085,49: 799,53 799,53
1,070,71 — 939,92 — 479,35: —
279,70: (279,704 286,84« (286,844 248,264 (248,269
— — 186,22: — — —
8,167,44 — 7,570,57: — 6,877,971 —
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Note 6 - Balances and transactions with related p#es, continued

12-31-2007 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
Effect on Effect on Effect on
earnings earnings earnings
(charge)/ (charge)/ (charge)/
Company Taxpayer |.D. Relationship Transaction description Amount credit Amount credit Amount credit
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
QUINTA VILUCO S.A. 99581660-1 COMMON PURCHASE OF RAW
DIRECTOR MATERIALS 353,46( — 275,21t — —
VINA ALMAVIVA S.A. 96824300-4 AFFILIATE SALE OF RAW
MATERIALS AND
PRODUCT 74,29( 35,02¢ 181,13« 137,26¢ 77,95¢ —
QUINTA VILUCO S.A. 99581660-1 COMMON PURCHASE OF RAW
DIRECTOR MATERIALS — — 3,596,62! — — —
VINA ALMAVIVA S.A. 96824300-4 AFFILIATE SALE OF SERVICES
AND OTHER 20,75¢ 20,75¢ 16,60: 16,60: 4,47¢ 4,47¢
VINA ALMAVIVA S.A. 96824300-4 AFFILIATE PURCHASE OF RAW
MATERIALS AND
PRODUCTS 436,76: — 458,28t — 409,89t —
VINA ALMAVIVA S.A. 96824300-4 AFFILIATE PURCHASE OF
SERVICES AND
OTHER 2,65t (2,655 10,67( (10,670 6,521 (6,527
AGRICOLA ALTO DE 85201700-7 COMMON PURCHASE OF RAW
QUITRALMAN LTDA. SHAREHOLDER MATERIALS 628,25: — 537,01¢ — 10,13¢ —
CGE DISTRIBUCION S.A. 99513400-4 COMMON PURCHASE OF
DIRECTOR SERVICES AND
OTHER — — — — 2,188,77 (2,188,77)
FORESTAL QUIVOLGO S.A. 2479374-5 COMMON PURCHASE OF RAW
SHAREHOLDER MATERIALS AND
PRODUCTS 224,23: — 474,31« — 64€ —
FORESTAL QUIVOLGO S.A. 2479374-5 COMMON PURCHASE OF
SHAREHOLDER SERVICES AND
OTHER 1,80¢ (1,805 2,47 (2,472 — —
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Note 6 - Balances and transactions with related p#es, continued

Company Taxpayer |.D. Relationship

COMERCIAL GREENVIC 78335990-1 COMMON

S.A. SHAREHOLDER

AGRICOLA GABRIELA 76021221-0 COMMON

LTDA. DIRECTOR

COMERCIAL GREENVIC 78335990-1 COMMON

S.A. SHAREHOLDER

COMERCIAL GREENVIC 78335990-1 COMMON
SHAREHOLDER

GASCO GLP S.A. 90310000-1 COMMON
DIRECTOR

Transaction description

SALE OF RAW
MATERIALS AND
PRODUCTS

PURCHASE OF RAW

MATERIALS

PURCHASE OF RAW

MATERIALS
PURCHASE OF
SERVICES AND
OTHER
PURCHASE OF
SERVICES AND
OTHER

12-31-2007 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
Effect on Effect on Effect on
earnings earnings earnings
(charge)/ (charge)/ (charge)/
Amount credit Amount credit Amount credit
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
236,76¢ 18,94: 347,48: 137,26¢ 213,23t 84,23t
— — — — 446,70: —
69,84¢ — 122,80: — 41,62: —
3,93¢ (3,939 60,95: (60,957) 37,50( (37,500
— — — — 497,52¢ (497,529
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Note 7 - Inventories

Inventories are stated as described in Note 2 thpam summarized as follows:

Bottled wine and bull
In-process wint

Liquors

Materials and supplie

Other product:

In-transit inventorie:
Allowance for obsolescence

Total
Note 8 — Income and deferred taxes
a) Income taxes payable

The detail of consolidated income taxes payabies iollows:

As of December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
89,208,57 96,079,23

5,875,26. 5,260,91.
756,97 3,366,65
15,627,79 12,688,19
546,52 380,67
1,978,47 1,840,44:
(3,247,29) (3,041,38)
110,746,30 116,574,73

As of December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Provision for income ta 1,666,47. 6,269,49
Provision for income tax subsidiari 4,118,07. 3,831,48!
Unique article 21 ta 61,60¢ 83,83
Less:
Monthly tax provisional paymen (5,158,14) (6,173,661
Other credits (37,529 (370,020

Income taxes payable 650,47t 3,641,12:
b) Individual net taxable income for theayse ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009 amotmtepproximately ThCh$21,019,000, ThCh$9,802,006

ThCh$36,879,000, respectively.
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Note 8 — Income and deferred taxes, continued

C) The detail of the balance of net unibisted taxed earnings for which tax credits willgzssed through to the shareholders of the ComgiaDgcember 31, 20
and 2009 is as follows:

As of December 31

Taxed earnings 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Earnings taxed at 17' 60,795,08 95,150,36
Earnings taxed at 16.5 5,101,74! 5,508,55!
Earnings taxed at 16 6,236,741 6,473,10
Earnings taxed at 15' 13,881,59 13,977,20.
As per Article No. 17 of the Income Tax Le 3,369,44: 3,455,66.
Earnings with no pass-through 1,921,11: 6,497,01:
Balance of taxed earnings 91,305,73 131,061,90

Net undistributed taxed earnings have been accuetlitance year 2001 in accordance with tax lawthadbove table presents the accumulation fromdiduat

d) Two of the Company’subsidiaries, Vifia Cono Sur S.A. and Vifia Maipdal, have undistributed taxed earnings of ThCI&,0 and ThCh$16,231,0
respectively, as of December 31, 2009, and ThCH$4080 and ThCh$1,846,650, respectively, as of Deee 31, 2008. The subsidiaries Comercial Peuma. Ldd«
VCT Internacional S.A. have tax loss carryforwaofispproximately ThCh$1,671,000 and ThCh$8,576,08€pectively, as of December 31, 2009 (ThCh$1@0man:
ThCh$5,681,000, respectively, as of December 38R0 hese tax loss carryforwards have no expinadetes.

e) Recoverable taxes

The detail of recoverable taxes is as follows:

As of December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Value-added ta» 6,289,13! 3,786,21!
Alcoholic beverage dutie 523,22¢ 628,21!
Income tax receivabl 1.918,55: 1,950,46'
Other credit: 1,407,32! 1,626,65.
Provision for non-recoverable taxes (306,05 (303,58
Total 9,832,18! 7,687,97
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Note 8 — Income and deferred taxes, continued
f) Deferred taxes
The detail of deferred taxes is as follows:

As of December 31

2008 2009
Deferred tax asse Deferred tax liability Deferred tax asse Deferred tax liability
Temporary differences Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Allowance for doubtful accoun 231,12: — — — 208,07: — — —
Deferred revenu 145,01¢ — — — 5,55( — — —
Allowance for obsolescent 552,04( — — — 514,43¢ — — —
Provision for vacation 230,94 — — — 303,72! — — —
Translation difference — — — — — 566,38t — —
Leased asse 46,42¢ — — — 16,20z — — —
Overhead expens: — — — 4,918,96: — — — 4,880,88:
Fixed assets depreciati — — — 10,745,12 — — 317,26« 10,895,47.
Staff severance indemniti — 267,24 — — — 277,61¢ — —
Other event: — — 127,04« — — — 24,31¢ 707,28t¢
Unrealized gains for inventorit 104,46¢ 194,01: — — 266,23: 494,43: — —
Forwards — — 236,81 66,35¢ — — 133,73: 37,31t
Tax losse: 1,857,24: — — — 1,872,93! — —
Recoverable ta 44,72( — — — 45,77: — — —
Inventories 25,06¢ — 185,44 606,50t 278,52: — 11¢€ —
Expenses related to the issuanc

of bonds — — — 102,48¢ — — — 115,08¢
Other provision: 115,19( — — — 342,92¢ — — —
Complementary accounts, net ¢

amortization — — — (1,720,29) — — — (1,683,29))
Total 3,352,25! 461,26( 549,30: 14,719,14 3,854,38. 1,338,43: 475,42t 14,952,75

In assessing the reliazability of deferred tax ssgbe Company considers whether it is more likbBn not that some portion or all of the defet@dassets will not |
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred é@sets is dependent upon the generation of fuieblke income during the periods in which thosepmary difference
become deductible. Management considers the satbdeNersal of deferred tax liabilities (includitihg impact of available carryforward periods), potgd future taxakb
income (i.e. future market growth, forecasted e@ysi etc.) and other tglanning strategies including the mix of earningsthe jurisdiction in which the Compe
operates and feasible tax planning strategies kingehis assessment and ultimately determiningnied for a valuation allowance. Based upon thel lef/ historica
taxable income and projections for future taxabhleome over the periods in which the deferred taetasare deductible, the Company believes it isertikely than nc
that the Company will realize the benefits of thdeductible differences. The amount of deferredasset considered realizable, however, could becegtlin the ne.
term if estimates of future taxable income during tarryforward period are reduced.
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Note 8 - Income and deferred taxes, continued
0) The detail of income tax expense asemesl in the consolidated statements of incoméhyears ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2@28nmarized ¢

follows:

For the years ended December 3.

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Current tax expense (provision for income tas (6,430,61)) (5,784,54) (9,450,49)
Tax expense adjustment (prior ye 11,03¢ (207,303 (749,61()
Effect of changes in deferred tax assets and ii@silfor the yea (1,493,67)) (1,933,26)) 1,256,56!
Tax benefit provided by tax lo: 19,84 27,371 4,691
Effect of amortization of complementary deferrexiaaset or liability accoun (233,28) (235,55 (36,99)
Other charges or credits to the account (561,759 (758,927 269,66
Total (8,688,45) (8,892,20) (8,706,18)
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Note 9 — Property, plant and equipment

a) The following is a summary of property, plant amgiigment as of December 31, 2008 and 2(
2008 2009
Gross Fixed Accumulated Gross Fixed Accumulated
assets depreciation assets depreciation
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Land 55,924,77 — 58,773,21 —
Plantations (*, 62,619,88 (13,162,74) 67,380,79 (14,850,85)
Buildings and facilities (* 92,598,41 (27,880,02) 95,146,92 (32,526,44)
Wine-storage equipment (*) 51,367,03 (24,038,43) 57,832,64 (26,499,22)
262,510,10 (65,081,20) 220,360,36 (73,876,52)
Machinery and equipme 66,237,91 (36,286,50) 66,783,42 (39,510,71)
Transportation equipment 3,108,09: (2,129,21) 3,035,88! (2,231,59)
69,346,00 (38,415,71) 69,819,31 (41,742,30)
Supplies (Containel- shipping and reusable stora( 1,624,03. (1,316,00i) 1,641,04. (1,373,94)
Other fixed assef 12,159,51 (9,162,53)) 14,294,48 (10,683,59)
Leased fixed assets 3,438,15! (808,86°) 2,917,94! (922,059
17,221,69 (11,287,41) 18,853,47 (12,979,59)
Revaluation from fixed asset technical appraisal 3,738,88 (1,456,67.) 3,712,53 (1,446,03)
3,738,88. (1,456,67) 3,712,53 (1,446,03)
Net property, plant and equipme 352,816,68 (116,241,00) 371,518,89 (130,044,46)

(*) This balance includes buildings in progresspevstorage equipment in progress and vineyarddajese for a total amount of ThCh$ 39,689,915 in288d ThCh$
35,311,056 in 2009.

b) Depreciation for each period presented is as fall
For the year ended December 3.
2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Depreciation (administrative and selling expen (1,351,291 (1,488,34) (1,408,03)
Depreciation (operating expens (4,392,61) (4,141,861 (4,675,19)
Depreciation capitalized to deferred costs (**) (9,176,88.) (11,812,09) (12,061,42)
Total (*) (14,920,78) (17,442,30) (18,144,64)

™* Depreciation charged to earnings for the yearséibieember 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, in additiadefweciation charged to administrative and sekirgense
and depreciation charged to operating expensesdesldepreciation included under cost of saleafioamount of ThCh$8,182,751 in 2007, ThCh$8,157i6
2008 and ThCh$8,529,328 in 20(

**) This amount includes depreciation related to the harvest, barrels and costs of wine proces:
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Note 9 - Property, plant and equipment, continued

c) The detall of interest capitalized is as folloy
For the years ended December 3.
2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Vineyards under developme 495,67: 732,78 625,68¢
Construction in progress 140,82¢ 357,03 324,60:
Total 636,50: 1,089,81 950,29(
d) Technical revaluation: in accordance with Circul&29 of the SVS the Company recorded the increaselue resulting from a technical appraisal opitsicipa

fixed assets as of December 31, 1979. As of DeceB1he2008 and 2009, this higher value consisteti@following restated amoun

As of December 31

2008 2009

Accumulated Accumulated

Item Asset value depreciation Asset value depreciation
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Land 2,126,39 — 2,126,111 —
Plantations 263,55« (256,32) 261,01: (256,74%
Buildings and facilitie 1,251,711 (1,103,13) 1,207,90 (1,066,17)
Machinery and equipment 97,21t (97,215 107,50: (123,12()
Total 3,738,88; (1,456,67) 3,712,553 (1,446,03)
e) Leased assets are accounted for in conformity Waithnical Bulletin No. 22 of the Chilean Associatiaf Accountants. Leased assets are located onXloo1t

at 1602 South Tower of the World Trade Center Bugdcontract stipulates an average interest rhe88%, with, 2 installments outstanding as of &aber 31
2009), and packing line for which the respectiveeagients provide a rate of 15.78% and 37 instalisneutstanding as of December 31, 2009. The dst#ile

following:
As of December 31
2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Leased fixed asse 3,438,15! 2,917,94!
Accumulated depreciation (808,86 (922,059
Total 2,629,28: 1,995,89

The Company does not legally own leased assetslzemfore, it cannot freely dispose of them ungixercises the related purchase option.
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Note 9 - Property, plant and equipment, continued

f) Operating lease:
The Company has entered into Idegn lease agreements for land where it has deeélomeyards for wine production. These agreemargsexpressed in
dollars and/or UF and are restated each year isideration of changes in these monetary units @ao@ance with each related agreement. As of DeceBth

2009, future minimum payments related to theseaijey lease agreements are as follc

As of December 3:

2009
ThCh$
2010 781,18
2011 388,61¢
2012 391,87t
2013 and thereafter 2,311,24
Total 3,872,92!

Q) Investments in computer prograr
There were no significant investments made in cdemgorograms during 2008 and 201
Note 10 - Investments in related companies

Investments in related companies and the relategttdparticipation in equity of investees, as valthe recognition of unrealized gains and losskged t
purchase and sale transactions between relatedaroesp as of the closing dates of the respectitieqmeare detailed as follow

a) The equity participation in the net income of IniasCorchera S.A. and respective unrealized gegfeted to the purchase/sale of raw materials bEtivibe
Company and the investee for the years ended Deare®ib 2007, 2008 and 2009, were as follc

2007 2008 2009
Net income according to the equvalue methoc ThCh$ 394,10: ThCh$ 323,58( ThCh$ 401,86!
Unrealized gains (losses) for the y ThCh$ 19,39: ThCh$ (15,717 ThCh$ (8,242
Equity in net income of investe ThCh$ 413,49: ThCh$ 307,86: ThCh$ 393,62

As of December 31, 2009, the cumulative unrealigath amounts to ThCh$70,264 (ThCh$60,595 in 2008) ia recorded by decreasing the balanc
inventories acquired from this affiliat

In December 2008, the Company acquired 2,379 slofteslustria Corchera S.A. thereby increasing awiig from 49.84% to 49.969
b) The investment in Vifia Almaviva S.A. is reduced8®f6 from unrealized gain generated in the salewd lin 2001 to Vifia Almaviva S.A. given that thesair

unrealized gain for the Parent Company. The amofitite reduction is ThCh$627,419 (ThCh$627,419008). The realization of this gain will be formalt
when this land is transferred to a third party vahiEnot a part of the Grou
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Note 10- Investments in related companies, continue

c) The equity participation in the net income of Vifilmaviva S.A. and respective unrealized gains eeldb purchase/sale of raw materials between thmep@n)
and the investee for the year ended December 3%, 2008 and 2009 were as follov
2007 2008 2009
Net income according to the equvalue methoc ThCh$ 239,13: ThCh$ 182,19! ThCh$ 339,28t
Unrealized gains (losses) for the y ThCh$ 24,75: ThCh$ (37,386 ThCh$ (164,
Equity in net income of investe ThCh$ 263,88: ThCh$ 144,80¢ ThCh$ 339,12!

As of December 31, 2009, the cumulative unredlgain amounts to ThCh$42,207 (ThCh$41,076 in 2@08)is recorded by decreasing the balance of
inventories acquired from this affiliat

Detail of investments

Ownership
Company percentage Equity of investee Income Unrealized Gain Equity Method value
Year
ended
December
31, 2007 2008 2009 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
% % % ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Industria

Corcher:

S.A. 49.8¢ 49.9¢ 49.9¢ 7,466,69. 8,067,22: 394,10: 323,58( 401,86! — — 3,733,11 4,030,62
Vifia

Almavivi

S.A. 50.0C 50.0C 50.0C 9,612,581 10,291,15 239,13: 182,19! 339,28 627,41¢ 627,41¢ 4,178,87! 4,518,16!

633,23¢ 505,77 741,15¢ 627,41¢ 627,41¢ 7,911,98 8,548,78
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Note 11 - Investments in other companies

In July 2008, the Company acquired 2 shares of Xfindor Ch$ 2,370.

Detail of investments

Book Value
December 31,
Number of Ownership
Company shares Percentage 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Sociedad Agricola La Rosa Sofruco S 253,11¢ 2.301( 319,56: 459,27(
Cia. General de Electricidad Industrial S 13,48 0.000( 9,48: 9,47¢
Camara de Comercio de Santic 1 0.000( 1,692 1,69:
Termas de Puyehue S. 2,00(¢ 0.000( 14C 14C
Unién El Golf S.A. 3 0.000( 23,27 24,77(
Compaifiia de Telecomunicaciones de Chile 465 0.000( 484 482
Vinexpo 2 0.000( 2,37( 2,371
Total 357,00« 498,20:-

Note 12 - Goodwill

The detail of goodwill is as follows:

For the year ended December 3!

As of December 31

amortization net balance
Company 2007 2008 2009 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Industria Corchera S.A. 83,88¢ 83,88¢ 83,88¢ 999,66 915,78(
Total 83,88¢ 83,88¢ 83,88¢ 999,66 915,78(

F-31




VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes and es@des thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)
Note 13 - Intangibles

Intangible assets are as follows:

As of December 31

Gross carrying Accumulated Gross carrying Accumulated
amount amortization amount amortization
2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Water rights 4,817,22. (323,309 5,089,501 (445,26)
Industrial trademark 2,393,14. (668,809 2,618,121 (836,95()
Easement right 19,27¢ (1,27¢) 19,27¢ (1,635
Other 1,28z (1,287) 1,31% (1,317)
Total 7,230,92 (994,67() 7,728,22. (1,285,169

The amortization of intangible assets was ThCh$.in 2007, ThCh$325,035 in 2008 and ThCh$304i56@809.
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Note 14 - Other assets

The composition of other assets is as follows:

2008 2009

Other Assets ThCh$ ThCh$
Prepaid ren 2,524,44: 2,129,08.
Deferred expenses bonds serie 602,87t 596,00:
Guarantees leas 14,037 17,96«
Prepaid community property rights 28,031 21,79(
TOTAL 3,169,39 2,764,83!

The deferred expenses for the issuance of thess@rimnds are amortized using the straight-linéhoge{which approximates the effectirgerest method) over the life
the bonds.
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Note 15 - Short-term bank debt

Registration
No.

97.951.00-4
97.004.00-5
97.039.00-6
97.008.00-7
97.032.00-8
97.080.000-
K

97.023.00-9
Foreign Ban
Foreign Ban

Foreign Ban

Foreign Ban

Foreign Ban
Foreign Ban
Foreign Ban

97.030.000-
7

Bank or
financial
institution

Shor-term portion
BANCO ITAU
BANCO DE
CHILE

BANCO
SANTANDER
BANCO
CITIBANK
BANCO BBVA

BANCO BICE
CORPBANCA
BANCO RIO
BANCO
FRANCES
BANCO
REGIONAL
BANCO
NACION

BNL
HEXADON
BANC
STANDARD
BANK
BANCO
CREDICOOF
BANCO
ESTADO
OTHER

Total

Principal owec
Weighted-
average interes
rate

US dollars
2008 2009
ThCh $ ThCh $
4,432,99! 7,210,33!
10,108,83 —
732,48. —
7,659,88! —
274,43. —
3,784,33. —
— 1,958,45
26,992,97 9,168,78
26,423,89 9,127,801
7.55% 1.52%

VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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( Restated for general price-level changes and es@des thousands of constant

Euros

2008
ThCh $

2,089,40!

325,00¢

2,414,41!
2,330,67:

6.0%

Other foreign
currencies
2008 2009
ThCh $ ThCh $
— 743,20t
162 1,391,37:
419,54( —
258,46: 488,40:
1,069,21: —
259,03t 470,31°
46,96" —
87,27 —
125,30: —
80 —
2,266,03 3,093,30.
2,266,03 3,034,50:
28.41% 13.4%
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2008
ThCh $

3,342,29i
3,729.76!

7,072,06:
6,958,44.

2.51%

Non adjustable

Chs$

2008
ThCh $

3,072,611
1,044,35!

2,052,76:

3,368,79i
9,480,06:

19.018,59
18,222,92

8.51%

2009
ThCh $

8,809,301
8,809,301
8,657,441

1.95%

Total

2008
ThCh $

6,414,91
11,296,52
10,108,83

162
2,377,717

3,368,79i
9,480,06:
419,54(
990,94!
1,069,21.

7,918,92!

46,967
361,70«

3,909,63!

80
57,764,07
56,201,96

2009
ThCh $

7,210,331
743,20¢

1,391,37:

488,40:

470,31

10,767,76

21,071,39
20,819,74
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Note 15 — Short-term bank debt, continued

Other foreign
US dollars Euros currencies UF Non adjustable Ch$ Total
Registration Bank or financial 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
No. institution ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Long-term current
portion
97.032.000-
8 BANCO BBVA — — — — — — — — 1,954,56 — 1,954,56' —
97.004.000- BANCO DE
8 CHILE 1,371,291 16,11¢ — — — 1,15C 1,164,74 — 1,314,13 — 3,850,18I 17,26¢
76.645.030-
K BANCO ITAU — 2,590,221 — — — — — — — — — 2,590,221
97.039.000- BANCO
6 SANTANDER 1,962 37z — — — — — — 2,485,35. — 2,487,311 372
Foreign
Bank HSBC BANK — 155,45: — — — — — — — — — 155,45:
BANCO
Foreign CITIBANK
Bank ARGENTINA — — — — 1,893,33! — — — — — 1,893,33! —
Foreign
Bank BANCO NACION — 2,654,23! — 1,20¢ — — — — — — — 2,655,44.
Foreign BANCO
Bank FRANCES — — — — 754,62: — — — — — 754,62: —
Total 1,373,25! 5,416,40: — 1,20¢ 2,647,96! 1,15( 1,164,741 — 5,754,05! — 10,940,02 5,418,76:
Principal owed 1,243,62: 5,216,75! — 1,20¢ 2,599,13 1,15( 1,047,95! — 5,647,06! — 10,537,77 5,219,11
Weighted-average¢
interest rate 3.96% 4.5% — 2.22% 12.1% 2.31% 4.85% — 4.27% — — —

Percentage of short-term and

current portion of long-term

bank debt denominated in

foreign currency (% 66.7%

Percentage of short-term and

current portion of long-term

bank debt denominated in loc

currency (%) 33.2¢
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Note 16 - Long-term bank debt

Currency
Tax Bank or or
registration financial adjustment
No. institution index
97.004.00-5 Banco de Chile uUsb
97.004.00-5 Banco de Chilt EUR
Other
97.004.00-5 Banco de Chile currencies
97.004.00-5 Banco de Chile
97.951.00-4 Banco Itau uUsb
97.039.00-7 Banco Santand uUsb
Other
Foreign bani Banco Francé currencies
Banco Citibank Other
97.008.00-7 Argentina currencies
Total
Long-term bank debt denominated in
foreign currency 72.1%
Long-term bank debt denominated in
Chilean pesos and L 27.8%%

VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1to2
8,012,18I
726,82(

2,891,441

7,657,211
413,79t

19,701,44

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Years to Maturity

2t03
1,825,561

1,825,561

3to5
1,825,56!

1,825,561
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As of December 31, 2009

Total
long- term
portion at
year-end
11,663,30

726,82(

2,891,441

7,657,211
413,79¢

23,352,56

Weighted-
average
interest rate
1.85%
2.22%

2.3™%

1.81%

16%

As of December 3008

Total long- term
5,596,30!

7,335,70

959,48
9,389,351
1,206,52
1,860,81.

26,348,19
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( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 17 - Short and long-term bonds payable

On April 26, 2005, Series C bonds were issued ficeraount of UF 2,000,000 at a rate of 3.9% per anri00% of the par value was placed.

As of December 31, 2008, the short-term portioriudes ThCh$1,574,463 of accrued interest. The teng- portion of ThCh$40,685,430 relates exclusivtelythe

principal of the Series C bonds.

As of December 31, 2009, the short-term portiorludes ThCh$2,793,314 of accrued interest. The teng- portion of ThCh$38,189,958 relates exclusivtelythe

principal of the Series C bonds.

On March 23, 2009, a commercial paper line wassteggd in the Securities Register with the numBé&, Wvith a maximum authorized amount of 940,000 &lthougt
placements against the line may be denominatedrirdbilean pesos or USD. The term of this lineds/gars from March 23, 2009. On April 23, 2009, fingt placemer
of commercial paper (Series 1) was made for an amofi ThCh$5,000,000, comprising of 31 dematerétizpromissory notes of ThCh$100,000 each, 30 nof
ThCh$50,000 each and 20 notes of ThCh$20,000 @4tthan annual interest rate of 3.0744% and maguoim March 25, 2010. As of December 31, 2009, aausrno
ThCh$5,113,400 is shown in short term, correspantbrprincipal outstanding and accrued interesh# date with respect to the commercial paper.

The details of both obligations are shown below Mrch 23, 2009, two lines of bonds were registéngtie Securities Register, with the numbers 57 %75.

No. OF

REGISTRATION FREQUENCY PAR VALUE
OR

IDENTIFICATION ADJUSTMENT PAYMENT PAYMENT PLACEMENT IN

OF THE NOMINAL/PAR UNIT FOR INTEREST OF OF ThCh$ ThCh$ CHILE OR

INSTRUMENT SERIES AMOUNT BONDS RATE FINAL PERIOD INTEREST PRINCIPAL 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 ABROAD

Short and Long-term Commercial Paper
49 one 5,000,00C Chilean Peso 3.07% 25-03-2010 one one 5,113,40C — Chile

No. OF
REGISTRATION FREQUENCY PAR VALUE

OR

IDENTIFICATION ADJUSTMENT PAYMENT PAYMENT PLACEMENT IN

OF THE NOMINAL/PAR UNIT FOR INTEREST OF OF ThCh$ ThCh$ CHILE OR

INSTRUMENT SERIES AMOUNT BONDS RATE FINAL PERIOD INTEREST PRINCIPAL 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 ABROAD
Short and Long-term Bonds Payable
SEMI- SEMI-
407 c 2,000,00C UF 3.9% 15-04-2026 ANNUAL ANNUAL 2,793,31. 1,574,46: Chile
Total short-term portion 2,793,31 1,574,46:
Long-term bonds
SEMI- SEMI-

407 c 2,000,00c¢ UF 3.9% 15-04-2026 ANNUAL NNUAL 38,189,95 40,685,43 Chile
Total long-term portion 38,189,95 40,685,43
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Note 18 - Accruals and certain charge-offs

The detail is as follows:

Shor-term
As of December 31
2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Advertising expense 20,184,37 17,729,30
Employee legal bonus and profit participat 4,132,38 4,897,28
Director¢ compensatiol 544,27¢ 663,09:
Provision for vacatiol 1,358,51. 2,007,15
Provision for reorganization expens 191,61! 196,12¢
Provision for accrued costs and exper 2,355,64! 3,424,091
Other provisions 631,17¢ 612,76
Total accruals 29,397,99 29,529,82
Long-term
As of December 31
2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Staff severance indemnities 1,573,12 1,633,92
Total accruals 1,573,122 1,633,92i

The most significant direct charge-offs relateéhtentory are detailed as follows:

For the years ending
December 31

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Reprocessing 242,69t 1,285,21! 896,53:

As of December 31, 2008 and 2009, there are pangsiecorded which are presented as a deductiontfre related asset accounts as per the followétajld

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Doubtful account: (524,919 (474,92)
Uncollectible note: (61,267) (54,12¢)
Income taxes recoverat (306,05¢) (303,58
Sundry debtor (312,969 (485,129
Inventory obsolescenc (3,247,29) (3,041,38)
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Note 19 - Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses consist of staff severance inders@ind are recorded at the present value obtaéliability according to the accrued cost of tenefit considering ¢
interest rate of 5% per annum and an average selifécperiod of 7.2 years. Changes during each yese as follows:

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Balance at the beginning of the yi 1,152,29: 1,573,12
Increase during the ye 509,10 278,08!
Payments during the ye (88,277) (217,28)
Provision for staff severance indemnitie: 1,573,12! 1,633,92i
Note 20 - Minority interest
The detail of minority interest is as follows:
Taxpayer Related As of December 31, 200 As of December 31, 200
I.D. Company Liability Income Asset Income
B ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
84.712.500-4 VINA PALO ALTO LIMITADA 7 (23) (4) (8)
Total 7 (23) (4) (8)
Note 21 - Shareholders’ Equity
The Company'’s paid in capital as of December 30926 as follows:
Number of shares
Series No of subscribed sha No. of shares paid 100 No. of shares paid 50' No of voting right share
Single 747,005,98: 735,617,80: 11,388,17¢ 747,005,98:
Paid in Capital and Par Value
Series Subscribed Paid-in
capital capital
Single 78,030,371 72,812,24(
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Note 21 - Shareholders’ Equity, continued
a) Other Reserves
Other reserves consist of the following:

As of December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Additional paid in capital pric-level restatemer 2,129,62. 2,129,62
Revaluation from fixed asset technical appre 4,840,841 4,840,84
Adjustment to property, plant and equipment v: 1,278,76 1,278,76

Revaluation from fixed asset technical appraisalubsidiarie: 611,98: 611,98:
Revaluation of inventory (197: 843,25¢ 843,25¢
Revaluation of marketable securities (19 652,28t 652,28
Cumulative translation adjustment (1,997,67) (1,997,59)
Total other reserves 8,359,08. 8,359,16:

b) Cumulative translation adjustment

This account relates to the effects of the foredgmhange gains or losses between the Chilean pebdha US dollar on the pridevel restated foreign investm:
measured in US dollars, in accordance with TechrBcdletin No. 64 issued by the Chilean AssociatmnAccountants. The detail of the adjustment bgssdiary i
included below:

2008

Exchange Difference Exchange Difference Balance as of Decembe
Company Opening Balance Investment Liability 31, 2008
Trivento Bodegas y Vifiedos (1,997,67) 2,213,50° (2,213,50) (1,997,67)
Total (1,997,67) 2,213,50 (2,213,50) (1,997,67)
2009

Exchange Difference Exchange Difference Balance as of Decembe
Company Opening Balance Investment Liability 31, 2009
Trivento Bodegas y Vifiedos (1,997,67) 665,16: (665,08 (1,997,59)
Total (1,997,67) 665,16: (665,08 (1,997,59)
c) Dividends

The Company'’s dividend policy proposed by the BazrBirectors for 2009, consists of the distributiof up to 40% of net income for the year dividetbithree
provisional dividends payable in September 200%eb&er 2009 and March 2010 and the payment obadimidend in May 2010.
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Note 21 - Shareholders’ Equity, continued

Dividends approved and paid as of December 31, 2008009 (on historical basis) are detailed devis!:

2008
Dividend No. Amount ThCh$ Month of payment Type of dividend
233 1,797,92 December 200 Provisional
232 1,797,92 September 200 Provisional
231 8,234,50! May 2008 Final
230 1,797,92 March 200€ Provisional
2009
Dividend No. Amount ThCh$ Month of payment Type of dividend
237 1,853,48 December 200 Provisional
236 1,853,44. September 200 Provisional
235 8,820,29: May 2009 Final
234 1,797,92 March 200¢ Provisional

Interim dividends are recorded in the “ProvisioBalidends” column of the stockholdersquity statement when they are provisionally dedasy the Board of Directc
during any given fiscal year. They are recorded dsbit in the Provisional Dividend column of theckholders’ equity statement in the line item &rit Dividends”.The
offsetting credit is against dividends payable disality. These provisional interim dividends ampproved formally at the annual Sharehold®teeting in April of the
subsequent year. The final dividends, of whichititerim dividends are a portion, may differ fronetprovisionally declared interim dividend3nce the final dividend
approved and paid to shareholders, a credit isdedofor the amount of interim dividends prelimihagapproved in the prior year in the “ Provisiorividends” columr
of the stockholders’ equity statemeanid the final declared dividend is shown as a réalu®f net income. This treatment is pursuant i@@ar 1501 of the Chilet
Superintendence of Securities and Insurance.

d) Capital increase

The board meeting held on December 18, 2008, urarsiy resolved to issue 28.000.000 (tweeityht million) common shares of the same existeges, nominative ai
with no par value, corresponding to a capital iasee of the Company of approximately Ch$30,000,@mD,¢hirty billion pesos) approved at the Sharebo
Extraordinary Meeting celebrated on December 18828 portion of this capital contribution was raasl in 2009.

Likewise, all agreements necessary for implemertiregissue and placement of the shares, includiegdgistration of the shares in the “Chilean SéearRegistry”of
the Superintendence of Securities and Insuranc&)8&re adopted.
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Note 22 - Other Non-Operating Income and Expenses
The detall is as follows:
Other Non-operating income

For the year ended December 3

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Gain from land expropriatio — 652,03: 7,56:
Third parties compensatic 100,28 79,10t —
Gain on sale of fixed asse 93,61¢ 51,527 125,49
Sale of other produc 33,10« 44,92¢ 66,25!
Administrative service 17,11¢ 18,45( 19,12¢
Dividends receive: 4,83t 10,81: 4,35¢
Gain on sale of shari 73,71 2,30 —
Rent collectec — — 17,56¢
Other 90,13( 69,49¢ 97,407
Total 414,89: 928,64 337,76¢

Other Non-operating expenses

For the year ended December 3.

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Argentinean Competitiveness Lz 318,18« 322,43 320,15¢
Other expense 197,70° 158,41! 34,97¢
Disposals of PP&! 553,15¢ 155,19¢ 64,26¢
Loss of VAT 36,22( 86,07 28,520
Prior year expense — 66,07t —
Loss on sale of fixed ass 21,57¢ 24,73t —
Miscellaneus expens: 9,64¢ 54€ 12,10¢
Amortization of intangible assets 8,99: — —
Total 1,145,48i 813,471 460,03:
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Note 23 - Price-level restatement

Year ended December 31

Restatement
Assets (Charges) / Credit: index 2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Inventories CPI 4,258,65: 6,274,00: (667,30
Property, plant and equipme CPI 13,274,04 17,415,02 (5,246,49)
Investment in related compani CPI 554,51 610,11¢ (486,829
Accounts and other receivabl UF 6,69( 10,24: (689)
Recoverable taxe CPI 328,22: 238,69¢ 2,96(
Prepaid expenst UF 35,231 55,16¢ (9,04¢)
Other accounts receivabl UF — (1,756 (13%)
Other nor-monetary asse CPI 448,47( 604,35¢ (195,621
Other lon¢-term asset CPI 47,97" 55,02¢ (15,267
Other no-monetary asse UF 60,227 115,87¢ (43,22
Cost and expense accounts CPI 15,566,24 15,593,02 (827,419
Total credits (charges) 34,580,27 40,969,78 (7,489,07))
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Note 23 - Price-level restatement, continued

Liabilities (Charges) / Credits

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Shareholdel equity
Minority interest
Bank and financial institution, liabilitie
Current portion of lon-term bank liabilities
Bonds payabl
Long-term obligations with maturity within one ye
Accounts payabl
Notes payabli
Other accounts payakt
Accrued expense
Long-term bank and financial institution liabilitic
Bonds payable lor-term
Other noi-monetary liabilities
Income account
Total credits (charges)
Net gain (loss) from pric-level restatement

Year ended December 31

Restatement
index 2007 2008 2009
CPI (13,880,17) (18,420,41) 6,047,58
CPI (89¢) (15) 2
UF (345,969 (856,35 291,37¢
UF (5,607) (9,605 17,92:
UF (22,177) (55,067) (19
UF (19,03)) (26,53%) 9,04t
UF (204,26¢) (197,39¢) 71,63:
UF (6,94¢) (48,84 4,082
UF (134,63 (68,05€) 186,14
UF (624) (133,989 47,42:
UF (547,41Y (634,379 121,55:
UF (2,737,08) (3,548,969 1,236,48
UF (123,09¢) (153,289 46,33t
CPI (17,436,55) (17,398,41) 857,29:
(35,464,47) (41,551,30) 8,936,85
(884,19) (581,49Y 1,447,78
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Note 24 - Foreign exchange differences

The following represents the detail of foreign eahe gains and losses recognized in income for ehthe respective years for accounts denominatefbrieigr
currencies:

Year ended December 31

Assets (Charges) / Credit: 2007 2008 2009
Cash CAD (3,3579) (14,746 (15,479
Cash EUR 1,59: (51,070 (67,006
Cash GBP (103,207 7,65¢ (6,919
Cash usb (15,82Y 12,53¢ (517,45))
Cash NOK — — (2,397)
Cash SEK — — (18,979
Time deposit: uUsD 4,85¢ (14,049 —
Trade accounts receivak CAD 229,05¢ 146,48. (179,58
Trade accounts receivak EUR 421,92¢ 3,011,28! (2,528,78.)
Trade accounts receivak uUsD (1,615,39) 8,786,12: (7,152,23)
Trade accounts receivak GBP (1,277 66,84( (94,42))
Trade accounts receivak SEK — — (737)
Trade accounts receivak NOK — — (637)
Trade accounts receivak REAL — — (76,89
Other accounts receivak CAD 1,92¢ 7,93: (1,497
Other accounts receivat EUR 72,68( 74,527 (77,609
Other accounts receivat uUsD 8,58¢ (111,959 36,24¢
Accounts receivable from related compar CAD (742) 64 (1,015
Accounts receivable from related compar EUR 27t 8,04¢ (190,14
Accounts receivable from related compar uUsD (14,94 466,32! (1,226,79)
Accounts receivable from related compar GBP (14,069 (1,005,01) (964,659
Accounts receivable from related compar ARS 12¢ 20¢ —
Accounts receivable from related compar SEK — (693%) (70,647
Accounts receivable from related compar NOK — — (61,395
Prepaid expenst usD (12,087 29,417 (31,26))
Prepaid expenst NOK — — 22
Fixed asset usD 49,61¢ 50,84 —
Other current asse uUsD 446,66 (10,927,54) 17,977,26
Other current asse CAD (320,83)) 961,00 (49,88%)
Other current asse EUR (705,06:) (1,014,64) 3,711,53
Other current asse GBP 1,672,33 6,266,79! (1,803,24)
Other current asse SEK — — 102,89
Other current asse NOK — — 38,65
Other current asse REAL — — (242,83
Other assets lor-term uUsbD 67,74¢ 95,76t (73,779
Total credits 170,62: 6,852,14 6,410,35!
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Note 24 — Foreign exchange differences, continued

Year ended December 31

Liabilities (Charges) / Credits Currency 2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Bank debr EUR (63,309 (631,79 473,61(
Bank debr usb 327,35: (4,596,45) 2,040,33
Bank debr GBP 56,12¢ 5,61( —
Long-term bank debt, sh-term portion EUR (27,739 — 31,65(
Long-term bank debt, sh-term portion uUsD 667,06 3,470,99: (3,329,82)
Long-term bank debt, sh-term portion GBP (1,22%) — (20,969
Accounts payabl CAD — @) 5)
Accounts payabl EUR (3,11¢) (38,045 36,09«
Accounts payabl uUsD 97,18t¢ (1,558,51) 854,41!
Accounts payabl GBP 1,37¢ (169) 13
Notes payabl: EUR (147,421 (328,85 134,18
Notes payabl: uUsD 80,03: (2,857 162,48t
Notes payabli GBP (2,300 3,09¢ —
Notes payabl SEK 177 (396€) —
Accounts payable to related compar uUsD (7,109 — —
Other accounts payak uUsD 3,11¢ (26,71)) 14,45¢
Other accounts payat GBP (73) 47C 2,81(
Other accounts payat SEK — — 49
Other accounts payakt NOK — — (23)
Other accounts payat EUR (237) (609) 2,39¢
Accrued expense CAD (65,85¢) (17,716 45,40:
Accrued expense EUR (63,35¢) (814,049 682,67.
Accrued expense uUsD 263,39t (1,186,50) 1,622,60.
Accrued expense GBP 111,55 81,66: 140,61
Accrued expense SEK 89 — Q)
Accrued expense NOK — — 21
Deferred revenue usD 25,49« (229,099 185,96«
Long-term bank dek uUsD (152,97Y (2,755,65) 2,121,35.
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Note 24 - Foreign exchange differences, continued

Year ended December 31

Liabilities (Charges) / Credits Currency 2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Adjustment for financial statement translat usD (267,699 15,327 (263,61)
Adjustment for financial statement translat REAL — — 256,73¢
Adjustment for financial statement translat NOK — — (26,459
Adjustment for financial statement translat uUsD — (32,369 (108,109
Adjustment for financial statement translat GBP (620,54)) 718,65( (331,95)
Total credits (charges) 212,02! (7,923,98) 4,726,94
Net gains (losses) from exchange differer 382,64¢ (1,071,83) 11,137,30

Note 25 — Expenses in the issuance and placementebt certificates

Expenses in the issuance and placement of bondgresented in other long-term assets, which arertazad using the straighine method (which approximates

effective interest method), in accordance with risgpective terms of the bonds. This amortizatioprésented as interest expenses. Capitalized issiepenses net
amortization, at the end of 2009 amount to ThCh& @31 (ThCh$ 602,876 in 2008). Issuance expenshsdia disbursements related to reports from riskgaagencie:
legal and financial advisories, taxes, printing afatement fees. Amortization for the year ende@P20as ThCh$45,326 (ThCh$34,948 in 2008).

Note 26 - Statement of cash flows

a) Future cash flows contractually committed to inwe=tit and operating activities:

Years to Maturity

Currency of Short- As of As of
adjustment term More than December December
index portion 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 6 years 31, 2009 31, 2008
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Lease payabl UF 94,69: — — — — — — 94,69: 284,29
Leased farm UF 268,10 268,10 271,36¢ 265,55! 209,05 223,56( 1,572,941 3,078,65: 3,146,77.
Leased farm UsD 513,08( 120,51: 120,51: 40,17: — — — 794,27! 1,126,241
Lease payabl ARS 224,23 250,47. 304,19: — — — — 778,90( 1,281,61
Payables for additions to
fixed asset: EUR 377,52t — — — — — — 377,52t —
Payables for additions to
fixed asset: USD 28,24¢ — — — — — — 28,24¢ —
Payables for additions to
fixed asset: CH$ 2,130,16 — — — — — — 2,130,16' 2,469,64
Payables for additions to
fixed asset: UF — — — — — — — — 3,260,82i
Payables for additions to
fixed assets ARS 48,75( — — — — — — 48,75( —
Total 3,684,80! 639,09: 696,06 305,72t 209,05 223,52 1,572,941 7,331,211 11,569,40

During the years ended 2008 and 2009, there werghaw investing activities which commit future edbows.

b) Non-cash transaction:

There where no non-cash transactions in years 2602009.
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Derivative Contract

Description of the contras

Contract value at

Accounts affected Value of Asset / liabiliti

Amount of the Contract value at December 31, 20( Mark to
Type of Type of contract Date of Purchase/ Hedged December 31, 20( forward exchange Account market
derivate Agreemen nominal expiration Ccurrency Sales Item at spot ratt rate Name adjustmen Amount (1) Amount (2)
2nd.
Quarter of Debt due Other current
S CCPE 2,071,64C 2010 usbD (03 usbD 2,062,561 2,106,437 assets 34,797 34,797 —
2nd.
Quarter of Debt due Other current
S CCPE 2,589,88( 2010 usD C usD 2,578,20i 2,633,04¢ asset: 43,496 43,496 —
1st. Quarte Debt due Other current
S CCPE 3,976,88C of 2010 usD C usD 4,058,24 4,058,247 liabilities 1,756 — 1,756
4th. Quarte Debt due Other current
S CCPE 43,787,79¢ of 2010 UF C UF 43,651,60 43,530,54¢ liabilities 257,247 — 257,247
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 11,479,46¢ of 2010 REAL \% customer 11,558,75 11,468,51¢ liabilities 10,945 — 10,945
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,905,451 of 2010 CAD \% customer 1,917,74. 1,903,48¢ asset: 1,962 — 1,962
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 5,481,05¢ of 2010 EUR \Y customers 5,378,46 5,473,521 liabilities 7,529 — 7,529
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 12,029,86¢ of 2010 GBP \% customer 11,810,10 12,015,66¢ asset: 14,196 — 14,196
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,114,024 of 2010 NOK \% customers 1,084,29: 1,112,98(C liabilities 1,044 — 1,044
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 3,966,412 of 2010 SEK \ customers 3,873,23 3,962,14¢ assets 4,268 — 4,268
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 55,418,80¢ of 2010 usD \% customer 52,993,51 55,349,547 liabilities 69,258 — 69,258
2nd.
Quarter of Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,028,887 2010 CAD \ customers 1,024,78! 1,024,81( assets 4,077 — 4,077
2nd.
Quarter of Export Other current
FR CCPE 5,534,891 2010 EUR \% customers 5,487,491 5,511,83¢ liabilities 23,057 — 23,057
2nd.
Quarter of Export Other current
FR CCPE 9,385,002 2010 uUsbD \ customers 8,085,67! 9,331,38¢ liabilities 53,619 — 53,619
3rd. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 829,360 of 2010 BRL \% customer 872,82( 821,474 assets 7,886 — 7,886
3rd. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 858,378 of 2010 CAD \% customer 866,01 850,842 asset: 7,536 — 7,536
3rd. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 7,173,04% of 2010 EUR \Y customers 7,202,78: 7,115,79¢ liabilities 57,250 — 57,250
3rd. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 15,561,01¢ of 2010 usD \% customer 13,321,03 15,365,48¢ asset: 195,53C — 195,53C
4th. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,903,69¢ of 2010 REAL \Y customers 2,036,581 1,878,40¢ assets 25,292 — 25,292
4th. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,423,731 of 2010 CAD \ customers 1,419,30: 1,404,01C assets 19,727 — 19,727
4th. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 5,772,412 of 2010 EUR \% customers 5,727,341 5,690,81¢ liabilities 81,593 — 81,593
4th. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 12,106,88: of 2010 usbD \ customers 10,092,81 11,852,671 liabilities 254,212 — 254,212
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 464.551 of 2011 CAD \Y customers 481,12( 455,378 liabilities 9,173 — 9,173
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 2,115,61¢ of 2011 ECU \% customer 2,107,77: 2,073,19: liabilities 42,426 — 42,426
1st. Quarte Export Other current
FR CCPE 2,842,391 of 2011 usbD \Y customers 2,580,171 2,762,01: liabilities 80,378 — 80,378
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Note 27 - Derivative contracts, continued

Derivative Contract

Description of the contras Accounts affected Value of Asset / liabiliti
Contract valu Contract value a
Amount of the at Decembel December 31, 20( Mark to
Type of Type of contract Date of Purchase/ Hedged 31, 2009 at forward exchange market
derivate Agreemen nominal expiration Ccurrency Sales Item spot rate rate Account Name adjustmen Amount (1) Amount (2)
2nd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,303,304 of 2010 REAL \% customer 1,454,701 1,266,27¢ liabilities 37,031 — 37,031
2nd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 802,177 of 2010 CAD \ customers 817,90« 779,638 liabilities 22,539 — 22,539
2nd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 2,415,101 of 2011 EUR \% customers 2,376,70. 2,343,721 liabilities 71,374 — 71,374
2nd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 3,329,04¢ of 2011 usD \% customer 3,022,93 3,022,937 liabilities 126,111 — 126,111
3rd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 763,064 of 2011 CAD \Y customers 769,79: 735,34¢ liabilities 27,715 — 27,715
3rd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 4,776,871 of 2011 EUR \% customer 4,695,25 4,601,30¢ liabilities 175,573 — 175.573
3rd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 5,624,51¢ of 2011 usD \% customer 5,012,84! 5,268,981 liabilities 255,537 — 255,537
4th. Quarter ¢ Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,036,18¢ 2011 CAD \Y customers 1,058,46- 990,44C liabilities 45,745 — 45,745
4th. Quarter ¢ Export Other current
FR CCPE 4,845,047 2011 EUR \% customer 4,760,67 4,631,69¢ liabilities 213,348 — 213,348
4th. Quarter ¢ Export Other current
FR CCPE 6,614,28¢ 2011 usD \% customers 6,002,15! 6,248,162 liabilities 366,12€ — 366,12€
2nd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 18,259,41¢ of 2012 EUR \Y customers 17,589,04 16,757,42¢ liabilities 1,501,991 — 1,501,991
3rd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 1,010,00z of 2012 usD \% customer 901,13° 917,30€ liabilities 92,696 — 92,696
4th. Quarter ¢ Export Other current
FR CCPE 4,020,374 2012 usbD \Y customers 3,537,58 3,603,99: liabilities 416,381 — 416,381
1st. Quarter ¢ Export Other current
FR CCPE 337,595 2013 uUsbD \ customers 300,58¢ 300,394 liabilities 37,201 — 37,201
2nd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 694,519 of 2013 usD \% customer 601,54: 608,037 liabilities 86,482 — 86,482
3rd. Quarter Export Other current
FR CCPE 2,275,81¢ of 2013 usbD \ customers 1,951,63 1,979,307 liabilities 296,512 — 296,512
4th. Quarter ¢ Export Other current
FR CCPE 3,064,61¢ 2012 usbD \Y customers 2,640,26 2,639,657 liabilities 424,961 — 424,961

Note: FR: Forwarc
CCPE: Hedge of an existing transact
CCTE: Hedge of a forecasted transac
(1) CCPE- Deferred gain representing difference between nakwvialue and spot value at contract initiation
(2) CCPE- Deferred gain for difference between spot valueoatract initiation date and spot value at Decen3de2009 CCTE- Mark-to-market adjustmer
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Note 28 - Contingencies and restrictions

1)

2)

Wine contracts: The Company has entered img-erm contracts for the acquisition of grapes andewivhich have different expiration dates, the tdshen
expiring in 2017

Restrictions and limits for the issuance of Pullliféering Bonds

Restrictions or limits to which the Company sstier (herein referred solely in note 28) is suligare generated by covenants associated withnses of public
offering bonds, detailed as follown

a)

b)

<)

d)

Maintain assets free of liens or prohibitions faraanount equivalent to at least 1.5 times the ttai of placements of bonds outstanding performigt
a charge to the line agreed in the agreement.dligation will be required for payment solely hetclosing dates of the financial stateme

The issuer is obliged not to sell, concede or feEaressential assets which may pose in dangermih@ncance of its current social line of busine

Send to the representative of the bondholder, begetith the quarterly information indicated in thend issuance agreement, background informati
any reduction of its participation in the capitdits significant subsidiaries, greater than tercpat of this capital, as well as any reductionclhimplies
losing control of this subsidiary within five busis days following the transaction d:

Maintain an indebtedness ratio of no greater threnlo4 times
Maintain, at all times, during the life of the cemt bond issuance, a minimum equity of five milligR;

Maintain, at all times, a minimum financial expertserage ratio of 2.5 times. The financial expetweecrage ratio will have to be calculated or
twelve-month period prior to the date of the FECU fornegtart;

Not to make investments in instruments issued latad parties or grant loans to these or make #mr @perations with them under conditions whict
more unfavorable for the issuer compared to mar@etlitions, as established in Article No.89 of 8teareholdersCorporation Law. Likewise, the issi
shall supervise that its subsidiaries act in canftyr with this restriction. For the purpose of tlukuse, related parties shall be understood as
indicated in Article No.100 of Law No0.18,045.

Make provisions for any adverse contingency whicymnfavorably affect its businesses, financialation or its operating results, which will havebi
reflected in the issues’financial statements, where applicable, in acued with generally accepted accounting principhe€hile. The issuer w
supervise that its subsidiaries act in accordanttethis condition;

Contract and maintain insurance policies tnieasonably protect the issiedperating assets, in accordance with usual pescin the industry where 1
issuer operates. The issuer will, in turn, superttigt its subsidiaries act in accordance withdbigdition; anc

The issuer and any of its subsidiaries could ndtereny voluntary prepayments of any existing oligga should the issuer be in delinquency or si
delay in the full, total and timely payment of bendhich are the subject of this public deed. THermation which accredits compliance with mat
indicated in letters a) to j) of this number anttokations made which validate its compliance, \wélve to be subscribed by the issaeChief Financiz
Officer or its representative and, annually, byesgernal auditors, where applicable and will h&wvée sent to the bondholders representative tin
registered mail or letter with reception stamp with term of five business days from the occurresfcéne event, except in the case in which it rete
information which has to be delivered to the SU¥Bwhich case it will have to be sent in the samm te which it has to be delivered to the SVS.He
event that the information provided to the bondkedddrepresentative in conformity with this numbeo tbe qualified by the issuer as confidential,
bondholders representative will have to maintaiictstonfidentiality for this information in respeio third parties
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Note 28 - Contingencies and restrictions, continued

Causes for acceleration

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

9)

Should the issuer be in delinquency or simple dildiie payment of any installment related to tbedy principal and interes

Should any declaration performed by the issueh@imstruments granted or subscribed due to theendtion obligation derived from the agreemer
found to be fraudulently incomplete or fal:

Should the issuer breach any of the obligat@ssumed by virtue of the bond issuance agreemanber two of the clause oRtiles for the Protection
Bondholders™and it has not resolved this breach within thiraysl following the date in which it has been recgliire written for these purposes by
bondholders representative through registered |

Should the issuer breach any of the obligatiassumed by virtue of the bond issuance agreemamber four of the clause oRtles for the Protectic
of Bondholders’and such breach has not been resolved within dixy following the date in which it has been reegiiin written for these purposes
the bondholders representative through registeiat]

Should the issuer breach any of the obligationsraes by virtue of the seventh clause of the bosdasce agreement and in complementary public
which are subscribed there

Should the issuer or any of its significant sulsgiéis incur in cessation of payments or recogriizegitten the impossibility of paying its debt addtions
or provides a general cession or abandons itssafesethe benefit of its creditors or it requesssawn bankruptcy

Should the issuer or any significant subsidiary ifaldelinquency or simple delay related to thepant of any sum of money owed to banks or tc
other creditor, from one or more past due obligetior obligations required earlier, which, indivadly exceeds an amount equivalent to one hur
thousand UF at the date of the respective calouland the issuer or significant subsidiary, ascdee may be, did not resolve this within the mkoi
thirty days following the date of falling in delingncy or simple delay and/or at the date of payrogtitis obligation it had not been expressly posgd;

Should any obligation of the issuer or any sigaifit subsidiary becomes payable earlier providetiths not related to prepayment normally fores
prior to the stipulated expiration da

Should in the future, the issuer or any subsidgmgnt actual guarantees to new bond issuancesyofirancial loan, money loan operation or o
existing loans, except for those specified in thadissuance agreeme

Should any governmental authority decree any adoorthe requisition, confiscation, embargo, expi@ion, appropriation of, or assumption of
custody or control of the total sum or a significpart of the issu’'s or any significant subsidi¢’s assets

In the event of the issusrdissolution or liquidation or in the event ofectkase in the term of its life to a period lowert the final term for payment
bonds related to the bond issuance agreer

Should the issuer or any significant subsidiarygleelared in bankruptcy pursuant to a legal sentereeuted; an

Should the issuer sell, cede or transfer esseasi#ts as defined in the first clause of the besukince agreement, except in the event of corititsub)
transfers of essential assets to subsidiariesesuty the prior and written authorization of trembholders representati

As of December 31, 2009, the Company meets attiementioned covenan
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Note 28 - Contingencies and restrictions, continge

3)

Covenants with respect to the issuance of comnigrajzer.
The covenants affecting the Company are contaiméldel Rules of Protection of Holders of CommerBiaper, the detail of which is as follov

1) Liquidity and debt ratios: as long as there amunts outstanding of commercial paper againstitieg the Company commits to maintain the follog
financial ratios at all times during the term o ttommercial pape

a) Debt Ratio no greater than 1.4
b) Equity of no less than five million UF; al
¢) Financial expenses coverage ratio of no less ttad.:

2) Covenants, limitations and negative covenargdorag as there are amounts outstanding of comaigraper against the line, the Company shall bgestitx
the following:

a) Ensure that the operations carried out with igidoses of other related persons, are made onitond of equity similar to those normally prevagi in the
market.“Related persol” shall be understood to be those as defined ineaii@0 of Law 18,04¢

b) Comply with all applicable laws, regulations astlier provisions, including without limitation tipayment on time and correct form of all taxesjedytrates
rights and charges that affect the Company itseitisanovable and immovable assets, except thaecttallenge good faith and according to the pentijudicia
and/or administrative procedures and provided imdhse adequate reserves are held to cover snthgency, in accordance with accounting princigeserall
accepted in Chile

¢) Maintain during the term of the line, unencungokassets equivalent to at least 1.5 times thedbtmmmercial paper placed outstandi

d) Establish and maintain adequate accounting gsteased on accounting principles generally acdept€hile and the instructions of the SVS. The @am
shall contract and maintain a national and intéonat firm to audit its financial statements, witsspect to which the auditing firm should issueopnion as ¢
December 31 each year. Also, should the Compartg @ubsidiaries introduce changes in the accogmiinciples used in its financial statements tigiothe
application of IFRS, the Company should analyze pgbeential impacts that such changes might havehencovenants, limitations and negative cover
contained under the contract, and make all necessaendments and announcements of the img

e) Maintain insurance to protect its assets redspma accordance with usual practices for indestsimilar to that of the Company and subsidia

f) Maintain continuously and uninterruptedly duritig term of the commercial paper line the redismeof the Company and the line in the SecuriRegjister ¢
the SVS, and comply with the duties and obligatidesving thereon

3) Equal treatment of holders: The Company shat giqual treatment, without any privilege or prefere, to each and every one of the holders of nsteg:
against the line
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Note 28 - Contingencies and restrictions, continued

4)

4) The Issuer acknowledges and accepts that tlieirsobf notes may demand the full and acceleraeayment of principal outstanding and payment of s
interest as if the obligation were past due, shanlyl of the following events occt

a) Should the Company default or simply delay @ phayment of any installment of principal or ingtref the notes issued against the commercial paqeg!

b) Should the Company not remedy within thirty Inesis days a situation of default or simple delayh| repayment of monetary obligations for a
accumulated amount due of more than the $Ch eaquivaf 150,000 UF, and the payment date of thegabitins included in that amount has not been esly
extended

¢) Should any creditor of the Company demand legitely from it the whole of a term loan as a restilhaving exercised the right to accelerate payroéthe
respective loan due to an event of default by tmgany;

d) Should the Company be declared bankrupt or fitsgd severely insolvent or makes some declanatazognizing its inability to pay its obligatioas they fa
due;

e) Should the declaration made by the Companyanrktruments that are granted or signed agaieskirib and/or the issues made under it were oltesbir
being fraudulently false or incomplete in any etis¢aspect of the declaratio

f) Should the life of the Company be amended tage earlier than the maturity of the commercialgrapsued against the Line; or should the Compa
dissolved in advance; or should for any reasoslitsscribed and paid capital be reduced on termsithaot meet the ratio referred to in 3.5.1 o$ tinistrumen
and

g) Should the Company default under any covenamitgtion or negative covenant assumed under theigions of this instrument and such default isntanec
unremedied for two consecutive quart

As of December 31, 2009 the Company is in compéamith the covenants aforemention

The Argentine Internal Revenue Service — innBgraAdministracion Federal de Ingresos Publicdd=(P”) - through Resolution No. 364/08 dated Decembe
2008 questioned the sworn income tax return ofthssidiary for the fiscal year 2002 and officiadlgtermined the obligation, which, in its opinionjvEnto, the
subsidiary owes for income tax for that period $8,918.44 ARS plus interests for $2,644,682.33 A&#Sculated as of December 12, 2008) and a pewé
$974,459.22 ARS.

The fiscal entity based its resolution on the thett it was not correct to compute exchange diffeeclosses on the loans of Trivento with Vifia Canghlorc
S.A./VCT Internacional S.A., arguing that remittas®f funds resulting from such operations haventitere of capital contributions and not loans,retf®ugl
that character was approved by the respective badrdirectors and the central banks of both céesitand are shown as such in the accounts dfeattampanie
involved.

On February 11, 2009, the resolution of the AFIR wppealed before the National Fiscal Tribunaloassken in article 76. In these proceedings, aelldéfens
arguments already made were reiterated and expatiges® being duly supported by evidence. On J@n2@)9 the time period for AFIP to answer the ajf
expired and we have still not been notified of thgpective response by the AFIP. The file is retatgr the evidence period will open.

On June 17, 2009, and in order to guarantee payofethie claimed fiscal debt, AFIP placed an embavger 27 plots of land owned by Trivento Bodeg

Vifiedos S.A. On October 29, the substitution wagiested of the assets embargoed by a plot whosédindl value exceeded the amount claimed (Treseas
San Martin). The AFIP resolved this request posiyivproceeding to release the embargo over thaireng properties
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Note 28— Contingencies and restrictions, continuet

In the opinion of both the comparsyArgentine and Chilean lawyers, Trivento has reabte and solid arguments for sustaining that teeigion of the funds i
question was a loan and thus a generator of theaexe differences computed in the accounts ofdhganies involved. They believe that this opinidth finally
be recognized by the Argentine tribunals, and dpision has been reported to the management and bé¥ifia Concha y Toro S.A.

They understand that in the framework of a globalgsis of the elements of the questioned liabgitithe supporting documentation accredits thaireci
treatment, including the subjects, object, causmumt, agreed interest rate and term. In additioe booking of these liabilities, the accreditatafrthe funds, th
repayment of principal (and later the payment ¢énest from 2007) and, in particular, the fact tha¢ch payments were made partially with funds olegifron
local financial entities, are elements that leacsustain that we are dealing with genuine loangyTédd that while the nopayment of interest is seen as
unfavorable aspect, this element by itself shoutlbre considered as sufficient for the Nationak&isTribunal to reclassify the liability as a contribution
capital.

However, they point out that there is no precedignthe Fiscal Tribunal on this matter so it notgibke to anticipate what will be its interpretationgenere
terms.

The Company has been involved and will probablyticoe to be involved as plaintiff in certain legabceedings through which it mainly seeks to rezehs
amounts claimed which have a total nominal amotisipproximately ThCh$350,000. The Company has npadeisions to cover probable losses derived
any of these case

As of December 31, 2009, there are no otheslié® or possible legal or ofégal lawsuits, tax matters such as liens of artiyreavhich have actual probability
affecting the Compar’s financial statement
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Note 28 — Contingencies and restrictions, continued

Direct guarantees

Debtor Assets affected Guarantee releas 2008 2009
Beneficiary Name Type of guarantee Book value TCh$ TCh$ 2010 Assets 2011 Assets 2012
Agricola Siemel Ltd.  Vifia Concha y Toro S.£ Mortgage — 1,603,24 — — — — — —
Bank BBVA Vifia Conchay Toro S./ Promissory not — 366,06¢ — — — — — —
Bank Security Vifia Concha y Toro S.A Bill of exchange — 3,35¢ — — = = — —
Bank Security Vifia Conchay Toro S.£ Bill of exchange — 4,19¢ — — — — — —
Bank Security Vifia Conchay Toro S.A Bill of exchange — 15,39: — — — — — —
Cooperativa Agricol  Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. Mortgage — — 1,943,31 — — — — _

Curico
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Note 28 - Contingencies and restrictions, continge

Indirect guarantees

Outstanding balances at
financial statement’s closing

date Guarantee release
Debtor Type of Assets Affected 2008 2009 2009 2010 2011 2012
Beneficiary Name Relationship guarantee Type Book value TCh$ TCh$ TCh$ TCh$ TCh$ TCh$
Banco Santander Conchay Toro Ut
Santiagc Ltd. Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 1,973,73I 1,935,09: — — — —

Trivento Bodegas

|[Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 1,243,62: 1,651,08! — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 621,81: 616,40: — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 3,264,51; — — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 1,865,43! 1,382,18:i — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 1,640,02! — — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 1,561,63: — — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 988,68: — — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 3,109,05: — — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco BBVA y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — 1,973,63( — — — — —
Vifia Concha y

Banco BBVA Toro S.A. Pareni Debt Banks — — 325,00¢ — — — — —
Vifia Concha y

Banco Chile Toro S.A. Subsidiary Debt Banks — — — 94,47( — — — —
Vifia Concha y

Banco Chile Toro S.A. Subsidiary Debt Banks — — — 1,044,601 — — — —
Vifia Concha y

Banco Chile Toro S.A. Subsidiary DebtBanks — — — 1,044,601 — — — —
Vifia Concha y

Banco Chile Toro S.A. Subsidiary Debt Banks — — — 26,98¢ — — — —
Trivento Bodegas

Banco Chile y Vifiedos S.A Subsidiary Debt Banks — — — 2,914,15 — — — —
Vifia Almaviva

Banco Estad S.A. Afiliate Mortage 9,780,78 11,265,71
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Amount of Person Who
Type of Original guarantee Issuer of guarantee grants the Beginning date Expiration date
guarantee operation guarantee ThCh$ Relationship guarantee Currency (dd-mm-yy) (dd-mm-yy)
Mortgage Lease agreement o3 CEERR Y © 3,305,400 Reallestate José Canepay Ci UF-USD 12/03/2007 11/03/2019
Ltda. lessor Limitada
Agreement for building anc
Guarantee policy assembly of fermentationa  Cia Seguros Crédil 50,997 Supplier TPI Chile S.A. UF 08/07/2009 31/03/2010
reserve ponds for Peumo a Continental S.A.
San Javier warehou
Agreement for building anc
Guarantee policy f:::m:'g ot fermentaiona - Cla Seguras Crédi 50,997 Supplier TPI Chile S.A. UF 08/07/2009 31/03/2010
San Javier warehou
Agreement for building anc
Guarantee policy assembly of fermentationa  Cia Seguros Crédi 50,097 Supplier TPI Chile S.A. UF 08/07/2009 31/03/2010
reserve ponds for Peumo a Continental S.A.
San Javier warehou
Agreement for building anc
Guarantee policy f::g:cg'g Dfermeniaio a & Cla Sedi e St 50,998 Supplier TPI Chile S.A. UF 08/07/2009 31/03/2010
San Javier warehou
Agreement for building anc
Guarantee policy assembly of fermentationa  Cia Seguros Crédi 50,098 Supplier TPI Chile S.A. UF 08/07/2009 31/03/2010
reserve ponds for Peumo a Continental S.A.
San Javier warehou
Agreement for building anc
Guarantee policy f::g;‘\jg'g Dpfermeniaion a & Cla Sedi e St 50,998 Supplier TPI Chile S.A. UF 08/07/2009 31/03/2010
San Javier warehou
Agreement for the Industria Franco
Performance bond manufacturing of vats for Banco BCI 40,984 Supplier Chilena del Plastic CLP 22/07/2009 25/02/2010
grape transportatic S.A.
Agreement for project for tF
fermentation factory and Ingenieria 'y
Performance bond reserve and waste water Banco de Chile 19,286 Supplier Construccion CLP 24/07/2009 13/01/2010
treatment for the San Javit Quezada y Boetsc
warehoust
Agreement for project for tF
fermentation factory and Ingenieria 'y
Performance bond reserve and waste water Banco de Chile 19,286 Supplier Construccion CLP 24/07/2009 15/02/2010

treatment for the San Javit
warehoust
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Amount of Person Who
Type of Original guarantee Issuer of guarantee grants the Beginning date Expiration date
guarantee operation guarantee ThCh$ Relationship guarantee currency (dd-mm-yy) (dd-mm-yy)
Agreement for projec
for the fermentation Ingenieria 'y
Performance factory and reserve ai 8 ; Construccion
bond waste water treatmer Banco de Chile 19,28¢ Supplier Quezada y CLP 24/07/2009 15/03/2010
for the San Javier Boetsch
warehous¢
Agreement for buildin Supplier
and assembly of vats Ingenieria 'y
Eg:&“mame reserve ponds and BCI 32,66 Montaje cLP 28/07/2009  28/02/2010
accessories in stainle Industrial S.A.
steel
Agreement for the Supplier
installation of cooling
Performance and heating equipme g 2 Bordachar
bond for the machine room Banco de Chile 30,97: Servicios S A. CLP 31/07/2009 28/02/2010
the San Javier
warehous¢
Agreement for the Supplier
_ a@ggﬁ:ﬁ.ﬁ?%ﬂ ;ir:% Cia Seguros Monta_jes
Guarantee polic ; Crédito 42,43( Industriales UF 20/07/2009 31/03/2010
and heating systems Continental S.A Giglio S.A
the Peumo warehous : o
2008
Work related to the
Eg:grmance extension of Peumo CorpBanca 23,10  Supplier Piﬁﬂ?;%ﬁ‘gi CLP 04/08/2009  28/02/2010
reserve warehous '
Work related to the
Performance h - Constructora
bond extension of Peumo CorpBanca 23,10¢ Supplier Parthenon S.A CLP 04/08/2009 30/03/2010
reserve warehous
Agreement for the
amendment, repair ar Supplier
b maintenance of the ~ Banco Santand 8,76¢ coodachar cLp 15/05/2009  18/01/2010
climatization system ¢ o
the Halb Pirque roon
Sureties for the Building of a Premiun agY\tlezrrlr(]ent rrgjaalj;)it;hgf
ps)trg%a);ment of warehouse Alba Caucion 109,92: supplier Agrimetal S.R.L AR$ 24/10/2007 the payee’s
9 obligations
Total

3,981,20:
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency

The following tables include the Company’s asset lability accounts broken out by their curren@ndminations:

Assets
Amount
Currency 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

Current Assets
Cash Chs 1,444,29: 2,330,13
Cash UsD 1,235,64. 478,73(
Cash CAD 84,40 297,81¢
Cash EUR 236,55: 457,58
Cash GBP 654,32 1,402,68.
Cash ARS 8,54( 349,21:
Cash REAL 145,61: 159,23
Cash NOK 17,77 982,16(
Cash SEK 31,87( 534,62:
Trade accounts receivak Chs 12,334,83 16,262,95
Trade accounts receivak UF — 1,87¢
Trade accounts receivak UsSD$ 39,824,05. 30,230,10
Trade accounts receivak CAD 2,842,66: 2,601,95!
Trade accounts receivak EUR 15,455,67 7,585,65
Trade accounts receivak NOK 27,849,64 23,603,55
Trade accounts receivak SEK — 1,080,41!
Trade accounts receivak GBP — 4,371,27!
Trade accounts receivak REAL 517,92 3,773,71
Trade accounts receivak ARS 2,388,35: 5,482,32.
Notes receivabl Chs 2,433,68 3,251,47.
Notes receivabl ARS 145,38: 268,00(
Notes receivabl NOK — 27,544
Notes receivabl UF 39,42¢ 13,21¢
Other accounts receivak Chs 3,221,21 4,136,16!
Other accounts receivakt uUsD 16,58¢ (81,919

Other accounts receivak EUR 544,18: 63,16¢

Other accounts receivak SEK — 15,27:
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Current assets
Other accounts receivak
Other accounts receivak
Other accounts receivak
Other accounts receivak
Other accounts receivak
Other accounts receivak
Accounts receivable from related compar
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Recoverable taxe
Inventories
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid expenst
Prepaid expenst
Deferred taxe
Deferred taxe
Deferred taxe
Other current asse
Other current asse
Other current asse
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Amount
Currency 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

CAD 26,17t 25,29«
UF 89,14¢ 88,17
NOK — 2,10(
GBP 24,54¢ 16,77«
REAL — 962
ARS 236,88 78,41¢
Ch$ 234,63 220,82(
Chs 3,444,72! (684,889
uUsD 876,92( 3,842,59
UF — —
GBP 1,585,18 797,76:
ARS 3,921,02 3,694,05!
SEK 4,327 —
EUR — 33,98¢
REAL — 4,45¢
Chs 110,746,30 116,574,73
Chs 8,760,86. 8,071,68.
uUsD 136,72. 117,20:
UF 2,783,00 2,635,51.
NOK — 92C
SEK 3,081 21,54t
ARS 1,581,86 1,211,311
Ch$ 2,053,57. 2,752,911
ARS 749,37t 494,70:
SEK — 131,33t
Chs 1,780,022 974,70(
ARS 132,79( —
UF 13,51( 4,41¢




VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Amount
Currency 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Noncurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment
Net property, plant and equipme Chs$ 209,768,41 219,557,40
Net property, plant and equipme uUsD 26,807,27 21,917,02
Other assets
Other asset Chs$ 15,911,21 19,170,02
Other asset UF 2,636,18 -
Other asset SEK 2,30z -
Other asset ARS 124,61! -
Total asset Chs$ 372,133,78 392,618,11
usD 68,897,19 56,503,74
CAD 2,953,241 2,925,06:
EUR 16,236,40 8,140,39:
GBP 30,113,70 25,820,77
ARS 9,288,82! 11,578,02
REAL 663,54( 3,938,37.
NOK 17,77¢ 2,093,13.
SEK 41,58( 5,074,05.
UF 5,561,27 2,835,42
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Current liabilities

UP TO 90 DAYS 91 DAYS TO 1 YEAR

12-31-2008 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 12-31-2009

Annual average

Annual average

Annual average

Annual average

Current liabilities Currency Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate
Shor-term bank dekt Ch$ 70,26¢ — — — 18,948,33 8,5:% 8,809,30i 2,21%
Shor-term bank dek usD 6,292,371 5,89% 4,058,24 0,8% 20,700,59 4,82% 5,110,541 4,2%
Shor-term bank dek UF — — — — 7,072,06. 2,51% — —
Shor-term bank dek EUR 259,34( — — — 2,155,071 6,0% — —
Shor-term bank dek ARS 2,266,03 28.41% 743,20t 16.3(% — — 2,350,09: 15,61%
Current maturities of long

term bank dek UF 116,78¢ 4,85% — — — — 1,047,95! 4,85%
Current maturities of long

term bank dek Ch$ 2,241,67: 5,22% — — 3,512,38i 6,05% — —
Current maturities of long

term bank dek ARS 607,06¢ 15,7% — — 2,040,89 11.01% — —
Current maturities of long

term bank dek usbD 94,29¢ 4,3¢% 2,665,76! — 1,278,96: 3,9%% 2,752,991 4,5%
Current maturities of long

term bank dek UF 45,19¢ 5.8¢% 688,88t 5.88% 134,26: 5,88% — —
Bonds payabl UF — — — — 1,574,46: — 7,906,71. —
Current portion of long-

term debt

due to banks and financia

institutions ARS 75,55¢ 15,7¢% 60.53¢ 15,7¢% 191,28( 15,7¢% 163,70: 15,7¢%
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Current liabilities
Dividends payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Accounts payabl
Notes payabl
Notes payabl
Notes payabli
Notes payabl
Notes payabl
Notes payabli
Notes payabli

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Current liabilities

( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant

UP TO 90 DAYS

91 DAYS TO 1 YEAR

F-63

12-31-2008 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
Annual
Annual Annual Annual average
average average average interest
Currency Amount interest rate Amount interest rate  Amount interest rate Amount rate

Chs 1,767,57. — 85,14: — — — 1,857,69' —
Chs 29,209,86 — 29,321,57 — — — — —
ARS 1,970,76! — 1,618,85: — — — — —
usD 447,71 — 326,89: — — — — —
EUR 236,87t — 68,74 — — — — —
GBP 8,287,961 — 4,154,95! — — — — —
UF 3,555,40! — — — — — — —
CAD 63 — 59 — — — — —
SEK — — 714,88 — — — — —
NOK — — 105,40( — — — — —
REAL 879,67 — 3,415,45; — — — — —
Ch$ 15,907 — — — — — — —
REAL — — 9,03( — — — — —
ARS 2,647,96! — 2,669,63 — — — — —
uUsD 445,68! — 152,04¢ — — — — —
CAD — — 16,10¢ — — — — —
EUR 357,16! — 152,10: — — — — —
SEK 8,96¢ — — — — — — —
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Current liabilities

UP TO 90 DAYS 91 DAYS TO 1 YEAR
12-31-2008 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
Annual average Annual average Annual average Annual average

Current liabilities Currency Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate
Notes and accounts payable to

related companie Ch$ 3,537,40: — 2,479,22. — — — — —
Other accounts payak Chs 351,26t — 520,17¢ — — — — —
Other accounts payak UsD 799,74t — 281,74¢ — — — — —
Other accounts payakt CAD 144,31: — 15,78« — — — — —
Other accounts payakt EUR 744,39( — 54,35 — — — — —
Other accounts payakt UF 284,46. — — — — — — —
Other accounts payakt GBP 10,55¢ — 7,56¢ — — — — —
Other accounts payakt NOK — — 7,18¢ — — — — —
Other accounts payakt SEK 60 — 12,70¢ — — — — —
Other accounts payak REAL — — 8,42¢ — — — — —
Accrued expense Ch$ 5,531,441 — 14,296,52 — — — — —
Accrued expense CAD 1,411,441 — 867,41: — — — — —
Accrued expense USsD 8,821,80 — 4,997,76! — — — — —
Accrued expense GBP 8,685,37! — 3,430,39 —_ —_ —_ —_ —_
Accrued expense EUR 3,835,66! — 3,008,31! — — — — —
Accrued expense UF 375,00 — 144,59( — — — — —
Accrued expense ARS 729,94( — 1,780,99 — — — — —
Accrued expense NOK — — 88,03( — — — — —
Accrued expense SEK — — 236,76 — — — — —
Accrued expense REAL 7,31t — 679,03( — — — — —
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Current liabilities

UP TO 90 DAYS 91 DAYS TO 1 YEAR
12-31-2008 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 12-31-2009
Annual Annual
average average Annual Annual

Current interest interest average average
liabilities Currency Amount rate Amount rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate
Withholdings Chs$ 2,126,49: — 2,235,97. — — — — —
Withholdings CAD 5,53¢ — 5,27¢ — — — — —
Withholdings uUsD 952,55¢ — 803,92( — — — — —
Withholdings EUR 90,35¢ — 74,32¢ — — — — —
Withholdings UF 6,30¢ — 6,45¢ — — — — —
Withholdings GBP 966,44 — — — — — — —
Withholdings CHF — — 20 — — — — —
Withholdings SEK — — 2,109,80! — — — — —
Withholdings NOK — — 1,324,55: — — — — —
Withholdings ARS 473,13: — 445,47 — — — — —
Withholdings REAL 20,45¢ — 605,53( — — — — —
Income taxes

payable Ch$ 411,95! — 3,270,87 — — — — —
Income taxes

payable GBP 143,64: — 185,99 — — — — —
Income taxes

payable REAL — — 105,28t — — — — —
Income taxes

payable NOK — — 24,60¢ — — — — —
Income taxes

payable SEK — — 54,35 — — — — —
Income taxes

payable ARS 94,87¢ — — — — — — —
Deferred revenu Ch$ 898,27( — — — — — — —
Deferred revenu UsD 754,67 — 12,69« — — — — —
Deferred revenu ARS 12,61¢ — — — — — — —
Other current

liabilities Ch$ 80,707 — — — — — — —
Other current

liabilities uUsD 110,15: — — — — — — —
Other current

liabilities EUR 15,18¢ — — — — — — —

Total current

liabilities

F-65




VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Current
liabilities

UP TO 90 DAYS

91 DAYS TO 1 YEAR

12-31-2008 12-31-2009 12-31-2008 12-31-2009

Annual Annual

Annual Annual average average

average average interest interest

Currency Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount rate Amount rate

Ch$ 46,242,81 52,209,49 22,460,72 10,667,00
usD 18,719,00 13,298,50 21,979,55 7,863,53!
UF 4,383,16: 1,788,91 9,828,74i 7,906,71.
EUR 5,538,97! 3,357,84. 2,155,07 —
GBP 18,093,98 7,778,91 — —
ARS 8,877,95! 7,318,70 2,232,17 2,513,79.
CAD 1,561,36! 904,64( — —
REAL 907,44 4,822,75 — —
SEK 9,02¢ 3,128,51 — —
NOK — 1,549,77 — —
CHF — 20 — —
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2009

1to 3 years 3 to 5 years 5to 10 years More than 10 years
Annual average Annual average Annual average Annual average
Long-term liabilities Currency Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate
Long-term public deb UF 3,695,80 16.0(% 4,927,731 — 12,319,34 — 17,247,07 —
Long-term bank dek USD 17,494,95 2.18% 1,825,561 2,1¢% — — — —
Long-term bank dek EUR 726,82( — — — — — — —
Long-term bank dek GBP 2,891,441 — — — — — — —
Long-term bank dek ARS 413,79t 16,0(% — — — — — —
Long-term accrued expens ARS 554,66« 15,7¢% — — — — — —
Amount payable to related
companies UF 1,644,25! — — — — — — —
Long-term accrued expens Ch$ — — 1,633,92 — — —_ —_ —_
Long-term deferred taxe Ch$ 4,230,08! — 13,81 — 33,37¢ — 9,337,05: —
Total long-term liabilities
UF 5,360,05! 4,927,731 12,319,34 17,247,07
uUsD 17,494,95 1,825,561 — —
Ch$ 4,230,08! 1,647,73 33,37¢ 9,337,05:
EUR 726,82( — — —
GBP 2,891,441 — — —
ARS 968,46( — — —
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Note 30 - Foreign and domestic currency, continued

Long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2009

1to 3 years 3 to 5 years 5to 10 years More than 10 years
Annual average Annual average Annual average Annual average
Long-term liabilities Currency Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate
Long-term bank dek UF 7,335,70 4.85% — — — — — —
Long-term bank dek USD 11,468,09 3.9%% 4,477,04. 4.36% — — — —
Long-term bank dek ARS 3,067,43 12.8% — — — — — —
Other lon¢-term accounts payah UF 4,931,56: 3.9(% 4,931,56: 3.9% 12,328,91 3.9% 18,493,37 3.9(%
Long-term accrued expens UF 93,64¢ 5.88% — — — — — —
Long-term accrued expens ARS 635,02« 15.7¢% 379,75! 15.7¢% — — — —
Amount payable to related
companies UF 725,38t — 369,13. — 604,54! — 203,38t —
Long-term accrued expens Ch$ — — — — 1,573,12: — — —
Long-term deferred taxe Ch$ 5,070,97 — 12,29¢ — 29,72 — 9,144,88! —
Total long-term liabilities
UF 13,086,31 5,300,701 12,933,46 18,696,76
usD 11,468,09 4,477,04. — —
Ch$ 5,070,97. 12,29¢ 1,602,85! 9,144,89i
ARS 3,702,36. 379,75} — —
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Note 31 - Sanctions
Chilean Superintendency of Securities and Insurd8&S)

As of December 31, 2009, the Company and its sigrsd, directors and/or managers have not beeectuio any fines or sanctions by the Chilean Supamdence ¢
Securities and Insurance.

From other administrative authoritie

Vifia Conchay Toro S.A.

On April 4, 2007, Vifa Concha y Toro S.A. was rietif by the Cordillera Communal Inspec®Office of a fine for 27 Monthly Tax Units with gpect of which th
Company presented its administrative appeal teliaege through N.7903/07/027-1, internal contrahbar 70002. The respective outcome is still pending

On August 22, 2007, Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. wasdfiedtby the Metropolitan Region Ministerial RegadrSecretarys Office of a fine of 150 Monthly Tax Units rela
to a breach of employeesafety under internal control number 70014. Thst finstance verdict was unfavorable for the Compa&igwever an appeal was filed. ~
audience for this appeal is still pending.

On August 20, 2007, Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. wasfiedt by the Communal InspectsrOffice of San Vicente de Tagua Tagua of a firre6fd Monthly Tax Units wit
respect of which the Company presented its answehe charge. A settlement was reached under NO/B7@481. The sentence is pending notice to the L
Inspectors’ Office for proper execution of the aglpe

On November 7, 2007, the Lontué Labor Inspest®ffice notified the Company of a fine for 27 Mbiyt Tax Units for a breach to the Labor Code, fdriah the
Company filed an appeal for review under N0.8042/03, internal control number 70021, presentingatponse to the charge. The outcome is still pendi

On November 27, 2007, the Company was notifiedHgy Ltivestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) of adifor 10 Monthly Tax Units against which the Comy
presented an appeal under N0.8042/07/113, inteamatol number 70019. The outcome is still pending.

On January 11, 2008, the Ministerial Regional Sacy&s Office of the Metropolitan Region notified the r@gany of a fine for 200 Monthly Tax Units for whithe
Company had filed a complaint. This fine was paidJanuary 17, 2008 and the Company requested tigigoment of its total amount in conformity witretiChileal
laws.

On March 6, 2009, the Company was notified by theedtock and Agricultural Service (SAG) through M0&f a summoning for the San Ignacio farm undegrim
control number 90029. The resolution is pending.

On April 2, 2009, the Company was notified by theestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) of a fine7oMonthly Tax Units against a warehouse locate@uricéd unde
journal N0.21232/09, internal control number 900R6e resolution is pendin

On April 9, 2008, the Company was notified by threvihcial Labor Inspectos Office of Valparaiso of a fine for 40 Monthly Takits in respect to which the Compi
presented the respective answer to the charge bgritleer 17, 2008. Internal control number 70001ta@repbservations to the evidence presented wiexg: fThe senten
is still pending.

On May 15, 2008, the Company was notified of a semmg according to N.260. The answer to this charge provided on May 23, 2008, journal 80012. Tésolutior
is pending.

On May 14, 2008, the Company was notified by thbdradnspectos Office of San Fernando of a fine for 60 MonthlgxTUnits of which it paid a third on the dat
which it filed the related complaint because time fis not applicable based on the Company’s opirfibe outcome is still pending.

On May 18, 2009, the Company was notified by thédralnspectors Office of Vifia del Mar of a fine for 14 MonthlyaX Units, which is in process under
N.8218/09/4-1,2,4,5 and 6, internal control number 090015. dtieome is still pending.
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Note 31 — Sanctions, continued

On June 9, 2008, the Company was notified by tleiRcial Labor Inspectos Office of Cauquenes of a fine of 41 Monthly Tamitd for which the respective answe
the charge was presented. A report of a drop iffitieeto 24.6 Monthly Tax Units was received. Adégomplaint was filed.

On June 18, 2008, the Company was notified by tioifcial Labor Inspectos Office of Limari of a fine of 55 Monthly Tax Usiffor respect of which the respec
answer to the charge was filed, internal contrehber 80010. The resolution is pending.

On July 10, 2008, the Company was notified by thevidcial Labor Inspectos Office of Talca of a fine for 90 Monthly Tax UgitA complaint was filed on August
2008, internal control number 80016. The resolutsopending.

On July 31, 2008, the Company was notified by trevidcial Labor Inspectos’ Office of Ovalle per Resolution 7956/08/16 ofreefof 40 Monthly Tax Units for whic
the respective answer to the charge was presefttectase is at evidentiary stage.

On September 30, 2008, the Company was notifiethbyCommunal Labor InspecterOffice of Molina of a fine for 67 Monthly Tax Usiper Journal 8042/08/*
Internal control number 080027.

On September 29, 2008, the Company was notifietthéy ivestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) ofiaef for 30 Monthly Tax Units related to the Quide Maipo farn
for which the respective appeal for administratigeonsideration was presented and is recorded untinal control number 80029. The SAG is curreilestigatin
background information related to this case andXhpany is awaiting the final resolution.

On August 29, 2008, the Regional Secretariat oMigstry of Health (Seremi) of the ®liggins Region of Chile issued Sentence No. 2918¢ckwcontemplates a fine °
500 Monthly Tax Units, which was received and tespective legal complaint was filed. This is reesrdinder Internal control number 80030 for whicidence wa
established and the related notice was required.

On September 1, 2008, the Company was notifiechbyLtvestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) of adito the San Javier farm of 50 Monthly Tax Unies fourne
N0.8925/08. Internal control number 90024. Thelleganplaint process is in progre

On September 11, 2008, the Company was notifiethéy ivestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) ofiaef to the San Ignacio farm of 50 Monthly Tax Urpesr Journe
N.9513/08. Internal control number 90025. The legahplaint process is in progre

On September 29, 2008, the Company was notifietthéyCordillera Labor InspectarOffice through Resolution 4124/08/57 issued e Rirque plant, of an amount of
Monthly Tax Unit, of which a third of the fine wasid for consignation on October 23, 2008. Therirgkcontrol number is 80031. A hearing was schedol June 1t
2009, however, the file was lost at the Court. Avrieearing was set for September 8, 2009, but duso was pending. On November 26, 2009, the hgawa:
conducted and testimonies were recorded. The summéor the hearing is still pending.

On September 29, 2008, the Company was notifietheyLimari Provincial Labor InspectsrOffice of a fine of 40 Monthly Tax Units for tHes Acacios farm ps
Resolution 7956/08/23. The respective answer teliaege was presented. The internal control nunst@0032. On August 10, 2009, the Inspect®ffice filed an appe
on the initial favorable outcome. On August 25, 20Bie case was heard at the Court La Serena,raNdeember 16, 2009, the Court heared the allegaémd confirme
the favorable verdict. The Company is awaiting thatcase is heard at the Supreme Court.

On September 5, 2008, the Company was notifiechbyQordillera Provincial Inspectsr’Office of a fine of 60 Monthly Tax Unit for thergue plant. This case w
considered and there will be no legal complaine Ppayment of this fine is pending.

On September 5, 2008, the Company was notifiedhkyLivestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) of adiof 20 Monthly Tax Units. A request for admirgdive
reconsideration was filed.

On November 17, 2008, the Company was notifiedheySan Vicente Labor Inspector’s Office of a fifeld0 Monthly Tax Units per Resolution 3700/08/0623
internal control number 80038. The complaint wasdfand the resolution is pending.
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Note 31 - Sanctions continued

On November 26, 2008, the Company was notifiedHey €ardenal Caro Labor InspectoOffice of Cardenal Caro a fine of 40 Monthly Tdgits filed against tF
Ucuquer farm per Resolution No. 8219/08/26, intecaatrol number 80045. The complaint was filedhittie respective Labor Inspec®Office and the resolution is s
pending.

On December 1, 2008, the Company was notified byPitovincial Labor Inspectar’Office of San Vicente of a fine of 120 MonthlyxTdnits charged and issued age
the Rucahue farm per Resolution 3700/08/Q7-internal control number 80042. The evidenegetcommenced and the hearing was set on Dece@p@0@9. Th
notice is pending.

On September 11, 2008, the Company was notifiesligir record N0263 by the Livestock and Agricultusarvice (SAG) of a fine,internal control numbe088. The
legal complaint was filed and a resolution is pegdi

On February 4, 2009, the Company was noticed by #fer Inspectos Office of Curico, of a fine of Monthly Tax Uniis progress. Record N.8063/09/11,internal co
number 90006. A legal complaint has been filed thedhotice of the sentence is still pending

On August 29, 2008, the Company was noticed byRibgional Secretariat of the Ministry of Health (&ar) of the OHiggins Region of Chile of a fine of 800 Mont
Tax Units. The fine was reduced to 200 Monthly Thits and it was paid on February 23, 2009, re¢d@2811 from fine 70017, internal control number @00

On July 7, 2009, the Company was noticed by theotdtspectors Office of Curico, of a fine of 240 Monthly Tax s internal control number 90020. A request
administrative reconsideration was filed. The reSoh is pending.

On August 5, 2009, the Company was noticed by iheati Provincial Labor Inspecta’Office of a fine of 80 Tax Unit against El Trapécfarm internal control numk
90030. A request for administrative reconsiderati@as filed. The resolution is pending.

On June 19, 2009, the Company was noticed by theaRrovincial Labor Inspecta’Office of a fine of 32 Monthly Tax Units agairtee Santa Raquel farm, inter
control number 90037. A request for administrateeonsideration was filed. The resolution is pegdin

On July 6, 2009, the Company was noticed by thedred) Secretariat of the Ministry of Health (Sergwii the Maule Region of a fine of 5 Monthly Tax ithimpose:
against the Lourdes farm, internal control numi@93B. This fine was paid on September 2009.

On October 20, 2009, the Company was noticed byviaiegu Community Labor InspectarOffice of a fine of 140 Monthly Tax Units, intedncontrol number 90044.
legal complaint has been filed.

Vifia Cono Sur S.A.

On January 7, 2009, the Company was noticed byr#wonal Secretariat of the Ministry of Health @&wi) of the OHiggins Region of a fine of 80 Monthly Tax Ur
Journal N0.99/09. On January 13, 2009, the allegativere presented and on May 14, 2009, an unfalosgntence was provided. An appeal for recorsiiger wa:
filed.internal control number 090019. The resolnti® pending.

On August 29, 2008, the Company received resolutBit6/08/52 from the San Antonio Provincial Laboesgectors Office of a fine of 15 Monthly Tax Units for win
the related justification of the defense was prekrA resolution is still pending and a requestafdministrative reconsideration was presented.

On September 3, 2009, the Company was noticed dys#n Antonio Provincial Labor Inspec®Office of a fine of 26 Minimum Monthly Revenuetérnal contrc
number 90047. The justification of the defense prasented and a resolution is still pending.
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Note 31 - Sanctions continued

Comercial Peumo Ltda.

On July 28, 2008, the Company was noticed by thedaTaabor Inspectos Office through resolution 3820/08/05 of a fineldflinimum Monthly Revenue, internal cont
number 80019. The related justification of the detewas presented.

On September 30, 2008, the Company received aenfatica lawsuit in the Fourth Court of Talca fdiiree in the amount of Ch$10,520,3587 plus inteagst adjustmen
for the unjustified dismissal of José Antonio NeéRajas. The case is at the evidentiary stage.

On December 10, 2008, the Company was notifiechbyLivestock and Agricultural Service (SAG) of adiissued for the commercialization of a produdtregistered i
the Registry of Alcoholic Beverage. The respectimewer to the charge was presented. The resolstjmending.

On March 3, 2008, the Company was noticed by thedtock and Agricultural Service (SAG) of a fineldf Monthly Tax Units under journal N.232/08, imtak contro
number 80003. A request for administrative recaoersition was presented with the National Directdre Tesolution is pending.

On March 19, 2009, the Company was noticed by theliera Labor Inspectos’ Office of a fine of 270 Monthly Tax Units and gés the fact that the plaintiff waiv
the lawsuit, the fine is still applicable. The Camny filed a request for reconsideration of time forch. The notice is pending. Internal control n@nB0009.

On June 9, 2009, the Company was noticed by thetdd®Montt Provincial Labor Inspecta’Office of an administrative fine of 213 MonthlaX Units, internal contr
number 90022. The resolution is pending.

Note 32 - Subsequent events

On February 27, 2010, and earthquake struck théhsmumtral region of Chile knocking down buildings frastucture, utilities and triggering a tsunami,cag othe
damages. As a result of the earthquake, many dEtmpanys warehouses, located in Peumo, Pencahue and Lsuffieéed loss of their bulk wine and finished prod
for an aggregate loss of 22.8 million liters.

By March 31, 2010, the Company recognized in tfirancial statements an amount of ThCh$14,667,@2&ted to impaired inventories and expenses indutrugl
that date related to clean up activities, debripasal, asset repair,and other expenses incurretthdomitigation of losses resulting from busin@gerruption. Thes
amounts are duly covered by insurance policiesvaeie recorded as receivables. This amount doesnolotde amounts related to the disposal of propgognt an
equipment. The Company is currently working in fgrecess of classification of those assets which lval ultimately disposed of. The Company maintaimsiranc
policies against earthquake and related effectdl aisks covering the total sum of those impaiesdets including damages from business interrupfiba compensatic
limit for both physical goods and assets and dasmégen business interruption amount to a total & 20,417,917. These insurance policies contemplateductibl
amount of 2% of the amount insured by location waitinaximum amount of UF 10,000 and maximum terrbOoflays for damages from business interruption.

At the Board of DirectorsMeeting of April 26, 2010, the directors agreedlistribute with a charge to net income for 200€nal dividend No. 239 of Ch$16.20 per st
which will be paid on May 14, 2010 (this amounadded to those dividends distributed as provisidhatlends, with a charge to net income for 2000sN236 and 2:
for an amount of Ch$2.50 per share for each pai&eptember 30 and December 30, 2009, respectaetydividend No. 238 for Ch$2.50 per share paidianch 31
2010).

At the same meeting, the directors agreed to miaitit@ Dividend Policy whereby the Company disttésu40% of net income. In line with this, the BoafdDirector:
communicated its intent to distribute with a chatg@et income obtained during 2010, dividends d€, 241 and 242 of Ch$3.00 each, which will biel pa provision:
on September 30, 2010 (dividend No. 240), and Déeer®9, 2010 (dividend No. 241) and March 31, 2@itidend No. 242). The payment of these provisiainadend:
depends on the Compasy¢ash available for this purpose. A fourth dividievill be paid, if required, to complete 40% of metome for 2010 at a date to be determine
the shareholders at the General Shareholders’ Mgttibe held in 2011.
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Note 32 - Subsequent events, continued

The Company has evaluated subsequent events frenbatance sheet date through the date of issuaintee dChile GAAP consolidated financial statemeats
determined there are no other items to disclose.

Note 33 - Environment

During 2008 and 2009, the Company invested andudisiol funds destined, directly or indirectly, t@ improvement of environmental conditions in compde witl
certain local water use regulations. The detaitheke disbursements is as follows:

Investments
As of December 31
2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Water treatment plan 4,465 —
Expenses
As of December 31
2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Maintenance and supplies of water treatment p 607,351 579,90C

As of December 31, 2009, the net balance of astestiginated to the improvement of the environmerguats to ThCh$2,672,145 (ThCh$2,896,084 in 2008)chvis
presented under buildings and infrastructure anchmary and equipment.

Note 34- Prepaid Expenses
The detail of these is as follows:

As of December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThChy
Next harvest expens 12,427,61 10,360,61
Prepaid ren 727,65: 1,690,51!
Other prepaid expenses 110,27( 7,042
Total 13,265,53 12,058,17
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Note 35 - Sales
The detall of sales is as follows:

For the year ended as of December 3

2007 2008 2009
ThCh $ ThCh $ ThCh $
Sale of wine 292,269,82 301,268,64 330,253,98
Sale of bottling service 1,292,66. 1,500,00: 1,951,56.
Sale of other products 10,504,58 11,987,28 21,389,19
Total sales 304,067,07 314,755,93 353,594,73

Note 36 — Adoption of International Financial Repoting Standards

In conformity with SVS Circulars Ncs'427 dated December 28, 2007 and 485 dated Novel8h@008 on the process for adopting Internatidir@ancial Reportin
Standards (IFRS), the Company has decided to drisdimancial statements in 2009 as proformarfoial statements (not comparative to 2008 finarst@iements).

Consequently, for year 2009 the Company maintathedpresentation of financial statements underllacaounting standards during the entire year 2808 fully
implemented IFRS in 2010, with year 2009 as ths fiear of adoption for IFRS. For statutory purgsee Company prepared and filed with the locglil@tor proforme
IFRS financial statements where they estimated ttr&timpact of implementing IFRS in 2009 would fesun an increase of Chile GAAP earnings for tharyende
December 31, 2009 and Chile GAAP equity as of D31, 2009, by approximately ThCh$5,895,891 am@h$44,852,577, respectively and unaudited.
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Note 37 — Differences between Chilean and United&és generally accepted accounting principles

Chile GAAP varies in certain important respectsrfraccounting principles generally accepted in timitddl States of America (“US GAAP”puch differences invol
certain methods for measuring the amounts showtheface of the financial statements, as well alitiadal disclosures.

1. Differences in measurement method

The principal methods applied in the preparatiothef accompanying financial statements that haselter! in amounts that differ from those that wodtve otherwis
been determined under US GAAP are as follc

a) Inflation accounting

Under Chile GAAP, financial statements are restaa@flect the full effects of the gain (loss)tire purchasing power of the Chilean peso on thenfia
position and results of operations of reportingterst The method is based on a model that enalallesilation of net inflation gains or losses cauby
monetary assets and liabilities exposed to chamgéise purchasing power of local currency, by résgaall nonmonetary accounts in the finan
statements. The model prescribes that the histarist of such accounts be restated for genereg¢fevel changes between the date of origin of eash
and yea-end.

As allowed pursuant to items 17(c)(iv)(A) ofettBecurities Exchange Commission’s (SEC) rules, rahel 3-20 of the SEC’s regulation )>§-the
reconciliation included herein of consolidated imebme, comprehensive income and shareholdgysity, as determined in accordance with US G/
does not include adjustments to eliminate the efiemflation accounting under Chile GAA

b) Goodwill and intangible asset:

Goodwill is an asset representing the future ecoadranefits arising from other assets acquired inugsiness combination that are not individL
identified and separately recognized. For Chile ®AAll intangible assets, including goodwill arsigsed a useful life and are amortized on a sttaigh
line basis. For US GAAP, goodwill is reviewed fonpairment at least annually in accordance withpravisions of Financial Accounting Stande
Board’s (FASB), Accounting Standards Codificatié&f8C) Topic 350)ntangibles — Goodwill and OtherThe goodwill impairment test is a tvatep tes
Under the first step, the fair value of the repagtunit is compared with its carrying value (inachgigoodwill). If the fair value of the reportingit is les:
than its carrying value, an indication of goodwitipairment exists for the reporting unit and théegorise must perform step two of the impairmest
(measurement). Under step two, an impairment ®sedognized for any excess of the carrying amotitite reporting unis goodwill over the implie
fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair valugf goodwill is determined by allocating the faimlue of the reporting unit in a manner similar
purchase price allocation and the residual faio@alfter this allocation is the implied fair valothe reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of theporting
unit is determined using a discounted cash flowlyaia If the fair value of the reporting unit excks its carrying value, step two does not neece
performed. The Company performs its annual impamtreview of goodwill at December 1, and when @dering event occurs between an
impairment tests

The Company performed the annual impairment tefsgoodwill required by the standard, and the teladsnot result in any impairment. The effect:
reversing goodwill amortization for Chile GAAP fradanuary 1, 2002 are included in the reconciliatioparagraph 1I)

Additionally, for Chile GAAP purposes, all imgible assets are assigned a useful life and acetiaed on a straightne basis over their useful lives. 1

Company has determined that intangible assets ipi@dato telephone line rights and water rights énamdefinite lives for US GAAP purpos
Nonetheless, as the amortization expense for alisyeresented has not been significant, no revisrpa¢sented in paragraph :

F-75




VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant
Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

©)

d)

e)

Investment in debt and equity securities

In accordance with accounting principles gelheeccepted in Chile, investment securities aegest at the lower of prickevel restated cost or fair vali
Gains are recorded only when realized. The investsnehich the Company holds are stated at gdecel restated cost at December 31, 2007, 200
2009. For US GAAP purposes, the Company'’s portfofimvestment securities has been classified agadle-forsale and are recorded at fair value
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 3Xvestments — Debt and Equity Securif#sASB ASC Topic 320").Consequently, unrealized holding gains
losses net of related tax effects excluded fromiegs and are reported as a separate componequity @ Other Comprehensive Income until reali.
No othe-than-temporary impairments were recorded for thesslable-forsale investment securities for the years ended bieee 31, 2007, 2008,
2009. The required disclosures for investmentssiflad as available-fogale in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 320 are showparagraph 2 d). T
effect of this difference is included in the recitintion of shareholde’ equity in paragraph 1) beloy

Revaluation of fixed asset:

As mentioned in Note 9 d), certain fixed assetsreperted in the financial statements at amountsrogned in accordance with technical appraisais
revaluation of fixed assets is an accounting ppilecthat is not generally accepted in the Uniteate3t The effects of the reversal of this revatumatr
property, plant and equipment, the related accutedldepreciation, the depreciation charge for gaelr and the income impact on the sale/dispo
these assets is shown under paragraph | k) b

Capitalized interest

Under Chile GAAP, all interest on debt specificadlysociated with a construction project must betalgged. Capitalization of interest on other dabt
specifically associated with construction projésteptional. Such capitalized interest include®ifgn-exchange gains/losses, if applicable, on borrow
Interest is capitalized based on the Company’s ket average interest rate on Idegm debt, or if applicable, the interest rate tedlato specifi
borrowings. Interest capitalization ends when thaperty or equipment is ready for service or itemed use, at which point depreciation on thet
begins.

Under US GAAP, capitalization of interest on quatify assets under construction is required, antesponds to the amount of interest which could
been avoided had the construction projects not eetred into. Amounts capitalized under Chile GA®Rted to foreign currency exchange gains
losses and the related monetary gain or loss @igforcurrency borrowings for construction costs fingsreversec

Beginning in 1994, the Company began to capitatizerest for Chile GAAP purposes relative to quati§ assets (consisting principally of storage
aging containers and vineyards, which require B y@ars to be ready for production) during theqebthat such assets are being constructed or e
for productive use and in conformity with US GAARdtment. Subsequently, the amount of interestalgad each year has been the same for bo
and Chile GAAP purposes. The adjustment includeguiiagraph 11) below corresponds to the amounapitalized interest for US GAAP purposes [
to 1994 and its associated amortization under tilaggbtline method based on the estimated useful livahefelated assets. Under Chile GAAP inte
was never capitalized prior to 19¢
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

f)

Deferred income taxes

Prior to December 31, 1999, deferred taxes wereremgnized for Chile GAAP. Starting January 1, @0the Company recorded income taxe
accordance with Technical Bulletin No. 60 of thell€ssociation of Accountants, recognizing througk liability method, the deferred tax effect:
temporary differences between the financial andvikes of assets and liabilities. As a transitigmmavision, a contra (referred to as “complemeyitar
asset and liability was recorded offsetting theef of the deferred tax assets and liabilitiesractrded prior to January 1, 2000. Such compleany
asset and liability is being amortized to incomerothe estimated reversal periods correspondirtheainderlying temporary differences to which
deferred tax asset or liability relates. For US GApurposes, deferred taxes were recognized on grebensive basis for all periods presente
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805-7#ome Taxes Therefore, the principal difference between CBIRAP and US GAAP related to defer
taxes is the reversal of the amortization of thegiementary deferred tax asset and liability actouecorded under Chile GAA

Additionally, the Company has recognized the defitax effect related to other US GAAP adjustméms give rise to temporary differences. The e
of accounting for deferred taxes under US GAAMIduded in the reconciliation of consolidated metome and shareholdessequity in paragraph :
below.

Provision for restructuring

In prior years, the Company had made a prawifio restructuring principally related to otime termination benefits. Under Chile GAAP, thesst:
may be recognized once the approval of the BoarDictors has taken place. Under US GAAP, thisvigion did not meet the requirements ur
FASB ASC Topic 71Zompensation — NonretirementPostemployment Bemeféted to communication to the designated empky&ke provision

therefore reversed in the net income and sharetdldquity reconciliation from Chile GAAP and then reded as expense under US GAAP whe
qualifies as an incurred cost as per US GAAP (pamaygll).

Comprehensive income
The Company presents comprehensive incometarminponents with the objective of reporting a soee of all changes in shareholdezguity tha

result from transactions and other economic evehtie period other than transactions with own@@mprehensive income is the total net income
other nor-owner equity transactions that result in changesjinty.

F-77




VINA CONCHA Y TORO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
( Restated for general price-level changes andesspd in thousands of constant

Chilean pesos as of December 31, 2009)

Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

The following represents accumulated other compreilie income balance, net of taxes, for the yeade@ December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2(

Holding
unrealized gains
(losses) Tax effect CTA(1) Total
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Beginning balanc 253,84: (43,157) (3,217,001 (3,006,311
Reclassification to earnings from sale of shi (45,980 7,817 — (38,167
Earnings effect for foreign net investment (Noti¢ — — (1,131,83) (1,131,83)
(Debit) credit for the year in available-for-sakecurities (31,587) 5,36¢ — (26,214
Ending balanc 176,28( (29,96 (4,348,83) (4,202,52)
Year ended December 31, 20C
Holding
unrealized gains
(losses) Tax effect CTA(1) Total
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Beginning balanc 176,28( (29,96 (4,348,83) (4,202,52)
Earnings effect for foreign net investment (Not¢ — — 2,213,50 2,213,50
(Debit) credit for the year in available-for-sakecurities (69,017 11,73 — (57,28¢)
Ending balanc 107,26: (18,239 (2,135,33) (2,046,30)
Year ended December 31, 20C
Holding
unrealized gains
(losses) Tax effect CTA(1) Total
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Beginning balanc 107,26: (18,239 (2,135,33) (2,046,30)
Earnings effect for foreign net investment (Noti¢ — — 665,08: 665,08:
(Debit) credit for the year in ca-flow hedges (Note 1 11,081,47 (1,883,85) — 9,197,62!
(Debit) credit for the year in available-for-sakecurities (185,66 31,56¢ — (154,104
Ending balanc 11,003,07 (1,870,52) (1,470,24) 7,662,30:
1) Reflects the effect of exchange losses for themetstment hedge in Bodegas VifiedosTrivento S.AAfgentina purposes on the comprehensive in

Year ended December 31, 20C

at the beginning of each period, adjusted to congt@sos of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

i)

Derivatives

Under Chile GAAP, derivatives are accountedifiorccordance with Technical Bulletin 57, “Accogt for Derivative Contracts” (“TB 57”)Under TE
57, all derivative financial instruments shouldreeognized on the balance sheet at their fair vatuaddition, TB 57 requires that derivative fical
instruments be classified as Nbeedging (investment) instruments and Hedging imsémnts, the latter further divided into those cawgriexisting
transactions and those covering anticipated traiosec

Contracts to cover existing transactions hedgenag#tie risk of a change in the fair value of ageetitem. The differences resulting from the chang
the fair value of both the hedged item and thevadirie instrument should be accounted for as fadlc

a. Ifthe net effect is a loss, it should be recogdireearnings in the period of chan
b. Ifthe net effect is a gain, it should be recogdimnéen the contract is closed and accordingly dedeon the balance she

c. If the net effect is a gain and net losses wererdsd on the transaction in prior years, a gairukhbe recognized in earnings in the cur
period up to the amount of net losses recordedqusly.

d. If the effect is a net loss and net gains werendsmb (as a deferred revenue) on the transactipnidn years, the gain should be utilized to of
the net loss before recording the remaining logkeérresults of operations for the ye

Hedges of forecasted transactions are recorddtk @stimated fair value, with the correspondingngair losses deferred and recorded as offsettiseg:
or liabilities until settlement, at which time thaye recognized in earninc

Under US GAAP, the Company accounts for dereatand hedging activities in accordance with FASBC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging
which requires entities to recognize all derivatimstruments as either assets or liabilities on lih&ance sheet at their respective fair values
derivatives designated in hedging relationshipangdes in the fair value are either offset througimiegs against the change in fair value of thegke
item attributable to the risk being hedged or redzed in accumulated other comprehensive incomtheaxtent the derivative is effective at offse
the changes in cash flows being hedged until thigée item affects earninc

The Company only enters into derivative contralt it intends to designate as a hedge of a foretdasansaction or the variability of cash flowsbi
received or paid related to a recognized asseatbility (cash flow hedge). For all hedging relatships, the Company formally documents the hec
relationship and its riskhanagement objective and strategy for undertakiadhedge, the hedging instrument, the hedged thosathe nature of the ri
being hedged, how the hedging instrumeeffectiveness in offsetting the hedged risk b@llassessed prospectively and retrospectivelyaatesbcriptio
of the method used to measure ineffectiveness.Cldrepany also formally assesses, both at the irmepti the hedging relationship and on an ong
basis, whether the derivatives that are used igihgdrelationships are highly effective in offsegfichanges in cash flows of hedged transactiom:
derivative instruments that are designated andfgjues part of a cash flow hedging relationshi #ifective portion of the gain or loss on the d=tive
is reported as a component of other comprehensoane and reclassified into earnings in the sameger periods during which the hedged transa
affects earnings. Gains and losses on the derevaipresenting either hedge ineffectiveness or énetgnponents excluded from the assessme
effectiveness are recognized in current earni
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

K)

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prosedctivhen it determines that the derivative is oagler effective in offsetting cash flows attribue
to the hedged risk, the derivative expires or ig,serminated, or exercised, the cash flow hedgéedesignated because a forecasted transactim
probable of occurring, or management determinesetoove the designation of the cash flow hedge.llisimations in which hedge accounting
discontinued and the derivative remains outstandimgCompany continues to carry the derivativiesefair value on the balance sheet and recogring
subsequent changes in its fair value in earningseM\it is probable that a forecasted transactidh neit occur, the Company discontinues he
accounting and recognizes immediately in earningimsgand losses that were accumulated in other iE@repsive income related to the hed
relationship

The Company enters into forward foreign exchang@reots in order to hedge its risk against exchamagge fluctuations. Such fluctuations in exche
rates are correlated with our wine sales denonhiatéoreign currencies. Under Chile GAAP, all uadized fair value fluctuations of the derivativesvk
been deferred. Under US GAAP, such contracts f&724hd 2008 were not designated as hedges, ther@idiair value fluctuations of the derivati
were recorded through earnings. However for 2089 Gompany had designated and documented the ceiacash flow hedges, therefore the effe
portion attributable to the fair value changeshef derivatives are recorded through eqt

Additionally, the Company entered into a hedget®fiet investment in Argentina in 2004. Under CIBI&AP the documentation requirements for
hedge were met. Under US GAAP, specifically, asGoenpany had not detailed how the hedging instrusheffectiveness in offsetting the chang
fair value would be assessed, the designationeofi¢ investment as a hedge under US GAAP did unalifyg.

The reconciliations’ of the Company’s sharekaiiequity and net income as of and for the year efszbmber 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009 in parag
1l include the adjustments for differences in datiie treatment mentioned abo'

Dividends

The Company has a legal obligation to declare @yddividends equal to at least 30% of consolidattdncome as determined in accordance with ¢
GAAP. Accordingly, an adjustment was made in theoagpanying US GAAP stockholdersquity reconciliation in paragraph 1l) to recognis
dividends the difference between the dividendsndim as provisional dividends under Chile GAAP #relminimum dividend requiremel

Noncontrolling interests

Under Chile GAAP, the ownership interests in sulasies held by parties other than the parent, fisrred to as minority interest and is accountec
presented as an item between liabilities and eduithe consolidated balance sheets and as pagtahcome in the consolidated statements of inc
Before 2009, this was consistent with US GAAP asAmeounting Research Bulletin No. &bnsolidated Financial Statementslowever, on January
2009, the Company adopted FASB Statement M@®controlling Interests in Consolidated Financitiatements — an amendment of ARB NASIC
Topic 810Consolidation) which requires certain changes to the presemtatidhe financial statements. This amendment requioncontrolling interes
(previously referred to as minority interest) toddassified in the consolidated statements of ire@s part of consolidated net earnings and to diecthe
accumulated amount of noncontrolling interestshim ¢onsolidated balance sheets as part of equlisp, £is amendment establishes a single meth
accounting for changes in a parentwnership interest in a subsidiary that do netltein deconsolidation. If a change in ownershia@onsolidate
subsidiary results in loss of control and decomtsdion, any retained ownership interests are reanedswith the gain or loss reported in net earni
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

The reconciliations’ of the Company’s sharekaiiequity and net income as of and for the year efimtbmber 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009 in parag
1l include the effects of the differences on présgmoncontrolling interest:

) Effects of conforming to US GAAP
The following is a reconciliation of consolidateetincome under Chile GAAP to the corresponding@fSAP amounts

Years ended December 3.

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Net income under Chile GAA 36,236,87 34,343,39 44,160,44
Reversal of goodwill amortization (par. 1 83,88t¢ 83,88¢ 83,88¢
Reversal of additional depreciation of revaluatigrtechnical appraisal (par. 1 15,15( 15,17( 14,18
Depreciation on capitalized interest (par. : (53,367) (53,367) (49,000
Deferred taxes (par. 1 233,28t 235,55 36,997
Deferred tax effect of US GAAP adjustments (paf). 27,54t 30,81¢ 8,33(
Foreign net investment effect (par. : 1,054,85! (2,213,50) (665 ,08)
Provision for restructuring (par. 1 g) (108,66 (128,57 —
Net income attributable to Chile GAAP minority irgst (par. 1 k 9,29 23 8
Net income attributable to shareholders of the Camgpunder US GAAI 37,498,85 32,313,40 43,589,76
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interestsler US GAAF (9,297) (23) (8)
Net income under US GAA 37,489,56 32,313,38 43,589,76
Other comprehensive income attributable to theedt@ders of the Company under US

GAAP:
Unrealized holding losses on availe-for-sale securities, net of taxes (par. : (72,19 (57,28¢) (154,104
Unrealized holding gains on cash flow hedges, heb@s (par. 1 i — — 9,197,62!
Foreign net investment effect (par. 1 i) (1,131,83) 2,213,50 665,08-
Total comprehensive income attributable to theedmalders of the Company under US

GAAP: 36,294,82 34,469,63 53,298,37
Total comprehensive loss attributable to noncoliginterests under US GAAP (9,297) (23) (8)
Total comprehensive income under US GAAP 36,285,53 34,469,60 53,298,36
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

The following is a reconciliation of consolidatdiaseholder equity differences under Chile GAAP to the corregfing amounts under US GAA

As of December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$
Shareholder’ equity under Chile GAAI 257,041,81 307,408,92
Reversal of goodwill amortization (par. 1 633,77t 717,66«
Investment securities (par. 1 107,26: (78,40%)
Revaluation of technical appraisal, cost (par. (3,738,88) (3,712,53))
Accumulated depreciatic- technical appraisal (par. 1 1,450,811 1,439,99:
Capitalized interest (par. 1 1,310,541 1,310,541
Accumulated depreciation on capitalized intereat.(fa €) (939,839 (988,839
Deferred taxes (par.1 (1,720,29) (1,683,29)
Deferred tax effect of US GAAP adjustments (paf). (118,55)) (1,994,07)
Minimum dividend (par. 1 j (4,659,14) (7,687,66))
Cash flow hedges (par.1 — 11,081,47
Provision for restructuring (par. 1 g) 219,39¢ 219,39¢
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Compamger US GAAF 249,586,89 306,033,17
Equity attributable to noncontrolling interests end)S GAAP 7 (4)
Equity under US GAAP 249,586,89 306,033,17

The following summarizes the changes in equityitattable to the shareholders of the Company und®GAAP during the years ended December 31, 20008 20«
2009:

2008 2009

ThCh$ ThCh$
Balance as of January 229,280,84 249,586,89
Dividends paic (8,616,319 (8,802,65)
Provisional dividend (5,643,87.) (5,543,98)
Capital increas — 20,544,55
Mandatory dividends, previous d: 4,742,46! 4,659,14!
Mandatory dividends, closing de (4,659,14) (7,709,149
Unrealized holding losses on availe-for-sale investments, net of tax (43,985 (154,109
Foreign net investment effe 2,213,50° 665,08¢
Unrealized holding gains on cash flow hedges, hebe@s — 9,197,62!
Net income per US GAA 32,313,38 43,589,76!
Balance as of December 31 249,586,89 306,033,17

The changes in equity attributable to noncontrgliimterests for the years ended December 31, ZIWR and 2009 were not significant.
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:
2. Additional disclosure requirements

The following disclosures of information are nongeally required for presentation in the finana&@tements under Chile accounting principles, bairequire:
or recommended under US GAA

a) Nature of operations and concentration:
Vifia Concha y Toro S.A. is a vertically-intege company engaged principally in the productiod sale of wine. The ComparsyWwines are sold in ov
135 countries. Foreign operatiorsgiles for 2007, 2008 and 2009 represented 80.5093%, and 79.30% of total sales for each yeapees/ely, an

domestic sales for 2007, 2008 and 2009 represdr@&i%, 18.97%, and 20.7% of total sales for eadr,yrespectively. Foreign operatiossles ar
denominated in foreign currencit

b) Earnings per share

The following disclosure of net income per sharferimation is not required for presentation in thehcial statements under Chile GAAP but is redl
under US GAAP. Earnings per share are determinediviiging consolidated net income by the weightedrage number of total shares outstanc

Years ended December 3.

2007 2008 2009
Ch$, except share de
Basic and diluted earnings per share (based o GAIAP ) (1) 50.3¢ 47.7¢ 59.12
Basic and diluted earnings per share (based on AKPB(1) 52.1% 44.9: 58.3¢
Weighted average number of total shares outstanding 719,170,73 719,170,73 747,005,98
Q) Basic and diluted earnings per share ieeen calculated by dividing net income by thegivieid average number of common shares outstandiimgdhe yea

The Company has not issued convertible debt or aamstock equivalents. Consequently, there are tengially dilutive effects on the earnings of thenpany.
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:
c) Fair value disclosures
0] Disclosures about fair value of financial instrurse
The following table presents the carrying amoumts astimated fair values of the Companfihancial instruments at December 31, 2009 ar@B2Uhe fair value of

financial instrument is the amount that would beereed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifghin an orderly transaction between market papaints at th
measurement date:

Chile GAAP Estimated Chile GAAP Estimated
carrying amount fair value carrying amount fair value
2009 2009 2008 2008
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale 6,992,17. 6,992,17. 3,859,01: 3,859,01
Investment securitie 498,20« 419,79¢ 357,00« 464,26t
Shor-term accounts receivable (n 94,993,82 94,993,82 101,213,14 101,213,14
Notes receivable (ne 3,560,23: 3,560,23. 2,618,49! 2,618,49!
Other receivables (ne 4,436,63! 4,436,63! 4,158,73! 4,158,73!
Derivative instruments (net carrying amou 12,060,59 12,060,59 2,342,36: 2,342,36:
Liabilities:
Shor-term and lon-term bank dek 49,842,72 50,491,26 95,052,29 92,777,38
Commercial pape 5,113,401 5,115,79. — —
Bonds payabli 40,983,27 40,761,45 42,259,89 38,412,91
Dividends payabl 1,942,84. 1,942,84. 1,767,57. 1,767,57.
Shor-term accounts payab 39,726,81 39,726,81 44,588,322 44,588,322
Notes payabl: 2,998,92: 2,998,92: 3,475,68: 3,475,68:
Other accounts payakt 1,462,03 1,462,03 3,443,22. 3,443,22.

The fair values of the financial instruments shdw the previous table as of December 31, 20082809 represent managemeanitest estimates of the amot
that would be received to sell those assets onvtbatd be paid to transfer those liabilities in@derly transaction between market participantbait date. Thos
fair value measurements maximize the use of obbervaputs. However, in situations where therattke] if any, market activity for the asset orHility at the
measurement date, the fair value measurement teflee Company own judgments about the assumptions that maggétipants would use in pricing the a:
or liability. Those judgments are developed by @enpany based on the best information availabtbencircumstances. The following methods and astome
were used to estimate the fair value of each dffsancial instruments

- Cash and cash equivalents, short-term accaestvable, notes receivable, other receivablesdehds payable, shotérm accounts payables, nc
payable and other accounts payable: carrying am@pyroximate the fair value due to their relaghafor-term nature

- Investment securities: estimations of fair value laased on quoted market prices at the reportitegrdaltiplied by the quantity hel:

- Bank debt, commercial paper, and bonds payablefdihealue of bank debt and commercial paper Eeldeon rates currently available and quoted t
Company for debt with similar terms, risks and remmg maturities. The fair value of bonds payalibejuding current portion, is estimated based @
quoted market prices of Ulenominated bonds. If quoted market prices aravaiable, the fair value is determined by discgthe future cash flov
of each instrument at rates that reflect, amongratiings, market interest rates and the Compaengdit standing. In determining an appropriatea tc
reflect its credit standing, the Company considgetds of other longerm debt offered by the Company, and interestsratarently offered to tt
Company for similar debt instruments of comparabéurities by banks that regularly compete to ptevfinancing to the Compan
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

- Derivative instruments: The fair value of derivasvis determined using pricing models developeédas the forward currency curves/rates and
observable market data. Estimates of fair valuesvuich no quoted prices exists have been madegusituation techniques such as forward pri
models and rates, present value of estimated feask flows, and other modeling techniques. Theviliies were adjusted to reflect nonperformarsk
of both the counterparties and the Comp:

(ii) Fair value hierarchy:

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomdsif Statement of Financial Accounting Standaod M67,Fair Value Measuremenféncluded in ASC Topic 82
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu), for fair value measurements of financial asseis financial liabilities and for fair value measoments of norinancial item:
that are recognized or disclosed at fair valudh@nfinancial statements on a recurring basis. SEB&defines fair value as the price that woulddeeived to sell an as
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly tracsion between market participants at the measuredae. SFAS 157 also establishes a frameworknasuring fair valt
and expands disclosures about fair value measutemen

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the pomaf ASC Topic 820 (Statement 157) to fair vatlueasurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfindratiities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair valuégnenfinancial statements on a nonrecurring basis. Gdmpany concluded that the adoption of the meetigrovisions di
not have an effect on its financial statement dsates.

SFAS 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy thatrifizes the inputs to valuation techniques usednieasure fair value. The hierarchy gives the hglpeiority tc
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for tidahassets or liabilities (Level 1 measuremerasyl the lowest priority to measurements involvingnsicant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Thee tlewvels of the fair value hierarchy are as fofow

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) itiveacmarkets for identical assets or liabilitiesatttthe Company has the ability to access a
measurement date.

. Level 2 inputs are inputs other thaotgd prices included within Level 1 that are obaéte for the asset or liability, either directlyindirectly.
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpotghe asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within whiehfair measurement in its entirety falls is basadtte lowest level input that is significant to thaér value
measurement in its entirety.

The following table presents assets and liabilitiheg are measured at fair value on a recurring lfacluding items that are required to be meadatefair value and iter
for which the fair value option has been elected)ecember 31, 2008 and 2009, in ThCh$:

USGAAP Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Usig

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs (Leve Significant Unobservable
December 31, 200: Assets (Level 1) 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Assets:
Derivatives $ 2,342,36 — 2,342,36. —
Investment securities $ 464,26t 464,26t — —
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Note 37 — Differences between Chilean and United&és generally accepted accounting principles, cdntied

USGAAP Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Usig

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other
Markets for Identical Observable Inputs (Leve Significant Unobservable
December 31, 200! Assets (Level 1) 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Assets:
Derivatives $ 12,060,59 — 12,060,59
Investment securities $ 419,79¢ 419,79¢ — —
d) Available-for-sale securities

The following is a summary of availal-for-sale securities

As of December 31, 200

Gross
unrealized Estimated
Cost gains fair value
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Available-for-sale securities:
Investments in equity securiti 357,004 107,263 464,266
As of December 31, 200
Gross
unrealized Estimated
Cost losses fair value
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Available-for-sale securities:
Investments in equity securiti 498,204 (78,405) 419,799

Investment securities as defined under SFAS 11prasented as investments in other companies &asiloed in Note 11) for Chile GAAP purpos
e) Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Compan’s property, plant, and equipment are being depesgtiaver the following useful live

Years

Plantations 15to 20
Buildings and facilities 10to 30
Wine storage equipmer

. Aging barrels (wood 5t07

. Plastic vats 10to 20

. Stainles-steel tank: 20

. Cement tank 30
Machinery and equipme 3t020
Transportation equipme 4t06
Supplies (Containel- shipping and reusable storay 3 years
Other fixed asset 5to8
Computer softwar 3to4
Leased asse 5
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:
f) Income taxes

A significant portion of income attributable to sklaolders of the Company before income taxes, lamdelated income taxes are from Chile subsidii
Income tax expense recognized under US GAAP isllsfs for each year presente

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Charge for the period under Chile GA; 8,688,45: 8,892,20! 8,706,18
US GAAP adjustment:
Deferred tax effect of applying SFAS 1 (233,28¢) (235,55 (36,99)
Deferred tax effect of US GAAP adjustments (27,545 (30,81%) (8,330)
Charge for the period under US GAAP 8,427,62: 8,625,83 8,660,85!

The Chile statutory tax rate in effect for eachttuf years presented was 17% for 2007, 2008 and, 266Pectively. The reconciliation of income
expense as computed at the statutory income taxtodhe provision for income tax expense is devid:

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Tax expense at statutory Chile tax re 7,832,47. 6,959,78. 8,890,31
Increase (decrease) in statutory rates resultomg:i

Nor-deductible expense 589,37} 1,704,85: 690,58
Non-taxable incomt (94,39 (138,86 (1,618,91)
Other 100,17( 100,06: 698,87:
Tax expense at effective tax rates 8,427,62. 8,625,83 8,660,85:
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

Significant components of the Comp/'s deferred tax assets and liabilities, under US 8Ad#s of December 31, 2008 and 2009 are as fol

As of December 31, 20(

As of December 31, 20C

SFAS No.10¢ SFAS No.10¢
SFAS No. 10¢ applied to US SFAS No. 10¢ SFAS No. 10¢ applied to US SFAS No.10¢
applied to GAAP US GAAP applied to GAAP US GAAP
Temporary differences Chile GAAP adjustments balance Chile GAAP adjustments balance
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Provision for doubtful accoun 231,12: — 231,12: 208,07: — 208,07:
Provision for obsolescent 552,04( — 552,04( 514,43t — 514,43¢
Provision for vacation 230,94 — 230,94 303,72! — 303,72!
Staff severance indemniti 267,24 — 267,24 277,61¢ — 277,61¢
Unrealized gains securitit 298,47 (18,23 280,24! 760,66t (13,329 747,33
Benefits for tax loss

carryforwards 1,857,24: — 1,857,24: 1,872,93i — 1,872,93i
Leased asse 46,42¢ — 46,42¢ 16,20z — 16,20:
Recoverable taxes provisit 44,72( — 44,72( 45,77 — 45,77
Currency translatio - — - 566,38t — 566,38t
Other 285,27 (37,297 247,98 627,00 (37,297 589,70:

Total deferred tax assets 3,813,50' (55,537) 3,757,97: 5,192,82 (50,62¢) 5,142,19.
Derivatives 303,17: — 303,17: 171,04¢ 1,883,85 2,054,89
Production expenst 4,918,96 — 4,918,96. 4,880,88: — 4,880,88:
Fixed assets depreciati 10,745,12 63,01¢ 10,808,14 11,212,73 54,68¢ 11,267,42
Inventories 791,94 — 791,94 11¢ — 11¢
Other 229,53: — 229,53: 846,69: — 846,69:

Total deferred tax liabilities 16,988,73 63,01¢ 17,051,75 17,111,48 1,938,54! 19,050,02
Net deferred tax liabilitie (13,175,22) (118,55 (13,293,76) (11,918,66) (1,989,161 (13,907,82)

The net current deferred tax asset as per US GAA8f ®ecember 31, 2008 and 2009 amounted to ThCh826 and ThCh$73,731, respectively. The net euomen
deferred tax liability as per USGAAP as of DecemBier2008 and 2009 amounted to ThCh$13,556,180haih$13,981,558, respectively.

In July 2006, FASB Interpretation No.48 Atcounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxeg'FIN 48") was issued. FIN 48 is an interpretation of SFAS, B0l seeks
reduce the diversity in practice associated witttaie aspects of recognition and measurement inwatting for income taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the agating for incom
taxes by prescribing a minimum threshold a tax tpwsiis required to meet before being recognizethin financial statements, and provides guidanceeongnition
classification, interest and penalties, and reguispanded disclosure with respect to the uncéytairnncome taxes.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 orudgnl, 2007, and there was no effect on the cateteld financial statements. As a result, the Cawpplid no
record any cumulative-effect adjustment relateddopting FIN 48. As of January 1, 2007, and for 1Benonth periods ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and @@
Company did not have any unrecognized tax benefitsthus, no interest and penalties related tocogrézed tax benefits were recorded. The Commaagtountin
policy is to accrue interest and penalties reldtednrecognized tax benefits as a component ofatipgr expenses. In addition, the Company does xmea that th
amount of unrecognized tax benefits will changaiicantly within the next 12 months.

The Parent and its Chilean subsidiaries file tegindalone income tax returns in Chile while iiagpal foreign subsidiaries file their income taeturns in their respecti

countries. The Chilean income tax returns of thee®aand its Chilean subsidiaries are open to exatioin by the relevant income tax authorities tog tax yeai
beginning in 2005 while the income tax returnshef principal foreign subsidiaries remain subjecudit for tax years beginning in 2002 (Argentinafl 2007 (UK).
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has not recoimcome taxes on undistributed earnings of itsifm subsidiaries amounting to approxime
ThCh$7,762,000 since these earnings are intendée tadefinitely reinvested. A deferred tax liayilimay be recognized when the Company ca
longer demonstrate that it plans to indefinitelinvest these undistributed earnings. It is not ficable to estimate the amount of additional tatkes
might be payable on such undistributed earni

Q) Shareholder¢ equity

As of December 31, 2009, out of the authorizedesleapital of the Company, 142,000,000 were regidten the New York stock exchange througt
American Depository Receipt (ADR) mechanism and Baak of New York is considered the shareholdecdeding to Circular 1375 issued by the £
on February 12, 1998, hereinaf“Circular 1375 SV states that the depositary shall be the sharehofdercord of the shares underlying the AD
Shareholders elected the members of the Boardretfors with each share having equal voting ric

In accordance with Chile regulations, otheeress of ThCh$8,359,163 included in shareholdegsiity as of December 31, 2009, are not distridatat
dividends.

h) Lease commitments
The Company leases certain office space andeodiquipment under longrm leases which are accounted for as capita¢$efis both Chilean and |

GAAP. Rentals are due in quarterly and monthlyalmsents through January 2012 and are stated inTHE.lease liabilities are recorded in o
payables. The related future minimum lease payn@ntf December 31, 2009 will be follov

Year ended December 31 ThCh$

2010 415,08
2011 320,39!
2012 320,39!
Total future minimum lease paymel 1,055,87
Interest (205,619
Present value of net minimum lease payments 850, 25¢

Amortization of assets recorded under capital leasencluded within depreciation expense and arrezito ThCh$197,198 and ThCh$78,152 for
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009, respgc

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2009 was ThCh$451,912, ThCh$643,77Thath$509,785, respectivel

i) Credit arrangements

The Company has renewable lines of credit gearents for shotierm Chilean peso borrowing with various Chilead éoreign banks totalling, in tl
aggregate ThCh$240,164,236 of which ThCh$199,286/2% available as of December 31, 2(
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

Concentrations of credit and other risks

Financial instruments which potentially subject tbempany to significant concentrations of credikrconsist principally of cash deposits, investr
securities and trade accounts receive

The Company keeps cash and cash equivalems;tehms investments and certain other financial imsants with several financial institutions. T
financial institutions are from Chile and otherdign countries. The Comparsypolicy is designed to limit exposure to any amgitution. The Compait
performs periodic evaluations of the relative dretiinding of these financial institutior

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to tradeounts receivable and notes receivables aietimue to the large number of entities comprigire
Company’s customer base and their dispersion arthendiorld. Sales to the Compasyive largest distributors, represented 29.4%5%6and 28.81%
total export revenues for the years ended Dece®be?007, 2008, and 2009, respectively. The Comigaexclusive agent and importer in the Ur
States, who imports and resells the Company’s mtsdio distributors who service all 50 states, was Companys largest single customer in 20
corresponding to 10.0% of the Comp’s total revenue (9.2% in 2008 and 9.2% in 20

In addition, the Company also has a concentratiaghe supply of certain raw materials. The Compaunghases more than 70% of its bottling needs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsingiexpense of ThCh$31,577,195, ThCh$31,957,33@,TdCh$34,859,536 was recorded in 2

)

a single suppliel
k) Advertising costs

2008, and 2009, respective
) Segment information

Revenues from sales of wine by major geographiasabased on location of customer are as folls
The sales are grouped by destination of the goalds

Years ended December 3.

2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

CHILEAN OPERATIONS 59,325,22 59,695,01 73,259,76
FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Europe 137,140,55 143,269,17 151,929,92
United State: 33,117,93 33,475,90 38,384,09
South Americe 28,941,94 27,759,89 35,781,02
Central America and Caribbe 18,594,38 19,018,222 18,926,29
Asia 13,046,66 14,355,23 17,871,43
Canade 11,197,63 12,516,89 12,603,17
Other 2,702,73! 4,665,59 4,839,03!
Total foreign operations 244,741,85 255,060,92 280,334,97
Total revenues 304,067,07 314,755,93 353,594,73
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

Long-lived assets by geographic area for each of theyteos presented are as folloy

December 31

2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$

CHILE OPERATIONS 228,248,06 238,526,90
FOREIGN OPERATIONS 27,001,941 22,118,20
Argentina 26,930,54 22,022,16
Brazil 24,811 39,64
England 46,58 56,39¢
Total long-lived asset® 255,250,00 260,645,10
1) Long-lived assets are comprised primarily of propertgnp equipment, goodwill and other intangible &

m) Allowances for doubtful accounts, income tax recovable, inventories and others

The following is a rollforward of the changes te tallowances for doubtful accounts, income tax vecable, inventories, and the allowance for ¢
accounts receivabl

Balance at Price-level Charged to Balance at
beginning restatement costs and end of
of year (1) expenses Write -offs Reclassification: year
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Year ended December 31, 2C
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun 610,00¢ (42,03)) (70,53%) 15,58¢ — 622,92¢
Allowance for inventorie 1,776,98: (122,43) 1,963,40 (1,013,619 — 2,624,33!
Income tax recoverab 407,19° (28,059) — (20,47)) — 368,66
Other accounts receivak 316,60° (21,819 361,34: — — 656,13:
Year ended December 31, 2C
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun 622,92¢ (50,910 (75,819 91,16( (1,18¢) 586,17!
Allowance for inventorie 2,624,33 (214,479 2,568,88' (1,064,31) (667,136 3,247,29.
Income tax recoverab 368,66 (30,130 (75,480 42,997 — 306,95t
Other accounts receivakt 656,13: (53,629 (213,94, — (75,597 312,97¢
Year ended December 31, 2C
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun 586,17: 13,79¢ (85,309 99,76¢ (85,38)) 529,04¢
Allowance for inventorie 3,247,29: 76,44¢ 1,584,50! (2,557,76) 690,89:- 3,041,38
Income tax recoverab 306,05¢ 7,20¢ - - (9,679 303,58
Other accounts receivakt 312,97( 7,36¢ (34,63)) 23,22: 176,19¢ 485,12¢
1) Reflects the effect of price-level restataitrfer comparative purposes on the allowance faibtfol accounts at the beginning of each periofysidd to

constant Chilean pesos of December 31, 2
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

n) Disclosure regarding interest capitalization
Years ended December 3:
2007 2008 2009
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Interest cost incurre 4,864,85: 6,238,55! 5,580,96!
Interest capitalized under Chile GAAP and US GA 636,50: 1,089,871 950,29(
0) Cash flow information

The cash flow statement under Chile GAAP does iffgrasignificantly from a US GAAP cash flow statent.

p) Estimated amortization expense of intangible

The estimated amortization expense in each of tceegding five years for intangible assets is elgueto be approximately ThCh$189,638 for 2!
ThCh $177,690 for 2011, ThCh $166,004 for 2012, T8§C47,079 for 2013, and ThCh $133,084 for 2(

q) Maturities of debt

The following payments of bank borrowings arshdis (short-term obligations, short-term portionlarig-term obligation and lontgrm debt), ai
scheduled to be paid during each of the following §ears as indicated belo

Year ended December 31 ThCh$
2010 35,309,99
2011 22,165,31
2012 4,289,42i
2013 4,289,42
2014 and thereafter 30,798,35
Total 96,852,51
r Disclosures regarding pos-retirement benefits

Please see Note 2 r) for a description of tam@anys accounting policies regarding severance indeawmithd Note 19 for the required disclosures t
Chile GAAP. Additional disclosures related to postirement benefit obligations that are requiredlamUS GAAP are not material to the finan
statements
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:
s) Deferred harvest cost

Harvest cost deferral is based on the earriggke of cropgrowing plus vinification activities. Over the cserof our farming activities undertaken fi
May through the following April, we incur direct dnindirect costs that benefit the crop of the sadesy year. Such costs relate to the usa
agricultural supplies, depreciation of machinerg aquipment used in the tilling of the land, andkeo labor. Paragraph 38 of Statement of Positian 8
3, “Accounting by Agricultural Producers and Agiitcwal Cooperatives” (“SOP 85-3") statedll' direct and indirect costs of growing crops shibbe
accumulated and growing crops should be reportétedbwer of cost or marketWe believe our practice of deferring these costsranognizing them
earnings upon the sale of inventories is consistétht the provisions of SOP 8%-The indirect costs are accumulated by vintageadiocated based
the actual production in kilograms which each \gets acreage (or, in our case, hectarage) prodlibese costs are included in prepaid expense
Chile GAAP and were reclasificated to inventory endS GAAP .

Additionally, we have certain deferred harvest sdgirect and indirect) related to our vinificatiopcle which are allocated to the liters producédw
individual vintages as they move through work ing@ss to the finished goods stage. These costmatate in deferred harvest costs from the end e
harvest cycle until the wine has been bottled ekpged at which point they become part of the abfhished goods inventor

t) Hedging activities

On January 1, 2009, the Company adopted théspwas of FASB Statement No. 16Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hegddhetivities
(included in Subtopic 815-1M@erivatives and Hedging — Overgl] which amends the disclosure requirements foivdtve instruments and hedg
activities. The amended disclosures require esttteprovide information to enable users of tharficial statements to understand how and why aty
uses derivative instruments, how derivative instnte and related hedged items are accounted far &®IC Topic 815, and how derivative instrum
and related hedged items affect an e’s financial position, financial performance, andfcélows

The Company uses forward foreign exchange contiactsder to hedge its risk against exchange natetufations with respect to foreign sales
interest-rate-related derivative instruments to aggnits exposure related to changes in interess @t its variableate debt instruments. The Comp
does not enter into derivative instruments for pagpose other than cash flow hedging. The Compaesg dot speculate using derivative instruments
Chile GAAP, the Company applies hedge accountiogidver for US GAAP the Company started applyinggeegiccounting beginning in year 20

By using derivative financial instruments to hedggosures to changes in foreign currency, the Cagnpaposes itself to credit risk and market
Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty ®rform under the terms of the derivative contréi¢hen the fair value of a derivative contract isipes,
the counterparty owes the Company, which creatsditaisk for the Company. When the fair value afemivative contract is negative, the Company ¢
the counterparty and, therefore, the Company i€rpbsed to the counterpaycredit risk in those circumstances. The Compaimnnizes counterpar
credit risk in derivative instruments by enteringpi transactions with highuality counterparties. The derivative instrumesritered into by the Compe
do not contain crec-risk-related contingent feature

Market risk is the adverse effect on the value déavative instrument that results from a chamgeurrency exchange rates, or interest rates. Taree
risk associated with the Compagycontracts is managed by establishing and monggrarameters that limit the types and degree oketaisk that ma
be undertaken. The Company maintains a foreigrepis& management strategy that uses derivativeum&nts to minimize significant, unanticipa
earnings fluctuations caused by foreign currencharge volatility
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

For USGAAP, beginning in 2009, changes in the ¥alue of forward foreign exchange contracts desaphas hedging instruments and that effect
offset the variability of cash flows associatedhafitreign sales are reported in accumulated othepeehensive income. These amounts subsequen
reclassified into earnings when the related salesallected. For year ended December 31, 2009Ctimepany had not detected any ineffectiveneess
hedging instrument:

The Company assesses interest rate risk by cofifiridantifying and monitoring changes in intereate exposures that may adversely impact exp
future cash flows and by evaluating hedging opputies. The Company maintains risk management obrslystems to monitor interest rate
attributable to both the Company’s outstandingavedasted debt obligations as well as the Companijsetting hedge positions. The risk manage
control systems involve the use of analytical téghes, including cash flow sensitivity analysis,estimate the expected impact of changes in irt
rates on the Comparg/future cash flows. Changes in the fair valuentérest rate swaps designated as hedging instrentestt effectively offset tt
variability of cash flows associated with variab#e, longterm debt obligations are reported in accumulatedroacomprehensive income. These amc
subsequently are reclassified into interest expessa yield adjustment of the hedged interest pajsnie the same period in which the related int
affects earnings

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Compeshyndt detected any ineffectivenees on its hedigistguments

As of December 31, 2009, approximately ThCh$9,83@2,6f deferred gains on derivative instruments eedated in other comprehensive income
expected to be reclassified to earnings duringriteet 12 months. Transactions and events expectetdor over the next twelve months that
necessitate reclassifying these derivatiggshs to earnings include the collection of foresgies. Since the Company started applying hedgguating
for US GAAP in 2009, the amounts of gains or losssdassified from accumulated other comprehensieeme into earnings for year 2009 is
significant. There were no cash flow hedges disoaet during 2007, 2008 or 20C

u) Additional disclosure for equity method investments
Summary combined audited financial informatfon the Companys investee companies as of December 31, 2008 ab@ &0d for the years enc
December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, is as foll
2008 2009
Financial position: ThCh$ ThCh$
Current assetl 15,739,92 13,372,84
Property, plant, and equipment, | 16,732,41 16,885,93
Other assets 53,024 42,87
Total assets 32,525,36 30,301,65
Current liabilities 9,544,12! 7,374,03!
Long-term debt 5,799,59: 4,569,21
Total liabilities 15,343,71 11,943,25
Equity attributable to parent company 17,181,63 18,358,38
Equity attributable to noncontrolling interest 16 18
Total liabilities and equity 32,525,36 30,301,65
2007 2008 2009
Results of operation: ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$

Sales 20,374,53 17,386,33 16,228,45
Operating income 2,279,69. 2,569,19; 2,178,67.
Net income attributable to parent company 1,365,45! 1,114,31 1,482,75
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 137 111 14¢
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:
V) US GAAP condensed balance shee
Certain reclassifications (2008 and 2009) and aafjeists would be made to the Chile GAAP balancetshemder to present amounts in accordance
the presentation requirements under US GAAP. Haests are included in prepaid expenses accotdi@hile GAAP while harvest costs are inclu
in inventories for US GAAP. The adjustment of thistcvalue of wine is included in current liabilgien Chile GAAP while in US GAAP, it is included
inventories. The detail of the nature of the adnesits to US GAAP is disclosed in Note 37

The effect of the following reclassifications andjustments in the respective columns discloses atsoas they would be presented in a US G
condensed balance she

Chile

GAAP Adjusment US US GAAP
2008 balance GAAP balance

ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Current assel 250,657,31 — 250,657,31
Property, plant and equipme 236,575,68 (1,917,369 234,658,32
Other asset 18,674,31 753,25¢ 19,427,57
Total assets 505,907,32 (1,164,10) 504,743,21
Current liabilities 162,989,99 4,427,04 167,417,04
Long-term liabilities 85,875,51 1,863,76. 87,739,27
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Comg 257,041,81 (7,454,92)) 249,586,89
Equity attributable to noncontrolling intere 7 — 7
Total liabilities and equity 505,907,32 (1,164,10) 504,743,21

Chile

GAAP Adjusment US US GAAP
2009 Balance GAAP Balance

ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
Current assel 250,882,64 11,081,47 261,964,11
Property, plant and equipme 241,474,43 (1,950,83) 239,523,59
Other asset 19,170,66' 639,26: 19,809,92
Total assets 511,527,74 9,769,89! 521,297,64
Current liabilities 125,109,13 7,468,27 132,577,41
Long-term liabilities 79,009,69 3,677,371 82,687,06
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Comg 307,408,92 (1,375,74) 306,033,17
Equity attributable to noncontrolling intere 4 — 4)
Total liabilities and equity 511,527,74 9,769,89! 521,297,64
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

w) Income statement (certain line items presentatior

Certain reclassifications would be made to the €€BIRAP income statement in order to present tHeviahg line items in conformity with US GAAF

The detail of the nature of adjustment to US GAAMRisclosed in Note 37 11

Operating incomi
Non-operating income (expens

Income taxes

Net income attributable to the shareholders ofGbepany
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling intere

Net income

Operating incomi
Non-operating income (expens

Income taxes

Net income attributable to ttshareholders of the Compa
Net loss attributable thoncontrolling interests

Net income

Operating incomi
Non-operating income (expens

Income taxes

Net income attributable to ttshareholders of the Compa
Net loss attributable thoncontrolling interests

Net income

2007
Chile
GAAP Adjusment US US GAAP
Balance GAAP Reclassification Balance
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
50,267,13 (146,879 (309,66 49,810,58
(5,332,50) 1,138,73 309,66 (3,884,10)
(8,688,45) 260,83. — (8,427,62)
36,246,16 1,252,691 = 37,498,85
(9,297 — — (9,292)
36,236,87 1,252,69! — 37,489,56
Chile
GAAP Adjusment US US GAAP
Balance GAAP Reclassification Balance
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
50,102,08 (166,769 581,79: 50,517,10
(6,866,45)) (2,129,61) (581,79)) (9,577,85)
(8,892,20) 266,37+ — (8,625,83)
34,343,42 (2,030,01) — 32,313,40
(23 — — (23
34,343,39 (2,030,01) — 32,313,38
Chile
GAAP Adjusment US US GAAP
Balance GAAP Reclassification Balance
ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$ ThCh$
44,607,21 (34,819 131,11¢( 44,703,51
8,259,41 (581,19¢) (131,11() 7,547,111
(8,706,181 45,32% — (8,660,85)
44,160,45 (570,68) — 43,589,76
) — — 8
44,160,44 (570,68)) — 43,589,76
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:
X) Recently issued USGAAP accounting proncouncement pficable to the Company

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-18vdRue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-DeliveraliRevenue Arrangements (EITF Issue No108-
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveral). ASU 2009-13 amends ASC 628-to eliminate the requirement that all undelideetements ha
vendor specific objective evidence of selling prf6SOE) or third party evidence of selling pricePH) before an entity can recognize the portionn
overall arrangement fee that is attributable tongethat already have been delivered. In the abseh®#SOE and TPE for one or more deliveres
undelivered elements in a multipdéement arrangement, entities will be requiredstingate the selling prices of those elements. Mezadl arrangeme
fee will be allocated to each element (both detideand undelivered items) based on their relagléng prices, regardless of whether those seltiriges
are evidenced by VSOE or TPE or are based on thiy'srestimated selling price. Application of theesidual method”of allocating an overe
arrangement fee between delivered and undelivdezdemts will no longer be permitted upon adoptib®8U 200943. Additionally, the new guidan
will require entities to disclose more informatiahout their multiple-element revenue arrangemekfid) 200943 is effective prospectively for rever
arrangements entered into or materially modifiefisnal years beginning on or after June 15, 2@4¥ly adoption is permitted. The Company exf
that the adoption of ASU 20-13 will not have a material impact on its consdiédbfinancial statement

The FASB issued ASU 2009-16, Transfers andiGeg/(Topic 860): Accounting for Transfers of Firidal Assets (FASB Statement No. 18@&countin
for Transfers of Financial Asse— an amendment of FASB Statement No.)l#i0December 2009. ASU 200% removes the concept of a qualify
special-purpose entity (QSPE) from ASC Topic 86@nEfers and Servicing, and the exception fromyapplASC 81010 to QSPEs, thereby requir
transferors of financial assets to evaluate whettheronsolidate transferees that previously wersictered QSPEs. Transfelianposed constraints
transferees whose sole purpose is to engage imitsgsion or assebacked financing activities are evaluated in theesananner under the provisions
the ASU as transferamposed constraints on QSPEs were evaluated uhéeprovisions of Topic 860 prior to the effectivate of the ASU whe
determining whether a transfer of financial asse@lifies for sale accounting. The ASU also clasfthe Topic 860 saecounting criteria pertaining
legal isolation and effective control and createmarstringent conditions for reporting a transfeagortion of a financial asset as a sale. The A$
effective for periods beginning after December 28)9, and may not be early adopted. The Compangotxphat the adoption of ASU 20a8-will not
have a material impact on its consolidated findret@tements

The FASB issued ASU 2009, Consolidations (Topic 810): Improvements toafitial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Vat@lnterest Entitie
(FASB Statement No. 16 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) December 2009. ASU 2009, which amends the Variable Interest Ei
(VIE) Subsections of ASC Subtopic 810-10, Consatiaa— Overall, revises the test for determining the prynaeneficiary of a VIE from a primari
quantitative risks and rewards calculation basedhenVIE’s expected losses and expected residual returagptomarily qualitative analysis based
identifying the party or related-party group (ifyarwith (a) the power to direct the activities thmbst significantly impact the VIE’ economi
performance and (b) the obligation to absorb loséger the right to receive benefits from, the \ftEat could potentially be significant to the VIEhe
ASU requires kickaut rights and participating rights to be ignoracevaluating whether a variable interest holdertmtee power criterion unless th:
rights are unilaterally exercisable by a singletyar related party group. The ASU also revisesdtikeria for determining whether fees paid by atitg
to a decision maker or another service providerarariable interest in the entity and revisesTbpic 810 scope characteristic that identifies matitye as
a VIE if the equity-at-risk investors as a grouprdd have the right to control the entity througkit equity interests to address the impact of kigk
rights and participating rights on the analysisiafy, the ASU adds a new requirement to reconsidesther an entity is a VIE if the holders of thpiigy
investment at risk as a group lose the power, tiitrdhe rights of those interests, to direct théviigts that most significantly impact the ViEeconomi
performance, and requires a company to reassess @mgoing basis whether it is deemed to be thmagwyi beneficiary of a VIE. ASU 20097 i<
effective for periods beginning after December 29 and may not be early adopted. The Companycexgigat the adoption of ASU 20A9- will not
have a material impact on its consolidated findret@tements
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Note 37— Differences between Chilean and United States geradlly accepted accounting principles, continue:

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accountingn@&eds Update (“ASU”) 2010-06. The ASU amends ASID,&air Value Measurements a
Disclosures(SFAS No. 157) to add new requirements for disaleswabout transfers into and out of Levels 1 areh@ separate disclosures al
purchases, sales, issuances, and settlementsngelati Level 3 measurements. It also clarifies egstfair value disclosures about the leve
disaggregation and about inputs and valuation igcles used to measure fair value. This ASU amenddagce on employerdlisclosures abo
postretirement benefit plan assets under ASC CbF)pensation — Retirement Benefiis require that disclosures be provided by ckesassets inste
of by major categories of assets. The guidanchenAiSU is effective for the first reporting peri¢idcluding interim periods) beginning after Decem
15, 2009, except for the requirement to provideltbeel 3 activity of purchases, sales, issuanaes settlements on a gross basis, which will becéffe
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2GiQ] for interim periods within those fiscal yedrsthe period of initial adoption, entities wilbhbe
required to provide the amended disclosures for @myious periods presented for comparative pugpddewever, those disclosures are require
periods ending after initial adoption. Early adoptis permitted. The Company is in the processtéminining the effects of adoption of this new gt
on it financial position, results of operations aagh flows, and respective disclosu

In April 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Stards Update (“ASU”) 2010-1Klilestone Method of Revenue Recognitianconsensus of the FA
Emerging Issues Task Force (Issue No9P8Fhis ASU provides guidance about the critehiat should be met to use the milestone methodvefina
recognition. A vendor can recognize consideratiat is contingent on achieving a milestone in itrety as revenue in the period in which the nidae
is achieved only if the milestone meets all of fitlowing criteria to be considered substantive:tfle milestone payment is commensurate with eitte
level of effort required to achieve the milestomgt® enhancement in the value of the item deli/ef2) the milestone relates solely to past peréoroe
and (3) the milestone is reasonable relative tdeliverables and payment terms in the arranger\anbifurcation of an individual milestone is alled
Each milestone in an arrangement shall be evaluatddually. A vendors decision to use the milestone method of reveecegnition for transactio
within the scope of this ASU is a policy electidintities will be required to disclose their accongtpolicy related to the recognition of milest
payments. For entities electing to apply the milestmethod, certain disclosures are required. Tiendments in the ASU are effective prospectivet
milestones achieved in fiscal years, and interimoge within those years, beginning on or aftereJtif, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. The Cory
expects that the adoption of ASU 2--17 will not have a material impact on its consdiédbfinancial statement
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EXHIBIT 12.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Eduardo Guilisasti Gana, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Faf¥F of Vifia Conchay Toro S.A.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescontain any untrue statement of a material facimit to state a material fact necessary to makesthtemen
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsand other financial information included irstreport, fairly present in all material respeitts financia
condition, results of operations and cash flowghefcompany as of and for, the periods presentédsmeport;

4.  The companyg’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitie establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defined in Exch:
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in Excharmct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the compand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls andqutores, or caused such disclosure controls anceguoes to be designed under our supervision, torertha
material information relating to the company, irtihg its consolidated subsidiaries, is made knowng by others within those entities, particulatlying the period i
which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over finahceporting, or caused such internal control ofieancial reporting to be designed under our suipem, tc
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyabfl financial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for external purposes in acoare with general
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comfmujsclosure controls and procedures and presémtis report our conclusions about the effectesmof th
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the &tttegeriod covered by this report based on swekuation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in ¢bexpanys internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the period covered by the annualnt
that has materially affected, or is reasonablyljike materially affect, the company’s internal twhover financial reporting; and

5.  The company’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financial reporting, to t
company’s auditors and the audit committee of ttramany’s board of directors (or persons perforntirggequivalent functions):

(@) Al significant deficiencies and materigéaknesses in the design or operation of interaatral over financial reporting which are reasowalitely to
adversely affect the company’s ability to recondigess, summarize and report financial informatang

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thavdlves management or other employees who havegréfisant role in the compang’internal control o
financial reporting.

Date: June 30, 201

/s EDUARDO GUILISASTI GANA

Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 12.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Osvaldo Solar Venegas, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fao¥F of Vifia Conchay Toro S.A.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doescontain any untrue statement of a material facimit to state a material fact necessary to makesthtemen
made, in light of the circumstances under whicthsstatements were made, not misleading with regpebe period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statetsand other financial information included irstreport, fairly present in all material respeitts financia
condition, results of operations and cash flowghefcompany as of and for, the periods presentédsmeport;

4.  The companyg’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitie establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (as defined in Exch:
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internatrobover financial reporting (as defined in Excharmct Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the compand have:

(@) Designed such disclosure controls andqutores, or caused such disclosure controls anceguoes to be designed under our supervision, torertha
material information relating to the company, irtihg its consolidated subsidiaries, is made knowng by others within those entities, particulatlying the period i
which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over finahceporting, or caused such internal control ofieancial reporting to be designed under our suipem, tc
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfyabfl financial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for external purposes in acoare with general
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the comfmujsclosure controls and procedures and presémtis report our conclusions about the effectesmof th
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the &tttegeriod covered by this report based on swekuation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in ¢bexpanys internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the period covered by the annualnt
that has materially affected, or is reasonablyljike materially affect, the company’s internal twhover financial reporting; and

5.  The company’ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financial reporting, to t
company’s auditors and the audit committee of ttramany’s board of directors (or persons perforntirggequivalent functions):

(@) Al significant deficiencies and materigéaknesses in the design or operation of interaatral over financial reporting which are reasowalitely to
adversely affect the company’s ability to recondigess, summarize and report financial informatang

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thavdlves management or other employees who havegréfisant role in the compang’internal control o
financial reporting.

Date: June 30, 201

/s/ OSVALDO SOLAR VENEGAS

Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 13.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Vifia Conghdoro S.A. (the “Company”) on Form Z9-as submitted to the Securities and Exchange Cssioni on the da
hereof (the “Report”)l, Eduardo Guilisasti Gana, Chief Executive Offioéthe Company and |, Osvaldo Solar Venegas, GFiredncial Officer of the Company, certi
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipot$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 622@hat:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseétion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; as amended; a

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mnets, in all material respects, the financial ctiadiand results of operations of the Comps
/s EDUARDO GUILISASTI GANA
Eduardo Guilisasti Gar

Chief Executive Office
June 30, 201

/s/ OSVALDO SOLAR VENEGAS
Osvaldo Solar Veneg:

Chief Financial Office

June 30, 201




